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The book “Untold Secrets of Nazi Germany” is devoted to secrets and ambiguous facts in the history of Germany and, especially, to people who are associated with them.

This collection is compiled from previous books, and also includes new articles on missiles and jet engines.

In the history of Nazi Germany there are many unsolved mysteries. Those who are fond of the history of World War II are interested in such secrets of the Third Reich as the construction of dungeons and secret bases, the development of the submarine fleet and submarines and also the fate of gold and museum valuables of Hitler's Germany.

This book is a collection of essays and articles that will be able to provide answers to some of these mysteries.
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Unfortunately, English is not the author's native language. All errors and inaccuracies in the book remain on his conscience.

Nazi underground plant in Austria
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Landslides are not uncommon in Austria, in its mountainous regions. In some cases, they are so powerful that as a result, houses are destroyed, large areas of the forest die. Frequent rains in the foothills are the main, but not the only reasons. Loss of soil also occurs in places where underground there is a giant network of underground tunnels and bunkers - the former military factories of the Third Reich, stretching for tens of kilometers.

Austrian find

These secret underground factories are one of the most ambitious projects of the Nazis. Work on the creation of a new "miracle weapon", which was supposed to turn the tide of a long-lost war and bring victory to the "Third Reich", did not stop there until the very surrender of Nazi Germany.

According to experts, the largest object of this kind on the territory of Austria was an underground complex code-named "Bergkristall" ("Mountain Crystal"). The total area of ​​its mines and adits is supposedly almost 300 thousand square meters. Late last year, the entrance to this underground labyrinth was discovered by the film crew of the Austrian documentary filmmaker Andreas Sulzer in the vicinity of the town of St. Georg an der Gusen, about 20 kilometers from Linz.

The filmmakers worked there on a project about the V-1 and V-2 missile program. The film was shot at the request of the German TV company ZDF. Its creators tried to reconstruct the details of the biography of SS Obergruppenfuehrer General Hans Kammler, responsible for the Third Reich's missile program.

Prisoners at construction

Some experts believe that it was in these underground laboratories that work was carried out to create the atomic bomb. There are grounds for such assumptions: the level of radiation here and today exceeds the norm.

According to other historians, the network of labyrinths found by Austrian filmmakers was occupied, first of all, by the Nazi underground factory B 8 Bergkristall, which, in particular, produced the world's first Messerschmitt ME262 turbojet military aircraft.

According to documents found in the course of archival research, a military facility near St. Georg an der Gusen was built in 1944. It was built by forced laborers from Eastern Europe and prisoners of the nearby Mauthausen concentration camp.

According to the Austrian historian Johannes Sachslehner, whose findings are cited by the weekly Spiegel, out of 60-70 thousand prisoners involved in the facility in St. Georg an der Gusen, about 10 thousand died - due to the harsh working conditions and abuse. In total, the number of those who died during the construction of Nazi underground factories amounted to about 320 thousand people, scientists believe.

No documentation

By order of the Austrian authorities, after the Second World War, most of the Nazi underground tunnels (at least, the entrances to them) were filled with concrete or clogged with earth. But a number of labyrinths were simply freed from equipment, the dismantling of which was carried out by representatives of the victorious powers, and some of them were rented out. Austrian farmers used the undergrounds, for example, to store agricultural machinery and grow mushrooms.

But over time, water began to seep through the arches of the underground halls, they became damp and began to collapse, and repairs required a lot of money. The land on which the network of former Nazi secret sites in Austria is located is managed by the Austrian Federal Real Estate Company (Bundesimmobiliengesellschaft, BIG). In total, we are talking about about 150 tunnels. It is not clear what to do with them. Even just using these land plots for residential or office development is dangerous: the risk of landslides is too great.

The 10-kilometer tunnel, where the most secret weapon of the Third Reich was supposedly developed, is almost completely walled up. Only two kilometers of the labyrinth remained intact. BIG prohibits excavation in it due to increased radiation. And there is no documentation related to the object. According to Andreas Sulzer, based on the information obtained in the archives, it was taken out in 1955 by the command of the Soviet troops stationed here at that time. There is no access to it now.

Karl Dönitz. Father of the German Kriegsmarine
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Karl Dönitz was born on September 16, 1891 in Grünau near Berlin and was the second and last child of the optician engineer Emil Dönitz, who worked in the famous firm of Karl Zeiss in Jena. The children were left without mother early. Emil Dönitz understood that only a good education would provide his sons with a decent future. Karl studied first at the Zerbst gymnasium, and then at a real school in Jena. On April 1, 1910, young Dönitz began training at the naval school in Kiel.

While still a cadet, Dönitz was an industrious and withdrawn young man who considered "devotion to duty as the main moral value." During his studies he was not particularly distinguished and did not enjoy the respect of his comrades. In 1912 he was transferred to the naval school in Murvik, and then, to complete the training, he was appointed watch officer for the light cruiser Breslau. In the autumn of 1913, Dönitz was promoted to the lieutenants of the zur zeye. During the Balkan crisis, Breslau participated in the international blockade of Montenegro.

The beginning of the First World War found "Breslau" in the Mediterranean Sea. He managed to escape from the British to Turkey, where the cruiser joined the fleet of the Ottoman Empire and fought in the Black Sea against the Russians. During one of the raids "Breslau" broke into the harbor of Novorossiysk, sank all the ships there and destroyed the oil storage.

In July 1915, at the entrance to the Bosporus Strait, Breslau was blown up by a Russian mine. While the cruiser was repaired, Dönitz settled in the Air Force and took part in the fighting at Gallipoli as an arrow and a manat. In February 1916, he was promoted to the Ober-lieutenants of the zurye, and in the summer he was recalled to Germany and sent to retrain to an officer of the submarine fleet, on whom high hopes were placed.

From October 1, 1916 to January 1917, Dönitz went through the necessary training and continued his service in the Adriatic, at U-39, commanded by Lieutenant-Captain Walter Folstman, as a torpedo officer. Here Karl Dönitz acquired the necessary practical skills. He proved himself well, was summoned to Kiel, completed courses there for submarine commanders, and in January 1918 received a UC-25 displacement of 417 tons, which was both a mine guard and a torpedo submarine. Dönitz was ordered to act in the Mediterranean.

By the time Dönitz brought the boat to the first patrol, it was clear that the German total underwater war did not meet expectations and was defeated, as the British developed a reliable system of convoys and possessed powerful deep-sea bombs. Nevertheless, Dönitz excelled. First he sank the steamer, and then boldly penetrated the internal raid of the Sicilian port of Augusta and sank a 5,000-ton Italian coal miner, who took over the English floating shipyard "Cyclops." Even though, returning to the base, Dönitz landed the boat on the bank; Kaiser awarded him the Order of the Hohenzollern House. To the great shame of Karl Dönitz, he was stripped off by an Austrian destroyer.

UC-25 repaired in July, and Dönitz again brought her into the sea. He landed mines in the area of ​​Cape Corfu and torpedoed 4 ships. One jumped ashore, while others, apparently, drowned. Dönitz did not have time to follow them, because he could destroy a strong escort. This trip was a great achievement, especially considering that the obsolete UC-25 could carry only 5 torpedoes. As a reward, Dönitz received a more high-speed and larger UB-68 submarine. Unfortunately, the crew was inexperienced, and the boat was unstable when submerged.

On October 4, 1918, Dönitz attacked a British convoy, sank the vehicle "Upek" (3883 tons) and ordered to sink. The inexperienced mechanic was confused, and the submarine, taking a dangerous trim, went to the bottom with a stone. Fearing that the huge pressure would crush the hull, Dönitz ordered to blow the tanks, give full speed and put the rudders in a horizontal position. The boat stopped at a depth of 102 meters - 32 meters below the maximum permissible limit of immersion. Tanks with compressed air were cracked, and the submarine, which lost control, was thrown to the surface of the sea.

Looking out of the hatch, Denis found that he was in the center of the British convoy, and the destroyers that were spewing fire were flying toward him at full speed. He quickly closed the hatch and ordered to dive, but the compressed air ran out, and it was impossible to do. As the shells lay down a few meters from the boat's hull, Dönitz ordered the crew to leave it. The mechanic opened the kingstones to flood the submarine, but hesitated and flew with her into the sea. The picture of his death pursued Dönitz for the rest of his life. In addition to the mechanic, two more people drowned. The rest were picked up by the British.

Dönitz came to the camp for officers in Redmyer near Sheffield. His chances of getting a job in his homeland by profession would have been more if he had repatriated before thousands of other officers. For this, Dönitz feigned madness. According to the testimony of Wolfgang Frank, he, like a child, played with empty cans and small porcelain dogs, while even the camp authorities did not find him crazy. Many years later, his former comrades in the camp were indignant when Dönitz, whom they remembered as abnormal, occupied the highest posts in the Kriegsmarine. Karl Dönitz instantly recovered from his "illness" in July 1919, as soon as he returned to Germany.

Career advancement

In 1919, many young naval officers were clear that there are more important concerns than to revive the inglorious monarchy. Dönitz, as he himself admitted, was a monarchist both in his conviction and in his upbringing. Theoretically, he also later recognized the monarchy as the most ideal form of state structure, and Hitler's sarcastic statement that the army is Christian, the Air Force is National Socialist, and the Navy is Kaiser, and also refers to Dönitz. But Dönitz continued to serve not therefore. The people and homeland for such officers as Dönitz were above all. He continued his service at the military base in Kiel, but at heart he yearned to return to the submarine fleet, which was to be reborn, despite the fact that the Treaty of Versailles forbade Germany to have it.

In 1920, Dönitz transferred to torpedo boats and became commander of the T-157 at the base of Swinemünde on the coast of Pomerania. In the beginning of 1921 he became a lieutenant-captain, and in 1923 returned to Kiel, as an expert of the mine and torpedo-reconnaissance inspection and participated in the development of a new model of a deep-sea bomb. In the autumn of 1924, after short courses of staff officers, led by Raeder, Dönitz was transferred to the naval command in Berlin. Here he participated in the development of a new naval statute and provisions on military crimes and fought the penetration of Bolshevism into the fleet. Dönitz, in the nature of his work, was forced to maintain constant contact with the Reichstag, which turned him into an aversion to politics.

Working at the headquarters, Dönitz showed himself to be a diligent, self-critical, demanding workaholic employee. He was well aware of the steps that the fleet management took to circumvent the prohibitive articles of the Treaty of Versailles. In August 1927, such information leaked to the press, which caused a "scandal Lomana." What Denis knew about these violations, remained a mystery, since he never mentioned this and the word. In 1928, he continued his service in the Baltic, the navigator of the cruiser Nymph.

The involvement in the Loman case did not prevent the promotion of Dönitz in the service. In November, he was appointed commander of the 4th torpedo semi-flotilla, which included 4 torpedo boats and 600 men under the command of 28 officers. Dönitz went to work with his head, practicing maneuvers that closely resembled those that German submariners used later during attacks from the above-ground situation. After Dönitz distinguished himself at the autumn maneuvers of 1929, Rear Admiral Walter Gladysh, who guided the secret preparation for the submarine war, drew attention to him by "destroying" the convoy of the conventional enemy.

From the end of 1930 to 1934, Dönitz served in the headquarters of the North Sea district, in Wilhelmshaven, where he was engaged in ensuring internal security (the struggle with the Communists). In early 1933, he was sent to a long voyage. Denis visited the British and Dutch eastern colonies, Malta, the Red Sea, the coast of India, Ceylon, Batavia, Java, went to Singapore. In October he received the rank of frigate-captain. In 1934, in order to improve the English language, Dönitz visited England, and after returning, received under the command of the light cruiser Emden.

On February 1, 1935 Adolf Hitler ordered the construction of submarines, and six weeks later refused to comply with the articles of the Treaty of Versailles, which limited the military capabilities of Germany. June 6, 1935 Karl Dönitz was appointed "Fuyer der U-boote" (FdU) and headed the 1st submarine flotilla. In September, Germany already had 11 small (258 tons) submarines. On October 1, Dönitz became captain of the zur.

Karl Dönitz was at a disadvantage. Supporters of the "big ships" in Berlin were of great strength, believing that the submarines defeated in the First World War were outdated and did not represent a special value for the Kriegsmarine. Unlike Dönitz, they did not understand that since 1918 the capabilities of the submarine fleet had advanced far ahead. Yet OKM allowed Dönitz to build "his" submarine fleet and did not interfere (although he did not help) in his affairs.

By 1938, Dönitz developed tactics of group underwater attacks ("wolf packs"). Now he needed 620-ton submarines (type VII), capable of operating in the Atlantic. But admirals, inclined to giant mania, conceived the construction of 2000-ton submarines, which, in their opinion, were more wear-resistant. Dönitz in the submarine was interested in other qualities of submarines: invisibility, invulnerability for deep-seated bombs and low production costs. In the end, Dönitz was allowed to do what he wanted. The Second World War fully confirmed his correctness.

The Führer of the submarines enjoyed the full support of the fleet commander Ralph Carls, but Grand Admiral Raeder planned against the United Kingdom a "war of cruisers" and did not pay attention to the construction of the submarine fleet. Dönitz buried Röder with memorandums, in which he stated that 300 submarines would win the Reich war with Britain. Gross-admiral, as if mocking him, invariably politely refused.

Again the war

Unlike Raeder, Dönitz understood that the war would begin before 1944. He felt that the Polish campaign of Germany did not get off. September 3, 1939, when Britain and France declared war on Germany, Dönitz was at his command post, which was a group of small wooden buildings in the suburb of Wilhelmshaven. The news of the beginning of the war he met with a flood of indecent battle. At this time, he had only 56 boats, of which only 22 were large enough to conduct an underwater war in the ocean. Nevertheless, they already patrolled in the sea and placed mine obstacles along the coast of England.

On September 4, Lieutenant-captain Herbert Schulze, commander of the U-48, reported that he had sunk at the coast of Scotland, Royal Sept. This ship was the first of 2603 Allied ships launched to the bottom by German submarines. By the end of the month, Dönitz's submarine fleet sank many enemy ships, with a total displacement of 175,000 tons, proving that it was a very effective means of waging war at sea. However, the production of boats froze at the same level - 2 pieces per month.

Further more. Denis personally planned the operation in Scapa Flow, the "bedroom of His Majesty's Navy", which was carried out on U-47 by Lieutenant-Commander Gunther Prin on the night of October 13-14. The battleship Royal Oak was sunk, which is a phenomenal result. When the U-47 returned to the base, there was already Grand Admiral Raeder. He congratulated the crew on success and immediately, on the spot, produced Dönitz in the rear admirals.

Dönitz could not provide a steady increase in the tonnage of sunken enemy ships. When his submarines returned from the first combat patrol in the Atlantic, there were no others to send them for replacement. In addition, autumn storms, common to the North Atlantic, made it difficult to hunt for Allied ships. The tonnage of enemy ships sunk by the German fleet fell from 175,000 tons in September to 125,000 in October, 80,000 in November and 125,000 in December. From January 1 to March 31, losses totaled only 108 ships (343,610 tons). For the UK, these losses were entirely permissible. The total tonnage of all its ships was 24 million tons and a month from the shipyards of English shipyards another 200,000 tons came down.

Dönitz hoped that in the spring his boats would again start smashing the sea trade communications, but Raeder ordered him to support the invasion of Norway. Dönitz tried to protest, but everything was useless. April was the most unfortunate month for German submariners. Allies suffered the smallest losses since the beginning of the war - only 20 ships (slightly more than 80000 tons).

The torpedo crisis receded into the background in June 1940, when the fall of France gave Dönitz new bases, located much closer to the British communications and allowing increasing the time of combat patrolling. Black days have come for Great Britain. In June, 58 ships were lost (284113 tons), in July-38 (195825 tons), in August-56 (267618 tons), in September-59 (295335 tons), in October-63 (352407 tons). Because of the weather conditions, November and December were less "productive" for the Germans - 32 ships (146613 tons) and 37 ships (212590 tons), respectively. The figures quoted smacked for Britain by a catastrophe: in 7 months they lost 343 ships with a total displacement of 1754501 tons.

The number of sunken ships exceeded the number built, despite the assistance received by Churchill from his "cousin" in the White House. October was a particularly disturbing month. Somehow after the war, Churchill confessed that only during the "battle for the Atlantic" felt a real threat to England.

It is surprising in this connection the number of submarines that were in the possession of Dönitz. On September 1, 1941, under his command, there were only 57 submarines. Their condition could not be criticized at all. There was not enough time to repair the damage received from ice and deep-sea bombs. Several submarines in general could only be used as floating targets. Only by the end of 1940 the production of boats was increased from 2 to 6 per month. But even now there were not enough qualified specialists and materials left for the construction of large ships. The fact that the distribution of resources was handled by Hermann Goering also worsened. In the critical period of the "battle for the Atlantic", Dönitz and his people had to wage a "war of the poor".

In August 1940, Dönitz moved his command post to Paris. Even in the magnificent capital of France, his headquarters did not contain anything superfluous and ostentatious. The Spartan spirit and the self-discipline of Dönitz did not allow it. He never overeated and did not drink, went to bed at exactly 10 o'clock (if the service allowed), but did not have anything against his people arranging "all-night drinking". Dönitz personally met every boat returning to the base, was present at the release of each class of the submariners' school, and arranged special sanatoriums for their people, where they could relieve the tension accumulated during prolonged patrols.

He took care that the sanatoriums were properly supplied with the best food and wine, which were sold at discounted prices. He also gave submariners a salary in francs so that his charges could be fully recreated from the sea in beautiful France, what the submariners did, buying the best women and the best wine. For all this, and loved by the submariners. They called him "Vater Karl" ("Dad Karl") or "Der Loewe" ("Lion") behind the eyes.

As assumed by Dönitz (already vice-admiral), the British improved the protection of convoys and developed anti-submarine tactics. In March 1941, 5 submarines were lost, and with them several of the best crews. In addition, the Royal Air Force had "long-range" anti-submarine aircraft, and Dönitz had to move the operational zone further to the west, to the area between the British bases in Canada and Iceland, where the planes did not reach.

The strategy of the underwater war of Dönitz was very simple: to sink as many enemy vessels as possible and do it as quickly as possible. If his submarines can drown ships faster than the British can build them, the United Kingdom will be put on its knees. Denis was angry when Hitler decided to transport 20 submarines to the Mediterranean, where they were supposed to weaken the British's dead grip on the lines of communication between the Axis countries in North Africa. Dönitz knew that the submarine entering the Mediterranean Sea, because of strong western currents in the Strait of Gibraltar, would not return.

He managed to dissuade the Fuhrer from this step in the spring and summer, then Hitler reduced the number of boats to 10, but in autumn Dönitz had to carry out the order. Because of this, he was forced to curtail large-scale actions in the North Atlantic. Nevertheless, until October 7, 1941, Dönitz could not say that the year was unsuccessful. The Allies lost 1299 ships (4328558 tons). Raeder and his staff determined that Canadian and British shipyards produce only 1,600,000 tons per year. It became clear that Germany was winning the "battle for the Atlantic".

All hopes have buried the Japanese attack on Pearl Harbor. Hitler committed a very great foolishness, having followed on December 11 the example of an eastern ally, declaring war on the United States. Now the huge production capacity of American industrial enterprises worked against the Reich.

The US entry into the Second World War meant for the German submarine fleet only one thing: an early defeat.

The proximity of the end

Unlike Hitler, Goering and most admirals, Dönitz was not inclined to underestimate the enormous potential of the US military machine. But America still enjoyed the world and was not fully ready for war. In addition, the anti-British American admiral Ernst J. King was in no hurry to take advantage of the experience accumulated by the British in the fight against German submarines. American ships walked alone, without escort, with burning lights and without any anti-submarine security measures. January 15, 1942 Dönitz ordered his submariners to sink enemy ships off the coast of America.

Only in January they sent 62 ships (327357 tons) to the bottom. By May 10, 303 ships had already been sunken (2015252 tons). Only in July, the Americans began to form convoys. Happy times came to an end. On January 22, Hitler and OKM decided that Norway was threatened with an invasion, and ordered to send all submarines to its shores for reconnaissance. Enraged Dönitz could convince Hitler to cancel the order, but lost 20 boats.

Only 10-12 boats could hunt from the American coast. Denis felt his complete impotence. To comfort him, in March 1942 Hitler made him a complete admiral.

The number of German submarines continued to grow slowly. In 1942, 20 submarines were to leave the slipways every month. But production lagged behind the charts.

In the summer of 1942 the boats of Dönitz again began to attack convoys in the North Atlantic. But it became more difficult to do than before, as the allies developed new anti-submarine tactics and acquired new technology. Airplanes equipped with radar, anti-submarine aircraft launched from ship catapults, a new radar that could not detect German submarines, the HFDF (High Frequency Direction Finder, or Huff Duff), had to deal with the German submarine fleet to May of 1943.

In January, Raeder resigned and appointed two possible successors - General-Admiral Rolf Carls and Admiral Karl Dönitz. Hitler stopped the choice on the second. At the court of the Fuhrer Dönitz soon had powerful friends - the Minister of Armaments of Albert Speer and Admiral Puttkamer, the naval adjutant of Hitler. Dönitz was given the rank of Grand Admiral and on January 30, 1943, he was appointed commander-in-chief of the Kriegsmarine. He received a subsidy of 300,000 Reichsmarks. The first thing that Dönitz did in his new post - immediately dismissed Carls, the former patron who became a potential rival, as well as many appointees of Raeder.

Karl Dönitz, who in just three years grew from captain zurze to grand admiral, was on top of power. But he was on the edge of the most powerful defeat. He dissuaded Hitler from disbanding the surface fleet, proving that the latter would link a disproportionately large number of Allied ships, which otherwise would be able to use them to strengthen convoys and fight with Japan.

Dönitz moved to Berlin, but actually retained the command of the submarine fleet (nominally the fyder of the submarines was the permanent chief of staff of Dönitz Admiral Eberhard Goth). In March 1943, the German submarines, acting "wolf packs," sank 120 ships (627300 tons), and inspired by this success, Hitler awarded Dönitz Oak Leaves to the Knight's Cross. But the losses of the submariners were also great: 11 boats did not return to the base. German submarines returning to bases located in the Bay of Biscay were now under constant attack by US strategic bombers taking off from aircraft carriers, converted merchant ships and everything they could take off.

Dönitz introduced new submarines. In April, the Allies lost 64 ships (344,680 tons), but 15 submarines did not return to the bases. Losses already exceeded production rates, but Dönitz continued to expand the zone of military operations in the Atlantic. In May, the Allies, using the latest technical innovations, attacked the German submarine fleet. They were defeated, losing 56 ships (299,428 tons). But 41 German submarines died. Karl Dönitz was forced to withdraw battered "wolf packs" from the Atlantic Ocean. Gross-admiral managed to avoid Hitler's reproaches, but his spear blunted.

The strategy of Dönitz in the last years of the war was as follows: 1. Construction of as many submarines as possible. 2. Continuation of the submarine warfare in safer areas, for example, in the Caribbean Sea or southwest of the Azores. 3. Acceleration of scientific research, capable of pulling the scales in the direction of the Reich. His submarines continued to drown the Allied ships in the North Atlantic, but as many did not return to the bases. From June to August 1943, 60 Allied merchant ships were sunk, against 79 dead German submarines.

German industry nevertheless "gave birth" to a submarine capable of crushing the allied convoy system (type XXI), but she did not need Dönitz.

On the days of the landing of the Allies in France, Dönitz ordered the last time to attack them with massive forces. In the battle, 36 submarines participated, but less than half of them survived. But Dönitz did not calm down. He continued to throw more and more boats into battle, apparently hoping thereby to reverse the course of the war. His stubbornness and recklessness led to the death of hundreds of German seamen. During the period from June 6 to August 31, 1944, the Germans sank 5 escort ships, 12 cargo ships (58845 tons) and 4 landing barges (8400 tons), having lost 82 submarines.

Of the 820 German submarines that participated from 1939 to 1945 in the "Battle of the Atlantic," 781 died. Of the 39,000 submarine sailors, 32,000 died. The majority are in the last two years of the war.

During his stay in power, Karl Dönitz was a loyal and enthusiastic supporter of Hitler, supporting him on every occasion. He justified all the most senseless military decisions of the Fuehrer: the decision to keep Tunisia in the spring of 1943 and the decision to protect the Kurland Boil (October 1944-April 1945) by the forces of the North group. Dönitz sometimes made propaganda statements in the style of Goebbels and Goering, called for a decisive offensive and took care of the Kriegsmarine being ideologically "pure" (ie, pro-Nazi). April 19, 1945, Dönitz evacuated his headquarters, which was in the suburbs of Berlin. A day later the Soviet tanks burst into it. On April 20, Dönitz visited Hitler and attended his 56th and last birthday. In 10 days, the Fuhrer committed suicide. To everyone's surprise, he appointed Karl Dönitz as his successor.

On May 2, Dönitz was forced to move his headquarters and the capital of the Reich to a cadet corps in Murwick near Flensburg. Here he pursued a policy consisting, firstly, of trying to stop the war with the West as soon as possible, and secondly, in the desire to save as many Germans from the Soviet occupation as possible. To this end, Dönitz sent all the vessels at his disposal to the Baltic ports, still in the hands of the Germans, with the order to take out all the refugees from there. The troops were ordered to cover the evacuation, and then retreat to the west. According to rough estimates, 8 million days of fighting continued, 2 million people were saved from the Soviet occupation.

Karl Dönitz pretended to rule Germany, until 9:45 am on May 23, when he was summoned by Major General of the US Army, member of the Allied Control Commission Lowell W. Ruke, to the patriot "Patria". As before, there was no reception with military honors. The Allied officers declared that they were henceforth regarded as war criminals. At the same time, the troops of the 11th British Panzer Division occupied the Myurva enclave and occupied the seat of the interim government. Military forces were significant, feared that the Grand Admiral with his battalion of guards could begin the last battle on land.

The last hour has come and the way to captivity has opened, which now had nothing to do with the rules of the Geneva Convention. Many comrades-admirals Dönitza foresaw this and passed away, taking poison. The Grand Admiral suffered all this humiliation with stoic dignity. British soldiers were not ashamed of the unpleasant procedure of a personal search, and hunting for so-called souvenirs often led to the loss of personal property, as, for example, happened to the marshal's rod of the Grand Admiral. May 23, 1945 was not a day of glory for the 11th Panzer Division.

The Nuremberg Trials

Soon Dönitz appeared before the Nuremberg Tribunal. He was forced to pass the test for the intellectual coefficient (IQ), which he found equal to 138 (almost a genius). Perhaps, if Karl Dönitz had not become the "last Fuhrer", he would not have been included in the list of the main war criminals. On May 9-10, 1946, while giving evidence, he stated that he was simply following the order. Goering said to those around him: "For the first time in 3 weeks, I felt great." Finally we heard that in such cases a real soldier should speak. "

To the credit of Karl Dönitz, it should be said that he preserved at the end of the war the archives of the German Navy. Denis believed that the Navy had nothing to hide. His gloomy reputation was mainly generated by the famous "Order of Laconia" (Nicbtrettungsbefebl) of September 17, 1942. It was interpreted as a cold-blooded order to shoot sailors who had escaped from sunken ships. To understand what this order was and why it appeared, it is necessary to go back, in the third year of the war, when the wolf packs of the German submarines roamed the blood-drenched expanses of the Atlantic.

On September 12, Lieutenant-Captain Hartenshtein, commander of U-156, patrolled about 250 miles northeast of the island of Ascension. In the evening he noticed the British armed military transport "Lakonia" (19695 tons). He had on board British soldiers, civilians, women, children and a large number of Italian prisoners captured in North Africa. Hartenstein attacked the transport and released 2 torpedoes. "Lakonia" began to sink. Lifeboats were launched, a lot of people jumped into the water. Hartenstein came closer to his victim.

A few minutes later he climbed to the surface and heard the screams of people trying to stay on the water. He immediately summoned the whole crew of the boat to the deck and went even closer to the sinking ship, then began to pick up the survivors. From the intercepted SOS signal, he recognized the name of the ship. At 1.25, when the "Lakonia" had already disappeared underwater, he sent a message to the headquarters of the submarine forces:

"Flooded by Hartenshtein, the British ship Lakonia in box 7721, unfortunately along with 1500 Italian prisoners." So far, I've saved 90. "

Dönitz was lifted from his bed at 3.45, and he immediately sent a radiogram:

"To the Polar Bear Group: Shacht, Wyrdemann and Vilamovitsa immediately follow the full course to Hartenstein, square 7721".

After 15 minutes he asked Hartenstein:

"Did you use a radio ship?" Saving in boats or rafts? Radiate the details of the sinking. "

Hartenstein replied:

"The ship accurately conveyed its position on the radio, I have 173 people on board, of which 21 are Englishmen, and about 100 people are swimming next to personal rescue equipment." Offer the diplomatic neutrality of the area. "A radiogram of the nearby steamer, Hartenshtein, was intercepted."

At 6.00, when the sun rose above the sea, Hartenstein transmitted in plain text on the radio on waves of 25 and 600 meters:

"To all the ships that can help save the disaster-stricken crew of Lakonia." I will not attack you unless I myself am attacked by ships or planes. "I picked up 193 people.

Commander of the German submarine

A little later appeared U-506 and U-507, received the order of Dönitz. They joined Hartenstein, who was engaged in rescue work. German boats collected scattered lifeboats and helped British and Italian officers, women and children to climb into them. In total, they picked up about 1500 people, who were housed in terribly crowded boats and life rafts. Several boats had a sail rig. Some of the boats at the descent took a lot of water, and now they were swaying like laundry troughs. The Germans dragged them to the submarines and pumped out the water.

In the meantime, Dönitz warned the submarine commanders that they should exercise special care with respect to enemy aircraft and surface ships. He allowed taking on board only so many people who will not worsen the maneuverability of boats under water. At the same time, the headquarters of the submarine forces in Paris appealed to the Vichy government to send a cruiser from Dakar and several sloops to pick up the survivors. The meeting point was chosen, and the German boats went north, leaving behind the floating debris of Laconia. Hartenstein walked first, towing a caravan of 4 loaded boats to the limit. The boats moved slowly against the oncoming wave. One night on September 16, the towing end burst, and Hartenstein had to collect lost boats for several hours.

And in the morning there was an unpleasant incident. U-156 was 200 miles northeast of Ascension Island, when an observer spotted a patrol bomber. Hartenstein immediately deployed a two-meter Red Cross flag on the wheelhouse and handed it over the radio with an open test:

"Where?"

A little later:

"Are there ships nearby?"

There was no answer. The plane flew to the north-west and disappeared. After 30 minutes, another one of the same aircraft flew in and started circling over the boat, occasionally descending to a height of 100 meters. He flew over the bow of the boat and dropped 2 bombs.

"Give up the moorings!" cried Hartenstein.

The plane returned and dropped another bomb that exploded deep in the water and overturned one of the boats. Dozens of people were in the water. The fourth bomb fell quite far. After that, the plane gained altitude and disappeared. Then he returned and dropped on the U-156 2 more bombs. They exploded almost right under the boat's cutting, raising a large cloud of spray. The flag of the Red Cross was ripped off, and the boat turned, like a sliver in a whirlpool. An anti-aircraft periscope, a radar receiver loop and hydrophones were damaged. However, the boat remained intact and an angry and disappointed Hartenstein led her under the water.

Later, all those rescued from Lakonia were picked up, and this sad incident was recorded in the annals of history. However, before entering into history, Hartenstein reported on the bombing of Dönitz. The commander of the submarine forces immediately forbade all commanders of submarines to use the Red Cross flag as an international signal. He also pointed out that one should not expect any indulgence from the enemy in relation to boats engaged in rescue operations. On September 17, Dönitz issued his "Order of Lakonia" in which forbade the commanders of submarines from now on to select people from sunk ships, excluding captains and mechanics that were considered prisoners of war.

Unlike other trials, the defense provided its evidence first. After that, she could file an objection in writing, and the court had the right to not consider them, making it completely useless. Dönitz managed to hold a high level of defense. Asked if he was interested in using slave labor in the companies working for the fleet, he generally denied that he knew about his use, and added that he was interested only in the production itself, and not how it was made.

The defendant denied having anything to do with the concentration camps, but admitted that he had ordered the ships of neutral countries, which had appeared in the zone of combat operations, to be heated. Denis considered this order correct. "They were warned to stay away," he said, "but if they entered the zone, pursuing their own goals, then they only had to blame themselves." Even FD Roosevelt admitted this, stating that the owners of merchant ships have no right to risk the lives of crew members, sending them to the war zone for the sake of immediate benefits.

Dönitz was also accused of planning the occupation of Spain (to seize its ports) and Gibraltar. He did not deny this, and justified his "fanatical" pro-Nazi statements by the fact that they were necessary to strengthen the fighting spirit of the soldiers. Unlike other defendants, Dönitz did not abuse Hitler.

The charge was based on the recognition of the illegitimacy of the total underwater war. On this issue Dönitz supported the Admiral of the US Navy Chester A. Nimitz. He cited evidence that this method of naval warfare was used by the Pacific Fleet of the United States on December 8, 1941, so it should be judged by him, Nimetz. Indeed, if the actions of American submariners in the Pacific and submariners "Kriegsmarine" in the Atlantic and you can see some difference, it will not be in favor of US sailors. About the British and Russian in general is not worth mentioning. The British conducted the most merciless submarine war on the Mediterranean (the destruction of "Oceania" and "Neptunia" with several thousand dead), and Soviet submarines drowned the ships full of refugees who left East Prussia ("Wilhelm Gustloff" holds a gloomy record for the number of deaths in during one naval attack).

During the meetings of the Nuremberg Tribunal, many submariners arrived to speak in defense of Dönitz. One of them was Captain 1st Rank Winter, former commander of the 1st submarine flotilla. He prepared a letter signed by many commanders of boats. Former officers called on the court to follow the dictates of "human and military conscience". The letter said that Grand Admiral Dönitz never gave orders to kill sailors from torpedo ships. He only ordered the commanders of the boats to stay under water after the attack, in order to evade enemy anti-submarine forces. "During the 5 years of the most brutal war, we learned what kind of person Dönitz was." He never demanded something dishonorable from us. "

Now, 50 years later, it seems that Dönitz's accusation was built on the sand, but at that time the passions were heated to the limit. The British and Russians wanted to get Dönitz's scalp, but US judge Francis Biddy demanded his acquittal on all counts.

October 1, 1946, after Goering and several other Nazis were sentenced to death, Karl Dönitz appeared before the Nuremberg Tribunal. He learned that he was sentenced to 10 years in prison in Spandau prison. A minute later a man who lost both sons in this naval war, took off his headphones and left the room in custody.

The sentence became a compromise. But even this, the softest of the sentences in Nuremberg, outraged Major-General JFK K. Fuller, an outstanding military theoretician and historian, who called him "a scandalous parody of justice stemming from hypocrisy."

Old age

Punishment Dönitz went to Spandau. Brought up in the spirit of Spartan, he was the easiest to bear the burdens of imprisonment. Dönitz did not shy away from any work. He was fond of growing vegetables and sometimes took up to 50 tomatoes from one bush. His relationship with Reder was cool, and the former friendship with Albert Speer degenerated into poorly concealed hatred. Completely serving time, October 1, 1956 Dönitz went free. He found his wife in the small town of Aumyuly, got himself an Admiralty pension and got on well.

Almost all of his time, Dönitz devoted literary work. He wrote the books: "Mein wechselvoltes Leben" (1968), "Deutsche Strtegie zur See in zweiten Weltkrieg" ("German naval strategy in the Second World War") - 1968, "10 Jahre und 20 Tage "(" 10 years and 20 days ") - 1958.

May 2, 1962 his wife died, and the rest of his life, Dönitz lived alone. He became a zealous Catholic, visited the church every Sunday, and placed a huge cross on the grave of his wife. Dönitz liked to visit his old friends and take them to his house. By the end of his life, Dönitz became more absorbed in himself and quick-tempered. He was very offended by the government, which refused to arrange a funeral for him after his death and put him in a uniform in a coffin. A man who survived his time, Karl Dönitz died on Christmas Eve. He was the last of the German Grand Admiral. At his funeral, in Aumyul, on January 6, 1981, dozens of old comrades-in-arms attended.

After the Second World War, Churchill expressed the idea that if the Germans had put everything on one map, namely, on the submarine war, England could have lost it. Admiral Sir Andrew Cunningham confirmed that if the Germans managed to win the battle for "Western Approaches", his country could lose the war. This once again confirms the correctness of the Grand Admiral Karl Dönitz.

The pupil of the Kaiser's Navy, a native of the bourgeois-conservative family, Dönitz could not even think about the fact that the head of state is prone to crimes, that he even orders them to commit them. From the best of motives, he demanded of his officers and sailors, often passing into pathos, mandatory loyalty to the Fuhrer, the state, demanded not to spare his life for his homeland. Proceeding from the principle of the primacy of politics, he continued to be convinced that the conduct of war is a soldier's business, and when it begins and ends it is questions of political leadership. This was the way a person acted, who laid his whole will, mind, energy on the altar of service to his state.

Wilhelm Canaris. The Birth of Nazi Intelligence
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Admiral Canaris made a considerable contribution to the revival of the German fleet after the Versailles peace. But in history he entered more than the head of the German military intelligence - Abwehr.

Friedrich Canaris was born on January 1, 1887 in the village of Aplerbek near Dortmund, in the family of an engineer who eventually became director of a steel plant. The boy studied at the gymnasium, and on April 1, 1904 entered the Naval School in Kiel. Canaris was among the best cadets.

One of the teachers described him: "Very gifted in theory, the application of iron." By the end of his studies, Canaris spoke good English, tolerably French and a little Russian. In October 1907, Kanaris, after examinations, fenri-com - candidate for officer rank, was assigned to the cruiser Bremen, directed to the shores of Latin America.

September 28, 1908, the sailor was promoted to lieutenants. He independently mastered the Spanish language and became an assistant commander of the cruiser in diplomatic negotiations with the Latin American rulers. On May 13, 1909, for his diplomatic successes he received from the President of Venezuela the Order of Bolivar of the 5th class. The commander of the cruiser wrote in the certification: "Good military training, the ability to get along with people are supplemented by modesty, obedience and courtesy."

In January 1910, the lieutenant was transferred to the V-162 destroyer as the second watch officer, but during the exercises in the North Sea he caught a cold after a tropical fever and was treated for six months on the shore. After returning, Canaris again demonstrated his abilities, was certified as a candidate for the position of commander of the destroyer and was promoted to lieutenant-lieutenants. In December 1911, the sailor was assigned to the cruiser "Dresden".

In 1913 the ship was located in Constantinople, by the end of the year returned to Kiel and hastily, without completing repairs, was sent to Veracruz, where he replaced the cruiser Bremen, who was returning to his homeland. The crew of the cruiser helped the Europeans, who left the insurgent Mexico. Personally, Canaris had to use the methods of persuasion to bring on board the deposed president, General Goert, to take him out of the country. But to return home after the successful completion of the task was not possible: after the outbreak of World War I, the cruiser should have acted on enemy communications.

In order to have reliable information, Canaris established contact with the agent network in Argentina and Brazil, which he created back in 1908, and began to receive information on the radio about the situation that helped the cruiser to pass to the mouth of La Plata and sink two ships. When the English ships were close, the commander of the cruiser left for the Pacific Ocean and joined the squadron of Vice Admiral Spee. And his Canaris, thanks to his agents, notified about the enemy's movements. Using this information, Spee on November 1, 1914 destroyed the English squadron from Coronel.

Kanaris was awarded the Iron Cross 2nd degree. On December 8, in the battle of the islands in Falls Island, the high-speed Dresden managed to escape only by nightfall. The cruiser went to the Pacific Ocean, sank one more vessel, but without coal was forced to go to the Chilean islet and interned. However, the cruiser Glasgow, approaching the island, despite the neutrality of Chile, sank "Dresden". Canaris had to negotiate with the British, gaining time to prepare for the flooding of the cruiser. Surviving crew members Chileans were taken from the island and interned. Canaris was burdened with idleness.

On the night of August 3, 1915, on agreement with the commander, he fled and on October 4 arrived in Hamburg. After a brief rest, the young officer presented a report on the actions of Dresden, was promoted to lieutenant-captain and was involved in the organization of reconnaissance in the Mediterranean. By the beginning of 1916 he had created an agent network in the main ports of Spain. The Spanish shipyards secretly built ships to supply German submarines. However, espionage to Canaris was less and less popular, and in September 1916 he achieved a return to the fleet.

In October, a submarine sailor arrived in Qatar and soon presented a report on the work, highly valued in Germany. Kanaris was awarded the Iron Cross 1st degree and sent for training to the commander of the submarine. Sent to the Mediterranean Sea, the officer first served at the headquarters.

January 19, 1918, Canaris went on the first campaign commander of the U-34 and on February 18 returned to the base with three victories. A capable officer was noticed by the Kaiser himself. In May, Canaris was summoned to Germany to receive a new boat. At the end of August 1918, his U-128 came to Qatar. However, after the collapse of Austria-Hungary in October, German bases in Qatar and Field were blown up, and submarines on November 29 returned to Germany.

After the November Revolution of 1918, Canaris became adjutant to the War Minister G. Noske, participated in the suppression of the Communist speech in Berlin and the organization of the assassination of K. Liebknecht and R. Luxemburg, and then headed the "investigation" in this case. He maintained a connection between the government and the sailors, created self-defense units.

Since February 15, 1919, Canaris also served in the Navy Department, which was soon called the Admiralty, and then - the main command of the naval forces. Canaris, participating in the creation of new Navy, became one of the influential and knowledgeable people. He was an assistant to Rear Admiral Adolf von Trot, who stood at the head of the Admiralty. Participant of the so-called Kapp Putsch in March 1920, Canaris was in prison on suspicion of high treason, but was released. July 20, 1920 he was transferred to Kiel senior officer of the Admiralty with the task of helping in the construction of the Baltic Fleet.

In 1920-1921, the fleet received battleships, battleships and destroyers, permitted by the terms of the Treaty of Versailles. Canaris recruited the best officers for them. To prepare the shots of a large fleet, the sailor suggested creating a secret human reserve. Money for preparation was decided to be obtained from the sale of part of the weapons from secret warehouses. Canaris established contact with the officer organization, which was driving a coup d'état.

However, Canaris did not have to participate in the putsch - he was appointed in June 1923 as a senior assistant to the commander of the training cruiser Berlin. Hitler's Beer Putsch and the performance of the militants of the officers' organization failed. On January 15, 1924, Canaris was promoted to captain of the third rank. He wanted to leave the fleet, but the chief of the base dissuaded him, hinting at active activity. In May 1924, the captain of the third rank went to Japan.

Since 1920, German engineers have begun to build in Osaka underwater cruisers for the Japanese fleet. However, there were frictions, which Canaris managed to successfully eliminate, and the work continued. Success was appreciated. After returning October 4, Kanaris was appointed head of the preparatory-mobilization sector under the Navy's command. Starting with the use for the training of old ships, eventually began to build their cruisers and destroyers. Canaris stood out, having prepared a document showing the strength and weakness of the fleet mobilization program. But he did not like paper work. Canaris himself began to seek ways to replenish funds for the restoration of the fleet and established contact with Walter Loman, who intended in neighboring countries to create front companies working to raise the German military potential.

In Spain, Canaris established contacts with industrialists and political circles, organized the production of torpedoes and ships, cooperated with special services, met Colonel Franco and other future participants in the coup. On October 1, 1926, Canaris was appointed a referent under the head of the Naval Staff.

In 1927, he began to establish contacts with the countries of South America. June 22, 1928 Canaris took office as a senior assistant commander of the battleship "Shlesien", and a year later he was promoted to captain of the 2nd rank. At this time, Spain ordered a submarine on the German project, and Kanaris was sent on a business trip. However, his connection with the special services became known to journalists. In addition, the sailor was accused of unprofessionalism, and the new commander of the Navy, Erich Raeder, forbade him to give him secret or political assignments.

On September 29, 1930, for the service zeal of Canaris was appointed chief of staff of the North Sea base. Here he did not get along with Karl Dönitz, the senior officer of the Admiralty. October 1, 1931, the sailor was promoted to captain of the 1st rank. The investigation of the episode when Canaris helped to escape one of the killers of Liebknecht and Luxembourg seemed to set a cross on his career. Kanaris saved his alliance with the Nazis, who were torn to power. Among the supporters of Hitler in the elections of 1932 there were many naval officers who were impressed by the Fuehrer's desire to create a powerful fleet. Canaris, who was satisfied with Hitler's anti-Soviet policy, rose to the position of National Socialism.

Soon he was appointed commander of the battleship "Schlesien", the majority of whose crew also did not sympathize with the republic. Therefore, the Hitlerite coup on January 30, 1933 caused enthusiasm on board the ship, and Canaris began the training of sailors in the spirit of National Socialism. The sailor, who had quarreled with his own chief, Rear-Admiral Bastian, was transferred to the fortress of Swinemünde by the Commandant, but was soon recommended to the post of Chief of the Military Counterintelligence - Abwehr.

On January 2, 1935, Canaris took up his duties. The chief of the Abwehr was energetic and devoted himself to work, forcing subordinates to spin. He considered it necessary to turn the Abwehr into the most important intelligence service of the Reich. In order to liquidate the feud between the Reichswehr and the SS, Canaris established close relations with Himmler and Heydrich. The Abwehr had almost no agency. First of all, the captain of the 1st rank created an agent network in Europe (in Holland, Belgium, Northern France). When the German troops entered the Rhineland, Canaris agents reported that France was not going to start a war.

The Abverovites established links with foreign intelligence services and used the results of their actions against each other. In the work of the agents used new technical means: small-sized radio stations, photography of objects in ultraviolet rays, microphotography. The success of the Abwehr became more weighty, which evoked the envy of Himmler, who in 1936 became the de facto head of the German police. However, Canaris made sure that the relations between the departments were settled, and the relationship between the Führer and the Abwehr boss became trustworthy.

When in the summer of 1936 the Spanish phalangists raised rebellion against the republic, Canaris made a lot of efforts to organize the assistance to the generals of Franco and Mol from Germany and Italy. Joint assistance to the Franco regime became the basis of the Rome-Berlin axis, organized by the efforts of Canarias. Canaris established a connection with the Japanese agents, skillfully implemented in the USSR. The country of the rising sun entered the third member in the Anti-Comintern Pact, signed on November 25, 1936 between Germany, Italy and Japan.

In January 1938, Canaris was promoted to Rear Admirals; On February 7, 1938, he took over the leadership of the administration under the supreme commander-in-chief; retaining the leadership of the Abwehr, he also had to manage the supply and interior departments. True, on June 1 he was left head of the department of "military intelligence and counterintelligence", but actually at the head of the Abwehr, in which the foreign department was organized.

At this time, Canaris began to understand the cruelty of the Hitler regime. Among his collaborators were people of anti-Hitler orientation. However, the head of the Abwehr, speaking off with the frontiers, at the same time served faithfully and truthfully to Hitler. He was the organizer of international military provocations and sabotage in the seizure of Austria (1938), Czechoslovakia (1939), the attack on Poland (1939), created a broad espionage and sabotage network around the world.

The head of the Abwehr then thought how to save the world, and then he provided Hitler with information that aroused the Führer's assertiveness. Thus, news of Churchill's intention to land troops in Norway prompted Hitler on April 9, 1940 to invade Denmark and Norway. On April 1, 1940 Hitler made Canaris into admirals, after which the head of the Abwehr again demanded from his subordinate’s conscientious execution of the orders of the Fuhrer.

The Abwehrers successfully operated during the invasion of Belgium and Holland, and then to France in 1940. However, it was in these months that the first information about the anti-Hitler actions of the Abwehr officers appeared which the Admiral managed to hush for a while. In 1940, Canaris negotiated the offensive of the Spaniards to Gibraltar, but the failure of Italy's invasion of Greece and the landing of British forces there forced Franco to abandon Gibraltar.

Canaris agreed to reconcile Greece with Italy. However, the American representative Donovan was able to persuade the fairy government, offering English aid. Canaris failed to get ahead of Donovan and Yugoslavia, where anti-Hitler forces came to power. Germany had to fight in 1941 against Greece, saving the Italians, then Yugoslavia. Canaris, who visited Belfade after the air raid, was depressed by what he saw and because he could not help make peace.

After Yugoslavia, Hitler joined the war with the USSR. Canaris, who knew about his intention, tried to organize a military speech against this disastrous step for Germany, to convince the Fuhrer, but without success. At the same time, the chief of 1Bwera was preparing a future war, despite the weak agents in the USSR. He organized misinformation about Germany's readiness to attack the British Isles and fight in the Mediterranean. Abwehr for work in the territory of the USSR established communications with the intelligence services of Romania and Japan, organized the department of "Valley" near Warsaw.

The Abwehrers prepared diversions in the pre-Soviet Soviet republics. It was they who started the fighting. When the German troops suffered the first defeats in the fields of Russia and in North Africa, Canaris tried to establish contact with the governments of the allies in order to make peace on acceptable terms.

He showed special activity after it became known that in Casablanca Churchill and Roosevelt had agreed to demand unconditional surrender from Germany. In the Abwehr, there were more and more failures. The collapse of the organization, misinformation, corruption and squandering of funds have become commonplace. The Admiral thoroughly surrendered and did not follow the abuses.

In 1943, the Abwehr was struck by the arrest of an agent who knew about the negotiations with foreign leaders and that a close associate of Admiral Col. Oster had given the Dutch the start of the invasion. During the search in the Abwehr, documents of the anti-Hitler coup prepared were found. Canaris could not interfere with the investigation. He himself was waiting for the arrest. Fortunately, the Allied invasion of Sicily and the coup in Italy required the revitalization of the Abwehr, which almost died out during the investigation, and Himmler did not believe in the Admiral's guilt. Defeat of Germany deprived the Abwehr of the opportunity to work in Spain, from where the German agents were expelled.

Only Canaris himself managed to persuade Franco that he needed the Abwehr. In Italy, as an allied power, there were no agents at all, and Canaris could not provide information about the country with which Germany was now fighting. Hitler was outraged that Canaris knew nothing about preparing for Anzio's allied landing. The explosions of ships by mines planted in Spain forced the Abwehr to prevent diversion. However, Canaris lost contact with the Spanish agents, and after reporting to Hitler that the admiral was not following orders, the Führer on 11 February 1944 ordered the dismissal of the chief of military intelligence.

On February 2, the whole intelligence service of the Reich was subordinated to the Reichsfuehrer of the SS Himmler. Canaris was placed in the castle Lauenstein without the right to go beyond it and contact with strangers. On June 10, 1944, the admiral was sacked, but soon Hitler appointed him "admiral for special assignments." On July 1, Canaris led a special headquarters under the supreme commander-in-chief for a trade and economic war against the Allies. However, in fact, there was no real activity for the scanty "staff". After the defeats on the Soviet front and the landing of the allies in France, Colonel Stauffenberg revived the idea of ​​the murder of Hitler and the coup d'état in Germany. Canaris refused to participate in it.

And when the attack on the Fuhrer was committed on July 20, he sent that telegram about his loyalty. However, on July 23, Canaris was still detained on the testimony of one of the arrested. Despite the severity of the evidence, on September 19, 1944, he was only sacked "from active military service in the navy", without handing the case over to the People's Court. After the bombing of the building of the RSHA Canaris with other accused were taken to the camp Flossenbürg. The Admiral hoped to survive before the Allies win.

However, diaries were found in the Abwehr safe, in which the admiral frankly described his thoughts and actions. Hitler read passages from the diary and ordered the destruction of the conspirators. After the trial, in which the admiral continued to struggle with the investigation, and on April 8, Kanaris was hanged. The doctor said: "Admiral died."

Werner von Braun. Hitler's Missile Force
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Werner von Braun - American Sergey Korolev, he invented rockets and paved the way for mankind in space. The United States owes him the organization of NASA, the space expeditions to Mars and Venus and the landing on the moon. For us until recently, von Braun was primarily a Nazi criminal, Sturmbannfuhrer SS. How the same person half a lifetime served the Nazis, and the second half - the most advanced democracy, and remained a mystery.

Werner von Braun was a genius. And still the conversation about him is impossible without the numerous "but". And without trying to understand the nature of genius. Genius and villainy are two incompatible things, they taught us. And Brown invented military missiles.

But after all, Sakharov, later a Nobel laureate and a saint, invented a hydrogen bomb. Academician Khariton died in Arzamas-16 as the oldest old man and by this time, like the Hermitage, was a national treasure. He remembered the drawings of his first atomic bomb by heart. Brown was a member of the SS.

But Sakharov, Khariton, and Korolev were all members of the CPSU. But Brown's rockets carried death to innocent people. And Sakharov's hydrogen bomb? Yes, but it has not been applied ... So, it's not in Sakharov and Brown, but in Hitler and Stalin, Khrushchev?

Where is the line that separates a person from all the intestines of a servant of his business, from an immoral monster supplying insane politicians with a terrible weapon?

It's ridiculous to ask the question: could Brown not invent his own missiles? And could not Korolyov invent cosmic rockets? But could Sakharov abandon his hydrogen bomb? Know what can make it, and not do it?

Family of three "K"

... Werner von Braun was born on March 23, 1912 in the family estate of Virzitz. Rod von Braunov settled in East Prussia back in the sixteenth century and in 1699 for military merit received the baronial title.

The main thing men in this family was the war, and in her absence - talk about the war. Together with family silver, from generation to generation a tradition was passed on which, when mentioning the name of the emperor, it was necessary to get up. The von Braun credo, like the other Junkers, was three K's - Kaiser, Krieg, Kanonen (emperor, war, guns). It is not for nothing that one of the Von Brauns in 1900 was the first to introduce a machine gun to the German army.

Werner's older brother, Magnus, went by the bureaucratic part: by 1932 he had reached the post of Minister of Agriculture. However, the conversations in his living room, where often prominent Berlin politicians, were not about raising yields, but about the same guns and about missiles. "Rockets" - with this word the eyes of gallant officers, which died out after the defeat in the First World War and the abdication of the adored Kaiser Wilhelm, caught fire.

The infamous Treaty of Versailles allowed Germany to have only 204 field guns and 84 howitzers, figuring out even the number of shells put to them. However, nothing was said about missiles in the treaty. This is what the generals of the Reichswehr used. In 1930, under the Ministry of War, a missile department was set up, headed by Colonel Karl Becker. There and determined to work Werner von Braun.

His rocket career began with reading popular science literature and observing the sky. While Tsiolkovsky looked at the stars in the cracked binoculars, Brown had his own telescope. Later, he recalled: "This was a goal that could be dedicated to a lifetime!" Not only to observe the planets in a telescope, but also to break through into the Universe itself, to explore mysterious worlds. " A serious boy, over the years, read out Obert's book on space flights, watched Fritz Lang's film "A Girl on the Moon" several times, and joined the space travel society at age 15, where he met real rocket experts.

The family initially disapproved of the technical bias of Werner. Whether it's the older son Zygmund, the diplomat, the future ambassador! However, soon knowledgeable people explained to Magnus von Braun all the value of the missiles for Germany, and he personally talked about the arrangement of his son in the missile department. By that time, Werner had completed an accelerated training course at the Higher Technical School in Zurich and returned to Germany, where great changes were brewing.

In 1933 Hitler came to power in Germany. The Fuhrer highly valued scientists who are able to create new weapons. However, he needed absolutely loyal and preferably racially pure shots. And those in the missile department was practically not: one employee had Romanian citizenship, the other - a Jewish wife. Werner von Braun, a baron and a true Aryan, looked on their background a pleasant exception.

Overcoming prejudice, Werner von Braun, like two thousand other German scientists, joined the SS. After that, he easily defended his thesis - without discussion, since the topic was declared closed. On June 27, 1934, he became the youngest doctor of engineering in Germany: he was only 22 years old. He was assigned a laboratory in Kummersdorf and a patent for all missile developments.

At the end of 1934, von Braun and Riedel launched from the island of Borkum two A-2 missiles, nicknamed "Max and Moritz" named popular comedians. The rockets took off a mile and a half - it was a success! A year later, General Fritsch, Commander of the Army, visited the laboratory. Impressed, he obtained from the Fuhrer the allocation of 20 million marks for new experiments. And in 1936, on the basis of Usedom in the Baltic Sea, near the ancestral possessions of von Brauns, construction of the state-of-the-art military base Peenemünde began.

Weapon of Retribution

On the ground surrounded by triple rows of barbed wire, the work was boiling day and night. The war was approaching, and the Fuhrer demanded from scientists the creation of weapons capable of hitting distant targets. The dreams of space flights had to be forgotten for a while.

In Peenemünde, a whole army of workers and engineers, up to 20,000 men, was subordinated to von Braun. He commanded them clearly, achieving maximum efficiency and effectiveness. As in the Soviet "sharashka", in his laboratories were hiding scientists who were threatened by a camp or a front. While they were doing business, von Braun kept them, but laziness or negligence immediately deprived them of the patronage of Zeus - such a nickname was given to the baron.

At the end of 1937, the missile men managed to create a 15-meter A-4 rocket, which could carry a ton of explosives for 200 kilometers. This was the first modern military missile in history.

She was nicknamed "Vau" - from the first letter of the German word Vergeltungswaffee (which translates as "weapon of retribution"). On the eve of the war, in March 1939, Hitler came to Peenemünde, where he was tested by a rocket. Later von Braun admitted that at the first meeting the Führer did not impress him. It seems that the other side also remained unhappy: after the visit, the allocation for missiles was cut in half. Then Hitler still hoped to quickly capture England by landing the landing.

Everything changed when Operation Sea Lion was postponed. Before the rocket launchers set the task as quickly as possible to create weapons that can strike from a great distance. This was not spared the money: in 1942, at the height of the war, Peneemünde spent only half as much money as on the production of tanks.

By that time, the Russians already had a Katyusha missile system, although with a very small range. The Brown missiles had to fly further.

Race against the group of Brown worked their competitors from the Air Force, who in their laboratory in Grossendorf created cruise missiles, or airplane-projectiles. Von Braun always preferred ballistic missiles: they were ten times more expensive, but they beat more accurately and for a longer distance.

In the summer of 1943, concrete bunkers were built on the coast of France to launch missiles. Hitler demanded by the end of the year to fill them with London.

Maps confused the work of British intelligence. Von Braun was a master of disguise, and for a long time the allied planes simply did not fly into the Baltic dunes. However, in July 1943, the Polish partisans managed to get and forward to London the drawings of the "Vau" and the missile base plan. A week later, 600 English "flying fortresses" flew to Peenemünde. In the fiery storm, 735 people were killed and all the ready-made missiles.

For anyone it would be a disaster, but von Braun was an iron man. He (with the blessing of the Fuhrer, naturally) transferred the production of missiles to the calcareous mountains of Harz, where thousands of prisoners worked in the underground camp of Dora. Von Braun did not just come there, went down to the gallery and passed by the stacks of corpses of prisoners who died of hunger and overwork. It seemed that he did not notice them, thinking either about space flights, or about the successful fulfillment of the task of the Fuhrer.

In Peenemünde there were only laboratories - there they developed missiles and conducted tests. To test the missiles over densely populated Germany did not occur to anyone.

Death of gods

Competitors from the Air Force had managed earlier. On June 16, 1944, 294 projectile aircraft flew to London. The effect of using these missiles, immediately called "V-1", was small: they rarely hit the target, they were easily knocked down. Stronger was the psychological impact: after all, now about the bombing could not be known in advance and it did not save from cloudiness or disguise. Soon, however, English scientists learned by radio waves to disable the pilot mechanism of rockets and force them to fall into the sea.

Soon the Allies landed in France and seized the launch sites of the "Vau". It's time von Braun, because his missiles flew farther and could have been launched from the territory of Holland or even Germany itself. Back in November 1943, the "V-2" was tried in Polish villages, of which people were not evicted for secrecy. The missiles did not hit the target, but the Germans consoled themselves that it was easier to get into such a big goal as London.

And fell - from September 1944 to March 1945, London and Antwerp fired 4,300 V-2 rockets, which killed 1,309 people. It is not difficult to understand that the victims would have been much more if Hitler's order had been issued to fire 1,000 missiles a day.

But there was little time left for the "gods of war." In January 1945, Soviet troops approached Peenemünde. On April 4, the guards left Douro, having shot before them 30,000 prisoners. Von Braun took refuge in the Alpine ski resort, where the Americans appeared on May 10. He, Sturmbannfuhrer SS, could easily be shot or taken under arrest. Even his future chief, General Medaris, who stormed the allies Berlin, later admitted that, if he got into Brown in 1945, he would not have hesitated to hang it. But time, as the Russian writer Yuri Trifonov wrote, like fire: when you are in it, you do not notice the heat. Over time, everything is calmer and colder.

Moreover, Brown fell into the hands of very different people. From the American mission "Peyperklip" ("clip"), engaged in the search for German missile. "Rocket Baron" with all the honors was sent over the ocean as a particularly valuable cargo.

Through generals to the stars

Until 1955, when von Braun became a US citizen, it was forbidden to mention it in the press. He was constantly under surveillance intelligence - first in El Paso, then in Huntsville, Alabama, where, under his leadership, American engineers conjured over the "V-2" that had been exported from Germany.

Already in 1945, the company "Conveyor" produced a missile MX-774, where instead of a single engine, "Vau" was installed four. In 1951, von Braun's laboratory developed ballistic missiles "Redstone" and "Atlas", which could carry nuclear charges. By that time, the USSR had already produced a military missile M-101 with a nuclear charge. Soviet missiles were cumbersome and costly to the war-ravaged country, but Stalin ordered: "Do it! I'm not interested in how much it will cost." Even then, many realized how successful the military and the psychological plan could be to launch a rocket into space.

On October 4, 1957, the first Soviet satellite was launched into the sky, which greatly undermined the prestige of the Americans. American "Explorer" was launched only 119 days later, and Soviet leaders have already hinted at a man's speedy flight into space. So began the space race. The launch of missiles in the United States moved from single-handed control of the Pentagon to the government agency NASA. With him, the John Marshall Space Center was established in Huntsville under the supervision of Werner von Braun. Now Brown had even more money and people than in Peenemünde, and he was able to finally fulfill his old dream of space travel.

The first American astronaut John Glenn got into space ten months after Yuri Gagarin. So it went: for the launch of two cosmonauts by the Americans, ours responded by launching three, at the station "Skylab" - the station "Mir". To Venus, the Americans were only two days late, but the first to be on Mars. They managed to get ahead only when the Atlas rocket was replaced by a more powerful Titan and then Saturn. It was the last July 16, 1969 brought to the moon "Apollo 11", and the whole world, with bated breath, watched Neil Armstrong's first steps and the American flag on the Moon.

The program "Apollo", like the previous space flights, was developed by Wernher von Braun. All these years he lived in a two-story mansion in Huntsville, surrounded by a neat flower garden. Journalists who wrote about the baron, called him "an exemplary gentleman": he was always correct, polite, able to support the company.

He went out of himself, only when he was reminded of the service in the SS and that his "Fau" carried death to women and children. He did not like to travel to Europe, where there were more such reminders. In England, where von Braun was elected honorary doctor, the crowd threw his car rotten eggs. In America, the attitude towards him was completely different, especially in Huntsville, where most of the residents worked in his center.

He lived on a broad foot, baronically: every year he changed the Cadillacs, flew to the Bahamas, ordered antiques and collection wines in Europe. As early as 1947, he married the cousin Maria von Kistorp, who had been released from Germany, with whom he had been engaged since the pre-war times.

His daughters Iris and Margrit later married rocket engineers, son Peter tried to do business in the same field, but quickly burned out and sank into obscurity.

The family life of the Baron was impeccable, like the whole image he had personally created. No book or even an article about von Braun could come out without his careful censorship. Silent moments of his biography were silenced, for example, to create a myth about his antifascism and that he, von Braun, as early as 1939, gave the Allies information about the German missile project (in fact, the engineer was Kummer, tortured by the Gestapo).

In general, in his books the baron preferred to write not about himself, but about missiles. There he was visited by genuine inspiration - he published almost a dozen popular science books, with which the generation of the 60's was read as he had once read books by Jules Verne and Hermann Obert. It seems that for all these years a fanatic experimenter and a cynical careerist never died a boy, who once looked out of the window of a family manor to the stars, dreaming of their conquest.

The top of his career Brown reached in 1972 - he became deputy director of NASA and head of the space-port at Cape Canaveral. However, already in 1972, in the conditions of economic recession, he was offered to cancel expensive flights to the moon and to engage in more profitable programs - the launching of reconnaissance and technical satellites.

Apparently, von Braun did not obey, since he was soon dismissed. Immediately, the moon flights were terminated, and Von Braun prepared the sending of the manned spacecraft to Mars. The wires said a lot of warm words, but the baron, as always, did not betray his feelings.

He became vice-president of the promising company Fairchild, which produces aerospace equipment. The work was not burdensome, and von Braun spent a lot of time with his family. In public, he, as before, almost did not appear, and guests in his mansion were infrequent. For all the years in America, he never got close friends.

In June 1977, von Braun was placed in a hospital in Alexandria, Virginia, with a severe kidney disease. The course of intensive care was useless, and on June 16 the "rocket baron" died. He was buried in Huntsville solemnly, but without special splendor. Since then, his fame is not disputed by anyone, but he continues to remain in the shadows.

All world literature is written about the great power of love, about the kind of baseness that drives a person passion and to what heights of self-denial she can raise. But few people thought about what a talent, a gift from God, that burns his soul can do to a man. Be able to do something - and not do? No one has yet made such a sacrifice, even in the name of humanity.

And if talent is a gift from God, then what to do with the gift of the creator of weapons of mass destruction? Writers are worse - they work directly with such a delicate matter, as morality. The engineer is wiser over his formulas, the physicist splits the atom. And only an insane ideology, trying to reconcile the dogmas of Marxist teaching with truths, say, genetics, can encourage scientists to revolt.

For Werner von Braun his vocation was much more important than the political systems in which he happened to live. The systems used it. He used the system. Dr. Werner brought the flame of his knowledge to humanity. The mankind was silent.

Victor Schauberger. A wonderful water engine
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Victor Schauberger (1885-1958), a simple forester, probably made the most fundamental discoveries of the twentieth century, and with his twist technique discovered to mankind entirely new sources of energy.

Benjamin Seiler: "You can see how much history allows that everyone who was engaged in clarifying the riddle of the water was brutally suppressed, even the hints that we find in ancient books that explain the essence of water disappear in subsequent editions. Also, a means of guaranteeing the strength of money: Interest only grows in an imperfect economy.

Having solved the problem of water generation and having made it possible to obtain any volume and any quality of water in any place, a man will once again master the vast desert lands and will thereby reduce both the sales price of food and the sales price of machinery to such a minimum that any profit of speculation will disappear. The abundance of food and the economical productivity of machines are such devastating arguments that the general idea of ​​the world, as well as the whole worldview, will change. The preservation of the secrets of water is the largest capital of capitals. For this reason, any experience serving its disclosure is ruthlessly suppressed in the bud. "

Victor Schauberger, who wrote these words more than half a century ago, was an outstanding man. A man sent by God to give "enlightened" people an ancient knowledge of the essence of water. A man of uncompromising honesty and complete devotion to nature. A man who has fought hard all his life and, broken, died in poverty and loneliness. But he left a legacy whose wealth is priceless, and knowledge continues to inspire, becoming the basis of many astounding developments. At the same time Victor Schauberger discovered only what was known to the Incas, Mongols, the ancient inhabitants of Fr. Crete or Tibetan monks, namely: any water swirls, and if you let it flow naturally, you can make a real miracle.

The knowledge of Victor Schauberger was revolutionary. They disproved several laws of hydrology and went well beyond what we humans know about water. It's amazing that many scientists still do not understand what he was talking about. One of them, prof. Wilhelm Balters, was forced to admit frankly: "How could we understand Schauberger's language if his work belongs to the future?" But the future has already come! Let's go back to the roots of Victor Schauberger.

He was born in 1885 in the outback, in the Austrian town of Plekensten the fifth child among nine others. His uncle was the last imperial emperor in Bad Ischl in the days of Franz Josef. My father worked as a chief forester, like grandfather, great-grandfather and great-great-grandfather. Victor was a real "son of the forest": all day he wandered alone through a remote, dense forest like area around Plykenstein Lake and watched the nature so closely and with such thoroughness that few people are now capable of. Father Victor wanted to send his son to the university, so he studied there forestry. But Victor refused, he believed that the teachers would only distort his unprejudiced natural vision of nature, as happened with his brother, so he went to study in a conventional forestry school and became a forest warden.

The first part of it belonged to Prince Adolf von Schaumburg-Lippe: 21 thousand hectares of almost untouched dense forest under Steyerling. Schauberger loved this virgin forest, which hardly saw anyone else from people. The untouched nature of the forest allowed him to get first impressions and an opportunity to penetrate the essence of water, which was of particular interest to Victor. The power of chilled water The first thing Schauberger realized was that the water does not like sunlight. So, in the forest there was a source for a long time already, over which stood a hut made of stone. Later it collapsed, and the source lay under the sunlight open and unprotected. Soon he suddenly ran out, and no one knew why. But when a stone hut was built over it again, the water returned. Even from the ancient Romans it was known that they always closed their springs with stone slabs with a small round nozzle for water, into which a diverting pipe was inserted, but so that air would not get into it.

Water likes shadow. Therefore, all the springs are hidden in a dense forest or deep clefts of rocks. The shading trees and bushes along the banks protect naturally flowing rivers and streams. In addition, Schauberger observed that the rising high water of the high water during the thaw (water is heated) creates shoals from the bottom sediments, which are often washed out on cold, clear nights (the water cools). From here he concluded that the lifting force and the suction force of water reach a maximum when the temperature of the water is low and its flow is free. For the first time he proved this in the winter of 1918, Mr. Linz was then experiencing a large deficit in wood because of the war.

In the mountains, on Prilgebirge, a lot of wood was felled, but there were not enough pack animals and enough large streams along which it would be possible to raft the forest. And then the unknown forest ranger Schauberger volunteered to lower the forest to the valley and chose for this a small mountain stream full of pitfalls, about which all the experts unanimously said that the rafting of the forest on it is impossible. It was then that for the first time Victor Schauberger was criticized: his views, they say, are wrong, and impudence is unheard of. Schauberger often had to admonish his critics. He waited for the early morning, at this time the coldest water, and unmistakably, at the right time, flooded the forest with water. For one night the entire rafting forest, 16 thousand meters, was lowered into the valley. Later, Schauberger will become famous for his remarkable alloying devices.

About "soaring" in the water stones The next phenomenon, extraordinarily fascinating Victor Schauberger, was trout and salmon in the mountain streams. How did the trout manage to freeze in the most violent streams? How does it lightly go against the current instead of being carried away by water, and even upwards, to the surface, and not to the saving depth? Is there any such that the rising high water pavil ability is trout with water temperature? Intended - done: Schauberger heated about 100 liters of water and poured it higher up the stream from where the trout was.

This amount of water could not noticeably heat the water in the stream, but still ... After some time, trout began to show concern, more often to beat fins. She struggled to keep herself in place, and was soon washed away by the current. Graphical longitudinal section of the river bed area, which shows how a simple egg-shaped structure can swirl the water masses and mix cold groundwater with warm surface water, setting the right temperature to the river's waters. Victor Schauberger asked himself how trout manages to overcome underwater obstacles and waterfalls? Why does it jump higher the more rapidly and rapidly the water falls down? He watched as the trout, without movement, hovered high in the falling stream and suddenly suddenly rushed headlong into the water stream, just like that. Answer: Schauberger received only tens of years of intensive observations of water. Today we know that any force, material or immaterial, creates an opposing force of equal strength.

Just as a tornado blows air masses outward to draw them into itself, so naturally the current (swirling) water produces energy directed towards the movement of water. This energy flow, which can be seen in the waterfall as a bright light channel inside the water jet, and uses trout. It is drawn in like a stream in the middle of a water whirlwind. Schauberger made another incredible discovery: on a lunar, cold winter night, he saw how, in a reservoir formed by a mountain stream, stones as large as a head rose from the ground and, circling like a trout in front of a large "jump," rose to the surface of the water, rocking on it! Heavy stones! Schauberger did not believe his eyes. What power lifted them? It was the same lethargic power dormant in the water, allowing trout to "jump". True, not all stones levitate. Only polished ovate stones seemed to dance on the water without any effort, the angular ones still lay motionless on the bottom. Why? Because the egg-shaped form is a vortex child.

From the point of view of geometry, it is formed in the bowels of a hyperbolic vortex; water also swirls, the egg-shaped form reacts particularly easily to this movement, and the stones can overcome the force of attraction. You can check this yourself: take a round thin high vessel, fill with water, and put an egg in it. As soon as you start to slightly swirl the water (for example, with a pencil), you can see how the egg slowly breaks off from the bottom and hovers high on the surface as long as the vortex remains. The experience of explosion-free destruction, conducted by Victor Schauberger's son Walter. It can be seen how water forms a hyperbolic vortex that exactly corresponds to the law of sound (1 / n x n = 1). It's about the so-called "sounding tower".

The miracles of technology, "copied from nature Since Prince Adolf von Schaumburg-Lippe had financial problems, he decided to turn most of the wood in the Schauberger section into money, but transportation from the remote area consumed most of the proceeds." The experts made a number of proposals, but none when the prince turned to his forester; he promised to reduce transportation costs from 12 shillings for one meter to one shilling. First of all, Schauberger constructed a floating device of his design on his own The floating tray stretched for 50 km, it did not move to the valley in the shortest possible way, but, squirming, left forward.

This has not yet been seen by anyone. From time to time Schauberger poured water out of the tray and brought fresh from the mountain streams, because the trunks, according to him, glide well in cold water. Victor Schauberger relied not only on his own observations, but also on the knowledge of his family, accumulated by several generations. Another father taught that water under the rays of the sun becomes tired and lazy, while at night and especially in the moonlight - fresh and lively. Both the grandfather and the father skilfully guided the water lows.

Thanks to the rhythmically changing swivel rail, they finished them in such a way that the water sometimes went uphill. The decision that Schauberger took was to give the water the right movement and temperature. The wooden tray he built had a transverse section, similar to the blunt end of an egg. He followed the bends of the mountain valleys, "because the water itself shows a perfectly natural path, which it wants to flow, in order to optimally satisfy its demands, therefore we should be guided by its desires." The task of technology is not to correct nature, but to build on a ready-made model. In addition, Schauberger insisted that the difference in water temperature even by a tenth of a degree is of great importance. This caused an unbelievable laugh among the hydrologists.

When Schauberger added that even a person's body temperature change of two-tenths already shows whether he is sick or not, he was finally deemed crazy. The scientists seemed to be right at first: in the first trial descent, the alloy forest remained lying, although the water was cold, and the directing curves were correctly calculated. Schauberger was in despair. But then providence helped him in the form of a snake crossing the pond before his eyes. How does she manage to move so fast on the water without fins?

When observing the movement of the snake, a thought came to mind. Schauberger hurried back to the curved curves of the gutter to nail the semblance of guiding rails, which were supposed to give water a movement similar to serpents. The success was staggering. Huge logs, heavier than water, stormily left, wriggling, into the valley. The admired prince made Schauberger the chief steward of all his plots. Soon the government in Vienna also heard about the outstanding forester and put it as an imperial consultant on rafting devices. The salary of Schauberger was 2 times higher than the salary of a specialist with higher education of the same position. In addition, it was paid in gold, which was a big exception in that inflationary time.

Struggle with scientists

All this, of course, did not facilitate the acquisition of friends among scientists. And the fact that all copies of Schauberger's devices from experts did not function and each time had to contact Schauberger personally did not help improve relations. After many scholars sent a written protest to the parliament against the excessive payment of Schauberger, and the government wanted to illegally deprive him of his salary, an uncompromising forest ranger made his conclusions and moved to a major Austrian construction firm. For this company, he built floating devices in many countries of Europe, they were all rated as "a miracle of technology."

But even here Schauberger expected counteraction from colleagues: specialists and technicians. He broke up with the firm, but not so much because of intrigues, but because the owner of the company, avid for money, wanted to cash in on the contract with Czechoslovakia. When Schauberger found out about this, he left the firm. But one scientist still helped him - prof. Forchheimer, one of the leading hydrologists of the time. He took Schauberger at first very skeptical, but quickly became convinced of his knowledge. In addition, Forchheimer had nothing to lose: "I am glad that I am 75. I will not be harmed if I join in on your ideas." Some day time will come and they will understand everything. "

Forchheimer organized a forum in which many professors were present, Schauberger had to come up with his theories. But those present showed almost no interest, were ironic and indulgent. When one of them brazenly demanded that he wants to hear briefly and clearly how the watercourses are regulated, Schauberger jerked his gates at him and blurted out: "Like a boar, when he urinates!". There was a hard pause. Then Forchheimer jumped to save the situation, and said that Schauberger was absolutely right, because the water does flow, swirling, arched, this can be observed, for example, over a stream of urine. After that, he began to write down the board with symbols and formulas, simultaneously explaining them.

"I did not understand a single word from this," Schauberger admitted later. But other professors began to look at him with interest. The discussion lasted two hours, and the public turned now to Schauberger with an emphatically polite and friendly manner.

To Forchheimer's honor, it should be noted that he abandoned his academic pride and openly defended Schauberger, whose views were not only "discovering a new path in the technology of dams and hydraulic structures," but he was convinced "that the day will come when; thanks to the ideas of Schauberger ... the world will change." So he wrote 50 years ago in one special magazine. Throughout his long life Victor Schauberger could observe the harmony of water and forest.

He understood that without the forest there would soon be no water. He saw untouched streams where he was born: the ground overgrew with moss, even with the strongest precipitation they never left the shores. But when the forest was cut down, the streams reacted first to it: they became abandoned, the moss from the ground was washed with water, the bed of the stream became unclean, covered with debris and mud. The water temperature rose, t. There was no forest nearby with its saving shadow. Subsequently, the beds of streams and riverbeds were destroyed, and the banks were eroded. Heavy rain or melting snow caused flooding. For this reason, structures have been developed to strengthen the slopes, which have covered the watercourses in stone and concrete. But these structures straightened the watercourse, cramming it like a corset. Water cannot flow freely at this, with bubbling and twisting.

She constantly tries to destroy the structure and get out of artificial imprisonment, which entails huge expenses, because structures require frequent repairs. In the late 1920s, Schauberger fought fiercely with clear deforestation and fortification of creeks, assuring that only interest can be repaid from the forest and beat out. He himself, who used to build floating devices, refused this when he learned that his installations often serve as a general cutting down of whole forests. Schauberger knew that the water always tends to restore its equilibrium: the river itself can restore the channel, if only to allow it to flow naturally. Schauberger saw human intervention not in the straightening of the riverbed, but in helping the river again to naturally boil: "A watercourse is never ruled from its shores, but always from within, from the current environment."

In the years 1929 and 1939, he filed an application for patents on the control of mountain streams and river regulation, according to which, by installing braking elements, in appropriate places the axis of the river flow was directed to the middle (then the current did not wash out the bottom or sand was deposited). Schauberger also developed a method for mixing surface warm waters with cold groundwater to equalize the temperature of water and air at a given time. He knew that the temperature of the water had an effect on the behavior of the river.

A tragic example of the dying river is the Rhine. Once it was a calm, mighty stream with crystal clear water, you could see its bottom. At night, the surface of the river glowed with flashing gold light discharges arising from the friction of colliding nudges, hence the legend of the Rhine gold, according to which gnomes make wonderful ornaments in their forges on the river bed. When the Swiss highland forest management began to cut down the forest in the upper reaches of the Rhine, it broke the balance, and it began to silt. To increase the speed of the current, so that the river itself cleared its watercourse, began to straighten the Rhine. Now the silt has moved downstream. It was necessary already there to level the channel. Finally, the entire river was straightened and, as a consequence, its complete silting began.

The reason for all this was deforestation: not only the ecological moment was violated, but there was no powerful cooling effect (due to evaporation in the crowns of trees, heat is drawn from the root system, and the forest cools groundwater and soil). Since there was no forest on the straightened banks, the water temperature rose. Precipitation could no longer be absorbed by the soil and flowed unimpeded into the Rhine, flooding vast areas. This forced to build the walls even higher, to bail out even deeper, to let even more money down the drain (to the joy of construction companies). And nothing can change in this bloody circle. Ignoring the authorities of Schauberger's proposals.

After a major flood in 1935, Victor Schauberger suggested that the German authorities first of all rehabilitate the Rhine on their own: "It is only a matter of technique to deepen the Rhine by 4-6 meters, everything is solved by regulating the water temperature and only a fraction of what is usually spent on adjustment of rivers ". Deposits and silting have signs that running water is in a state of dying. These signs will disappear if the river gives a new life, giving it the appropriate impulse. His Schauberger wanted to achieve with the help of the so-called "energy body" - a simple regulatory element that has the appropriate form. He had to give the water the movement described above. In this case, the river could have cleared itself.

In the fact that this simple method works, Schauberger was already convinced: "When I built such an energy body at home in the Steyerling stream, overnight the river was washed so that hundreds of cubic meters of sand and sediments fell into a so-called sand trap, and a stream for one night he sank down to the cliff. " This method of Schauberger was tested in 1989 at the Kalmar Institute (Sweden) and confirmed in laboratory conditions. Schauberger described to the authorities how the internal mass of the water in the middle of the river will flow faster in the course of its regulation, and, therefore, will carry out large deposits (laminar flow), while the seething water around the edges will automatically crush and disintegrate smaller deposits (turbulent motion) until they settle on the shores in the form of mineral sand, thanks to which the river will have fertile coasts on which all the richness of the plant world will later appear "and, defending, will bow before the mother of all things - with water."

But no one paid attention to Schauberger's proposal. Such a bitter experience he received three years ago: in 1932 Schauberger wrote a detailed article on what to do in order to easily make the Danube again a beautiful river, as it once was. His article was accepted in the official bulletin of the international commission on the Danube, which considered proposals from all the countries bordering on the Danube. When the authorities learned with horror that Schauberger's article was published in such a solid publication, they, without thinking twice, withdrew the entire print run, destroyed it and in October 1932 printed a huge amount, over 100 thousand shillings, a new edition where Schauberger's articles did not it was ... So, the Danube and the Rhine, and with them most other rivers, now, 60 years later, lie corseted in the life-killing corset, only with the difference that today they still have to fight the increasing amount of pesticides. For the "metabolism" of water, Schauberger was important not only for the harmonious consistency of laminar and turbulent movements, but also for "positive temperature changes." By this he meant the approach of the water temperature to +4 degrees Celsius.

At this temperature and simultaneously cycloidal spiral motion (swirl), the energy of the water increases, the water becomes fresh and alive, because "emulsion" creates "new" water in which oxygen is dissolved by hydrogen. With a "negative temperature change", i.e. water heating above +4 degrees Celsius, there is a decrease in water energy and its biologically poor quality. Water loses its lifting power, it appears pathogenic embryos. Schauberger described the cycle of water as it circulates between the sky and the depths of the Earth.

An important link between them is the forest: because of evaporation over the crowns of trees, the forest takes away the heat from the soil. This cooling enables groundwaters to rise upwards (especially in dry periods): Archimedean principle means that warmer water masses can not be under cold. If the forest is cut down, then the felling area of ​​the solid felling is heated under the direct rays of the sun; ground water, and with it the deposits of nutrient salts are lowered to a depth where they become inaccessible to the roots of plants: the springs cease ...

Subsequently, all the countryside carsting. One can understand why Victor Schauberger called the forest "the cradle of water." The vital importance of quality drinking water Schauberger was also against (normal today) the supply of groundwater to the top of the pump. From his point of view, groundwater "is not ripe" to use it as drinking water. She must lie still deep underground. Only water, which itself comes to the surface, i.e. the water of the source is sufficiently ripe; she went through the entire development cycle. Schauberger early realized the need to design devices that would provide a person with drinking water that has the quality of the source water.

"Today, when almost all the healthy springs are either silent or water is intercepted at the place of one's birth and is sent to the settlements through illiterately constructed pipelines, the soil and the entire animal world are transferred to stale, tasteless, and therefore unhealthy water," emergency help is needed. After all, "people who are forced to drink only chlorinated water year after year can think about one day, but how does water affect the body, forcibly deprived of its natural ability to show life." Chlorinated and physically destroyed water leads not only to a logical physical disintegration, but and is the cause of the manifestation of spiritual decay, and hence the systematic degeneration of man and all living things. "

And in 1930, Schauberger designed his first device for enriching water in the form of an egg. Today, there are various developments on the principle of the Schauberger vortex, one of which is the VITA VORTEX device. Victor Schauberger used his knowledge in agriculture, where with the help of various egg-shaped structures, spiral plows, special composts and old peasant wisdom, which suddenly became clear in the light of his theory, achieved great success. He even helped increase the yield, without using chemical fertilizers.

On non-explosive destruction and explosion

But, perhaps, the most important discovery of Schauberger was the power of explosive destruction. This, without a doubt, is his most revolutionary discovery, as it brought our blasting technique to the point of absurdity. The whole universe is in motion (according to Heraclitus, "panta rei" - everything flows), namely, in the movement of the (open) spiral. In this flow, two forces are manifested. There is a right-turning, inward-directed vortex of non-explosive destruction or an attractive, suction centripetal force.

It is a creative, formative and quality-promoting force. All nature is built on such power. Every plant, every animal, every person, water - everything in its creativity perceives positive vital energy and gets rid of the imperfect. In contrast to the building force of explosive destruction, there is a degenerate or degenerative force of the explosion.

It is a left-turning, outward-directed centrifugal vortex of decay energy. This kind of disintegration is used by nature only to dissolve an already worked out complex (for example, a dead organism). Schauberger wrote: "Centripetal cycloidal spiral motion corresponds to decreasing temperature, compression and concentration." Centrifugal motion is equal in value to rising temperature, heat, expansion, expansion and explosion." So the theory that the universe was formed by the explosion is just nonsense.

After all, the power of the explosion, which we use in our internal combustion engines, is not only destructive in its essence, but also extremely inefficient. The efficiency of most internal combustion engines is not even 50%, in other words, more than half of the released energy is wasted most often in the form of heat, cars can be called a joke "district heaters." And this is not only a horrific waste of oil, coal, gas, etc. (according to Schauberger, they should be left in the ground, because they are necessary for the formation of water), but, in the literal sense of the word, "the technique of death" (Schauberger), which brings to the whole world the consequences threatening the life that nature can know only during decay and decomposition.

A doubtful "crown" of this false principle is the splitting of the atom. Schauberger took as a model the creative forces of nature ("In the plant nothing explodes!"), which, thanks to a minimum of energy consumption, reach a maximum of productivity. "Our modern technique behaves, on the contrary, as a peasant who throws seven potatoes into the ground in the spring to dig out one in the fall." At the same time, Schauberger did not rely on pressure and temperature (internal combustion engines), but on the power of sucking, on the "eternally feminine beginning" - the force of explosive destruction.

Such biotechnology does not create waste or exhaust gases, but produces energy at a rate almost equal to zero. With this point of view, Schauberger, of course, did not make friends. So, for example, the union of engineers and architects placed him under the guise of researching the state of health in a madhouse. Fortunately, he managed to leave it soon, because the doctor certified Schauberger as a perfectly healthy and extremely reasonable person. The fact that his technique is functioning, Schauberger proved on his "suction" and "trout" turbines for hydroelectric power plants, the efficiency of which was much higher than that of conventional turbines. The Technical Institute of Stuttgart conducted experiments in 1952, which unequivocally proved that the water is properly swirling, the water is able to compensate for the frictional force! These data were confirmed in 1981 at the Royal Technical Institute of Stockholm.

The creator of the drive for levitation. Based on the natural twist of water and air, Schauberger designed home mini power stations and even drive engines for airplanes. The inventor of the first jet planes Heinkel must have "borrowed" his ideas from Victor Schauberger. It is clear that the Nazis followed Schauberger and put him before the choice: either to lead the research camp, or to shoot on the spot. During the war, Schauberger developed new types of drive engines for rockets. "If water or air is forced to move" cycloidally "(spirally) under the action of high-speed vibrations, it leads to the formation of a structure of energy or high-quality fine matter that levitates with incredible force, dragging the generator body behind it.

If you refine this idea according to natural laws, you will get an ideal aircraft or an ideal submarine, and all this without almost the cost of production materials. "In fact, whether such a" full-size UFO drive "functioned, the question is controversial, but the test sample broke the roof of the factory: He weighed 135 kg and started with only 0.05 hp.

Later, the American occupation authorities confiscate all the documentation for the experiments, and Schauberger will be captured for 9 months "in captivity", at that time the Russians will search his apartment in Vienna, and then blow it up so that no one can find his research on levitation. When the Americans release Schauberger, they will forbid him to engage in further research in this direction under the threat of arrest. Victor Schauberger can rightfully be considered one of the fathers of free energy, receiving energy from "nothing" ... It is clear that he had many proposals in the field of economics. Schauberger was invited by the governments of Russia, Britain, France, Yugoslavia and Bulgaria.

Good proposals also came from the British financial and Jewish industries. As Schauberger himself said: "I would become a millionaire in a short time if I decided to take up the matter in such a volume before the idea fully ripens." But this unbending, brave, honest compromise that did not compromise anybody, rejected all proposals, because the inner voice told him that the time would come when his discoveries would serve to improve the science of the whole world. The method of non-explosive destruction makes nuclear energy unnecessary. Since Schauberger knew that not a single branch of the economy would decide to switch from biotechnology to biotechnology, he did not expect any support from industry.

Schauberger did not trust, first of all, the monopolists in energy and armaments and was afraid that they would multiply their power through his discoveries, hiding them from humanity. Its purpose was to make atomic energy unnecessary with the help of motors of non-explosive destruction. He considered it to be the greatest danger. In addition, obtaining energy by his method would be much cheaper. So, for example, from one cubic meter of water per second it would be possible to get a minimum of 4,000 kW. thermal energy, and the temperature of the water would drop only by one degree.

The force that did not bribe itself and again and again resist all the vicissitudes left Viktor Schauberger and deprived him of the conviction that it is important to fight for life: "Civilized humanity, despite its seemingly high technical culture, has reached such a low level of ethics that it is already no longer notices that such a physical and moral decay is nothing but a continuous disintegration of culture. For this reason, the holy duty of people who are conscious of the severity of the errors committed is a constant aspiration to the final correction of the consequences of delusions."

Last years of life At the end of his life, Schauberger was in a dismal financial situation. All his experiments and equipment he had to pay himself. It was worth it to succeed, how the authorities took away his development, and someone else profited from it. So it was with him 12 times. Or his discoveries disappeared without a trace. In a letter written just before his death, Viktor Schauberger bitterly remarked: "I will return to my forest to die there in peace.

The whole science, with all its henchmen, is just a gang of thieves, pulled like strings, and forced to dance to any tune that gives out its well-concealed slaveholder for necessity. "Because of many disappointments, he was physically broken and suffering from asthma. When, in 1958, an American tycoon proposed the widespread use of his technique, Schauberger flew with his son Walter, who also spent his whole life studying vortex research in the United States.

But the partners quarreled, despite (or just because of?) On the positive results, and Victor Schauberger insisted on leaving. He was allowed to do this, but on the condition that he sign a treaty written in English, the content of which he did not understand, because did not speak English. Unaware of anything, Schauberger signed it, thus entrusting all documents, cars and rights to that American concern (the question arises what has been done in the last 40 years?). Under this treaty Schauberger was forbidden to carry out further research.

Broken, he returned to Austria, where he died in 5 days, September 25, 1958, at the age of 73 years in utter despair: "They took everything from me! I'm not even the master of myself!".

But still the life story of this outstanding person should be ended with a vision that Victor Schauberger presented as our future, when the riddle of water will open to all people:

"The future man will completely master the matter and take from it the beginning of a high-quality subtle substance, he will become the chief servant and at the same time the master of nature.

Fabulous harvests will provide him with excellent food. He will achieve almost absolute freedom in movement on land, over water and in the air. Thus, the struggle for life, the class struggle, the struggle for existence and, above all, the wars for minerals and food will cease. There will come a prosperity that can not be imagined. Medicine will also undergo tremendous changes.

The reality will be what Paracelsus saw: a special substance will be created that will destroy the disease in the bud. People will not know diseases and, therefore, will become cheerful. At their disposal will be all the space, along and across, and it will serve man, thanks to the availability of all kinds of raw materials in all areas of development. Everything came out of the water. It is the universal raw material of any culture or the foundation of any human and spiritual development. Mastering the secret water is the end of any kind of speculation or calculation with their outgrowths, which include war, hatred, envy, intolerance and strife in any form.

A full study of water means, in the true sense of the word, an end to monopolies, an end to domination and the beginning of socialism through the development of individualism in its perfect form. On the way to "cold oxidation processes," the operation of machines will become almost free and only then valuable: food, raw materials, and fuel will be in abundance ... The germ of such high-quality matter, or the concentration of negative ions of geospheric origin, are the atoms of synthesis and lift.

They can be obtained mechanically in any quantity and quality from the bacteriophage limit states (deposited and suspended matter) in air and water with the help of a "cycloidal movement of a spatial curve" (spiral), almost without cost, just as it does in a turbulent the source water floats steadily with the help of the shape of its fins and trunk, when it simply allows fresh spring water with a geospheric type of stress to flow through the fins.

To master the crown of creation, the path is free; it is enough to become the chief servant of the Lord and, therefore, the leader of the grandiose process of evolution. Perhaps the man of this century is given a single chance on the way through a narrow mountain ridge to the summit, with the risk of falling into inconceivable depths - to become like God. Who will master the process of transformation in a creative sense; he will receive the qualities of the creator. Whoever will master the process of transformation in a destructive sense and realize this, is that tool and servant of the devil."

42 attempts on Hitler
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According to most German sources, based on the data of the archives of the Nazi special services, Hitler tried to kill from 17 to 20 times. True, the writer Will Berthold, who once worked as a reporter at the Nuremberg Trials, believes that there were at least 42 attempts to assassinate the Nazi leader. How many were there?

During the life of the Fuhrer, there were a great many attempts on him. And after his death, they became even more: in the postwar years in Germany (and in other European countries) there were so many "participants in attempts on the life of the dictator," that researchers do not know who to believe.

And this can be easily explained: Germany of modern times refuses in every way that the German people warmly approved and supported the executioner of the 20th century, so she needs her heroes of "anti-Hitler resistance."

Especially since they were really. And there were a lot of them.

The queue for murder

If you recall the history of Hitler's ascension to the political Olympus, you can count a few moments when he could be eliminated without much trouble. And it was necessary to do this not later than before the summer of 1934. After all, it was at this time that the Führer removed two of the three real power rivals: Gretor Strasser and Ernst Röhm (the third - Otto Strasser - fled the country).

In the case of the murder of the Führer, the political situation in Germany, and indeed in Europe itself, would be quite different. It can be assumed that if Gregor became the head of Germany, the "Left National Socialist" sympathizing with the Communists (or his brother Otto, who published panegyrics in Soviet Russia about Soviet Russia), then, perhaps, there would not be a "crusade to the East" ".

But if the leader of the Storm Trooper Remus had moved to the "chiefs of the Reich", then most likely he would have turned out to be a pro-Soviet pawn - on this homosexual the domestic special services had an impressive compromising evidence (according to some data, also a "honey trap" - a young stormtrooper, ethnic German, a native of Russia, for ideological reasons, collaborated with the NKVD).

But, no matter what, Hitler survived. But the chances of destroying the future head of the Third Reich were very real. First of all, the future of the all-powerful Fuhrer could be shot by policemen who repeatedly dispersed demonstrations of National Socialists with the help of firearms. As is known, during these processions Hitler always went in the front ranks - he was neither a coward nor a panic, as evidenced by the rewards received on the fronts of the First World War, and what those who once went with him to attack .

Even more suitable for the murder was the time that happened in the autumn of 1938. Then Maurice Bavo, an unbalanced Swiss, convinced of the need to kill the leader of the Nazis, planned to shoot Hitler from the pistol during the celebration of the anniversary of the Beer Putsch. He knew that the Fuhrer was usually at the head of the column. Bavo, having obtained a gun and trained in shooting, took his place among the spectators. However, at the very same time Hitler and his shadow - the Fuhrer, even from the highest rostrum appeared in the presence of the guards, the moment when Hitler walked past the terrorist, his supporters threw up their hands in solemn greeting and completely closed the visibility of the arrow. The attempt failed, soon Bavo was arrested and executed on guillotine.

The next episode of the assassination occurred on November 8, 1939. Johann Georg Elzer - a Munich carpenter - laid a bomb in one of the beer columns in order to kill Hitler during a long speech. But this time the Führer did not speak for three hours, as he usually did, but for an hour. 10 minutes before the explosion, he left the pub.

It was this attempt that became the next signal for ... the protection of Stalin. Those who protected the life of the "Father of the Peoples", seeing how easily they assassinated the Fuehrer, were subjected to the most careful preliminary examination of all those who came to see Stalin. In the Kremlin, they began to examine the portfolios and bags of all the guests of the "Kremlin Highlander."

But the defense of Hitler for some reason did not draw such conclusions. And the attempts on the life of the leader of the National Socialists continued with the same intensity.

No body - no business

In connection with the fact that Hitler still survived, the question arises: why did the Fuhrer not croak? After all, it could be killed for sure: for example, by pouring poison into the favorite sweets of delayed action (such "spices of delayed property" special services have at least from the XVIII century, so that the reference to the fact that the Fuhrer had a team of tasters, have no reason Moreover, according to recent data, up to 1942, the court confectioner of the "brown sweets" - Bruno Utash - was on the payroll of the British special services).

Considering all these inexplicable failures that accompanied the failed assassination attempts, you involuntarily come to the conclusion that the leader of Nazism really protected providence.

After all, explaining this to something else is almost impossible. Here, for example, an episode from 1944, when Hitler literally was hunting. And not employees of foreign special services, and his colleagues who knew about each step of the leader. And yet it did not lead to anything.

One of the most revealing episodes is an attempt to kill Hitler during his flight by plane from the main stake in East Prussia to Berlin.

The officer from his suite under the guise of two bottles of cognac was given explosive devices. Bombs had to burst in the air. But the "hellish machine" suddenly for some reason did not work - and this is in the conditions of vaunted German pedantry, accuracy and accuracy. How can this be explained?

The next episode is the elimination of Hitler, which the chief of staff of the reserve army of the Wehrmacht, Colonel Klaus von Stauffenberg, took over.

Often present at various business meetings held by Hitler at the main rate, he wanted to kill him right at the meeting.

So, on July 20, 1944, Stauffenberg arrived at a meeting with a briefcase in which was a bomb. Putting him on the floor two steps from Hitler, the colonel, referring to the fact that he needed to call urgently, left the building where the meeting was going. When the explosion occurred, he immediately went to the airfield and flew to Berlin to other conspirators in full confidence that Hitler was killed. But Stauffenberg made a mistake, and this error cost him his life and 200 of his comrades. It so happened that one of the officers, who were at the meeting, pushed the briefcase under his feet under a massive table on which cards had been laid out. And the massive cover of the table did not actually allow the conspirators to change the course of history. During the explosion, the Führer received only minor injuries: a concussion, a trauma to the right arm and eardrums, burns on his legs, while four others were killed, and the remaining 18 were more seriously injured.

The conspiracy of the military was brutally suppressed, and its members were destroyed. Can this be considered an accident?

However, sometimes the destruction of the leader of the Nazis was disrupted or postponed for objective reasons. For example, it happened with Stalin's intelligence, which wanted to use his personal friend Olga Chekhov to kill the Führer.

In order to organize this attempt, Olga and her good friend Prince Radziwill, who was also in contact with the NKVD, had to provide access to the killer agent to Hitler himself. Theoretically this was possible: Chekhov was a member of Hitler's acquaintances, and Radziwill was on good terms with Hering, who liked to hunt in his Lithuanian estate. But Stalin suddenly banned Sudoplatov, the head of the terrorist department of the NKVD, to carry out this operation.

A number of historians are still asking the question: "Why did Stalin forbid the use of the Russian-born actress, the NKVD agent and Adolp's favorite dildo as the" Mata Hari "?" The answer in this case is simple:

in 1941-1943 Olga was not, let's say, entering the dictator's chambers, and therefore there were no technical prerequisites for an effective assassination attempt on her behalf. And later, when the final turning point in the Second World War came, the need for the elimination of the Fuehrer (from the Soviet point of view) had already disappeared.

"The Father of the Peoples" needed "one Victory", and it was required (and it was already easier) to win it over Nazi Germany, and not over the "renewed Germany" of any Stauffenberg (just imagine what a trump card would appear in the Western world: "The Russians, out of the new democratic Germany! You were attacked by the Nazis, and now you are the invaders in a free country!").

That's why Adolf Aloizovich was able to live to commit suicide, which Comrade Stalin dubbed as a vivid expression: "It's finished, you rascal!"

Strange liquidators

It must be said that the liquidators of the Fuehrer sometimes behaved in a strange way.

Thus, on November 26, 1937, Hitler and Goering intended to shoot Josef Thomas, an inhabitant of the city of Elberfeld, for this purpose undertook a trip to Berlin. Few people know that in fact, Thomas was expelled from the ranks of the Luftwaffe ... ace-bugger, indignant as the Fuhrer's military policy aimed at "cleaning" the ranks of the Air Force from members of sexual minorities, and "indulging" it from the "Nazi No. 2 ".

When Thomas was detained in the capital by representatives of the Gestapo, after finding out all the circumstances, they did not even put this "anti-fascist" on the wall: Josef was locked up for life in a madhouse.

Finally, with all due respect to the person of Captain Von Breitenbuch (Adjutant General-Field Marshal Ernst Bush), who was planning to shoot Hitler during his meeting with the generals on March 11, 1944, it is interesting to know that this assassination has ended with the fact that the amateur terminator is simply. .. castrated himself. The captain, hoping to be at a meeting with the chief, hid the murder weapon in uniform trousers. Like other adjutants, he was stopped by the SS at the entrance to the meeting hall. Apparently, having become agitated or upset because of the failed attempt, von Braitenbuch, having got his weapon from the "hiding place", accidentally discharged it into his pants.

In short, by the end of the war the number of the so-called liquidators of the Fuhrer was growing exponentially. And most of them wanted to kill Hitler only in their heads, because neither by their psychological preparation, nor by practical possibilities, they could not do this.

It is known that even one of the Führer's closest friends, the Reich Minister of Arms and Military Industry, his favorite architect Albert Speer, also wanted to destroy the leader-for this he allegedly wanted to inject into the bunker's air a poisonous gas.

Speer told about this in the 1960s, coming out of prison. But, by his own admission, he immediately confessed his intention to the Führer himself! And what's next? Hitler ordered to shoot a conspirator, hang it or throw it into a concentration camp? It did not happen at all: after listening to Speer's confession, the Führer gave the order to immediately construct a protective casing around the ventilation coarse and ... sent Speer to hell! The dissatisfaction of the Fuhrer, according to the Reich Minister, was expressed in that. that he did not give his hand goodbye and "looked past" (that's really really - punished so punished!).

And is it possible then to believe the confessions of such a liquidator and the described reaction of Hitler? Probably, it is possible, but with one assumption: at that moment the leader himself and those who attacked him were in a state of mental disorder. There is no other explanation.

Unsuccessful martyrology

During the years 1921-1945, Hitler was assaulted many times.

Here are some of these attempts that can be considered as the most revealing.

1921, November. The Führer makes a speech in the Berlin beer hall and "honors" several inaccurate shots from the pistol. According to the records in the police journal, in the future the Fuhrer was shooting ... a homosexual, dissatisfied with the fact that Hitler attributed cowardice to the representatives of sex minorities at the front.

1932, January. Berlin. The unknown person poisoned the food of Hitler cooked for him at the Kaiserhof Hotel. Injured servant, the first to test food (long diarrhea). According to the genesis of the illness of the injured staff, it can be seen that the poisoner was not a professional in his field.

1939, November 11th. Erich Kordt allegedly plans to blow up Hitler in the Reich Chancellery. However, after the explosion in the Munich Beer, the Fuehrer's guard is extremely vigilant: the accomplice and organizer of the assassination, Colonel Hans Oster, allegedly cannot carry the explosives to their destination.

1940, on June, 27th Eugen Gerstenmaier and Count Fritz-Dietlof von der Schulenburg plan to shoot Hitler during the military parade, scheduled in Paris on the Champs Elysees that day. However, Hitler comes to Paris on June 23, and the parade is canceled.

1943, March 13. The Fuhrer visits Smolensk. Colonel Henning Von Treskov is developing a complex plan to eliminate Hitler. Plan von Greskov with a crash fails.

1943 year, 21 March. Officer Rudolf-Christophe Freiherr von Gersdorf plans to blow up along with Hitler, Keitel, Himmler, Goering and Deniz at an exhibition of captured Soviet weapons, which the Führer must visit. Adolf stayed at the exhibition for only 10 minutes; von Gersdorf never realized his plan.

Jet planes of the Third Reich
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Since the first days of its existence, aviation has attracted the most unorthodox thinking engineers and designers into its ranks. And the very appearance of the aircraft became a manifestation of extreme avant-gardism. Born to crawl should not have flown. Therefore, the revolutionary nature of the design of airplanes, and later - of the aircraft did not embarrass designers at all. Moreover, many aircraft initially appeared only in the imagination of engineers and only then they grew up in calculations and projections.

The first time the resurgent Luftwaffe of the Third Reich was clearly hovering in the clouds of all-attainment. Ernst Udette, a good fighter pilot of the First World War, in the postwar period becomes widely known in Germany and as a war hero, and as a desperately brave stunt pilot. The economy of the country was in the most severe decline and only risky aerobatics tricks allowed to earn a piece of bread. Becoming a member of Hitler's party, Udette quickly moved up the ranks and soon became responsible for the technical re-equipment of the German air force. During this period, ideology was the main factor in the design, and in the design bureaus of the Third Reich began to appear completely monstrous aircraft projects, performed by "proven comrades."

However, by 1939, purely scientific pragmatism of mathematical calculations had prevailed. Many odious designs, to which Ernst Udette and Hermann Goering had high hopes, perished in disasters, proving their futility. The failure was so great that Udetta had no choice but to shoot himself, which he did.

He was replaced by Erhard Milch, a cold pragmatist. It was he who reequipped the Luftwaffe with Junkers Ju-52 transport planes, which were so beautiful in Spain and flew until almost the end of the eighties. The same strictly practical approach extended to the design of combat aircraft.

In formulating the requirements of the technical assignments for new aircraft, two important aspects were primarily considered. Hitler and the top of the Third Reich were interested in the timing of the final result. In their opinion, the war should not last long and could well be won with the help of the already existing or slightly improved weapons. Quite a long time, Hitler generally banned the financing of programs, the end of which required more than 10-12 months. However, there were several high-ranking officials who understood the need for fundamental research in a variety of areas, including - in jet aircraft.

It should be remembered that the Third Reich was a state extremely bureaucratized, heavily dependent not on any law or regulation, but on the opinion and the level of authority of the responsible official. This caused some confusion. Despite Germany's rather cool attitude to the reactive principle of motion, already in the first half of the thirties in Germany HEINKEL company built an experimental Heinkel He-112 aircraft, two of which tested the A-1 rocket engine of the Wernher von Braun design.

The machine was intended only for studying the principle of jet propulsion. The first results were more than modest. The own speed of the He-112 was 300 kilometers per hour and increased to 400 with the inclusion of the thrust. In the course of further tests, the aircraft showed a maximum speed of 458 kilometers per hour.

The engine A-1 had a significant drawback - the lack of traction control, which prevented its use as an independent powerplant of the aircraft. At this time, a new design of a rocket engine developed by engineer Helmut Walter appeared. The TR-1 engine operated on a fuel of a different composition - a self-igniting mixture of two components (T-Stoff and Z-Stoff). The next TR-2 engine already had a traction control and developed a thrust of 9.5 kilo-ton for 30 seconds.

This allowed HEINKEL to begin work on the creation of a Heinkel He-176 aircraft equipped only with a rocket engine. Works under Hans Regner and with the participation of the Gunther brothers were started in late 1937. The project was a fairly small aircraft with heavily lined aerodynamic shapes. The front of the fuselage was a fully glazed cockpit, and the TR-2 engine was located in the tail section, by that time officially named Walter HWK RI-203. In addition, the aircraft had retractable landing gear. Without fuel the car weighed 1570 kilograms, and in the loaded condition - 2 tons exactly. The first flight of this aircraft took place on June 20, 1939 and lasted 50 seconds, and the speed was only 273 kilometers per hour (whereas the design speed of the aircraft was to be 750 kilometers per hour). Despite all the efforts of the engineers Heinkel, the He-176 more than 346 kilometers was never overclocked.

In addition to a purely practical purpose - to develop the technology of rocket engines, to clarify the features of aerodynamics and refine the design methods - Heinkel He-176 performed another important task: demonstrating achievements to the leaders of the Third Reich. Therefore, the prototype VI participated in virtually all closed air shows, and descended from the scene only under the pressure of later pre-combat and combat models, far exceeding its characteristics. But it is interesting that Marshal Erhard Milch took the side of the developers of jet aircraft just after he saw with his own eyes while flying a slow Heinkel He-176.

However, Ernst Henkel managed to get involved in the project leading German jet explorer and jet designer Pabst von Ogain, who created a new engine HS-3B, which developed a static thrust of 500 kilograms (it was tested on August 28, 1939 on a test aircraft Heikel He- 178 V1). Subsequently, an improved HS-8A was developed, which developed a static thrust of 586 kilograms. The last engine allowed to begin work on the creation on its basis of a twin-engine jet fighter. Since the beginning of 1939, this project was led by Robert Lusser, technical director of the aircraft plant of HEINKEL.

Promising results were achieved, and by the spring of 1940, the Technical Office of the Luftwaffe (RLM) issued its formal consent to continue the work on the prototype Heinkel He-280 V1. The car was built in six months. September 11, 1940 twin-engine piston bomber Heinkel He-111 for the first time lifted a non-motor prototype in tow. The engines were not yet complete, and instead of them, full-size mock-ups were mounted on the wings. Until March 1941, the Heinkel He-280 V1 managed to accomplish 41 planned flights. Interestingly, this machine has already installed a pneumatic catapulted pilot's seat. On April 2, 1941, a fully completed He-280 model with two turbojet engines HS-8A took off. The capacity of the tanks was 1067 liters of fuel.

Until the end of 1943, the design bureaus ARADO and MESSERSCHMITT worked on three major reactive projects, in which significant progress was made. However, the Third Reich did not consider them priority and did not give them enough attention.

The year 1944 finally settled all the points over the "i". Germany captured a vast territory, which exceeded the pre-war times by dozens of times. Despite the obvious successes, it was not possible to defeat all the opponents, and Hitler was at war with the whole world. Even the United States of America moved from covert assistance to Great Britain and the Soviet Union to the direct participation of its armed forces in hostilities. American bombers raided the Third Reich daily, and land forces landed in North Africa and entered into battle with the tanks of Rommel. Even the finished fanatics no longer called the event a blitzkrieg. The exhausting confrontation of the non-active armies began, and the might of the national economies, under which Germany could not last long.

The closer and more obvious was the collapse of the German military machine, and with it of the whole Hitlerite state, the more desperate were attempts to create new-generation weapons. Hitler continued to believe that the industry is still in a position to create an extremely powerful and advanced weapon, through which the Wehrmacht will quickly end the war, thereby avoiding complete depletion of industry. Being in such a situation, the leaders of the Third Reich no longer talked about the prospects or inferiority of this or that project. If the proposal theoretically could turn into an effective and cheap weapon, then the project was given a green light. This state of affairs gave rise to promises of a huge reward in case of success and initiated fierce competition among designers.

In particular, in aviation, in competition for the creation of aircraft "rescuers of the Reich," virtually all aviation companies and even a part of enterprises that until then had no direct relationship to aircraft construction were involved. Since practically all the technical tasks of the Luftwaffe were formulated extremely fantastically and extremely rigidly, the design bureaus also moved in almost the same direction. Almost all projects were limited to the development of a jet aircraft of this or that design. And all of them relied on already quite well-worked out designs of reactive, turbojet and rocket engines, commercially produced by German industry.

Almost all these projects remained on paper. In most cases, the time was not even enough to build a full-size mock-up. The Red Army and the Allies occupied one German city after another with lightning speed, and by May 8, 1945, Hitlerite Germany capitulated. All the developments, all projects and theoretical calculations, as well as the laboratories together with the personnel, fell into the hands of the countries of the anti-Hitler coalition. So the winners in the most direct sense "took off the cream" and already in the postwar years, without haste, built many models for carrying out full-scale tests in the interests of their own military industry.

The presence in Germany of a huge number of all kinds of missile and rocket projects was also due to the fact that by 1944 many German companies began to develop aircraft in an initiative. In addition, the usual practice was the announcement by the Luftwaffe Technical Administration of open tenders for the development of specific machines. The competition was accepted only detailed projects, which, if successful, could almost immediately be implemented in prototypes or prototypes. As a result, it turned out that the competition won only one project, but a few dozen variants were submitted for the competition. For example, the competition for creating the so-called "national fighter" (Volksjager) was simultaneously exhibited projects of six leading German design offices: HEINKEL, JUNKERS, ARADO, FOCKE-WULF, BLOHM und VOSS, HORTEN. Often, firms have demonstrated not just a project, but at the same time several independent versions of it.

The constant participation in numerous competitions of the majority of aircraft manufacturers and the Design Bureau of the Third Reich led to the appearance of a large number of sufficiently developed promising designs for jet and missile aircraft of various purposes. And to this day among the numerous archives of the times of the Second World War are all the "new and new", hitherto completely unknown projects, many of which simply amaze the imagination.

ARADO Company, one of the first to start work within the framework of the German reactive program, by the end of the war, designed numerous modifications based on the high-speed scout Arado Ag-234. For example, the project E-375 (created from Ag-234S) with engines Heinkel HeS 011.

The same engine was supposed to be equipped with the aircraft AG-I, which was conceived as a two-seater fighter-bomber with a triangular wing. It was supposed to be armed with four cannons MK-108.

Looks like the design of the fighter Arado Ag E-581.4. The designers used the same turbojet engine Heinkel HeS 011 and a similar fuselage construction with a triangular wing.

The car had a span of 8.8 meters and a length of 5.5 meters. Armament consisted of two guns MK-108.

To participate in the contest Volksjager design bureau ARADO was proposed project Ar E-580 with the following characteristics: wingspan - 7.62 meters; length - 7.86 meters; the maximum speed at an altitude of 5900 meters is 744 kilometers per hour; takeoff weight - 2492 kg; the maximum flight range is 508 kilometers.

There was also a project Arado Ar E 381. It was a single-seat fighter equipped with a Walter HWK109-509 A2 rocket motor. The aircraft was to be suspended under the bombing version of Arado Ag-234 (modification B or C), in order to provide fighter cover during the execution of bomber tasks. Arado Ar E 381 was designed to disconnect from the carrier in the event of a collision with enemy aircraft, to gain additional height and perform an attacking maneuver. Own fuel resource should be enough to re-call. It was further assumed that the pilot would be able to turn around and plan towards his nearest airfield, where he would land on the ventral ski. The pilot was lying in a lying position and was protected by a five-millimeter steel body in the cabin area, and a plexiglass lamp with a thickness of 140 millimeters. Armament consisted of a gun MK-108, a caliber of 30 millimeters. To ensure the comfort of the pilot during a long flight at high altitude, it was possible to supply warm air from the carrier aircraft.

The active participation in the creation of German aircraft was taken by BLOHM and VOSS. Its designers have created a large number of jet aircraft for various purposes.

The end of the war did not allow the implementation of the extremely interesting project Blohm und Voss Bv P188. The designers attempted to create a four-engine jet long-range bomber. The unusual design was that when viewed from above, the wings of the car resembled the letter "W". From the root part to the middle, the wing strongly deflected back, and from the middle to the tiplets - forward (that is, it had a reverse sweep, like Junkers Ju-287). The aircraft was to be equipped with four engines Junkers Jumo 004C thrust 1000 kilograms each. The engines were located on projects P188.01 and .03 - in individual nacelles under the wings, and on P188.02 and P188.04 - in twin. The middle part of the fuselage had a steel armor to protect the fuel tanks. In the front and rear parts of the fuselage were hatches of the landing gear of the chassis. Under the nacelles there were supporting wheels. The maximum speed at an altitude of 8,000 meters was 873 kilometers per hour. The plane took two tons of bombs; with its own take-off mass of 24,300 kilograms. The maximum range was 2285 kilometers.

Based on the reconnaissance-corrector Blohm und Voss Bv-141 of an unconventional asymmetric design, the P194-01 project was developed, in which a Junkers Jumo 004 turbojet engine was located under the crew cabin.

Bv P196 was conceived as a twin-engine jet fighter of two-beam design. The engines of the BMW 003 were to be located under a short fuselage. The wings were assumed to be swept, a span of 15 meters with an overall length of 11.5 meters. The design range was 800 kilometers with a design maximum flight speed of about 900 kilometers per hour.

The Bv P-204 was designed as another unbalanced aircraft. On the left side of the fuselage, under the wing, was installed one engine BMW 003, while the main drive of the aircraft was carried out with the help of a star-shaped air-cooling engine BMW-801 D. The jet engine should serve as an accelerator for a short-term speed increase, for example, in the case the need to evade the attack of enemy fighters. Armament Bv P-204 consisted of two MG-151 guns of 20-millimeter caliber installed in the root of the wings, and two 13-millimeter MG-131 machine guns. This aircraft could carry the planning bombs Blohm und Voss R. 226 or Blohm und Voss P.246 "Hagelkorn".

Blohm und Voss project R-209 was created as a fighter for the competition "thousand-thousand-thousand," announced by the Luftwaffe Technical Department. Bv P209 was to be equipped with a Heinkel HeS 011 engine with a thrust of 1320 kilograms. The design had a wingspan of 8 meters and a starting mass of 3.5 tons. According to calculations, P209 was to reach a height of 12-13 kilometers. Armament was provided in the form of two guns MK-108 caliber of 30 millimeters.

Released by a competitor, HEINKEL, the project of the "national fighter" Bv P-211a was subsequently modified. Instead of one engine BMW 003 it was planned to install two. In this case, the wingspan even decreased to 7 meters 65 centimeters, and the length of the aircraft decreased by 60 centimeters. The maximum speed was to be 900 kilometers per hour against 860 for the original version. This modification was named Bv P211b.

The project Bv P-212 remained unrealized project of the jet fighter plane. The machine was a tailless midplane equipped with a turbojet engine Heinkel Hirth 109-011 A. The horizontal and vertical rudders of the aircraft were located on wing tips that had a sweep of 40 degrees and a span of 7 meters along the leading edge. The length of the fuselage was 7.5 meters. Bv P-212 had an all-metal construction. In the bow was located an air intake, above which was installed gun MK-108 with an ammunition of 60 shots. The remaining armament - two guns MK-108 with ammunition of 100 shots per barrel - was located in the lower part, along the sides of the hatch of the nose landing gear. The hermetically sealed cabin had a teardrop lantern. Fuel tanks with a total volume of 1500 liters were located in the fuselage and wings. At sea level, this fighter had to develop a speed of 910 kilometers per hour. The initial climb rate was 1280 meters per minute.

The surplus of manufactured Argus As014 rocket engines for the V-1 cruise missiles (Fiseler, Fi-103) prompted the Luftwaffe to declare a competition for the creation of a miniature fighter that would use these engines. Design office BLOHM und VOSS has developed the project R-213. It was a small aircraft measuring 6.2 meters long, with wooden wings spanning 6 meters. The front of the fuselage consisted of two halves molded from steel armor. In the upper part was a pilot cabin with a teardrop-shaped lantern. On the wooden tail boom was attached a "butterfly" feathers, beveled down. The relatively small thrust of the Argus As014 pulsating engine (only 300 kilograms) required the use of a catapult or additional accelerators at the start. The maximum speed of flight at sea level was 700 kilometers per hour, and at an altitude of 9000 meters - 450 kilometers per hour. The rate of climb was 1200 meters per minute. Practical ceiling - 10 kilometers. Armament was designed in the form of a single gun MK-108 caliber 30 millimeters.

Design Bureau BMW designed not only turbojet engines. The engineers of the firm worked on the projects of a number of aircraft.

Taking part in the competition for the creation of a high-speed bomber, in early March 1945, BMW offered its own variants: BMW Strahlbomber I and BMW Strahlbomber II.

BMW "Strahlbomber I" provided for the installation of six BMW 003 engines with a thrust of 800 kilograms each. Two of them were to be located in the front of the fuselage, and the remaining four - in pairs in wings.

In the tail end of the BMW "Strahlbomber II", like a "flying wing", there were two turbojet engines BMW 018 with a thrust of 3450 kilograms each. The crew consisted of three people. Defensive weapons included two guns MK-108 and mounted in the tail, remotely controlled tower.

BMW designers also carried out their own work on the Schnellbomber I high-speed bomber project. The plane was planned to be equipped with two turbojet engines BMW 018 installed under the wings and two turboprop engines BMW 028. The presumed speed of the aircraft was to be 850 kilometers per hour. There was also a project called "Schnellbomber II", which had wings of reverse sweep and equipped with two turboprop engines with coaxial screws installed in the nacelles above the wing.

In addition to bombers, BMW also worked on jet fighter projects. In particular, the project under the name "Strahljager" is known. Modifications of this machine were very different. So, for example, "Strahljager II" had a narrow fuselage, similar to the Hs-132 HENSCHEL design. Only the turbojet engine was located inside the fuselage, in the lower part of it. At the same time, two sub-variants of the design, differing in the position of the pilot, were calculated. In one case, the pilot was lying down face down, and in the second - sitting in the usual position. The machine had a three-post retractable landing gear with a nose post and a long tail boom.

"Strahljager III", unlike "Strahljager II", was made on a two-beam scheme with keels inclined to the longitudinal axis of the aircraft. The pilot was sitting.

Otherwise, the variants of the Strahljager fighter did not differ from each other in principle. Their weapons included the installation of two aircraft guns in the wings.

Own development in the field of jet aviation was the company DAIMLER-BENZ, whose approach was original. Its designers have developed a carrier aircraft, to which the combat aircraft were to be suspended. When approaching the goal, they were separated and independently performed the assigned task. This concept was not new. Back in the thirties, a "Zveno" type coupler, used in combat conditions in 1941, was built in the Soviet Union. In this case, a transport aircraft equipped with six piston engines Daimler-Benz DB 603G with a capacity of 1398 kilowatts, carried on its own disposable airplane-projectiles. The wingspan of the carrier was 54 meters with the length of the aircraft 35.8 meters. The takeoff weight was 120 tons with a carrying capacity of 70 tons and a top speed of 500 kilometers per hour. The range of flight was 9000 kilometers.

Two types of projectile aircraft were developed, which were sent to the target by a suicide pilot. The projectile engine was a Heinkel HeS011A turbojet engine with a thrust of 1,300 kilograms or a BMW018 engine with a thrust of 3,400 kilograms. The airplane's charge consisted of two tons of explosives in the project "E" or three tons of explosives in the "F" project. In the Project E projectile, the engine was placed under the fuselage, since the aircraft was not supposed to be landed. In Project F, the engine was located above the cockpit of the pilot, and a hatch was provided in the bottom, allowing the pilot to jump with a parachute. According to calculations, both projectiles were to develop a speed of 1000 to 1200 kilometers per hour. Five manned projectiles ("Project E") or six projectiles ("Project F") could be simultaneously accommodated on the carrier aircraft.

Specialists DAIMLER-BENZ actively developed projects to create all kinds of bonds.

"Project A" was equipped with four, or six, turbojet engines Heinkel Hirth HeS021 with a thrust of 3,300 kilograms each. A characteristic feature of the design was a widely spaced multi-wheeled chassis on high racks, between which, under the fuselage, was a bomber, delivered to the attack area. A similar project was created with the aim of bombing the American continent. The suspended bomber had a "butterfly" tail unit, swept wings and was equipped with two turbojet engines BMW018 with a thrust of 3450 kilograms.

The bomber was a one-time system, and therefore had to be built with minimal costs. In connection with the estimated speed, approximately equal to the speed of sound, it was not equipped with any defensive weapons. After separation from the carrier, the bomber had to perform the assigned task, and then go to a safe place. There the crew left the car, which later perished, and independently advanced to the place of meeting with the submarine.

Project B provided for delivery of a single bomber equipped with one turbojet engine or five projectile aircraft (Project D) by a six-motor piston carrier for a long distance. Incidentally, the helical aircraft carrier, used in variants "B", "E" and "F", had the designation "Project C". To place a bulky suspension under the fuselage, the "Project C" was equipped with very high multi-wheeled non-retractable landing gear racks.

Without a doubt, DFS-346 became one of the most outstanding German projects that came close to overcoming the speed of sound barrier. In the fall of 1944, the Luftwaffe Technical Bureau drafted an aircraft capable of flying not only faster than anyone (it was supposed to reach a cruising speed equal to two speeds of sound), but above all. The Luftwaffe wanted to have a car capable of reaching a height of 35,000 meters. It should have been a project DFS-346, equipped with two rocket engines Walter HWK 109-509 V with a thrust of 2000 kilograms each. The order was carried out by SIEBEL.

According to the calculations of Dr. Felix Kracht, chief designer of the project, DFS-346 at an altitude of 35,000 meters could easily overcome the line at 2.6 speed of sound! The pilot was supposed to be in the supine position facing down in the sealed cabin. In the event of an emergency, the fixing bolts were broken and the cab was thrown away from the rest of the aircraft. In addition, a few seconds later, the catapult had to work and throw the pilot away from the cockpit with the seat. Then, the pilot had to get out of the chair and then descend on an individual parachute. Its chassis DFS-346 did not have and was supposed to land on the central ski. The fuel supply provided a very short time of the engine, and for the duration of the flight it was only possible to disconnect one of the engines from the common fuel tank, which, although not very much, affected the speed.

Unlike other projects, the fate of DFS-346 has developed quite differently. The Germans managed to build several models and even started to create the machines themselves. But the war was over, and the Third Reich ceased to exist.

After the war, the Second Experimental Design Bureau (OKB-2), headed by G. Resseng, was established in the Soviet Union. German specialists who arrived in the USSR continued to work with the DFS-346 aircraft, which was later referred to as "Project 346". During the tests, the following indicators were achieved: maximum flight altitude - 12,000-13,000 meters; the maximum speed is 950 kilometers per hour; the maximum climb rate is 100 meters per second; The estimated dive speed during the last flight with a working liquid propulsion engine was supersonic.

Several samples were built. Since October 1950, flight tests have been conducted for almost twelve months. Including in tow with a trophy aircraft Junkers Ju-388, as well as on the suspension under the B-29 and the Tu-4 that replaced it. On May 10, 1951 the pilot V. Tsize made a flight to "346-1", and on June 16 - the first flight to "346-3". The flights passed safely. But afterwards, after the disaster with "346-3", the test program was first suspended and then discontinued. According to experts, the continuation of the flights could not give new results, and the improvement of the car was not possible because of the old material part. In addition, the aircraft all this time were stored in an open area, which could not guarantee the safety of flights.

A very extensive reactive program was conducted by FOCKE-WULF. She took part in almost all major competitions of the Third Reich, and also designed several machines on an initiative basis.

At the Volksjager contest, FOCKE-WULF presented a plane resembling a smaller copy of the Ta-183 fighter, but equipped with a liquid-fuel rocket engine Walter HWK 109-509. At the root of the wing were two guns MK-108. Take-off was planned to be carried out from the launch cart, and after the task was accomplished, a planned landing was planned. According to calculations, this aircraft was to gain altitude of 16,500 meters in 100 seconds, and 9 seconds after the start to develop a speed of 650 kilometers per hour.

Another version of the jet fighter, which worked on the design office FOCKE-WULF, was Jager Proekt VII "Flitzer". A distinctive feature of Proekt VII is the combined power plant. Together with the turbojet engine, the Walter HWK109-509 liquid rocket engine was located inside the fuselage. The air intakes of the turbojet engine were located in the thickenings of the root parts of the wings.

For the competition under the program "thousand-thousand-thousand" the firm presented three projects at once. Projects "A" and "C" were airplanes of a normal aerodynamic scheme. The power plant consisted of two turbojet engines Heinkel HeS 011, providing a maximum speed of 1000 kilometers per hour and a maximum combat radius of 1,000 kilometers. Both designs on take-off weighed about 8 tons, one of which was the bomb load. Machines had a wingspan of 12.6 meters with a fuselage length of 14.2 meters. Variant "B", with the same mass and size and speed characteristics, differed only in the aerodynamic scheme. This option was a "flying wing" with a span of 14 meters.

In one of the French design bureaus, under supervision of German engineers from the firm FOCKE-WULF, work was carried out on the creation of a long-range heavy bomber, called the Ta-400. It was equipped with six piston engines DAIMLER-BENZ, which made it possible to reach a speed of 535 kilometers per hour and ensure delivery of 10,000 kilograms of bombs to a distance of 4,800 kilometers. In the future plans it was planned to install two additional turbojet engines Junkers Jumo 004 with a thrust of 890 kilograms, which made it possible to reach a speed of 720 kilometers per hour. The aircraft's armament consisted of eight twenty-millimeter cannons and four machine guns mounted on remotely operated gun carriages. The crew of the bomber consisted of six people. The wingspan was 46 meters, the fuselage length - 28.2 meters, and the bearing area of ​​the wing - 188 square meters.

In 1944 on the design boards of the firm FOCKE-WULF sketches of a completely unusual design, combining the main features of a jet aircraft and a helicopter. This program was called "Triebflugel". The design work was completed in the autumn of the same year. "Triebflugel" was a fighter with a vertical launch, flying upward with the help of wings placed in the first third of the fuselage and rotating like blades of a helicopter propeller. At the end of each of the three wings was placed a ram jet engine with a thrust of 840 kilograms.

These engines were designed by Otto Pabst at one of the FOCKE-WULF centers in Bad Eilsen. The engines passed the tests in the wind tunnel LFA in Braunschweig (Brunswig) at an air speed of up to 0.9 sound velocity.

The "Triebflugel" fighter had a four-wheeled chassis, which was placed in the endings of four stabilizers. During the flight, the chassis racks were closed with fairings that resembled a bud of a tulip. The cockpit had a teardrop-shaped flashlight and was located in the front of the fuselage. Also in the bow were deployed weapons, consisting of two guns MK103 caliber 30 millimeters with ammunition of 100 shots per barrel, and two cannon MG151 caliber 20 millimeters with ammunition of 250 rounds.

"Triebflugel" was designed as a high-altitude air defense interceptor. At sea level, its speed was 1000 kilometers per hour and fell to 840 kilometers at an altitude of 11,000 meters, which was nevertheless a very good indicator. At a climb rate of 1200 meters per minute, the car reached an altitude of 8 kilometers in 8.1 minutes and 11 kilometers in 11.5 minutes.

The German aircraft company GOTHAER WAGGONFABRIK A.G., who was engaged in the serial construction of No-229 aircraft, according to the specifications provided by the Luftwaffe Technical Administration, also carried out the design work on a number of its own jet aircraft.

Go P. 52 and Go P. 53 were variants of the single-wing "flying wing" with a span of 22.4 meters and a length of 14.25 meters. They provided for the installation of two turbojet engines Junkers Jumo 004B.

Go P. 60 was a two-seater flying-wing aircraft with a forward-facing cockpit. Two turbojet engines were placed in the rear of the center wing above each other. Vertical surfaces were located at the ends of the wing. Three versions of this machine were developed.

Go P.60A had a wingspan of 13.4 meters with a length of 9.6 meters. The BMW 003A engines provided a maximum speed of 950 kilometers per hour. The crew was in the cockpit in a reclining position. The take-off weight of the car was 7,500 kilograms. Go P.60B was equipped with engines HeS011, which provided a maximum speed of 1000 kilometers per hour with a take-off weight of 10 tons. The crew was placed in a sitting position one after another. Go P.60C was different from GoP. 60B only the type of installed engines. Instead of the HeS011, BMW 003A was installed on it. The aircraft's armament consisted of four MK-108 guns.

HEINKEL, one of the first to initiate research and development work in the field of jet propulsion and built the first German jet aircraft, subsequently deployed a wide program for the creation of the He-162 fighter, on the basis of which, by the end of the war, a number of projects were developed that remained unclosed .

The designers worked on the variant Heinkel He-162C, planned in two versions, which differed in the design of the wing. Both versions were equipped with HeS011 engines. The first version was to have a wing swept 38 degrees, and the second - a wing with a negative sweep. The tail plumage of both machines was two keels, which were deflected outward relative to the longitudinal plane of the aircraft, previously tested on a Heinkel He-280V8 aircraft. Heinkel He-162D aircraft was a serial model of the He-162B, equipped with a pulsating Argus As014 engine. To ensure the take-off of the fighter, discarded launch accelerators were used. Both versions were supposed to be armed with two cannon MK-103 caliber 30 millimeters.

Having got on the whole a successful He-162 aircraft, the designers tried to develop a model line, starting experiments with the installation of a second full-time turbojet engine and additional underwing fuel tanks. These works resulted in an independent project Hs P.1073.

Under the designation Heinkel P. 1078, production of several different aircraft was planned. So, Heinkel Р.1078А was a classic mid-plane with a BMW003A engine located under the fuselage. A Heinkel R. 1078B was made according to the flying wing scheme with two protruding nose parts, between which was located an air intake of the same engine. The role of the vertical tail was performed by the wing tips that were strongly bent downwards. In the left nasal ledge was the cockpit of the pilot, and in the right one - the armament consisting of two guns MK-108 in a caliber of 30 millimeters, and the bow of the retractable landing gear.

Heinkel Р.1078С was a kind of mixture of the previous options. At a somewhat more flattened than the P.1078A, the fuselage designers mounted wings that are fundamentally similar to the version of P. 1078B. Their endings also bent down and played the role of a rudder. This allowed to completely removing the tail unit. Such a solution was to reduce the drag of the airframe in flight. Armament R.1078C consisted of two guns MK-108, located on the sides of the fuselage. The wingspan was about 9 meters with the length of the aircraft at 6 meters. The machine was to develop a speed of 1025 kilometers per hour with a maximum range of 1500 kilometers. According to calculations, the achievable ceiling was 12,900 meters. A similar series of models was the Heinkel P. 1079 project, in which HEINKEL tried to create a similar twin-engine aircraft.

For the competition to create an interceptor with a rocket engine, the winner of which was Bachem Ba-349 "Natter", HEINKEL also exhibited two of its projects: Р.1068 "Julia" and Р.1077 "Romeo". Slightly different in size and some details of the design, both proposed variants were disposable small-size manned fighters equipped, under the terms of the competition, with rocket engines with guns installed on them. The principle of application of both projects was similar to the project Arado E381.

In addition, the company HEINKEL was working to create a universal jet heavy four-engine high-speed aircraft, which could be quickly re-equipped to perform a different class of tasks. The project was named Heinkel He-343. It was a car with a wingspan of 18 meters, a fuselage length of 17 meters and an empty mass of 10,760 kilograms. It was equipped with four turbojet engines Junkers Jurno 004 (except He-343D, equipped with four HeS011) and developed a speed of 920 kilometers per hour. The maximum range was 955 kilometers. In the rear of the machine, two twenty-millimeter guns were mounted, firing back and down. The He-343A1 was a heavy fighter, in the bomb compartment of which was located a container with four thirty-millimeter guns firing forward. The non-343A2 was a bomber version capable of carrying up to two tons of aircraft bombs. He-343B was a further development of the version of the fighter He-343A1. He-343C was a distant scout with additional fuel tanks mounted in the bomb compartment. He-343D was the development of the reconnaissance version of the He-343C. By the way, the prototype He-343D even managed to build.

HESCHEL also did not confine itself to the design of the Hs-132 jet attack aircraft, which it had been working on since 1944. Design Bureau in October 1943 began to develop its own fighter project Hs P.135. The machine did not have a horizontal tail unit and was engineered for the Junkers Jumo 004 engine. There were four weapon emplacements. The design developed had a swept front wing with slightly upturned endings. However, the case did not advance further than the sketches, since the work was interrupted in view of the receipt of the order for the design of the Hs-132 attack aircraft and its early launch into production.

In addition to the already mentioned Ju-287, the design bureau JUNKERS led a whole series of different jet projects of bombers and fighters.

The most interesting of them is the project Junkers EF-08 - a four-jet jet bomber with a crew of two people. Four engines were placed under the wings in individual gondolas.

Jenkers EF-09 was a curious example of a non-standard approach to the concept of a heavy speed fighter. The machine was to be equipped with ten turbojet engines, located outside the fuselage. This allowed for a vertical start to achieve a climb rate of 77 meters per second. The maximum horizontal flight speed was 950 kilometers per hour. The wing of the aircraft, with a span of 4 meters, was designed as an integral fuel tank, the capacity of which was sufficient for only 6 minutes of flight. The fighter's armament was designed from two cannons with a caliber of 20 millimeters. The fighter had a length of only 2 meters.

Engineers JUNKERS also developed a project for the long-range jet bomber Ju EF.130. To ensure maximum payload and range, the designers used the aerodynamic "flying wing" scheme with wings of great elongation. The area of ​​the wing was 120 square meters. The maximum take-off weight of the car is 38,100 kilograms. The maximum speed of 990 kilometers per hour was to provide four engines Junkers Jumo 004, placed on top, at the rear of the center wing. At the same time, the maximum range of the flight was supposed to be 5920 kilometers.

One of the most finished projects, which were left unfulfilled only because of inattention to the leadership of the Luftwaffe, can be considered Project R.1101 of MESSERSCHMITT.

Theoretical research and practical blowing in a wind tunnel pushed the German scientist A. Buseman to the idea of ​​a swept wing, the theoretical basis of which he published in 1935. Two years later, another German aerodynamicist Betz at the DVL Institute (Deuthen Versuchsanstalt fur Luftfahrt) began work on practical confirmation of Busemann's theory. In other countries, this theory has not been supported.

While carrying out work on the Me-262 project, Willy Messerschmitt was convinced that the developments gained in the development of the piston airplanes of the past are not suitable for the creation of a future jet aircraft. Even the high-speed fuselage of the Bf-109 fighter had too much air resistance. Moreover, the "direct" wing was completely useless for transonic speeds.

Since the results of DVL scientific research were closely interrelated (and in many respects confirmed each other) with the results obtained in the design and numerous tests of the Me-262 fighter, in 1942 engineer Voigt, the chief designer of MESSERSCHMITT plants, began work on the project of a new prospective fighter P 1101 with a wing of a large sweep reaching 40 degrees.

Two years later, the design office in Oberammergau performed general design work, so when RLM ordered a single-engine fighter to MESSERSCHMITT, the engineers could immediately proceed with the construction of the prototype.

The resulting machine was very different from anything that had so far been raised into the air. The aircraft was a pipe of a large diameter, inside of which was a turbojet engine. The front part of the pipe served as a duct channel, in the walls of which the aircraft's armament was located, and on top - a sealed pilot's cabin, closed with a teardrop-shaped lantern from organic glass. Moreover, the designers tried to minimize the length of the channel, since its increase led to the creation of an airlock, a decrease in the efficiency of the engine and an increase in the drag of the aircraft. The length of the back of this pipe was also sought to be minimized to avoid power loss due to cooling of the exhaust gases. In the prototype P. 1101, the fuselage was designed in such a way that the nozzle of the engine practically protruded outward. The cross section of the aircraft also turned out to be small, due to the small external diameter of the engine. The blows in the wind tunnel formed the shape of the wing of the aircraft, which had an extremely thin profile.

However, in September 1944, the RLM ordered to suspend the development of the project. The reason for this was a significant excess of the minimum weight of the aircraft. Nevertheless, the work was continued. Due to the marriage of the HeS011 engine, the first tests were planned to be performed with the Junkers Jumo 004B engine.

But by the spring of 1945, the serial production of the aircraft had not yet been started, although MESSERSCHMITT had already built an unarmed prototype. When the war ended, he got to the advancing Allied troops and was transferred to the United States for the firm BELL.

June 20, 1951 prototype was tested in the air. True, by that time the Americans had made some changes to its design, in particular, they had established mechanisms for changing the sweep of the wing. The sample was called Bell X-5.

With a take-off weight of 4350 kilograms, the car developed a speed of 1,025 kilometers per hour and had a ceiling of 10,290 meters. Its armament, according to the plan of German designers, was to consist of two 30mm automatic MK 108 guns with a total ammunition load of 200 rounds.

Since the production of rocket engines for V-1 rockets was faster and more successful than the missiles themselves, it was decided to apply the surplus created in the project of a cheap attack aircraft, which was developed by MESSERSCHMITT. Willy Messerschmitt made an attempt to build a plane equipped with two Argus As 014 pulsating engines, suspended under the wings. So there was a project Me-328, work on which began in 1943.

Several versions of this aircraft were developed. Including: Me-328 A1, with engines under the wings, armed with two cannon MG-151 caliber 25 millimeters; A2, with four engines, two on each side of the fuselage, armed with two guns MG-103, a caliber of 30 millimeters. In addition, two bombing versions were planned: Bl - with engines under the wings and B2 - with more powerful engines (2x4 kN) on the sides of the fuselage. Both versions were able to carry up to 1,400 kilograms of bombs.

MESSERSCHMITT has managed to build several prototypes of the Me-328 and even conducted several test flights. However, before the military use of the case did not come.

In addition, the MESSERSCHMITT plants developed a program for the production of a four-engine turbojet bomber with swept wings and "butterfly" tail empennage. Me P.1107 / 1 was to be equipped with engines BMW 018, suspended in two gondolas under the wings. The crew of three people was in a sealed cabin. Me P.1107 / II was a later project in which engines were placed in pairs in the wing profile.

Another project. Me P.1108, assumed the construction of a long-range bomber. It was supposed to be a low-wing with a butterfly tail, equipped with four Heinkel Hirth HeS011 engines, housed in individual gondolas, partially hidden in the wing profile.

Almost all these projects after the surrender of Germany were exported from the country, as the design documentation, the prototypes of any degree of readiness and the results of research were of considerable value to the winners.

UFO - flying disks of Hitler
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During the Second World War, the Third Reich was unquestionably leading in the field of jet aviation and rocketry. But fortunately for humanity, all the latest developments appeared on the battlefields too late and could not with the necessary effectiveness to withstand the allied aviation. Shortsightedness of Hitler and his closest associates led to the fact that the highest priority for programs to create a truly effective "Weapon of Retribution" was given too late. Jet fighters and bombers, interceptor missile fighters, antiaircraft and ballistic missiles, ahead of their time, sometimes existed in a single copy and did not even have time to rise into the air.

... The war was coming to its end. Anticipating the capitulation of the Reich, the SS teams dismantled or destroyed test ranges, laboratories, experimental vehicles and documentation. But the speed of the offensive by the Red Army and Allied armies was such that a lot of materials fell into the hands of the winners. After the war, they served as the foundation for the development of modern aviation and missiles.

However, some, the most revolutionary projects were destroyed almost completely, which in the future was not allowed to repeat or at least detect their notable traces. Apparently, such projects included the so-called "flying discs".

Despite the fact that these data are not supported by more or less reliable documents, many researchers without a shadow of any doubt argue that in the 30s and 40s Nazi Germany carried out intensive work on the creation of disk-shaped aircraft using non-traditional methods creating a lift. At once, several designers participated in the development, each dealing with their own model. The manufacture of individual units and parts was entrusted to different factories, so that no one could guess their true purpose. The most famous specialists are the following devices:

The disk of Shriver-Habermol (1940);

Flying pancake Zimmermann (1942);

The Belonets disk (1945);

The disc "Omega" (1945);

Focke-Wolf. 500 "Thunderball" (1945).
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Disc of Shrever - Habermol

In fact, this is not a single disk, but a whole series consisting of several models that differ from each other. The beginning of the series was laid by the first model called the "wheel with a wing", it is also considered the world's first vertical take-off aircraft. The first prototype with a diameter of 21 meters was tested near Prague in February 1941.
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... The device had piston engines and a liquid rocket engine. The design was reminiscent of a bicycle wheel - a wide ring rotated around the cockpit, the role of spokes of which was played by large adjustable blades. These blades could be installed in the required positions for both horizontal and vertical flight. The pilot was located as in a conventional airplane, but after some modifications his position was changed to near-lying. The main disadvantage of the device was the considerable vibration caused by the imbalance of the rotor. The attempt to weight the outer rim did not bring the desired results, and this concept was rejected in favor of the next model - a "vertical airplane" or FAU-7 (V-7) developed within the framework of the so-called "Weapon of Retribution" program.

In the new model, in contrast to the previous model, a steering mechanism similar to the airplane (vertical tail unit) was used to stabilize the course and the engine power was increased. The model was tested in May 1944 on the same range as the "wheel with the wing," but no significant improvement in performance was achieved. Further development of this concept was received in a disco collected in 1945 at the Cesco Morava plant. It was similar to the previous models, but it had twice the diameter. The rotor was rotated by means of nozzles located at the ends of the blades. As the engine used a reactive installation of the designer Walter, working on the decomposition of hydrogen peroxide. A wide flat ring rotated around the domed cockpit of the pilot, driven by controlled nozzles. On February 14, 1945 the car gained altitude of 12400 m, but the horizontal speed of the flight was only 200 km / h.

The fate of the devices and their designers is unknown. There is evidence that one of the machines at the end of 1944 was tested on Svalbard. According to other information taken from unverified sources, Otto Habermol got to the USSR, Shriver - to the USA, where he died in 1953 in a car crash.

"Flying Damn" Zimmermann

... This device was designed by German designer Heinrich Zimmerman and tested in 42-43-ies at the Peenemünde training ground. According to fragmentary data, preserved thanks to completely different sources, the "Zimmermann pancake" had gas turbine engines and developed a horizontal speed of about 700 km / h (landing - 60 km / h). "Flying Pancake" was similar to an inverted upside down basin with a diameter of 5-6 m. Round on the perimeter, in the center had a teardrop-shaped transparent cabin. On the ground rested on small rubber wheels. For take-off and horizontal flight, most likely used controlled nozzles. Because of the impossibility of precise regulation of the thrust of gas turbine engines or for any other reasons, it was extremely unstable in flight. There is a description of the flight of this device allegedly provided by one of the survivors of the concentration camp in KC-4A (Peenemünde):

"... In September 1943, I happened to witness one interesting event ... On the concrete pad near one of the hangars, four workers rolled a round around the perimeter and had a transparent drop-shaped cockpit in the center, similar to an inverted basin, resting on small inflatable wheels.

... A low, overweight man, who seemed to be in charge of the work, waved his hand, and a strange apparatus, cast in the sun with silver metal and at the same time shuddering from every gust of wind, made a hissing sound similar to that of a blowtorch and broke away from the concrete platform. It hovered somewhere at a height of 5 meters.

... The contours of the structure of the apparatus clearly appeared on the silvery surface. After some time, during which the device rocked like "vanka-vstanka," the boundaries of the contours of the apparatus gradually began to blur. They seemed to be out of focus. Then the apparatus sharply, like a whirlwind, jumped up and began to gain height with a snake.

... The flight, judging by the wiggle, was unstable. And when a particularly strong gust of wind from the Baltic flew, the apparatus turned in the air, began to lose altitude. I was flooded with a mixture of burning, ethyl alcohol and hot air. There was a sound of a blow, a crunch of breaking details ... The pilot's body was hanging limply from the cockpit. Immediately, the wreckage fragments, filled with fuel, were enveloped in a blue flame. A still hissing jet engine was uncovered - and immediately collapsed: apparently, a tank of fuel exploded..."

It is alleged that about nineteen former soldiers and officers of the Wehrmacht testified about this apparatus. In the autumn of 1943, they observed the test flights of a "metal disk 5-6 m in diameter with a teardrop-shaped cabin in the center." After the defeat of Germany, drawings and copies, which, according to some of the most knowledgeable experts, were not kept in Keitel's safes, were not found. Only a few photographs (more similar to drawings) of a strange disk with a cabin survived. According to other sources, part of the documentation, or even almost all the descriptions and drawings were found by Soviet officers, and this is allegedly confirmed by the famous academician V.P. Mishin, who at that time himself took part in the search. He also knows that the documents on German flying saucers were studied very carefully by Soviet designers, but no positive conclusions were made about the expediency of continuing work on German discs.

Flying disk Belonce

One of the most perfect models of "flying disks" was created in "Sonderbyuro-13" under the supervision of Himmler, whose initial task was to study the problem of UFOs. During the war, Himmler's department was seriously interested in the program for creating disk-shaped aircrafts, and Sonderbyuro-13 was switched to work within the framework of this task. Thule members and best prisoner’s scientists and specialists were involved in the decision.

Various German research groups were immediately united into one under the leadership of the Italian Belonce and the Germans of Shriver and Mita. All this allowed to build by 1945 a device that used an unconventional way of creating traction and showed outstanding technical characteristics. The disk received its name on the name of the chief designer - Italian specialist in the design of steam turbines Giuseppe Belonce, who proposed a scheme of a disk aircraft with straight-flow engines. For the creation of the corps, Richard Meite, who after the war, supposedly worked in the Canadian firm Avro over the program of creating the flying disk "Avrocar", answered.

In the work also participated Rudolf Shriver that was the designer of previous models of disco. With its help, several design options were developed, and as a result, a variant with combined traction was adopted for development. As the main engine was used the original so-called "vortex" engine, designed by designer Schauberger. The hull was ringed by 12 inclined jet propellers, which with their jets cooled the Schauberger engine and, sucking in air, created a vacuum area on top of the apparatus, which promoted its rise with less effort (now this effect is known as the "Coanda effect").

"Belonce Disk" was built at a factory in Breslau (Wroclaw), had a diameter of 68 m; The climbing speed reached 302 km / h (vertically), and the horizontal speed was 2200 km / h. On February 19, 1945, this apparatus made its only experimental flight. For 3 minutes test pilots reached a height of 15 000 m and a maximum speed with horizontal movement. The disc could hang in the air and fly back and forth almost without turning, for landing had folding racks. But the war was ending and a few months later the apparatus was destroyed by the order of V. Keitel.

The disk "Omega" by Andreas Epp

Disc-shaped helicopter with star-shaped piston and ramjet air-jet engines. The device was developed in 1945, captured by the Americans and tested already in the US in 1946. The developer A.Epp, suspended from work as early as 1942, fell into the Soviet captivity.

The device was a combination of the technology of "fans in the ring fairing" with a freely rotating rotor, driven by the pulsating Fokke-Wolfe Triebflugel jet engines and an increase in lift due to the "flotation effect". The Omega disk was made of a circular car with a diameter of 4 m, surrounded by a fuselage disk 19 m in diameter. The fuselage contained eight four-bladed fans in the ring fairings connected to eight star-shaped ArgusAr 8A engines with an axial thrust of 80 hp. The latter were installed inside eight conical pipes with a diameter of 3 m.

The carrier screw was fixed on the axis of the disk. The rotor had two blades with a ramjet at the ends and a rotation diameter of 22 m. When the pitch of the blades was changed in auxiliary engines, the rotor accelerated, ejecting a strong airflow. Jet engines were launched at 220 rpm. and the pilot changed the pitch of the auxiliary engines and the main rotor by 3 degrees. This was quite enough for the ascent.

The main screw was an autorotating type and did not create any torque. Unlike helicopters, it was not fixed in the hinges, but was installed rigidly, like a propeller of a conventional aircraft. The additional acceleration of the auxiliary motors tilted the machine in the desired direction. This deflected the lift of the main rotor and consequently changed the direction of the flight. If, for some reason, one of the auxiliary engines stopped working, the machine maintained control, sufficient not only for accident-free landing, but also for the task. If one of the ramjets stopped, the fuel supply to the other automatically ceased, and the pilot started the auto-regimen mode to try to land. Flying at low altitude, the machine received thanks to the "influence of the earth", additional lift (screen), the principle currently used by high-speed vessels (screen-plans).

Several discs of "Omega" were created after the war. They were large-scale models 1:10, mounted for aerodynamic testing. Four prototypes were also made. The propulsion system was patented in Germany on April 22, 1956 and was offered to the US Air Force for production. The latest model of the disk was designed for a crew of 10 people.

Fokke-Wolf. 500 "Ball lightning" of Kurt Tank

The disco-shaped Kurt Tank helicopter, one of the latest models of the new type of aircraft developed in the Third Reich, has not been tested. Under the high armored cockpit, the rotating blades of the large turboprop engine were located. The hull type flying wing contained two air intakes, in the upper and lower front parts of the fuselage. Disco-plane could fly like an ordinary plane or, like a helicopter, move in any direction and hang in the air.

"Ball lightning" was to be mass-produced since 1946. Thought disco as a multi-purpose all-weather interceptor, a destroyer of tanks, a reconnaissance gun, it was planned to use six MG-213 guns (20 mm with an initial velocity of 1000 m / s and the rate of 1200 rounds per minute) and four 8-inch fragmentation-incendiary K100V8 air-to-air missiles. "Drawings and sketches fell into the hands of the Soviet side, the designer himself was" pinned "by the Americans promising (according to some, it is unclear from what sources of informed experts) the idea, the Russians also did not show her due interest."

Nuclear weapons of Nazi Germany
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Finally, the plans for the creation of nuclear weapons in the Third Reich were buried in November 1944, when, after a massive bombardment of Union aviation (140 "flying fortresses" took part in the raid), heavy water production at a plant near Rukan could no longer be restored.

Now few people realize that the nuclear arms race began not today or yesterday, but more than six decades ago. And it was initiated by Hitler's Germany, which was striving for world domination. The latest achievements of science and technology of that time - the discovery of a chain nuclear reaction, the creation of long-range ballistic and cruise missiles, the development of bombers of an ultra-long range (at that time) - all this was placed on the strategic map of the conquest of world domination. According to experts, if the Nazis managed to create nuclear weapons, the course of events on the Eastern Front and in the Second World War as a whole could be quite different.

However, the diabolical plan of the Fuhrer was not realized. This was influenced by several factors in the aggregate. But one of the most important, practically unknown in our country, was that the atomic physicists of Hitler's Germany were deprived of the opportunity to receive so-called heavy water. The largest of its reserves with the world at that time were produced and were concentrated in Norway, which the Wehrmacht captured in April 1940.

"The Uranium Project" by Adolf Hitler

In 1938, the world scientific community was agitated by the news of the discovery of German physicists Otto Ghana and Fritz Strassmann. They found that the uranium core is in an unstable state and, under certain external conditions, can be divided into two parts, and a huge amount of energy is released. So, the energy contained in one kilogram of uranium is enough to replace the whole train with coal.

Soon, in March 1939, the French physicists Joliot-Curie, Halban and Kovarski published an article in the London journal Nature (Neucher) entitled "The release of neutrons in a nuclear uranium explosion." Scientists have suggested that in the case of the appearance of two or more neutrons in the fission of a uranium nucleus, the chain reaction assumes the character of an explosion of exceptional strength. The topic was continued by mass popular publications that predicted the imminent creation of powerful nuclear power plants, and most importantly nuclear bombs. The latter were particularly attentive to Germany.

In April 1939, the professor of the University of Hamburg, Paul Gartek, and his assistant Wilhelm Groth wrote to the Imperial War Ministry. In their opinion, the latest discoveries in nuclear physics foreshadowed the creation of an explosive, which in its destructive power will many times exceed conventional explosives. The appeal of physicists has found a positive response.

September 26, 1939 in Berlin, in the management of military weapons, there was a meeting of leading physicists in Germany. It involved Gartek, Geiger, Bote, Dibner, as well as Heisenberg and Weizsacker. They decided to form the so-called "Uranium Society", designed to solve the uranium problem. All subsequent activities of German atomic physicists should now be conducted according to the plans of the so-called uranium project.

The Physical Institute of the Kaiser Wilhelm Society, which at that time played the role of the National Academy of Sciences, became the coordinating scientific center for relevant research. Once, in the 1920s, the rector of this institute was the physicist Albert Einstein, the creator of the theory of relativity, but because of his Jewish origin he was forced to remain forever in the United States in 1933. And in the late 1930s, the Physics Institute was headed by Werner Heisenberg. He was given the best strength of the nuclear physicists of the Hamburg, Leipzig and Heidelberg universities, as well as experimental and design organizations.

And the work began to boil. All the research was financed by the management of army armaments, headed by the well-known physicist Erich Schuman, who was well aware of the complexity of the problem of creating nuclear weapons. Relying on support and participation in the "uranium project" of Heisenberg, Ghana, Weizsacker and other physicists involved in the nuclear project, Schumann began to create an experimental reactor or, as it was said at that time, a nuclear boiler - to conduct experiments with uranium in the interests of creating super-powerful explosive.

What was required to create an atomic charge? First of all, nuclear physicists and a powerful modern industry. In Germany, there were both. There remained little: metal uranium in the amount of up to 10 tons, as well as 5 tons of heavy water used as a moderator of the chain reaction.

There was order with uranium. In 1938, as a result of the seizure of Czechoslovakia, Germany received at its disposal the uranium mines of the Jáchymov deposit. Developments were conducted on a wide industrial basis for a long time, since refractory paints for ceramic products were made from local raw materials. Another 1,200 tons of ready-made ore concentrate of uranium oxide, that is, almost half of its world stock at that time, Germany received during the capture of Belgium in 1940. (True, the same amount - 1,200 tons - was literally taken from the Nazis by the Germans and then transported overseas.) The Yankees later used this ore, extracted by Belgians in their African colony - the Belgian Congo, to make their first atomic bombs.)

In December 1940, under Berlin, the plant of the firm Auergezelschaft, which started the production of metallic uranium, was fully operational. At the same time, under the leadership of Heisenberg, the construction of the first research reactor was completed. In it, paraffin was used as the neutron moderator.

But it was necessary at all costs to get and to bring to the Third Reich the necessary amount of heavy water to use it to launch a more powerful reactor, in which a new element, plutonium-239 (now called weapon-grade plutonium), will accumulate. And at that time heavy water was extracted only in Norway!

In April 1940, the Wehrmacht invaded Norway, and under the control of the German occupation authorities, the only plant in the world for the industrial production of heavy water falls into. He operated in the village of Vemork near Rukan (in the middle part of southern Norway, about 180 km west of Oslo), on the basis of a powerful hydroelectric power plant owned by the Norwegian firm Norsk-Hydro. The extraction of heavy water is based on the decomposition of fresh water by electric current into hydrogen and oxygen. Heavy water, which is a deuterium oxide (D2O), does not decompose and remains in liquid form. It is heavier than usual, has no color and smell, is harmless to health. To obtain one liter of heavy water, 6700 liters of ordinary water must be electrolyzed.

Meeting with Speer and the position of General Groves

Heisenberg, Gan, Gartek, Dibner, Field Marshal Milch, Colonel Fromm (who was in charge of deliveries of military equipment for the Wehrmacht), Chief of the Army Arms Department, General von Leeb, and other scientists and generals took part in it. The participants tried to find out the exact terms for the creation of nuclear weapons and its application.

In the Third Reich, clearly in a hurry. The plan for a blitzkrieg - a lightning war with Russia - has failed. True, the encirclement and rout at Kharkov in May 1942 of two Russian armies and one army group somehow smoothed down the previous failures of the Wehrmacht, and the emerging breakthrough to Moscow through Voronezh and to Stalingrad through the Don steppe instilled hope for a possible victory. But the Nazis had no more confidence in the success on the Eastern Front. They feverishly searched for every opportunity to achieve a breakthrough - by creating and using the latest weapons.

At the meeting with Speer, the main report was made by Werner Heisenberg. He reported on the difficulties encountered by participants in the "uranium project." The result of the research, theoretical and experimental, is the conclusion about the possibility of creating a "uranium boiler" with heavy water as a moderator of the chain reaction. Then Heisenberg said the main thing: 10 tons of metallic uranium and 5 tons of heavy water are needed to create a "boiler" with a continuous chain reaction, which makes it possible to produce uranium-239. In this case, the atomic bomb could become a reality in a period of two to five years. Data on the "uranium project" were reported to the Fuhrer on the item number 16...

The allies on the anti-Hitler coalition carefully analyzed the information coming from Germany, France, Czechoslovakia and especially Norway: the Nazis secretly deploy large-scale works to create a completely new type of weapon - nuclear. In the winter of 1942, the chief engineer of the Norsk Hydro plant in Vemorka, Yomar Brun, informed the participants of the Norwegian Resistance movement: according to the order of Berlin, the German occupation authorities demanded a sharp increase in the production of heavy water at the said plant.

What was behind this demand? Heavy water was a by-product in the production of ... fertilizers, and at the time, few of the uninitiated were of great strategic importance in creating weapons of unprecedented destructive power. In Norway, the technology of obtaining heavy water was established because its production required a huge amount of electricity. And in the Land of Fiords, unlike other countries of the warring Europe, there was plenty of it: the energy of numerous mountain rivers and waterfalls was widely used here. Brun asked the underground to hand over a series of drawings and documents on this issue to England, his friend Leif Tronstein, the head of the Free Norway organization. They were friends since the time when they were engaged in the development of technology for the production of heavy water.

In England, Her Majesty's special services took the information very seriously and, naturally, shared it with the Americans. American general Leslie Groves, the head of the atomic bomb project (the Manhattan project), insisted on inflicting an air strike on the plant or disabling it by sabotage. But Tronstein explained: a relatively small-sized object is difficult to hit from the air. In addition, if at least one bomb fell into tanks with liquid ammonia, local residents would be mortally endangered. The head of the Free Norway considered it expedient to destroy the main technological objects by the commandos, trained from among the Norwegian underground workers. "We will cope with this," the British confidently stated.

The miss of the Abwehr

According to the Norwegian Resistance, the hydroelectric plant and the plant near Rukan were shielded from air strikes by batteries of 88-mm antiaircraft guns, quadrupled quick-firing anti-aircraft guns "Oerlikon" caliber of 20 millimeters. An early warning about the flight of aviation was carried out by posts of visual and sound control. Of the technical means, German anti-aircraft gunners had sound pickups, binoculars and optical range finders. Fortunately, at that time the air defense of the Wehrmacht had no radar in Norway for the long-range detection and tracking of air targets.

Therefore, the British used to deliver 34 commandos from the 1st airborne division transport gliders "Horse", noiseless in flight. For their towing, four-engine bombers "Halifax" were chosen, capable of towing non-motorized aircraft to the coast of Norway without intermediate landing and refueling, and then returning to the base. In the success of the operation carried out by British intelligence, its leaders did not doubt: four reliable Rolls-Royce-Merlin motors of 1,200 horsepower each, experienced crews with night bombing skills in Germany-all this, as the British believed, guaranteed success.

On November 19, 1942, the day of the start of the historic counter-offensive of the Red Army near Stalingrad, two bombers with tugs in tow lifted from the military airfield of the Royal Air Force in Scotland. But it turned out that the crews did not have the experience of towing gliders, especially in difficult weather conditions. In desperation, one of the bomber commanders went on the air with a radiogram: "They got in a snowstorm, they lost their way." The icing began. "The German radio intercept service has sounded the alarm: where is the English speech in the skies of Norway, and what are the British planes doing here?

Further - worse. The pilot of the leading bomber did not notice that he was already flying over the land, believing that he was still above the sea. The plane crashes into the mountain, the crew is dying, and the towed glider is in an accident. In life there were 14 paratroopers (four died).

More tragic was the fate of people from the second glider. His tow rope was icy and broke. The bomber commander was forced ahead of time to turn back, and the glider made an emergency landing. Of the seventeen paratroopers, only nine survived.

We must pay tribute to the British: they did not abandon their wounded comrades, and on their own tried to carry them to the mountains. But they did not go far. A punitive detachment of the Wehrmacht arrived with the Abwehr officers, notified by the radio intercept service, to the crash site.

The battle was fleeting. The surviving fighters were brought to the commandant's office of the town of Egersund. They were questioned quickly, but nothing was achieved. The prisoners were shot, as the order of Hitler demanded: destroy saboteurs, partisans and saboteurs on the spot. But the place clearly hurried to fulfill the order of the Fuhrer, without informing the local leadership of the Gestapo - the state secret police. The Gestapo were furious: they did not have time to find out what purpose the British had come for, for which they had so many tokens and a Bickford cord and fuses. So German punctuality turned into a serious oversight of the Abwehr, which would then cost a lot to the Third Reich.

What Walter Schellenberg kept silent about?

After an unsuccessful operation with gliders, the British agreed to a proposal to blow up the plant by the commandos, who were specially trained on a solitary base of fighters from the Norwegian Resistance. In support of the underground workers decided to throw six experienced parachute-demolitions. This time they were trained more thoroughly, for two months training on the model of the plant.

Departure of the commandos group took place in the second half of February 1943. At the Scottish airfield, where the plane took off, it was warm in spring, and winter was raging in Norway. Therefore, six strong men in warm jackets and white camouflage gowns with skis in their hands could not help but attract the attention of the aerodrome staff. Fortunately, information about the flight to German agents, which in England was a lot, did not reach ...

The delivery of paratroopers and their discharge onto the wild and deserted mountain plateau of Hardangervidda was successful, despite the bad weather. The British were finally convinced that they could not do without the help of Norwegian partisans. For the hydroelectric power plant and the plant was an impregnable object: on one side a high cliff face, on the other - a deep gorge. And it was possible to penetrate the plant through a communication tunnel in which power cables were laid.

On February 27, 1943, two demolitions and two Norwegian guerrillas crawled through the tunnel to a concentration of heavy water. The remaining members of the group occupied a circular defense at the entrance to the tunnel. Dozens of kilograms of TNT, detonators and Bickford cords were placed on tanks with heavy water. The explosion occurred with the help of a clock mechanism with a delay of 20 minutes - after all the members of the group were safe. Their further path lay to the Swedish border.

In the morning the Supreme Reich Commissar in Norway Josef Terboven arrived in Rjukan. On his orders, 10 hostages were arrested from local residents who were to be shot if saboteurs were not given up. But the investigation of the Abwehr and the Gestapo, carried out in the hot pursuit, showed that local workers had nothing to do with the aces of special operations.

So, the vaunted German intelligence missed the preparation of the operation "Heavy Water", underestimating the courage and professionalism of the commandos and the underground. It is noteworthy that the chief of German political intelligence Walter Schellenberg in his memoirs does not even mention the failure of the special services of the Third Reich in a word. Talking about his trips to Norway, the "hero" of the main department of imperial security (and writer Julian Semenov) as in the mouth of the water scored (severe?) Regarding the operation in the Rukan area.

This bold attack by the commandos group entered the history of reconnaissance and World War II as a whole as Operation Gunnerside (Gunnerside). And about the details of the operation, one of the authors of this publication heard from the mouth of her direct participant - Klaus Helberg. The 82-year-old veteran made a special trip to the site of events from Oslo at the request of the organizer of our trip, Mr. Bernt Lindekleiv, to meet with guests from Russia who first visited here. Unfortunately, not so long ago Mr. Helberg passed away...

But then, at our request, the veteran told us about his campaigns with the queens of the two Scandinavian countries, Denmark and Norway, along the mountain paths in the Rukan area. By the same trails, where during the war, bypassing the guard posts of the Germans, the special forces of the "Gunnerside" group made their way to the carefully guarded object. Listening to the fascinating story of Klaus Helberg, we could not help but think: yes, such a conductor today, after so much time after the end of the war, can not boast of not every queen.

The plant for the production of heavy water was then restored for a long time. His protection has become so complex that the repetition of such an operation was unthinkable. But the Norwegian patriots found a different way to prevent the Nazis from using heavy water to implement the uranium project: they informed the British about the departure of each transport ship with a strategic cargo. And the pilots of the Royal Air Force sent vessels to the bottom.

Finally, the plans for the creation of nuclear weapons in the Third Reich were buried in November 1944, when, after a massive bombardment of Union aviation (140 "flying fortresses" took part in the raid), heavy water production at a plant near Rukan could no longer be restored. As a result, Hitler failed to establish the production of plutonium - due to the lack of the right amount of heavy water in Germany.

And if the war dragged on? It is possible that German atomic physicists could find a different way of mass production of plutonium, for example, using a uranium-graphite reactor. But time was lost: in May 1945, the Third Reich fell under the blows of the Red Army and Allied troops on the anti-Hitler coalition...

In the fact that Adolf Hitler never received the "weapons of retribution" in his hands, there is a great contribution not only to the aviation of the Allies, but also to the brave, desperate and selflessly loving of their homeland Norwegian partisans and underground fighters. Their actions, local in the scale of the Second World War, were of a strategic nature, if we evaluate the final result.

Underwater Filibuster von Rettel
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On the morning of May 9, 1945, Corvette-Captain Paul von Rettel, the commander of the German submarine U-2670, who had sunk allied transports in the Atlantic, received an encryption from the fleet headquarters. It reported on the death of the Fuhrer, the surrender of Germany and the order of Grand Admiral Doenitz to all ships to stop fighting, raise white flags and follow to the nearest ports of the victorious countries.

Transition to the "partisans"

Rettel decided to continue the war. About encryption, as well as his plans, he told only the officers. On May 13, off the west coast of Africa, U-2670 met with a supply submarine. Seeing the white cloth above it, Rettel went down into the wheelhouse and turned on the microphone. “Attention, says the commander! The important message ", - was carried on compartments. Corvette Captain reported on the surrender of Germany and the death of Hitler. “But the war is not over,” he added.

- It continues our valiant ally - Japan, and all Germans, loyal to the cause of the Reich and the ideas of the Fuhrer, should join it. We will continue to fight and do our duty until the end. Heil Hitler! ”

Rettel persuaded the commander of the supply boat to let him water, fuel and provisions beyond the prescribed standards and give the entire supply of ammunition and torpedoes, evading answers to his puzzled questions. On the same day, U-2670 set off along the coast of Africa to the south, on its own military campaign.

Initiative piracy

On the evening of May 20, 1945, the Argentine tanker "Cristobal" circled the Cape of Good Hope. At about 10:00 pm, the watch officer of the captain noticed a flickering light on the starboard side - a distress signal in Morse code. The searchlights highlighted two boats, hammered by people. When they went up to the deck, it became clear that many were tied up with hands and heads with bloody rags. And suddenly the rescued fled, surrounding the Argentine sailors. Glittered trunks snatched from under the clothes of pistols and machine guns.

- Hands up! Do not move! The senior officer Strobel cried out in English, who led the capture team. The pirates drove the crew of the tanker onto the bow of the deck. Strobel signaled with a flashlight, and U-2670 approached the Cristobal. The mechanics attached the hoses, turned on the pumps, and diesel fuel poured into the fuel tanks of the submarine, and a team of “suppliers” began to clean the storerooms from food supplies, and cabins and cockpits from money and valuables. Safe box office undermined a grenade. When the submarine's fuel tanks were filled and the loot was transferred to it, Rettel ordered the “rescued” to return on board the boat, without turning off the tanker’s transfer pumps. A spot of diesel fuel appeared on the surface of the water around it.

U-2670 is half a mile away from Cristobal. Rettel turned her nose to the tanker and fired a torpedo. After the explosion, the ship and the sea around it instantly turned into a giant flaming torch. The Corvetten Captain never left a single witness alive.

Successful meeting

After four weeks of sailing in the “roaring” forties, the submarine approached the coast of Australia. The next two months, U-2670 plundered in the South Pacific, between New Zealand, the Fiji Islands and the Cook Islands. The submarine’s radio operator received the message of Japan’s surrender on September 2, 1945. It became clear that there was no point in breaking through to its shores.

Soon the pirates attacked the Philippine ship, going from New Zealand to Fiji. After pumping fuel and robbery, the gangsters gathered to sink the ship and its crew, when suddenly ...

- Hi, Rettel! How are you?

- Billenfeld ?! That's the meeting!

Rettel met Billenfeld, a big shadow businessman, in Hamburg before the war. Then they together turned a number of profitable operations. The result of this meeting was a radical change in the plans of the leader of the pirates. Billenfeld, the owner of the captured ship, proposed to smuggle together in Taiwan. The safety of the submarine will be ensured by its formal belonging to the Chiang Kai-shek Navy. The U-2670 team met their commander's new plans with enthusiasm.

Until the autumn of 1949, U-2670, which had become an underwater cab driver, “worked” off the coast of Southeast Asia. Billenfeld did not deceive Rettel. Earnings were excellent, the pirates had solid accounts in the banks of Singapore, Hong Kong and Australia. But on one of the autumn nights of U-2670, they had to hurry out of Canton - detachments of the Chinese Red Army suddenly broke into the city. Together with the submarine, having managed to load a large consignment of drugs onto it, he left Canton and Billenfeld.

Unexpected visit to secret base

Atana Vanaranga - one of the uninhabited islands of Polynesia. The U-2670 team has turned it into its base, well disguised and equipped. Billenfeld also settled in Taipei, the capital of Taiwan. From there to Vanaranga there was information about the routes, the dates of departure of the ships and the goods transported by them. One afternoon an unknown vessel anchored at the atoll. By radio, he received a conditional signal from him and was told that a man had arrived from Billenfeld. A motorboat came out from the shore for the guest.

“Lieutenant Josuki of the Royal Navy,” a young man with yellowish skin and slanting eyes introduced himself to Rettel.

“We know each other,” Rettel recalled. - We met a year and a half ago in Macau, you were there with Billenfeld.

“You have an excellent memory, captain,” the Japanese leaned in a half-bow.

The lieutenant arrived with an important report from Billenfeld: a French schooner Fleur de Sud leaving the Port Vila with a large sum of money for the bank in Noumea, in New Caledonia. There will be armed guards on the schooner, he stressed. When the ship with the lieutenant was out of sight, Rettel ordered to contact Billenfeld. He rarely resorted to the services of a messenger. True, he knew Yosuki, the boss often spoke of him with praise. But still…

Billenfeld's radio did not answer, and Rettel, having suppressed anxiety, began to prepare for a future operation. Even if it is a trap, he will not be able to get into it.

Victory "without noise and dust"

For two days U-2670 guarded the schooner on its intended route. During this time, Rettel tried unsuccessfully several times to contact Billenfeld. Anxiety Corvette Captain intensified. Finally, at noon on the third day, a white hull of the schooner appeared on the horizon.

Rettel has long ceased to destroy prey by torpedoes. He had a more "elegant" means - a gas gun. The barrel in the form of a nozzle of a special profile and high pressure of the gas supplied therein, together with the guidance system, made it possible to direct the gas jet precisely to a designated area over a distance of several tens of meters. The seductive gas supplied by the omnipresent Billenfeld served as a striking medium. Before dark, the submarine followed the schooner in the distance, and as the sun went down, she caught up with her and, on electric motors, went noiselessly beside her.

Rettel ordered to prepare a gas stove, put on gas masks and open the valve. It took about half an hour, and the "Fleur de Sud" began scouring to the right, then to the left. In the end, she turned her nose to the wind.

- Group capture, get ready for landing!

U-2670 went to the schooner. The pirates in gas masks went up to the deck. Everywhere people lay without signs of life. Taking the sacks of banknotes and valuables, the robbers locked the sleeping in the rooms, and then left the schooner, after opening the Kingstones in the holds. The ship began to sink slowly.

Opening one of the sealed bags, Rettel made sure that his suspicions were in vain. Would a Japanese man set a trap and at the same time endow them with such wealth?

Capture base

And on the eve of the afternoon, on the beach of the Vanaranga Atoll, there was a leisurely conversation between two lieutenants: Klaus, who left Rettel at the base for the elder one, and Yosuki, who suddenly reappeared here. At first, everything was the same as last time: calling the base by radio, password, sending a boat with two sailors to the ship. Only now, when the boat returned, the Japanese were accompanied not by the people sent for him, but by a dozen yellow-faced guys with machine guns. They instantly disarmed the submariners, occupied all the key points of the base, and the radio operator who tried to turn on the transmitter was shot.

Yosuki suggested that Klaus and his people move to the service of a new owner, saying that Billenfeld had died under unclear circumstances. After some deliberation, he accepted the offer...

Trap

The next night, U-2670 approached its atoll, and the radio operator began to call the base. There was no answer. “So, they have again carried the alcohol in secret, and now they are sleeping,” grumbled Rettel. He began to look out for the signal light, which should indicate the entrance to the lagoon at night. Soon a flashlight appeared on the boat swaying in the waves. “It's good that Klaus didn't forget about it at all,” thought Rettel. U-2670 rushed to the aisle. On the bridge stood Rettel, Strobel, and two of the lookers. When the rumble of the surf ahead was deafening, they realized that the boat was going into a trap, but it was too late.

The submarine at full speed crashed into the reefs, crumpling the nose and whipping the bottom, and the incident wave then threw it back into the ocean. Of the team members who were downstairs, only three were saved. In the morning it became clear that the base was crushed, the equipment was broken, and the warehouses with supplies were destroyed. The boat with an alarm lamp was anchored in the lagoon opposite the most dangerous reefs. The passage was about two hundred meters further.

The rescue

For four months, the seven surviving pirates lived on an island in a hut built of debris, continuously supporting hardly gained fire and feeding on the found food remains and coconut milk. They were saved by natives who approached the atoll on a sailing boat, who noticed a fire on the beach at dusk. With them, the former pirates reached Suva, where there were several banks. Here, the survivors of the miserable ragged people instantly became rich: a personal signature was enough for them to access their accounts.

A few weeks later, among the passengers of the airliner departing from Sydney to Buenos Aires, were seven elegant gentlemen with Panamanian passports. The dark-skinned stewardess, who greeted the passengers with a smile, was surprised by their gray, faceless eyes and empty eyes.

Atlantic Wall - paper fortress
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Century Building

Goebbels propaganda dubbed the project the Atlantic Wall, designed to reliably protect Germany from the invasion of Anglo-American troops. For the first time this name was sounded at the end of 1940. So called four long-range batteries, built on the coast of the Strait of Pas-de-Calais. True, they were not built to repel the enemy, but only for pirate purposes - to disrupt navigation in the strait. And in 1942, after the failure of the landing of the Canadian Rangers near Dieppe (France), the construction of fortifications began on the entire coast. Hitler himself attached high importance to the Atlantic Wall and did not regret the construction of public money. The Fuhrer even personally designed several defensive points, and none of the engineers responsible for the construction dared to make changes to these "sacred" blueprints.

Tens of thousands of Germans and hundreds of thousands of "volunteers" from the occupied countries worked on the construction of giant defenses. Millions of tons of fortified concrete and the best steel were literally buried in the ground at this "century building". The Nazi command even established a special award: the medal "For the construction of the Atlantic Wall." Until the end of the war, more than six hundred thousand people received this medal.

"We will fail ..."

However, despite the crazy costs (and the project cost the German government more than three and a half billion Reichsmarks), most of the mighty bastions remained on paper. Memories of Field Marshal Rommel, who had already inspected defensive structures in the spring of 1944, were preserved: "I was shocked by how little actually was done here. A few large fortifications — yes, it is, fortifications without separation into the depths of defensive orders. On the unprotected spaces between them there is absolutely nothing! Only a few open positions of coastal artillery, which will be destroyed by the very first bomb blow. So I do not make any illusions about our immediate prospects. If we do not overthrow the enemy in the first few hours after landing, and allow him a foothold, then, are defeated. "

Having hardly finished an inspection trip, Rommel developed a stormy activity on “patching up holes”. Combat divisions were removed from positions and soldiers were given shovels instead of rifles. In the aisles between the fortifications, anti-tank racks were quickly installed, barbed wire was drawn, mines were placed...

However, along with the truly durable and inaccessible areas of the shaft, there were still much vulnerability. The engineering plan on the Pas-de-Calais coast was completed by a little more than half, on the Normandy coast, only a quarter, and time was running out ...

Meanwhile, Goebbels’s propaganda ministry in its own way participated in strengthening German power and brought down a barrage of propaganda fire on the public. During May, the media published a number of journalistic articles "on the absolute inaccessibility of the Atlantic Wall and weapons of unheard of power, which will be used in the event of an invasion."

Operation Overlord

No matter how the Nazi command was in a hurry, the day “D”, which went down in history as the day of the opening of the second front, came suddenly for the fascists. On the night of the sixth of June, under the cover of aviation, the Anglo-American troops dropped a parachute landing between Kahn and Havre (France), and in the morning they landed a naval landing on the coast of the Seine Bay. The width of the invasion front was more than 100 km. The operation used the latest transport and landing craft and the Allies landed where on the assurances of experts of the German Navy was "technically impossible to disembark because of the underwater cliffs and profile of the coastline." Such statements in the past led to the fact that it was on this section of the Atlantic Wall that the construction of defensive structures remained in its infancy.

The power of the Allied strike surpassed all the most pessimistic predictions of the fascists, which, however, had no effect on the reports of the German press. Here, for example, that the newspaper “New Berlin” wrote in those days: “The struggle for the future of Europe has entered the last, crucial stage. The long-awaited invasion of the mainland by the Anglo-American forces became a fait accompli on the night of June sixth. The German High Command, prepared for this military adventure of Churchill and Roosevelt, gave a worthy response to the first waves of the army of the world plutocracy. The Atlantic Wall protects Europe from the invasion of Anglo-American hordes. The German soldier knows what he is fighting for, and he fights with his characteristic selflessness. ”

The propaganda press has always been distinguished by the ability to give what is desired. There is not a word of truth in this post. First, only half of the divisions defending the rampart consisted of indigenous Germans, who were also partially fit for combat service. The second half consisted of collaborators, the so-called Eastern Legions. Among them were the Czechs, Uzbeks, Azeris, and Russians, who preferred to surrender to the Americans in the very first days of the invasion rather than fight for the Third Reich, which was cracking along all the seams. Secondly, the “high command”, prepared for an adventure, Germany itself shamefully missed this significant day.

Late to war

All the previous week, weather forecasters of the Navy and the Luftwaffe unanimously claimed that, due to unfavorable weather, no action was expected from the enemy. Therefore, the commander-in-chief of the 7th Army, Colonel-General Dolman, temporarily canceled the alert status and summoned all senior officers to Rennes for staff exercises. And because of the bad weather, the pilots stopped all reconnaissance flights.

Field Marshal Rommel, who was personally responsible for the defense of the coast, was hundreds of kilometers from his headquarters during the landing. In his estate, in the town of Ulm (Germany), he celebrated the birthday of his wife. At 10 o'clock in the morning, three hours after the landing, there was a phone call on the estate, and the attendant confusedly reported to the field marshal about the attack, adding that it was still not clear what it was - an invasion or a diverting maneuver. Rommel quickly left the position, but could only arrive by the evening of the sixth of June.

Adolf Hitler, according to the testimony of people close to him, trivially overslept the breakthrough of the Atlantic Wall by the Allied forces and the opening of a second front. None of the staff officers did not risk disturbing the dream of the “leader of the German people” and the Fuhrer found out about the invasion twelve hours after the landing of the first landing. However, for a long time, Hitler was convinced that a breakthrough in Normandy was a red herring and a real blow that must be expected elsewhere.

Rout

And the allies in the meantime do not sleep. The “unapproachable” Atlantic Wall delivered its bastions one by one. At every step the Americans were convinced that his readiness for defense was overblown by Hitlerite propaganda. For example, the paratroopers, capturing a German battery designed for firing powerful 155-mm guns and guns, found there ... four 75-mm guns from the First World War. In other places stood guns surrounded by empty trenches that did not make a single shot due to the lack of projectiles.

A couple of weeks after the landing of the Anglo-American troops, the Soviet command launched a large-scale offensive on the Eastern Front. By the time the divisions of the Wehrmacht, defending the Atlantic Wall, had already retreated into the depths of France. The "impregnable" fortress ceased to exist.

Three years ago, the municipality of the city of The Hague began exploring the possibility of restoring the fortifications of the Atlantic Wall to attract tourists. Already, in some defenses created a kind of museums. However, so far in the Netherlands, dozens of fascist pillboxes of the former Atlantic Wall stand unattended among the dunes of the coast, like a giant tombstone of the Third Reich.

10 world-renowned firms working with the Nazis

There is something terrible in the effectiveness with which the Nazis ruled the whole country, including its population and industry, realizing their sinister plans. Everyone knows about the big three corporations that collaborated with the Nazis. Hugo Boss created the design of the frightening SS uniform (as well as the monotonous brown shirts of the SA and the Hitler Youth); Volkswagen at the behest of Hitler designed the "Beetle" and stamped it using forced labor; IBM developed punch cards used to streamline the extermination process by race and class.

However, these were not the only companies that conspired with the Nazis — other global business entities that you can still recognize today, also sold their souls to the devil in many ways — and you might be surprised to see some of the names listed below.

10. Chase Bank

If you think that the collusion of Chase Bank (now J.P. Morgan Chase) with the Nazis is not so surprising. One of the main holders of his shares, J.D. Rockefeller, directly financed the pre-war eugenic experiments of the Nazis. Between 1936 and 1941, Chase and other US banks helped the Germans get over 20 million in dollar terms, earning over $ 1.2 million in commissions - of which Chase put half a million into his pocket. In those days it was a lot of money. The fact that German marks aimed at financing the operation had as their source the Jews who had fled from Nazi Germany did not seem to be embarrassed by Chase - in fact, the bank adjusted its affairs after Kristallnacht (the night in 1938, during which the Jews throughout Nazi Germany and Austria were targeted pogroms). Chase also froze the accounts of French Jews in occupied France before the Nazis even thought about asking for it.

9. Ford

Henry Ford was in himself a notorious anti-Semite, who published a selection of articles under the fascinating title “International Jewry. The original world problem. Ford even sponsored his own newspaper, which he used as an element of propaganda, accusing the Jews of World War I, and in 1938 received the Order of Merit of the German Eagle, the highest insignia of Nazi Germany, which was awarded to foreign citizens.

The German management of Ford produced a third of military trucks for the needs of the German army during the war, with a wide involvement of prisoners. What is shocking even more - perhaps the forced labor was used in the production of Ford back in 1940 - when the US division of the company still retained full control over it.

8. Random House

You may not have heard of Bertelsmann A.G., but you will hear about books published by many of its subsidiaries, including Random House, Bantam Books and Doubleday. While the Nazis were in power, Bertelsmann published Nazi propaganda literature, such as Sterilization and Euthanasia - a Contribution to Applied Christian Ethics. She even published the works of Willy Vespera, who gave an enthusiastic speech on the burning of books in 1933. In 1997, Random House was at the center of another discussion about Nazism, when it added “a person fanatically devoted to certain activities, practices, etc. or the desire to master them "to the definition of" Nazi "in Webster's dictionary, prompting the Anti-Defamation League to make a statement according to which the publishing house" downplays and denies the bloodthirsty intent and actions of the Nazi regime. "

7. Kodak

When you think of Kodak, idyllic family photos and captured memories immediately appear before your eyes, but what you really need to keep in mind is forced labor, which was used in the German branch of the firm during World War II. Kodak subsidiaries in neutral European countries did a lively business with the Nazis, providing them with both a market for their goods and valuable foreign currency. The Portuguese unit even transferred its profits to the unit in The Hague, which was under Nazi occupation at the time. Moreover, this company was engaged not only in the manufacture of cameras - it mastered the production of fuses, detonators and other military products for the Germans.

6. Coca-Cola

Fanta is an aromatic orange-flavored drink that was originally intended for the Nazis. Quite right, the importation of cola ingredients, which gave the brand its name, was difficult, so the manager of Coca-Cola in Germany, Max Kite, invented a new drink that could be made from available ingredients.

In 1941, Fanta made her debut in the German market. Mack Kite was not a Nazi himself, but his efforts to maintain the smooth operation of Coca-Cola units throughout the war meant that the company had earned a fair amount of money and, with the end of the war, could return to the spread of Coca-Cola among American soldiers stationed in Europe.

5. Allianz

Allianz is considered the twelfth largest financial services company in the world. Not surprisingly, being founded in Germany in 1890, she was the largest insurer in her when the Nazis came to power. As such, it quickly turned out to be tied with the Nazi regime. Its head, Kurt Schmitt, was also Hitler’s minister of economics, and the company insured Auschwitz’s facilities and personnel. Its CEO is responsible for the practice of paying insurance compensation for Jewish property destroyed as a result of the Crystal Night to the Nazi state instead of eligible beneficiaries. In addition, the company worked closely with the Nazi state in tracking the life insurance policies of German Jews sent to death camps, and during the war insured property taken from the same Jewish population in favor of the Nazis.

4. Novartis

Although Bayer is notorious for starting out as a division of the Cyclone B gas producer that was used by the Nazis in gas chambers, it is not the only pharmaceutical company with skeletons in the cabinet. As a result of the merger, the Swiss chemical companies Ciba and Sandoz formed Novartis, which became famous primarily for its medicine Ritalin (widely used psychostimulant, widely used in the USA for the treatment of childhood hyperactivity; approx. Mixednews). In 1933, the Berlin branch of Ciba ceased the authority of all members of its board of directors of Jewish nationality and replaced them with more “acceptable” Aryan cadres; in the meantime, Sandoz was engaged in a similar activity with respect to its chairman. During the war, companies produced dyes, drugs and chemicals for the Nazis. Novartis frankly admitted his guilt and tried to make amends for it in a way that was characteristic of other accomplice firms - by donating $ 15 million to the Swiss compensation fund to the victims of Nazism.

3. Nestlé

In 2000, Nestlé, in connection with the use of slave labor at the time, paid to the relevant fund more than 14.5 million dollars to settle the claims of people affected by its actions and Holocaust survivors, as well as Jewish organizations. The company made a recognition that in 1947 it acquired a company that during the war years used forced labor, and also stated: “there is no doubt or it can be assumed that some corporations from the Nestlé group operating in the countries controlled by the national socialist (Nazi) regime, exploited servile laborers. " In 1939, Nestlé in Switzerland provided financial assistance to the Nazi Party, winning as a result the lucrative contract for the supply of chocolate for the needs of the entire German army during World War II.

2. BMW

BMW admitted to using during the war, 30 thousand involuntary unskilled workers. These prisoners of war, bonded laborers and prisoners of the concentration camps produced engines for the Luftwaffe and were thus forced to help the regime in defending themselves against those who tried to save them. In wartime, BMW concentrated solely on the manufacture of airplanes and motorcycles, without pretending to anything other than being a supplier of military vehicles for the Nazis.

1. General Electric (GE)

In 1946, the US government imposed a fine on General Electric due to its misbehavior during wartime. Together with Krupp, a German industrial company, General Electric deliberately overcharged the prices of tungsten carbide, which is a vital material for the machining of metals necessary for the needs of the front. However, being fined a total of some 36 thousand dollars, General Electric only made about one and a half million dollars on this fraud, thereby hampering mobilization and raising the price of victory over Nazism. GE, moreover, before the outbreak of war, bought a stake in Siemens, and made herself an accomplice in using slave labor to build those same gas chambers, where many sick workers found their end.

When and where did Hitler die?

It would seem that the answer is obvious and unambiguous: the possessed Fuhrer and his newly-made spouse Eva Braun committed suicide on April 30, 1945 at 15:30 in Berlin, in an underground bunker equipped in the courtyard of the Imperial Chancellery. This is confirmed by people from Hitler's inner circle, as well as the results of the identification and expertise of his exhumed corpse. However, there is another version: Hitler did not commit suicide at all, and together with Eva Braun and his comrades-in-arms, he fled from besieged Berlin to South America and died there in 1964 at the age of 75. And this version is supported by a number of documents and evidence.

First inconsistencies

American historian and writer William Shearer, in his fundamental study The Rise and Fall of the Third Reich, published in 1960, states that the bodies or bones of Hitler and Eve were never found because they were swept away and destroyed by the Russian shells.

And almost half a century later, the Argentine historian and documentary writer Abel Basti took up finding out the true fate of Hitler, Eva Braun and all of the top Nazi leaders.

The results of his research are set out in the 2006 Hitler in Argentina book.

The author bases his conclusions and conclusions on numerous documents and testimonies of witnesses, on the basis of which he asserts that suicide and the subsequent burning of the corpses of Hitler and Eva Braun were falsified. Hitler and his wife managed to escape in South America and live there until old age.

Facts and eyewitness accounts

What kind of documents and testimony? Here, for example, aviation engineer Hans Bauer informs: April 30, 1945, at 16:30 (that is, an hour after the suicide was announced), he saw Adolf Hitler dressed in a light gray suit in the center of Berlin near the Junkers-52 aircraft.

According to another document, on April 25, a secret meeting on the evacuation of Hitler was held in the Führerbunker, in which the famous “pilotess” Hanna Reitsch, pilot ace Hans Ulrich Rudel and Hitler’s personal pilot Hans Bower participated. The Führer’s secret evacuation plan was code-named Operation Serial.

And five days earlier, on April 20, the list of passengers departing from Berlin to Barcelona was approved. Hitler was the first in it, but the names of Goebbels, his wives and children were removed from the list.

So Adolf Hitler and, apparently, the entire “payroll” on April 30, 1945 flew from Berlin to Spain, and from there the Führer, Eva Braun and their extensive retinue and guards arrived in Argentina in late summer on three submarines, which then, in conspiracy purposes were flooded.

The reality of such an underwater voyage is confirmed by the fact that divers have discovered large objects covered with sand at a depth of about 30 meters. The same objects are visible in the picture taken by the Americans from space.

The fact that these are exactly Nazi submarines is also indicated by the testimony of witnesses who observed in the summer of 1945 the arrival of three submarines with a swastika in the Caleta de los Loros bay located in the Argentine province of Rio Negro.

The FBI archives contain a report from an American agent in Argentina, a gardener of wealthy German colonists, the Aichhorn spouses from the village of La Falda. The agent said that the owners from June are preparing the estate for the arrival of Hitler, which will take place as soon as possible.

A letter from the Nazi general Seidlitz, dated 1956, has also been preserved - he says that he is going to be present in Argentina at the meeting of Hitler and the “Fuhrer” of the Croatian nationalist Ustasha Ante Pavelic.

Poor performance?

As for the testimony of witnesses who allegedly buried the corpse of Hitler, it turns out there is not a single person who would have seen with his own eyes how the Fuhrer saw through the vial of poison and shot himself in the head. Most likely, the history of the suicide of the head of the Third Reich from the beginning to the end was invented by people from his close circle to confuse everyone.

And if you carefully examine the archival documents, you can find in the testimony of "eyewitnesses" of Hitler's death a number of contradictions. At first it is said - he poisoned himself. Then - no, he shot himself in the temple. After - sorry, I first poisoned myself, and then I shot myself. Cyanic potassium causes convulsions and instant death: how could a person then pull the trigger of a pistol?

In general, all the witnesses of the death of Hitler are confused in the testimony. For example, SS officer Heinz Ling claims that Hitler shot himself in the left temple with a Walter pistol and demolished his half of the skull, and another SS officer Otto Gunsche (who carried the body of the Fuhrer) shows: “Adolf fell into the right temple, but his face suffered. " Ten years later, for some reason, he changed his testimony - Hitler's shot temple became left again.

In 1950, Gunshe recalls: when he entered the room, the corpses lay next to him on the sofa. And after ten years he changed his mind and declared that they lay at different ends of the sofa.

But the most interesting thing is that a Soviet physician, Lieutenant Colonel Shkaravsky, who took part in the autopsy, indicated that there were no signs of bullet wounds anywhere, only the remnants of ampoules with potassium cyanide in his teeth.

From all this, the conclusion is clear: the SS men themselves have never seen the dead Hitler, and this is where the discrepancy in the picture of his death comes from. They were previously ordered to categorically assert that the Führer was dead, but they had not learned their roles.

Stalin and Zhukov also doubted

No wonder that reading the babbling of such "witnesses", Stalin did not believe in the death of Hitler. It is known that Soviet intelligence was looking for the Fuhrer in several countries of South America at once, which is confirmed by the declassified archival documents of the KGB.

And on June 9, 1945, at a press conference for foreign journalists, Marshal Georgy Zhukov stated that the Fuhrer and Eva Braun secretly flew by plane to Hamburg, from where they sailed on a submarine.

It is also known about the existence of three verbatim transcripts of Stalin's conversations (one of them with US Secretary of State Byrnes), in which the head of the USSR frankly says that the Fuhrer managed to escape.

Fuhrer "covered" double?

In Argentina, Hitler lived another twenty years after the official date of his death. It does not fit with the large number of evidence of the pitiful condition of the Fuhrer in March-April 1945: a physically exhausted person who has lost the idea of ​​the reality of what is happening, half-blind, sitting on tranquilizers.

However, there is no contradiction here - it must be borne in mind that in the spring of 1945 one of the Fuhrer’s twins, who looked older than his years, appeared before the public. This man, portraying Hitler, remained in the bunker to the end - there he died as a result.

Living in hospitable Argentina

All the witnesses in Argentina describe the appearance of the “late” Hitler as a fairly healthy person, although he moved with some difficulty, relying on a cane - apparently, the consequences of a contusion after the 1944 assassination affected. He never learned Spanish and spoke it very badly.

The famous antennae were no longer worn, and the hair was cut short, almost under the beaver, and turned gray.

Upon arriving in Argentina, the Führer lived for a long time in a hotel owned by the Aichhorn spouses (an American agent mentioned them in the report). He repeatedly visited the luxurious villa of a major businessman Jorge Antonio (a friend of the country's President Juan Peron) and visited the mountain resort of Bariloche, where his favorite pilot Hans-Ulrich Rudel, Haupschturmführer SS Erich Pribke and the fanatic from Auschwitz Joseph Mengele settled. Bariloche especially liked him, the Fuhrer and Eva Braun lived there for several years in a two-story wooden mansion.

About Eva Brown is worth special mention. She was born in 1912, was 23 years younger than Hitler. It is possible that Eva Braun and Adolf Hitler had children in Argentina.

Good luck for the country

In one of the documents from the archives of the FBI, declassified in 1997 and dated September 21, 1945, an informant reports his readiness to provide evidence that three Argentine ministers met a submarine that was carrying Hitler.

To this, it is worth adding that Hitler and his henchmen delivered huge financial resources to Argentina. In August, the 45th U-235 and U-977 submarines unloaded more than four kilograms of diamonds, tons of gold and platinum in Argentine bays.

The CIA report, declassified in 1996, testifies that Argentine President Juan Peron, after the collapse of the Third Reich, received $ 7 million from the controlled SS secret accounts in Switzerland - this was the price for silence.

Peron’s statement about this is well known: “This is good luck for us. The Germans invested a lot of money in our economy, built factories and plants, put billions of gold in our banks. Isn't it a bargain purchase? ”

Who financed Hitler?
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Who financed Hitler? How did Germany, at the beginning of the 1930s, in the midst of a crisis, succeed several years later in successfully confronting the whole world? And most importantly: where did the untold riches of the Third Reich go after the war? All these topics are either diligently ignored by ordinary historians, or the questions are given a very vague answer. The author of this investigation (an ethnic German whose father, being an SS officer, was forced to leave for Argentina to avoid prosecution after the war, only after his father Hans-Ulrich died, he learned that he was involved in the activities of the most mysterious organization of Nazi Germany - the institute " Anenerbe ”) managed to trace the entire history of the Nazi accounts - from beginning to end ...

To be honest, I did not want to deal with this topic at first. Not because I was afraid of something, but simply because it seemed to me rather boring and uninteresting. Well, in the end, what's the difference, where did Hitler get his money from? There are much more interesting plots - for example, the mystical secrets of the SS, the German "atomic project" and the "space program" ... And yet, in each of these plots, I came across strings that led to the darkness and were connected specifically with money. Finally, there were so many of these threads that I ventured to pull on them. Many turned out to be broken, but others led me to the answer to the question: where, in fact, did Hitler himself come from? How did he manage to come to power? And the answer was really shocking ...

About his past, the father told little and reluctantly. With friends who fled to Argentina with him, talked, as they say, behind closed doors. Sometimes (but not often) he had strange visitors with whom he locked himself in his office. We children didn’t know anything about this side of his life, especially since such things happened very rarely. Probably, it was precisely my father’s unwillingness to talk about the Third Reich that spurred my interest in this part of German history. Starting from my student years, I eagerly read books devoted to Hitler's Germany and World War II. However, in none of them could I read what the documents found after my father’s death in a simple metal safe kept in our attic from time immemorial told me.

It happened on one of those sunny days for which the Argentine spring is so famous. I sat on the veranda of my father’s old house and went through papers that I inherited from that very metal safe. Honestly, I have seen them and held them in my hands many times already. The yellowed piece of paper looked simple and discreet. Perhaps that is why he passed through my hands ten times already, but I did not notice anything. Above - an intricate monogram, below - a large typewritten inscription:

Grant certificate for 50 thousand marks. It is issued for research of great scientific value for the German race. Below, in faded ink, it was written: Heinrich von Kranz. The study of runic symbols of the Black Forest. Below - a couple of signatures, the date - May 31, 1937 - and the bizarre letters formed in the inscription “Anenerbe Foundation". "And even lower ... my eyes slid down ... and I saw something I had never noticed before. At the very bottom the pages were written in small letters "Foundation" Anenerbe ", Chicago, USA."

I just refused to believe my eyes. Again and again I re-read the name of the city and country. There could be no doubt - it is about that very Chicago in the very United States. The search brought quite expected results: I could not find any information about the Anenerbe Foundation located in Chicago, moreover, the data of the graphological examination I ordered confirmed that the Hess signature on the document was genuine ...

The next day, I was already looking through the porthole of an airplane at the passing fluffy clouds. A huge liner carried me and another good hundred passengers from Buenos Aires to Frankfurt am Main. I had to once again rummage in the German archival documents. Because if the signature of Hess was not a fake, then the document itself was not a fake either. So, the American fund "Anenerbe" really existed.

There are almost no SS funds in modern Germany - they are all captured by the winners ...

I spent a week in the Central Scientific Archive in Berlin. But I didn’t find the main thing I came here for. No mention of the fund "Anenerbe". Having almost lost all hope, I decided to question the archive staff… On the eighth day of my fruitless search for duty in the reading room, a slouching old man in large round glasses came up: a real bookworm - in the best sense of the word. More successful object for my inquiries would be difficult to find. Having looked through the next case, I went to the honorable archivist and asked him directly:

- Tell me, do you know anything about the Anenerbe Foundation?

- “Anenerbe” ... “The legacy of the ancestors” ... - the old man said slowly after a long pause, lifting round glasses at me. - This is the SS Institute, right? I think you have come to the wrong place ...

- No, no, that you! This eponymous fund, which existed in the 30s and funded research on the past of the Germans. He was American.

“Um ... I haven't heard anything about it.” Maybe you should contact the archives of the United States, young man?

“Alas,” I sighed. - I expected that they would help me in my home country. It is a pity that it is unreal. But maybe you just did not study the relevant funds?

- Young man! - No one knows these funds better than me. I have been doing them for fifty-five - fifty-five! - years old. And I know what I'm talking about. Our archive does not have what you need. Look for the Americans. In the end, they cleaned our collections...

- In what sense? - I was amazed.

- In the most direct. You did not notice that the numbers of cases are not in order? Do you think this is an accident? I also thought so when I came here to work. But there are no coincidences in our business. Old employees told me that after the war the Americans spent a lot of time in our archive. A large commission worked here for two years. Documents were taken by truck. By trucks!

- What were these documents?

- I have no idea! The most different - apparently related to our latest research.

I thanked the old man and returned to his place. As for the "newest research" - this, of course, was over the edge. The results of the latest research do not gather dust in the archives - they are in laboratories, where these studies, in fact, are carried out. Of course, something could be found here, but trucks of papers ....

... I stumbled on the first one ten minutes after the beginning of the search. Immediately after the A-4050 case, the A-4052 case was on. Both were devoted to the financing of German science in the 30s. Case A-4051 was missing. What could be of interest to the Americans who had the archive file? Nothing at all - it was of purely historical interest. It only made sense to take it away if the Yankees wanted to hide something unpleasant for themselves. But what exactly?

It was useless to go to the American archives, it was clear even to the baby. Once they cleaned the German funds, then all of their dirt was removed from them. It was necessary to find some kind of archive where the Yankees could not get to. Such could be only in one city of the world, - in Moscow.

When the Second World War died down, the Russian carriages took out documents from the German archives of a pile of documents. The base - the Nazis attacked the Soviet Union, destroyed many archives, and, having won, Moscow demanded compensation. Nobody could refuse her ...

... Three weeks later, I was still given the cherished reader card, I was overjoyed. However, my happiness was somewhat diminished when I learned that in the short sixty years that have passed since the Second World War, the Russians did not bother to put in order the documents they got. However, everything was safe and sound - and this is not bad ...

Interesting finds appeared in the early days. First, I discovered a couple of grant certificates like the one that was kept in my father's safe. Both were issued by a scholar who investigated the ancient Aryans. Under the documents were two signatures - Hess and the German representative of the Foundation “Anenerbe” - James Ball. This latter was clearly an American - it means that the version of the "offshore" fund fell away completely. The most curious and shocking find was waiting for me on the tenth day of work in the archive. I delved into a huge, plump case dedicated to government support for scientific research. Scrolling through about half, I was anxiously found that inside there is another, apparently, accidentally hemmed-up affair. The case, the content of which beat to the point. It was a collection of financing agreements for the Heritage of Ancestors Institute. I found the most convincing evidence that the Anenerbe Foundation really existed.

In fact, in my hands was a document about its creation. The text of this document, signed in 1936, deserves to be published in full:

The Friends of Germany Society recognizes that key research is carried out today within the walls of a special research institute Heritage of Ancestors. The successful development of these studies is vital to German science. In connection with this, the Friends of Germany society undertakes to finance the most important research carried out within the framework of the institute.

For the implementation of this contract, a fund "Heritage ancestors". The fund’s capital is formed by subsidies from the Friends of Germany Company. The Ancestral Heritage Foundation is located in the United States and appoints its representative in Germany, whose task is to select research worthy of funding. Each subsidy is consistent with the German side.

The total amount of subsidies issued by the Ancestral Heritage Foundation annually cannot be less than $ 1 million in gold equivalent.

Why did the American foundation decide to invest such money in German science? And the most interesting - where did he get them from?

Under the document were two signatures. In one of them, I easily recognized the signature of the SS Reichsführer Heinrich Himmler — I had seen it hundreds of times and would not have confused it with any other. The other, apparently belonging to the representative of the society “Friends of Germany”, was unfamiliar to me. Decryption of signatures was not - neither one nor the other.

I spent another week in the archive, but I didn’t find anything worthy of attention. And he didn’t really count on it - it’s obvious that Friends of Germany was a purely American structure, and there’s not a lot of material in Nazi foundations. And yet this week was not in vain...

On the last day of my work, when I handed over the reader's card, the archivists — three women of Balsakov’s age — carefully checked all the matters to which I touched (and in my opinion, even those that I had the misfortune to breathe). I understood the reasons for such efforts when, at the end of the check, one of the archive workers — apparently, the senior officer — turned to me and said with some relief in rather bad English:

- Thank God, Mr. Kranz, everything is in order.

- And what could be wrong? - I could not resist the question.

- Six months ago there was a very, very unpleasant story. - It was clear that the lady hardly selects foreign words. - We had one American scientist, Donald Glane. After his departure, we discovered that many of the documents with which he worked were missing.

- Simply put, he robbed you?

- Yes, yes, robbed...

“Where did he come from, this Glain?” - As if by chance I asked.

- It seems from the University of Virginia. We sent them a letter of protest...

Returning home, the first thing I decided to deal with the "Friends of Germany." It was clearly some kind of fairly powerful organization, since it could have spent a million dollars a year on projects of non-paramount importance. There was clearly a big business involved...

If you believe the document that I received through my own channels (I will not disclose them, as we have already agreed), Friends of Germany (FG) was formed in 1923 as a branch of the Chicago club. How, you have not heard of this? No wonder I myself happened only a couple of times to find fragmentary references to this powerful structure. Meanwhile, the Chicago club in the US life of the first half of the twentieth century played a role no less than the president and congress combined.

The Chicago club was an association of the richest people in America, bigwigs big business - industrialists, merchants and bankers. Among its founders were such multimillionaires like Ford, Morgan, Rockefeller, Vanderbilde ... These people several times a year secretly gathered in Chicago in a specially acquired mansion and discussed the most important issues relating to the life of the country. Which presidential candidate is supported by money in the upcoming elections? Which party to finance? Which politicians will be able to best secure the interests of the bigwigs?

All these issues were solved right here, in the bowels of the Chicago club. Big business skillfully lobbied its interests, enforcing the laws it needed. In the hands of "money bags" was a mass of threads, pulling for which they could manage politicians, like puppets in a puppet theater. Both the domestic and foreign policy of the United States of those years was determined precisely by the Chicago Club.

Do not believe? The simplest example. In 1934, President Roosevelt decided to oblige businessmen to open new socially useful enterprises, which could take a lot of the unemployed. One meeting of the Chicago club - and Roosevelt radically changes his decision: now public works are organized at public expense. The budget, of course, is empty, can not give a lot of money, and Roosevelt’s public works remind more likely hard labor of the past centuries - the unemployed work here in the most difficult conditions for pennies. But the big business is satisfied: it did not have to shell out. Moreover, in some places it was even possible to snatch a profit, turning the work of millions of slaves to their advantage.

So, it is this Chicago club in 1923 that organizes the no less secret society “Friends of Germany”. What for? My sources believed that the goal is quite simple and transparent. The fact is that during the First World War, England and France, who fought against Germany, brought a lot of money from the United States. After the war, the debts had to somehow be repaid. The winners hoped to do this at the expense of Germany, which was heavily repaired. So big that the Germans were simply unable to pay them.

American business at that time was very interested in buying up German enterprises, which were sold on the cheap. But in order to successfully conduct business in Germany, there was a need for some kind of stability. And in conditions when the British and French, with varying success, tried to tear seven skins from the Germans plus all the meat from the bones, there could be no question of any kind of stability. Therefore, the Americans in the early 20s asked the Europeans not to press Germany very much and not to demand too much money from it. The Europeans agreed - but on condition that the States also did not insist on punctual debt recovery. And it did not suit the greedy Yankees. The situation is at an impasse ...

It was in order to bring it out of this impasse, and the Friends of Germany society was created. He headed the company none other than Henry Ford. In the depths of FG, a brilliant plan for the "circulation of money" was developed: the Americans give loans to the Germans, actually putting them in complete dependence on themselves, the Germans pay the British and French with this money, and they, in turn, give back the US debts ... Everyone is happy, everyone is happy and the Americans are still a big winner. The authorship of this plan, in order not to shine, was attributed to the American banker Dawes. In 1924, at an international conference convened specifically on this occasion, the “Dawes Plan” was adopted with great pomp.

And away! The Americans (namely, Friends of Germany) began to invest big money in the German economy. And of course, make a very weighty profit. General Motors and Ford corporations practically put the country's automotive industry under control, the Yankees strengthened their positions in electrical engineering and chemistry. Germany has become for the United States a kind of stronghold of economic penetration into the European continent. From here, American money flowed through Eastern Europe ...

... Having read through the papers that were in my hands, I felt that the document did not set out the whole truth about Friends of Germany, that under this - seemingly innocent - information there is another layer of information. Because I was reliably aware that FG did not cease to exist after the Nazis came to power, that it continued to function successfully in the future, supporting the Third Reich. But why? For what purpose? Just for the sake of economic benefits - or was the society pursuing some other, far-reaching goals? I had to get to the bottom of this mystery...

In the meantime, there was good news. The signature, which stood under the agreement "Friends of Germany" and "Anenerbe", was able to identify. The signature did not belong to any American financier, as I thought at first, and not even to a diplomat. Ernst Hanfshtengl, one of the most bizarre and obscure figures of the Nazi movement, put her on a top secret document. So, it turns out, the Nazis agreed with themselves? What have you got then “Friends of Germany”? I decided not to rush to conclusions ...

... Hanfstaengl (Hanfstaengl) Ernst Franz Zedgvik (Putz) (1887–1975) was Hitler’s unofficial court jester. He was born in Munich in a mixed US-German family. His father was a well-known art dealer. Ernst studied at the Bavarian Gymnasium of Emperor Wilhelm, where his classmate was the father of Heinrich Himmler. Both before and after the Nazis came to power, Hanfshtengl remained among Hitler's inner circle and was rewarded with the insignificant position of spokesman for the Nazi Party.

In this position, which he held until he left Germany, Hanfshtengl sought to benefit the Nazi movement with the help of his many influential friends abroad. By the end of 1934, relations between Hitler and Hanfshtengl noticeably cooled down and in March 1937, Hanfstengl, sensing the danger approaching him, left Germany. During the Second World War, Hanfschtengl served in the United States, in the White House, as an expert on Nazi affairs.

This is the official version - Hanfshtengl was just Hitler's court jester, who had no political weight. For some reason I could not believe it. It’s not for nothing that they say that the court jester is the most influential person in the monarch’s entourage, because he alone can tell the king the truth without fear of consequences, may push him to take an important decision. The court jester is an ideal disguise for a person who wants to be a “gray cardinal” who, for some reason, does not need others to guess about his influence and power. A spokesperson is a person who informally communicates not only with journalists, but also with business people and politicians from other countries. At the same time, he can play the role of a kind of intermediary between, say, the Wall Street cream and Hitler. Is it possible to call such a position "insignificant"? Personally, I do not think so. And I decided to find out under what circumstances Hanfshtengl met the leader of the Nazis. And then I discovered really amazing facts ...

In one of his books, the famous American journalist and writer William Shearer tells in some detail the story of the acquaintance of Hanfshtengl and Hitler. According to him, this couple was introduced by none other than the Assistant Military Attache at the American Embassy in Berlin, Captain Truman Smith. It happened as follows:

In November 1922, the embassy commissioned Smith to Munich to inquire about a little-known politician named Adolf Hitler and the National Socialist Workers' Party of Germany he had recently created. The choice fell on Smith because he, like no other, was able to analyze the political situation. During the week of his stay in Munich (from 15 to 22 November), he managed to meet with Ludendorff, Crown Prince Ruprecht and another ten political figures in Bavaria. Smith tried not to waste time and visited one of the Nazi gatherings where Hitler spoke. On Monday (November 22), Smith went to Hitler’s residence and had a lengthy conversation with the future dictator, whom few people knew then outside of Munich. Before leaving for Berlin, Smith saw Hanfshtengl, spoke about his meeting with Hitler and advised him to take a closer look at this man. Returning to Berlin, Captain Smith compiled a detailed report, which was sent by the Embassy to Washington on November 25, 1922.

Smith was an excellent political analyst and his opinion was listened to at the State Department. So, already at the end of 1922 in the USA, the Nazi party was viewed as a rising star in the German political horizon. And ... with all their interest in Germany, the US did not make any more attempts to look at this force. Official Washington’s interest in the Hitler movement is fading away as suddenly as it arose. Paradoxically, is not it? Maybe in the United States sincerely hated the Nazis? But Hitler at that time had not yet committed any crimes, what then?

Everything falls into place if you look at the role of Ernst Hanfshtengl in a slightly different way. Smith was familiar with Ernst and not just in a friendly way, he advised him to take a closer look at the Nazis. The Hanfshtengol family was closely associated with the bigwigs of American business, and there were exits to the political elite.

After meeting with Hitler, Ernst begins to actively help him. Already in the first year, he gave the Nazis money to buy the newspaper “Felkischer Beobachter” (which becomes the main mouthpiece of the party) and introduces Hitler into the “high society”, introduces him to people who are able to provide real financial assistance. In November 1923, Hitler made an attempt seizure of power in Munich, the so-called "beer putsch". When the attempt failed miserably, it was Hanfshtengl who sheltered Hitler in his house. In other words, at the end of 1922, Hanfshtengl essentially becomes the unofficial observer of Washington under the Nazi party.

Recall that Putzi was a representative of American political and business circles, who preferred to keep a low profile. And it may be far from accidental that the “Friends of Germany” society was created shortly after Smith received a report in Washington. Smith, who left Hanfshtengl as his deputy, who, in turn, after some time became the FG representative in the Third Reich. All this leads to an unusual, and in part even shocking, thought. And what if the society "Friends of Germany" was originally created to support Nazism? ...

... With direct evidence, as always, it was tight. And where will you find them, if the Yankees have been diligently covering their tracks for decades? And yet they could not destroy something, or simply did not want to. Very briefly on their part, I must say.

First, I have long noticed that the entire Nazi accounting department in the mid-20s was in dollars, the party accounts in the banks were also in dollars. Why? Historians usually say that this was done to avoid inflation. In 1923, when the brand depreciated every day, this explanation would be quite reliable. But then the brand gained stability, and the need to rely on foreign currency no longer exists. Why did the Nazis continue to use dollars? It was expedient only in one case: if sufficiently large dollar payments went through their cash desk. Who could give the Nazis large sums in dollars?

Only Americans. American dollars worked great in Nazi Germany. Corruption in the years of the economic crisis reached horrific proportions and for dollars, government employees were ready for almost everything. It is also strange that none of the historians have yet thought to analyze the list of people donating money to the Nazi movement, because Hitler was financed by those captains of the German economy who had big business with the United States and depended on their overseas partners. It also pushes on certain thoughts.

And finally, the most interesting: in 1925 one of the cashiers of the Nazi party was robbed after receiving money from the bank. He had stolen a very decent amount - and, as you probably already guessed, in dollars. Overly vigilant government agencies began checking accounts of the NSDAP. It turned out that the information that the party provided about its income was, to put it mildly, unreliable. Huge sums came to the accounts of the Nazis from abroad. It seemed that a scandal was about to break out, but ... for some reason it did not break out. I wonder why?

It turns out that the situation - and with it German Nazism - was once again saved by the Americans. These days just negotiated a new large loan for the German government. Suddenly, the American side put a tough condition: if Berlin wants to get money, it must hush up the scandal with the Nazi bills and fall behind the NSDAP. Because the existing situation, they say, impairs financial freedom in the country and causes distrust on the part of overseas lenders. The government was forced to obey...

Unknown Adolf Hitler

There are many truths in the world that seem to be completely obvious, and yet it is precisely because of their obviousness that people often do not notice them or, in any case, do not understand their meaning. By such self-evident truths, people sometimes pass away as blind, and then are extremely surprised when someone suddenly discovers something that everyone would seem to know. Everywhere you look, there are thousands of Columbian eggs everywhere, but there are very few Columbus themselves in life.

Adolf Gitler. My struggle

Someone will find these arguments of the Fuhrer about "Columbus" and "eggs" "something interesting" or even "wise." But every psychiatrist will see here the typical features of the reasoning of a schizophrenic patient who really sees what other healthy people do not see.

Any usurper is already a mentally ill person because he is sure that he alone knows what his people and his country need. Intolerance to the opinion of others (or the impossibility to perceive it at all) and the idea of ​​oneself as “chosen from above for a great mission” are typical features of a schizophrenic.

Unfortunately, in countries with weak democratic traditions and internal crisis there is a very large percentage of marginals who are not able to fulfill their functions of a citizen in governing the country and are ready to give them to “Hard Hand”. That is, the one who wants to become a usurper, and most of all just schizophrenics want it. As a result, the very first democratic elections lead to the power of a dictator with problems in the psyche, which liquidates Civil Society, opposition, independent media and trade unions independent from the state, and sets any dissent and sets instead of them with the money of taxpayers the propaganda organs (as RPL, the Goebbels propaganda ministry 1933) - and introduces the formation of state capitalism. Where the State becomes the employer, that is, the executive branch itself - which puts it in the neo-faction rank. (All of this was condemned at the Nuremberg Tribunal as an odious Crime against Humanity and as “the main basic and typical features of a fascist state.”) And the whole country begins to live a schizophrenic way of life, “adjusting” to its crazy “leader of the people” - which happened in Germany in 1933.

Unlike the communist usurpers, the fascist were always populists, as they seized power not by force, but in elections. And although in essence Pol Pot, for example, was no different from Mussolini or Franco, but the populism of the fascist leaders gave their dictatorship special features. If communism rested on fear and repression, then fascism rested on populism and demagogy. And the greatest populist of all times and peoples was, of course, Adolf Hitler.

Hypnosis Hitler

Several years ago, AiF wrote that all tyrants had a small height: Napoleon, Lenin and Stalin about one and a half meters, and Hitler among them was the lowest. And the picture was placed: dwarfs, among which is the lowest Hitler - with height of 154 cm.

Dear edition deceived readers. Hitler's height is 175 cm. You can’t call him a dwarf. This is the usual growth of a normal man. But much else in the Führer is difficult to call normal.

The main thing in Hitler is his personal magnetism, which suppressed everything rational from those who listened to him. As contemporaries write, “his strength came from a truly remarkable physical feature — pale blue eyes, whose brilliance seekers became food for legends in Nazi Germany.” Party information usually testified to the captivating effect of his eyes. In one story, it was reported that one anti-Nazi policeman, who had to maintain order at one of Hitler's first rallies, was so carried away by the eyes of the Fuhrer who were fastened to him that he soon joined the Nazi party. German playwright Gerhard Hauptmann reverently described his gaze into the eyes of the leader as "the greatest moment of my life."

Hitler's piercing gaze combined with an eye-catching manner of performance hypnotized. Even Hermann Goering, one of the proudest and most powerful people in the Reich, was losing his temper in the presence of Hitler.

As the historians write, the Fuhrer was fully aware that he was capable of spreading at the feet of anyone. And he easily learned that his blinding speeches, either in front of several listeners, or in front of thousands, should be not just spontaneous, but carefully thought out. Once he boasted that he was "the greatest actor in Europe." And indeed it is.

Ruthlessly restraining the natural response feelings in everyday life, Hitler rarely laughed, not covering his mouth with his hand, and learned the impressive repertoire of movements and postures, which gave such unconditional persuasiveness to his performances. Believing, as he wrote in “Mein Kampf”, that “all the great, most important world events are not caused by the printed word, but by the spoken word,” Hitler constantly polished his performing arts. To the extent that "practiced in the pathos and gestures, which required a huge hall with thousands of people." Hitler, according to eyewitnesses, gave himself up to the role with such fervor that he easily managed to impart the appearance of truth to the most overt lie.

The purpose of this was not to convince the audience, but to numb them. Hitler realized that many of his potential followers had a feeling of inferiority and alienation, and the best way to reach such people was to immerse them in the cauldron of human nature, to bring a crowd of people to the peak of admiration. As Hitler wrote in Mein Kampf, such a ritual made it possible for a person who "felt very small" to enter into something bigger and more powerful: "He and three or four thousand others will merge into a powerful sensation, giving intoxication and enthusiasm." This is the essence of fascism. The doctrine, driven into the audience in such a state, will remain in the minds of listeners, Hitler believed, because it carries the hypnotic force of mass suggestion.

It should be recognized that Hitler was the greatest orator of all times and peoples. In this and all - almost all - his mystery.

Hitler assigned speeches to the dark, using dramatic lighting, and the listeners became more inspired. Speech policy, he turned into an act of art in the theater. “At night,” he said, “participants are more easily amenable to the prevailing force of powerful will.” To make an even bigger impression on the audience, the organizers of the rallies used heavy backstage, fanfare and so on.

Hitler's show

It is possible to find explicit analogies between the Kashpirovsky representations and the Hitler representations. Both there and here, the masses purposefully zombied themselves and experienced narcotic ecstasy from the sensation of a “mass ascent of the subconscious”.

The French ambassador, Andre Francois-Ponce, described a stunning, shocking rally — a grandiose show — at the Tempelhof airfield in Berlin shortly before Hitler came to power: in the presence of regimental detachments. «Crowds of curious people flocked to the feast. Soon, about a million impatient citizens who wanted to see the show filled the field with military units and SS guards in black uniform standing behind. Above the “forest of shining banners,” notes Francois-Ponce, “a huge tribune with bristling microphones smashes like the prow of a ship into a sea of ​​human heads.”

At eight o'clock the Führer arrives. “Hitler appeared standing in the car, stretching his outstretched hand, with a stern and distorted face. The lingering hum of powerful greetings accompanied his progress. The night has come. Included spotlights, placed at long distances. Their soft bluish light, not dispelling the darkness, as if dissolved in it. The perspective of this human sea stretched to infinity. As soon as Hitler ascended the rostrum, all the searchlights were turned off in order to keep only the enveloping light on the führer. In such a blinding glare, it seemed to be rampant over the human sea below. The crowd fell into religious silence. ”

The first few minutes Hitler groped for the opening words and spoke intermittently in harsh colors. Then, as he developed his subject, his speech became smoother. "After 15 minutes, something happened that could be described by an ancient primitive metaphor: the spirit settled into it."

The voice gradually grew louder, the pace grew. Sweat poured from his face, and all the excitement held back in everyday life, he splashed to the surface as he took possession of the audience with energy that he had never allowed himself in ordinary performances. His eyes were withered, he looked hypnotized.

His listeners were stunned. Whichever way Hitler swings, the crowd repeated the same thing. When he moved forward, the crowd rushed towards him like a wave. Excited by his oratorical ecstasy, the women screamed hysterically and fainted. Even finished skeptics, including French and Soviet (!) Diplomats and foreign journalists, found that they involuntarily stretch their hands in a tough greeting with shouts of “Sieg Heil!”.

In my opinion, this is the same thing that happened at the mass Kashpirovsky sessions.

As Hitler's speech reached its highest point, he became angry and waved his fists, as if he were near enemies: Jews, reds, hated compromisers who betrayed Germany and weakened her to powerlessness. Hitler's flaming verbal attacks, increasingly filled with images of blood and violence, brought the audience into a state of fit that raged after every rant he uttered. Goebbels, with glee, said after one of such speeches in Berlin: “The spectators at Sportpalasta roared and raged for an hour in delirium of unconsciousness.”

After the speech, Hitler usually stood himself amazed and weakened, all wet. He once admitted that when he gives speeches, he sweats in such a way that he loses in weight from 1.8 to 2.7 kg during one performance.

Stage image of the leader

For people whose craft is based on suggestion, part of the success depends on their image. For this reason, priests wear their religious clothes, not modern costumes, astrologers like to let go of their beards and stand out with other exotic things, fortune-tellers surround themselves with glittering blingings. For a populist politician, his “stage” image is just as important, since often the “courageous and steel leader of the masses” turns out to be a weak and mentally unbalanced person in everyday life, and even with strange things.

For this reason, the Fuhrer, carefully creating his image, did his best to hide from the publicity both the history of his relatives, relatives themselves, and all those who knew him closely in his youth. Apparently, it was really necessary to hide something odious, since Hitler sometimes went into hysterics if someone tried to break the veil of secrecy over his past.

German researchers Marianne Enigl and Alexander Dunst wrote in the article “The Secret of Hitler” (Facts, February 24, 2005):

“From the very beginning of his political career, Hitler had to contend with rumors about his background. In the 1920s, a leaflet pledged to the Nazi Party, in which he was accused of trying to "destroy" the party "in a Jewish way". In 1931, Gelle Raubal’s own niece of Hitler, in her apartment in Munich, committed suicide; after that, questions about his family began to be asked openly. Newspapers in the Moravian town of Pålna allegedly found Jews by the name of Hitler, and the Österreichis Abendblatt newspaper in July 1933 published the headline “The Sensational Traces of the Hitler Jews in Vienna” and printed photographs of the Gütler gravestones in the Jewish cemeteries in Vienna. Phonetic kinship was to confirm blood kinship. After all, six Gutlerov still appear in the burial lists of the Israeli community in Vienna.

When, in the early 1930s, his nephew, living in Britain, William Patrick Hitler began giving interviews about his uncle, he summoned him to Germany. And raging: "You are idiots! You will drive me to the grave! With what caution I hid my personal and personal affairs from the press. People shouldn’t know who I am. They shouldn’t know what family I am from!" Hitler visited his former parental home near Linz only briefly, and Spital - his parents' village in the Waldviertel region - had never visited his village.

The minister in the government of Hitler, Albert Speer, wrote in his memoirs that he caused one of the strongest fits of anger in Hitler when in 1942 he told him that in the village of Spital there was a plaque of honor in honor of the Fuhrer. Speer writes: “Hitler lost his temper and called out to Bormann, who entered, stunned. Hitler lashed out at him: he, he said, had said more than once that this place should never be mentioned. And the donkey still hung a board there . Remove immediately. "

... The descendants of Schicklgrubers and relatives in the Waldviertel officially did not exist in the Third Reich. “We were an empty place for him,” said Johann Schmidt, Hitler’s grand-nephew from Waldviertel, in the summer of 2003 in an interview with the Austrian magazine Profil. He and four other relatives of Hitler after the end of the Second World War were arrested by Soviet intelligence. Hitler's cousin, Eduard Schmidt, said during interrogation in Moscow that he suffered from severe curvature of the spine, could not work at full strength, and therefore Hitler presented him with 8,000 Reichsmarks to buy a house. As a result, Edward Schmidt was convicted of receiving privileges from Hitler and died in prison. Johann Schmidt remained the only relative of Hitler who survived.

In 1936, Hitler invited his sister Paulo to the Olympic Games in Garmisch, where he ordered her to change his last name to Wolf and live strictly incognito. She lived on 500 Reichsmarks, which she transferred every month on Hitler's orders, and escaped arrest by the Soviet authorities only because in April 1945, on orders from Berlin, she was transported from lower Austria to Berchtesgaden. There, she, as "Mrs. Wolf", and ended in 1960, his life path. Documents about her contacts with the Nazis, who fled to Argentina after 1945, should be published soon. The maintenance of her grave in Berchtesgaden is still paid by former SS officers, and one of them even wished to be buried in the same cemetery where Hitler's sister rests. ”

What did Hitler hide about his past life? Not only its possible Jewish origin (after all, it is known that the most ardent nationalists and xenophobes, as a rule, are half-blooded in their own ethnic group) - but also more...

Was Hitler homosexual?

Hitler had obvious sexual deviations. But which ones?

Many historians in the West believed that Hitler was a homosexual, and, for example, the American author of books on this topic Makhtan wrote in 2001: “At first glance, this seems like a trifle. But in fact it is an important detail, shedding light on many features of behavior, character, and ultimately on the fate of Hitler. Until now, in his biography, gaps remained inaccessible to historians, which I tried to restore based on information about his homosexuality. ”

Here are some excerpts from the book of Makhtan.

The first story called "Mr. Designer":

“In 1905, the 16-year-old Hitler left the school that had hurt him and left for the Austrian city of Linz, where his mother, sister and aunt settled. However, Adolf did not want to live in a flat with three women, having rented a room in the building of the city theater on equal footing with 17-year-old decorator Avgust Kubychek. Soon, Hitler and Kubicek became inseparable. Almost fifty years later, the elderly August wrote a memoir about this time “Hitler. My childhood friend, ”many episodes of which look quite ambiguous, especially today, when there was so much research on the nature of relationships in same-sex couples.

“From the very beginning, my relations with Hitler bore an imprint of unusualness,” Kubichek recalled. - Our casual acquaintance quickly grew into a deep mutual affection. Hitler watched with jealousy as I communicated with other young people — he could not accept the thought that I could be interested in anything other than meetings with him. ”

In February 1908, Hitler went to Vienna. A few days later, the faithful Kubicek, who had dreamed of becoming a musician, moved into his room. The Vienna cohabitation of Adolf and August lasted until the autumn of 1908, when Hitler again failed examinations at the Academy of Arts and was forced to leave the apartment. Kubitschek gradually lost contact with him and reminded him of himself only in 1933, sending a greeting card to Hitler on the victory of his party in the elections to the Reichstag. And he received a reply message from the Führer: "I was very happy to recall a friend with whom the best years of my life were spent."

True, Kubichek had to part with this and other autographs of the leader of Nazi Germany, when she forcibly annexed Austria in 1938. SS men appeared in the house of Augustus and confiscated all of Hitler’s documents. ”

The second story called "Front love in a haystack":

“The world war that began in 1914 gave the 25-year-old“ person without definite occupation ”to Adolf Hitler an opportunity for self-affirmation. He enlisted as a volunteer in the German army, which, in 1915, was on the Western Front. 24 years later, in December 1939, one of the activists of the German resistance philosopher and writer Alfred Schmidt-Noyur found one of the former colleagues of the Fuhrer - a liaison officer at the headquarters named Hans Mend. He shared frank memories with him: “In the summer of 1915 in France, I first saw Hitler lying in a haystack embracing with our other soldier Ernst Schmidt, whom we often called the female nickname Shmidli. Then I noticed them in this position more than once. Adolf and Ernst remained inseparable for several years; it was truly a couple in love. ”

Another curious testimony about the Führer’s front-line biography was discovered by lawyer Erich Ebermeyer in the German military archives, stumbling across the report of one of Hitler’s regimental commanders there in 1916: to the rank of non-commissioned officer because of his homosexuality. ""

The third story is entitled “I spent the whole night with him”:

“The record of same-sex predilections of the leader of the Third Reich was collected by Army General Otto von Lossow. In 1923, he commanded the troops in Bavaria, who suppressed the first armed intervention of the Nazis - the "beer putsch" in Munich. By the end of the 1920s, when Hitler's party had serious chances to come to power by legal means at the elections, Lossov "just in case" copied a number of documents from the police archives of Munich. They contained a lot of evidence that, as the leader of the “brown” National Socialist Workers Party of Germany (NSDAP), Hitler attracted young people to his side not only with political arguments.

“I spent the whole night with him,” said a 22-year-old Joseph in a police report. “For several months I was out of work, my mother and brothers were constantly starving, so I spent it from the rally to his house and stayed there until the morning. He asked me if I wanted to stay with him, and said that his name was Adolf Hitler, ”18-year-old Michel told the police inspector.

The author of the book writes: “The unsuccessful“ beer putsch ”and the subsequent imprisonment in prison deprived Hitler of the opportunity to continue this kind of agitation. True, he was not alone behind the bars either - his faithful friend and assistant Rudolf Hess, known in party circles under the expressive nickname Black Emma, ​​volunteered to share his imprisonment. In addition to Hess, in the 1920s, surrounded by the Fuhrer, there were many obvious homosexuals who did not hesitate to focus on their interests, for example, the future leader of the Hitler Youth, Baldur von Schirach and the head of the CA’s combat fist, Captain Ernst Rem.

According to the historian, Hitler practiced chastity until the late 1920s, when public opinion began to perceive homosexuality not as a deviation from the norm, but as a crime against morality and ethics. Makhtan believes that in 1934 the Fuhrer ordered the destruction of Rem and 400 of his closest associates precisely because, being a prominent homosexual, the leader of the attack aircraft possessed some kind of compromising evidence of the Fuhrer’s belonging to the “blue” community and could use it in the struggle for power .

Soon in Germany a law was passed declaring homosexuality a criminal offense punishable by imprisonment in a concentration camp. “In his public speeches, Hitler never condemned homosexuals, but allowed to pursue them in order not to betray his hidden addictions,” the author of the book believes.

However, I would not be so straightforward to interpret the facts of Hitler’s strange sexual behavior in his youth. Firstly, even though he obviously had sexual problems, but in my opinion, he was still not homosexual, and the rare attempts at such contacts rather expressed his “sexual search for himself” and, importantly, disappointed the future of the German Fuhrer.

And secondly, Makhtan and other researchers speak of Hitler’s “homosexuality,” while understanding him as a NORMAL sincere person - even a homosexual. But in the very fact of this today, many do not find any "rejection". Among the current political beau monde many homosexuals. So, the mayor of Berlin, Klaus Wowereit, openly admitted that he was gay. The mayor of Paris, Bertrand Delano, did not hide his unconventional sexual orientation. In the early 2000s, the United States ambassador to Romania was appointed "blue" - Michael Guest (this was the second time in the history of the American State Department).

A gay man in a political post is not a tragedy, since a person is sane and mentally healthy. But the whole history of "homosexuality" of Hitler speaks, in my opinion, about a completely different deviation - about hereditary schizophrenia.

Hitler's sex

Hitler has repeatedly admitted that he sees a woman in the audience whom he masters during his speech (which is an extremely strange statement in itself). This, like many other signs, made psychiatrists suppose that Hitler was experiencing the culmination of speech a pleasure similar to sexual ecstasy — or even an orgasm itself.

During speeches at rallies, Hitler's body went through all stages of sexual intercourse: at first he excited himself more and more and was excited by the audience’s response, towards the end he fell into an oratorical orgasm (it became almost incoherent, sometimes turning into moans and howls) - and suddenly there was a denouement. He turned out to be completely exhausted, his voice completely disappeared, he fell down or sometimes fainted and lost from 1.8 to 2.7 kg in weight, as he himself admitted.

It is indicative that Hitler not only never read his notes “on paper” —but even the “improviser” in the normal sense of the word (as applied to a normal speaker) cannot be called. Everything in his speech always depended not on the MEANING of speech and ideas, but on the CONDITION of his body, the excitement of which, in turn, was directly related to the state of the audience. Starting himself, he turned on the audience, and she in response caused him even greater euphoria. Therefore, it seemed to the witnesses of his speeches that in the initial “warm-up” stage of speech, he stupidly walks “in a circle” around the same theses, repeating them several times (so that “euphoria is felt”), then the pace accelerates, and closer to the junction in a hurry, he loses entire theses from his thoughts (for example, he claims 5 “points” of something, and he manages to name only 4 or 3, losing the rest in pursuit of “ecstasy of himself and the masses”). Then “ecstasy” itself follows - and everything breaks off, Hitler falls from his feet from impotence.

All this, you see, really creates a picture not of a normal speech, but of a coition of a speaker with an audience.

People have never seen such speeches before, therefore they began to consider Hitler a brilliant populist speaker (which is quite true, since this rejection of him largely led Nazism to power in Germany), while forgetting that every genius is a satellite or a product of schizophrenia.

One type of schizophrenia is linking social behavior with sexual instincts. That is, when a person experiences sexual pleasure not from normal sexual intercourse, but in refraction through something else. With regard to the stimulation of the energy of schizophrenic geniuses, this issue has not been studied much yet. There are, of course, obvious examples when a brilliant sculptor admits that during a session of modeling a female body, she experiences an average of 6 involuntary orgasms. This pathology itself is inherent most in artists, and in this case the phenomenon of Hitler is, anyway, the art of oratory.

But with regard to sex killers, science already knows more. They get ecstasy from actions shifted from the realm of sex to other spheres. During puberty, causal relationships are laid between the sexual sphere and the stimuli leading to excitement and ecstasy, orgasm. In a normal person, this is oriented towards the opposite sex. But if, due to accidental circumstances, an orgasm comes from a fright or other psycho-shocking phenomenon, then this, like the memory of the first erotic recording in the brain, persists for a lifetime and makes a person crippled.

So a cripple was, for example, one of the famous Soviet maniacs who survived the first orgasm from fear and shock when he saw a teenager as a pioneer in a tie crushed by a tram. With women, he didn’t work anymore (like Hitler's), but he wanted to see the dead pioneer in a tie again - in order to survive that first orgasm. In the end, he got a job with the children, and then chose the moment to hang the pioneer in a tie, recording it on a movie camera. Necrofiles are for life those who have experienced the first orgasm after seeing a naked dead woman. Another famous Soviet maniac said that he had experienced the first orgasm of horror when he saw a wagon carrying a pile of bloody corpses piled up in piles during the war.

In all cases, according to psychiatrists, the cause of the malfunction was congenital schizophrenia, due to which, during puberty during the experience of STRESS, the connections in the psychic stimuli that cause sexual desire were incorrectly formed. Therefore, no matter how scary it sounds, many brilliant artists, whose work is also driven by this shift (but not in terrible manifestations), under similar circumstances would also become maniacs, directing their energy "not in that direction."

As for Hitler’s “brilliant oratorist,” he too could have become a maniac under other circumstances, but he was lucky. What will be the first orgasm of a teenage schizophrenic (often due to schizophrenia caused by STRESS), leaves the whole imprint on his future life. He can happily avoid stress during this period and remain sexually normal, or he may become a maniac. Or perhaps because of the specificity of STRESS, it becomes generally special and unlike anyone else - sexuality will henceforth be linked in his psyche in a strange way with something very far from what a normal person finds sexually at all.

As part of the psychiatric retrospective of the history of Adolf Hitler, it can be assumed that the young man experienced his first orgasm during a STRESS during some kind of controversy (perhaps a political one) or an altercation with his relatives or friends. He argued greedily, became more and more excited - and the hereditarily sick organism responded with an orgasm. Fixing this sexual orientation for life. As a result, then the cripple did not find sexual satisfaction with either women or men, but could repeat his first experience, already fixed forever in the psyche as a stereotype, only in the same controversy. That is, in oratory.

So a poorly educated and ignorant schizophrenic became not just a brilliant orator, but the disease led him to the leadership of Germany and the whole German people. He had something to hide: his relatives and friends could not only tell about the extremely strange and unusual behavior of the teenager Adolf during his puberty, but also could tell that Hitler himself was from a schizophrenic family.

"The offspring of idiots" kind of Hitlers

British journalist Stephen Castl wrote in the article “Mentally ill relative of Hitler died in a gas chamber” (“The Independent”, January 19, 2005):

“The Holocaust, unleashed by Adolf Hitler, affected even his own family. Yesterday, facts came to light that testify that one of the Fuhrer’s relatives was destroyed by the German state.

The woman, known only as Aloysius V., was the grandmother of Hitler’s grandmother on the mother’s side. She was among the several thousand mentally ill people killed during the campaign to exterminate and sterilize people who were considered undesirable to society. Aloysia, who was 49 at the time of her death, was reportedly suffering from schizophrenia. She died, suffocating in a gas chamber in Hartheim Castle near the Austrian city of Linz on December 6, 1940.

Hartheim Castle was a training ground for the SS murderers, who then killed tens of thousands of people in Treblinka and Auschwitz death camps. Doctors killed thousands of people with lethal injections or sent to gas chambers after Hitler announced that mentally ill people are “extra mouths” and that they are “unworthy of life.”

Timothy Rybak, an American historian who heads the Obersalzberg Institute in Germany, said details about this woman’s death surfaced last week. They were discovered by researcher Florian Bierl, who obtained access to documents from the Vienna Medical Institute, where future victims were treated.

The ink stamp on her case file is "proof of destruction," says Rybak, adding: "It hurts to think about the suffering that this woman had to go through. It underlines how inhumanly cruel this regime was." The American historian also told Focus magazine: "The secrecy of Hitler in relation to his family has become a legend. Now, after 60 years, we know that he really had something to hide."

In fact, the innate predisposition of many of Hitler’s family to mental illness was well known in the higher echelons of the Nazi party. In the secret Gestapo report for 1944, the family branch to which Aloysius belonged was described as "the progeny of idiots." The Aloisy medical record states that she had schizophrenia, depression, hallucinations, and other mental problems. She complained to doctors that she was afraid of ghosts and slept with a skull in bed.

Aloysia, whose treatment consisted in being tied to a barred bed, also wrote a letter in which she stated that, if she had been poisoned, this would have been a deliverance from suffering.

Scientists cannot yet answer whether Hitler was aware of the state of his relative and of her sad fate. ”

German researchers Marianne Enigl and Alexander Dunst in the above-cited article "The Secret of Hitler" clarify:

“At the beginning of 1944, three years after the death of Aloizii, Heinrich Himmler sent documents to the “Fuhrer's office ”that could have far-reaching consequences. They were labeled "top secret" and dealt with Hitler personally. Himmler conveyed to the “Secretary of the Führer,” Martin Borman, in the context of the strictest secrecy information that questioned the myth of the great “Fuhrer of a healthy German nation”. The secret document contained rumors about the Fuhrer's relatives, "some of whom were semi-idiots and crazy."

For Germany in 1944, it was already a belated discovery - to find out that the country was ruled by an abnormal person, a schizophrenic who had zombied the German people, forced him to kill and die in his schizophrenic speeches, ecstasy. Only when Germany was on the verge of defeat, this was first thought about at the top of the Reich and ordinary Germans — Hitler’s cannon fodder — were never recognized.

It is regrettable to recognize that many rulers of the twentieth century, according to psychiatrists, also turned out to be schizophrenic to some extent of the disease. Including Lenin and the paranoid Stalin. Today in the developed countries of the world, all politicians are admitted to important state posts only after they provide information about the mental health of themselves and their relatives. In the CIS countries, such a rule is not clearly formulated, and relatives of candidates for an important post are not at all concerned - as in Germany in 1933. Therefore, it is quite possible for us to come to power of the same sick person as Adolf Hitler. The very thirst for power and near-sexual (equal to orgasm) satisfaction from having power over someone (other politicians say: “power is like a drug”) is the same mental illness of a person that lies outside of any policy and entirely in the field of psychiatry pathologies.

Mystery of Hitler

Yevgeny Manin from Philadelphia wrote in the émigré journal Vestnik (No. 11 (218), May 25, 1999) in the article “The Mystery of Hitler”:

“I don’t know if the Guinness Book of Records registers the processes taking place in publishing. But if so, I have no doubt that the number of books about Hitler published every year broke all previous records concerning the "shakers of the universe," including Napoleon. Without asking now to explain this phenomenon, I’ll just say that the last of a whole series of recent studies about the Nazi dictator was Ron Rosenbaum’s book Explaining Hitler: The Search for the Original of His Evil.

... Rosenbaum, a journalist and reviewer for the New York Observer magazine, defiantly retreated from the generally accepted piously sorrowful tone that most authors, Jews and non-Jews, strictly adhere to when they write about Hitler and the Holocaust.

... "The explanation of Hitler" is the result of ten years of hard work, processing countless interviews taken from leading world historians, philosophers and theologians; painstaking analysis of American and European archives; the author even made a trip to Braunau, Austria, to familiarize himself with the birthplace of the Fuhrer.

Rosenbaum’s original idea was this: if Hitler is the embodiment of the most monstrous forces of human evil, how do you explain the source of these forces? But as the author of the future book met with a variety of people, offering a variety of explanations, his attention turned more and more to these explanations themselves.

According to Rosenbaum, the model for his book was Albert Schweitzer’s book The Quest of the Historical Jesus. The point, of course, is not in any parallel - Rosenbaum simply used Schweitzer's method: what to do when one or other key data is missing when solving biographical problems. Rosenbaum calls this a “black box” when the situation is more clear from the explanations given by people about a particular fact than from a fact in itself.

Hitler - this is the "black box". The data on the years that shaped his mind are rare and scattered. There is very little sincerity in the fact that he wrote about himself, and this cannot be trusted. And at the same time, if one considers the great evil he has brought to mankind, his psychology cannot but be disturbed: if we don’t solve it, we will always face a repetition of such a tragedy. No matter how much we repeat, like parrots: "This should not happen again!"

On the cover and title page of Rosenbaum’s book is a photograph: a baby Hitler looking at the world with innocent children's eyes, which he would later turn into a pile of corpses and fires. Claude Lanzmann, a French film director and author of the film “Catastrophe,” indignantly remarked that a simple reproduction on the cover of a photo of a baby Hitler is tantamount to his rehabilitation.

The author of the book sees a completely different meaning in this photograph: peer into it carefully and tell me - in these infant eyes can you see the hidden evil or will it appear later? If this is an ordinary child, what prompted him to grow up in a monster, destroying entire nations? And, perhaps most importantly, how could one person seduce and lead an entire nation - to capture neighboring states and exterminate millions of people? And, as the author irrefutably proves with his book, among the most respectable researchers there is no single answer to any of these questions. ”

It is not surprising, because further Evgeny Manin writes:

“But the desire to give an answer is so strong that a sharp-tongued Rosenbaum calls a part of them“ ridiculous, ”while a part is simply“ stupid. ” Particularly interesting is the second category of explanations. For example, before the collapse of the USSR, there was a rumor spreading from there that Hitler suffered from the abnormality of his genitalia, from which, they say, everything went. Alan Bullock, the greatest authority on Hitler’s historiography, called this version “the one-ball theory”. There is a whole series of psychoanalytic explanations: Alice Miller, for example, blames the father of young Adolf for everything, who ruthlessly trapped him; and there are now and then appearing voluptuous opus, describing in detail the alleged monstrous sexual perversions of Hitler.

... Adolf Hitler's father, Alois, was illegitimate, and Hitler did not know anything about his grandfather from his father's side. In his testimony at the Nuremberg trial, Hitler’s personal lawyer, Hans Frank, said that Hitler had received an anonymous letter in which he was maliciously argued that his grandfather was a Jew. In 1942, Hitler ordered Frank to conduct a secret investigation of this mystery, which he did. According to Frank, he learned that Hitler's grandfather was an Austrian Jew named Frankenberger, in whose house the Fuhrer's grandmother, Maria Anna Schicklgruber, was a maid. He, Frank, sought out the originals of long-lasting remittances addressed to Maria Anne, sent by Frankenberger, after she was forced to resign due to pregnancy. Translations, on the orders of Hitler, were destroyed by the Gestapo.

There were a number of other psychological "Jewish" options - for example, that the doctor who failed to cure Hitler's mother of cancer was a Jew, from where all his troubles came. The author considers the reason given by Simon Wiesenthal to be especially stupid: Hitler de hated the Jews because a certain Jewish prostitute infected him in his youth with syphilis. ”

It is interesting that Ales Adamovich, in his book “The Punishers”, also in search of “an explanation of Hitler”, finds an “identical theory”. Which, in turn, entails automatically the “theory of juvenile syphilis”. In fact, this whole "unicameral theory" was born only on the fact that Soviet physicians who investigated the allegedly burned Hitler's remains near the bunker in Berlin found only one testicle. But, first of all, there are huge doubts that these were precisely the remains of the Fuhrer. And secondly, the remains were so disfigured by fire that the second testicle of a corpse could simply burn in the fire. And, thirdly, there is a mass of crippled men with one testicle, but for some reason none of them becomes the leader of the Nazis. And if we are not talking about the mythical, but about the real physical problems of Adolf Hitler, then he really was like this: he was sweating terribly, and his sweat was extremely unpleasant, it always smelled from the Fuhrer.

But has this body problem become a “source of evil” for Hitler’s psyche? Yevgeny Manin: "Alice Miller, for example, blames the father of young Adolf for everything, who mercilessly stole him." But the veterans of the Great Patriotic War still have a strange legend that Hitler received sexual satisfaction from the fact that Eva Braun urinated on him.

Alas, I see here the deepest delusion of both Alice Miller, and Ales Adamovich, and Yevgeny Manin, and Makhtan, and war veterans - and in general, all others who are trying to find "an explanation for Hitler." Here is their concept: “If we consider the great evil he has brought to humanity, his psychology cannot but bother us: if we don’t solve it, we will always face a repetition of such a tragedy.”

They are looking for a source of EVIL in PSYCHOLOGY, but it is necessary to look for a source of INSANITY. Madness has no PSYCHOLOGY. And the "sources of logic" of a schizophrenic can never be understood by a normal person, for these sources are insane.

In principle, such concepts as “good” and “evil” are not applicable to the schizophrenic, for he is a mentally ill person. The peculiarity of Hitler is that he was a hidden hereditary schizophrenic, similar to many sexual maniacs and genius scientists, who apparently completely preserved the appearance of a “normal person”, but were guided by their schizophrenic motifs. Schizophrenia is a hereditary disease, and there were many schizophrenics and idiots in the Hitler family, which, by the way, fully explains the Fuhrer’s antipathy and the laws adopted by him on the destruction of the mentally ill. By this, he psychologically tried to protect not only (and not so much) from the mentally ill relatives, but also from his illness, which he fully suspected - but he was afraid of the very thought of assimilating himself to “idiots relatives”.

Hitler's secretaries recorded his speeches at dinner (to which some guests from among those closest were always invited). Only in topics related to the realities of the day were the speeches more or less “adequate to reality”, and in the abstract topics no one at all understood the Führer. For example, he liked to talk about the fact that Humanity came from the Moon, on which it used to live, carried other not even unscientific fiction, but an odious nonsense schizophrenic. At the same time, he was a sick paranoid: he was a vegetarian, who hated any meat dish, because in his childhood he saw a semi-eaten corpse of an old woman drowned from crayfish and pulled out of the river. At the same time, during these dinners, he loved to treat the guests with crayfish and tell them this story.

If we look at Adolf Hitler again, from the point of view of psychiatry, we will see that he is no longer the “incarnation of Evil,” but a pathetic and unhappy mentally ill person, hereditary schizophrenic.

And EVIL is not at all in him, but in OURSELVES, who are quite mentally normal people, but such a patient was literally picked up from the street, from the dustbin, by chance - and made themselves the leader of the state. Unfortunately, the Second World War therefore happened because at the helm of many European countries at once exactly such paranoids and schizophrenics rose (from Mussolini to Stalin, to whom the luminaries of Soviet psychiatry gave a similar diagnosis), and this war was a war with schizophrenia in power or war countries of schizophrenia - represented by the Reich and the USSR. At least today there is no doubt that the Reich was ruled by a mentally ill person from a family with hereditary schizophrenia.

Mystical Ways of Nazi Germany

This book is a collection of articles and notes that are united by the theme of mystical research and secret defense. In Nazi Germany in the 30-40 years these issues were given a lot of attention and, perhaps, if the miraculous things turned out to be true, our history would be quite different.

Humanity has a funny trait: if we do not know something, then we include fantasy and attribute it to mystical or extraterrestrial traits. So there were reptiloids; so peaceful in general, the religion of voodoo has turned into a continuous uplift of the dead; so Tibetan medicine suddenly became a panacea, although before coming to the region of China people there lived up to 40 years.

It is only natural that the Third Reich with its SS, Annenerbe and other searches for Shambhala in the mind of the psycho-psychology, obsessed with the esotericism of New Age, became the focus of the entire occult on Earth.
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The power of ancient civilizations has long stirred people's minds. I must say that most researchers in this area were concerned not so much with the need to learn the truth as much as the desire to find ancient technologies and knowledge that were accessible to ancestors and are inaccessible to us now. With such information, a person could gain incredible power, and with it, of course, super profits, but if access to perfect technologies would be received by one person or a group of fanatics, then the planet and the whole mankind would be threatened with complete annihilation or enslavement.

In the second half of the nineteenth century, on the wave of technological progress and the church's even greater loss of its weight in society, the Masonic lodges began to legally exist and new communities were formed, showing increased interest in the occult. In addition to conducting various sessions with the use of magic rituals, members of these societies have seriously engaged in the search for artifacts, mentioned in history and capable of giving supernatural abilities. It is during this period that expeditions to the East, Egypt, Africa and South America become especially frequent, where in their time cities of ancient civilizations were located.

A special scope of the search was acquired after the interest shown to them by the high command of the Third Reich and personally by Hitler. This odious personality has always been indifferent to this kind of things, besides, he literally dreamed of gaining access to the knowledge of ancient Hyperboreans and Atlantis. In his opinion, it was these races, once existing on Earth, that were the prototype of the real Aryans, and accordingly the immediate ancestors of the great German nation. Direct supervision of all these projects was entrusted to the closest associate of Heinrich Himmler, who, from his youth, was fond of anomalous phenomena and who believed in the possibility of obtaining unlimited power with the help of ancient magic.

One of the projects that he most zealously guarded was the possibility of obtaining eternal life, which, however, is not surprising, since the German army needed hardy soldiers, on the eve of new conquests. Hitler perfectly understood that a military battle with Russia and the United States would be inevitable, and unlike Europe, where the territorial redistribution took place "half-jokingly" and with minimal losses on the part of Germany, these states will not be able to do so. Accordingly, an army of soldiers is needed, who are not afraid of bullets and fire, and even with severed limbs will be able to grab the enemy in the throat. Naturally, Hitler raved about reviving the dead and turning them into an obedient zombie army. As you know, this mythical being is moved only by primary instincts and does not feel pain.

To carry out these ideas, and especially against the backdrop of the successes of the German army, expeditions were dispatched to various parts of the globe, in order to collect information on the most ancient cultures in which such practice was practiced. Of course, most attention was paid to the religion of Voodoo, since it is in her practice rituals to revive the dead. Thanks to the presence of a contingent of German troops on this continent, the secret department of the SS, engaged in developments in this field, it was possible to ensure the work of the expedition quite easily. The result of the work - in just a few months, the astonishing evidence was collected, all the documents, as well as animated films were sent to Berlin for further study. Also, a group of researchers collected data on the ritual of the so-called Voodoo dolls, with the help of which it is possible to remotely exert a physical effect on a living person, if necessary, killing him.

Of course, German scientists were not going to fully adopt the ritual of animation among African sorcerers, since its features did not match Hitler's and Hitler's aggressive desires, so the technique itself required some refinement and laboratory research. Modern researchers studying documents related to the expedition drew attention to the list of materials sent to Berlin. Among other things, there were large metal cages, which are usually used for keeping animals, but what kind of animal did Nazi scientists need to transport from Africa if they did not study the fauna there? Obviously, a live corpse was transferred to the Berlin laboratory, and maybe several, because it is impossible to make further experiments based on records and newsreels only. And the leadership itself had to be amazed by the results of the work, in order to justify high monetary spending.

After all the crimes of the Nazis were discovered, including anti-human experiments on people in various laboratories, the winning party found many interesting facts that testified not only to work in the field of medicine. In one of the secret laboratories of the Gestapo, a number of cult objects, unusual for the Protestant faith, coexisted with Christian relics, and the laboratory itself was more like the place of sacrifice.

For the experiments, as the surviving staff will later point out in their testimony, zombies brought from Africa as well as living people were used. The peculiarity of the revival ritual is that the corpse should not be damaged, that is, a person must die with his own death, and not become a victim of a murderer. The second aspect is the length of storage of the corpse after death, according to the laws of Voodoo, it should not exceed seven days. If the latter circumstance quite suited the command, since the corpses can be fully assembled and transported during this time, there could be no question of integrity, it is a war.

Of the positive features, as noted by scientists, it is necessary to note the doubled strength of the corpse, unlike the living person, that is, even without weapons; he posed a threat to the lightly armed enemy. Small arms were not a threat, only if the shot was not completely destroyed by the brain or the head is separated from the body. The corpse could be in a "working" state all the time, until the dead tissues decomposed so that they could not withstand the mechanical load. All the main studies were concentrated primarily on the possibility of creating zombies from damaged corpses.

Scientists thoroughly studied the whole ritual and on its basis wanted to create some kind of machine that produces animation. The ritual objects used by the shamans were also transported to Berlin, and they were the basis of the action of the animating mechanism. Both the bodies of the dead soldiers and the living prisoners of the Gestapo were used as test subjects, exposing them to high stresses and powerful magnetic fields. Apparently the Nazis would have managed to create a new type of zombie, had it not been for the sharp deterioration of affairs at the front, and the fact that the results had been received is evidenced by the high interest in this American intelligence case. Specialists of this department, after receiving materials, took out all the evidence together with the remaining employees in an unknown direction.

In fascist Germany, despite the coming to power of the dictatorship, the church did not in the least infringe on its rights, because the Nazis themselves positioned themselves primarily as warriors of the gods, due to cleanse the Earth of filth. In the Soviet Union, as is known, the Bolsheviks who came to power, on the contrary, set the task of building a new society, where there is no place for religious prejudices, and consequently for everything else that is associated with any religion or mysticism. Despite this state of affairs, many top party leaders expressed interest in various witch rituals, including from a practical point of view. This is not surprising, since in all respects, the Soviet Union lagged behind the developed countries, replacing where possible expensive equipment with the free labor of prisoners and soldiers.

In the light of the approaching war, it was required to have a battle-worthy army that required as little as possible costs, as well as powerful weapons, because even on the eve of the war, many military preferred cavalry and saber instead of tanks and aircraft. That is why the Soviet government drew attention to research conducted in the late 19th century by members of the Imperial Historical Society, on the discovery of traces of ancient civilization on the territory of Siberia.

According to the conclusions of experts, at the mouth of the Lena River about half a million years ago was supposed to be located an ancient city - relating to the era of hyperboreans. Legends about him can still be heard from local indigenous people, but most importantly, those who lived there, had the secret of a powerful weapon, capable at a time, destroy an entire army. Today's researchers immediately made analogies with nuclear weapons, at the same time, when the Stalinist government became interested in it, nuclear weapons development was only just beginning. Also, according to legend, the city streets went deep into the earth, where there was a source of eternal energy. Imperial scientists conducted the necessary studies, and as indicated in the documents, they discovered some caves that go deep. In their opinion, the riverbed is very similar to the city rivers in St. Petersburg, and a lot of stones scattered chaotically along the banks indicate that once they were tightly built up buildings. Unfortunately, due to the unstable political situation in the country and in the absence of funding, the excavations had to be curtailed and the project itself closed.

To the place described in the report, in the mid-1930s, a new expedition was sent already, equipped with appropriate equipment and with a clear task of the party, to discover the lost city. Having reached the mouth, scientists quickly found it described by their predecessors, since for several decades there nothing has changed. The collapse of the stones really reminded the remains of ancient buildings, and the slopes of the river itself were once clothed in stone. Interestingly, the local population knew where the described caves were located, but nobody decided to escort the expedition there, so the travelers had to go through impassable forest thickets on their own.

Later, one of the surviving participants of the project will tell that when they entered the cave, they felt the warm air coming from the depths and some increasing noise, after which everything was flooded with a bright white light, and after that he came to himself and saw that he was lying on the ground in front of the cave, one. What happened to the rest of the participants, it remained unclear, but as explained by the local shepherd, who returned told about what happened, nobody goes there from the village, because people are constantly disappearing near the cave and wild animals never approach. At night, you can see pillars of white light, beating directly into the sky or just a radiance that brightens the entire area. Everything that I saw was told to the government commission supervising this project, and samples of rocks found at the entrance to the cave were also provided, some of them scientists could not be attributed to any of the substances on the planet. Not surprisingly, the results of these studies were subsequently classified, and the remaining participants mysteriously disappeared, as all materials relating to this case.

A lot of mysterious phenomena and things number hundreds or even thousands of years, continuing to exist and keep the riddles without giving scientists armed with the most modern tools, even the hopes for secrecy. Unfortunately, as before, most people are mercantile, trying to learn and open only for the sake of their own gain, completely forgetting that it was this vice that destroyed ancient human civilizations, and any discovery made with this approach will turn against those who use it.

The Third Reich and the Hollow Earth
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April of 1942. Germany throws all its forces into the war. And it seems that nothing could divert technicians, scientists and military from their immediate task.

Nevertheless, the expedition, organized with the approval of Hitler, Himmler and Goering, secretly left the Reich. Members of this expedition are the best radar specialists. Directed by Dr. Heinz Fischer, known for his work on infrared radiation, they landed on the Baltic island of Rügen. With them, they had the most modern radars. At that time, these devices were still rare, and they were taken from even the most sensitive points of the German defense. But the observations that were to be carried out at Rugen were considered at the headquarters of the German naval fleet as extremely important for the offensive that Hitler was preparing to begin on all fronts.

Upon arrival, Dr. Fisher sent all the radars ... to the sky at an angle of 45 degrees, although it seemed that there was nothing to be discovered in the chosen direction. The remaining members of the expedition, not yet aware of the task assigned to them, thought that this was a preliminary trial. But to the general amazement for many days the direction of the radars remained unchanged. Explanations were received later.

It turns out that the Fuhrer has reason to believe that the Earth is not convex, but concave. We live not on the outer surface of the sphere, but inside it. Our position is comparable to the position of flies crawling inside the ball. The purpose of the expedition is to scientifically prove this "truth". Radar waves propagate along a straight line, and with their reflection one can get an image of the most distant points inside the sphere. The second goal of the expedition is to obtain, through reflection, the image of the English fleet, anchored at Scapa Flow, at the naval base.

Martin Gardner talks about this insane adventure on the island of Rügen in his work "In the name of science." Dr. Fischer himself only hinted after the war. Prof. Gerard S. Cooper from the observatory at Mount Palomar in 1946 devoted a series of articles to the doctrine of hollow Earth, which served as the basis for the expedition. In the Popiel Astronomie, he wrote: "Many representatives of the German navy and aviation believed in the theory of hollow Earth, thought in particular that it would be useful for discovering the English fleet, because the concave curvature of the Earth would make observations at very great distances from using infrared rays with less curvature than visible rays. " Engineer Willie Ley reports the same facts in his 1947 study "Pseudoscience in the Land of the Nazis."

Incredibly, the fact is that the higher Nazi dignitaries and military specialists denied what seems even obvious to a child in our civilized world: that the Earth is filled has the shape of a sphere and that we are on its surface; above us - an infinite universe with a myriad of stars and galaxies, beneath us - a rock. This child, whether he is French, American or Russian, is in agreement with official science and with all accepted religions and philosophy. Our morals, art, technique are based on this understanding, which is confirmed by experience. If we seek what best can ensure the unity of modern civilization, then we will find it in cosmogony. With regard to the position of the Human Being and the Earth in the Universe, everyone is united, even Marxists. Only the Nazis did not agree.

For the supporters of the hollow earth theory, who organized a pseudoscientific expedition to the island of Rügen, we live inside a ball formed in a mass of rock that stretches infinitely far. We live sticky to the inside. The sky is in the center of this sphere: it's a mass of bluish gas with dots of sparkling light, which we take for the stars. There is only the Sun and clouds, but infinitely smaller than the Orthodox astronomers claim. The universe is limited by this. We are alone, and we are imprisoned in a rock.

We will see how this outlook was born - from the legend, from the "intuition of insight." In 1942, a nation engulfed in a war dominated by technology, demanded that science support mysticism, and mysticism enriched technology. Dr. Fisher, an expert in infrared radiation, was instructed to put the radar into the service of magicians.

In Paris and London, too, there are eccentric thinkers, discoverers of erroneous cosmogonies, prophets of all kinds of oddities. They write their articles, visit the back rooms of bookstores, orate in Hyde Park or in the "Geographical Hall" of the boulevard Saint-Germain. In Hitler's Germany, people of this sort are mobilizing the forces of the nation and the technical equipment of the belligerent army. We see how they affect the higher headquarters, political leaders, scientists. We are in the face of a completely new civilization based on disregard for classical culture and reason. In this civilization, intuition, mysticism, and poetic illumination are put in exactly the same position as scientific research and rational cognition.

"When I hear chatter about culture, I get a revolver," Goering said. This terrible phrase has a dual meaning: literal, where we see Goering the murderer, shattering the heads of intellectuals, and the meaning is deeper, but more real threatening to what we call culture, where we see Goering firing with bursting bullets like Herbigerian cosmology , the doctrine of hollow Earth or the mystic of the Thule group.

* * *

The doctrine of hollow Earth was born in the USA in the beginning of the XIX century. On April 15, 1818, all the members of the United States Congress, university rectors and some major scientists received the following letter: "San Luis, Missouri, North America, April 10th to the whole world I declare that the Earth is hollow and populated inside. It contains many hard spheres, concentric, lying one in the other, and is open at the pole from 12 to 16. I undertake to prove the reality of my thought and am ready to explore the interior of the Earth if the world agrees to help me in this enterprise."

Clive Simone, former captain of infantry, Ohio "Sprague de Camp and Willy Ley in their beautiful book" From Atlantis to Eldorado "summarize the theory and adventure of the former infantry captain:" Simone insists that in this hollow world, hollows are also hollows , hair, plant stems, etc. The planets are also hollow, and on the Earth, for example, one can distinguish five spheres one into another, they are all inhabited from the outside and inside, and all have wide holes in the poles through which the inhabitants of each sphere can go anywhere in the other, and with Aruja it, like ants crawling inside first and then outside china cup. Simon organized trips with his reports - something like an election campaign. He left behind his death a bunch of notes and probably a small model of the "Simons world globe," which is now kept at the Academy of Natural Sciences in Philadelphia. His son, Americas Vespusius, became one of his followers and unsuccessfully tried to dazzle from his notes a coherent work. He added the assumption that, when the times change, the ten missing tribes of Israel will be found living, probably inside the outermost of the spheres. "

In 1880 another American, Cyrus Tid, in turn, proclaimed that the Earth is hollow. Teed was a great scholar, specializing in the study of alchemical literature. In 1869, when he worked in his laboratory and pondered the Books of Isaiah, he was visited by "illumination." He realized that we live on the Earth, but inside it. This vision allowed him to believe in ancient legends, so he created a new kind of religion and proclaimed his doctrine, having founded a small newspaper "The Fire Sword". In 1894, he collected more than four thousand fanatical followers. His religion was called "koreishism." He died in 1903, after proclaiming that his body would not be disintegrated. But the followers had to bury him in two days...

The idea that the Earth is hollow is associated with the tradition that we meet in different places and in all ages. The most ancient religious texts speak of this world as being under the earth's crust, the place of stay of the dead and spirits. When Gilgamesh, the legendary hero of the ancient Sumerians and Babylonians, went on a visit to his ancestor Ut-Kapishtim, he descended into the bowels of the Earth; In the same place Orpheus was looking for Eurydice. Having reached the limits of the West, Odysseus-Ulysses brought a sacrifice, so that the spirits of ancestors would rise from the depths and give him advice. Pluto reigns in the depths of the earth over the souls of the dead. The first Christians gathered in the catacombs and, evidently, therefore, made the underground depths the place where the condemned souls stayed. German legends exiled Venus to the depths of the earth. Dante placed hell in the "lower circles". European folklore settles dragons underground, and the Japanese imagine that there is a monster in the depths of their island, and when it turns, an earthquake occurs.

We talked about the secret Hitler society, the "Vril Society", which combined these legends with the hypotheses expressed by Bulver-Lytton in the novel "The race that will drive us out." Members of this society believed that beings with psychic power exceeding ours live in caves in the center of the Earth. They will someday come out from there to rule over us.

At the end of the First World War, a young German aviator named Bender, who was in French captivity, came across old copies of the newspaper Tid's "The Fiery Sword" and brochures promoting the idea of ​​hollow Earth. Fascinated by this cult and, in turn, overshadowed, he clarified and developed this doctrine. Returning to Germany, he founded the movement "Teaching about the Hollow World." He developed the ideas of another American, Marshall B. Gardner, who in 1923 published a paper that proved that the Sun is not above the Earth, but inside it, and that its rays exert pressure that supports us on a concave surface.

For Bender, the Earth is a sphere of the same size as in orthodox geography, but it is hollow and life is spread out on the inner surface under the influence of solar radiation. Under this surface is an endless rock. The layer of air inside has a thickness of 60 km, and then it dilates to absolute emptiness in the center, where there are three bodies: the Sun, the Moon and the ghost world. This "ghost world" is a ball of bluish gas, in which light grains called stars are sparkling. When this blue mass passes in front of the Sun, there is night on the closed part of the hollow Earth. And the shadow of this mass, falling on the moon, produces eclipses. We believed in the outer universe located above us, because the light rays do not propagate in a straight line, they are twisted, except for infrared rays. This theory of Bender became popular around 1920. The leaders of the Reich, the highest officers of the fleet and the army believed in a hollow Earth.
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* * *

It seems completely pointless to us that the behavior of the people responsible for leading the nation could at least partly be due to a mystical intuition that denies the existence of our universe. But we must bear in mind that for the common man, for a German from the street, whose soul was tormented by defeat and poverty, the idea of ​​a hollow Earth in the thirties was no more insane than the idea of ​​boundless sources of energy contained in a grain of matter, or the idea of ​​four-dimensional space.

Science from the end of the XIX century has become a path that does not fit into the notion of common sense. For primitive, unhappy and mystical minds, all strangeness became permissible, preferably - strangeness intelligible and comforting, like a hollow Earth. Hitler and his "comrades," people who rose from the bottom, and opponents of pure reason, had to believe that Bender's ideas are more acceptable than Einstein's theories that open an infinitely complex world, to which it is much more difficult to adapt. The Bender world at first glance is as insane as Einstein's, but in order to penetrate it, enough insanity of the first degree is enough. The explanation of the universe by Bender on the basis of insane parcels developed in a reasonable way. The madman lost everything except his sanity.

"The doctrine of the hollow world," according to which people - the only intelligent beings in the universe, gave man, reducing this universe to the size of the Earth, the feeling that he is covered is protected, like an embryo in the womb of the mother. It satisfied unhappy souls with wounded pride and full of anger toward the outside world. In addition, it was the only German theory that could be counterposed to the Jew by Einstein.

Einstein's theory is based on the experience of Michelson and Morley, which proves that the speed of light moving in the direction of Earth's rotation is equal to the speed of light directed perpendicular to this rotation. Einstein found that there is no medium that "carries" light, but that it consists of independent particles. Proceeding from this, Einstein noticed that light is a condensed energy. He constructed the theory of the relativity of light. According to the Bender system, the hollow Earth is stationary, and the Michelson effect is excluded. Therefore, the hypothesis of hollow Earth seems real just like the Einstein hypothesis. At that time, no experimental verification could confirm Einstein's thought. The atomic bomb has not yet come into being in order to justify this idea in an absolute and terrible way. German leaders took the opportunity to nullify all the value of the work of a genius Jew, and the persecution of Jewish scholars and official science began.

Einstein, Teller, Fermi and many other large scientists were forced to go into exile. They were well received in the USA, they provided money and well-equipped laboratories. This is the root of the origin of American nuclear power. The flourishing of the occult forces in Germany provided the atomic bomb to the Americans.

The largest research center of the US Army is in Dayton, Ohio. In 1957, it was reported that the laboratory of this center, working on the creation of a hydrogen bomb, managed to get a temperature of one million degrees. The scientists who managed to achieve this result were ... our old acquaintance, Dr. Heinz Fischer, who led the expedition to the Rugen Island to test the hypothesis of hollow Earth. Since 1945, he worked in the United States. Asked by an American journalist about his past, he said: "The Nazis forced me to do the work of a madman, which was quite interfering with my research." You can ask yourself what would have happened and how the course of the war would have changed if Dr. Fisher's own research had not been interrupted for the sake of Bender's mysticism...

After the expedition to Rugen Island, Bender's authority in the eyes of the Nazi dignitaries rolled down, despite the patronage of Goering, who was fond of his former hero of aviation. Gerbigerians, supporters of the great universe, where the eternal ice reigns, triumphed over him. Bender was thrown into the concentration camp, where he died. "Hollow Earth" thus acquired her martyr.

But long before this crazy expedition, Gerbiger's followers showered Bender with ridicule and demanded the prohibition of his work.

Gerbiger's system claimed the status of global cosmogony, but it is impossible to believe in the universe, which is simultaneously an arena for the eternal struggle of ice and fire, and a hollow ball enclosed in an endless rock. Hitler was asked to be an arbitrator. His answer deserves reflection: "We do not really need," Hitler said, "a coherent concept of the world." Both can be right. "

Consequently, it does not matter the connectedness and unity of views, but the destruction of systems resulting from the logic of a rational way of thinking is important mystical dynamism and the explosive power of intuition. "In the glittering darkness of magical thought, there is room for many lightning."

"Earth-2" exists?

Despite the deplorable result of the experiments on the verification of the theory of "hollow earth", followers in West Germany still remained among the korehism. After the war, amateur astronomer Johann Lang published the book Theory of Hollow Peace, and in 1949 Walter Brenner-Crockenberg's brochure "The Earth is a huge hollow ball" was published. However, unlike Bender, the latter believed that outside the universe is not a rock, but a kind of spherical body. The earth, in his opinion, rotates around its axis, once in 182 days approaching one of the poles, which is why the seasons change.

By the way, some scientists - in particular, Professor I. Shklovsky - are developing the concept of a "mirror universe", according to which there is a parallel space of the Universe, according to the law of reflection, shrinking in such a way that another sphere, much larger, is placed inside the spherical cavity of the object. That is, Earth-2 can be hidden inside the Earth, even exceeding the original physical dimensions. And which of them is our planet - is unknown.

Hitler and Longinus's Spear (the Spear of the Omnipotence)
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This story began in 1909, when a young painter Adolf Hitler first visited the Treasure Hall of the Vienna Museum. Before him, in one of the windows on the scarlet velvet, the spear of Otto III, emperor of the Holy Roman Empire, was black.

More precisely, this is not the spear itself, but its tip. That day the future killer of millions of skin, nerves felt some invisible waves of overwhelming power, coming from an ancient relic. And Hitler seemed to go crazy: every day, as a job, he was in the museum and silently stood idle in front of the cherished showcase for hours. But his imagination did not stand still.

The artist saw how he gently lifts the sacred object from the velvet, tightly squeezes it in his hands, never to give it to anyone... The future Fuhrer sincerely believed that in this case the power of the spear will flow into him and help to put this world on knees. In the meantime, he could only pray on the spear of Otton and dream...

I must say that not everything was in order with Hitler's psyche. Naturally, with this state of affairs, such a deep interest in a particular object simply could not but grow into an open mania. So it happened in 1917, after a young Adolf Hitler spent with a three friends (one of them was Alfred Rosenberg) a spiritual session and communicated with the spirit of a certain German prince. The otherworldly interlocutor declared: the new leader of Germany will be only one in whose hands the spear of Otton will be...

A decade and a half later, the former corporal and convinced mystic, and now the head of New Germany and the "Aryan No. 1" decided that it was time to take the ancient relic to his hands.

In the courtyard was 1935, the Reich was only beginning to grow stronger, but already greedy glanced at the "brotherly" Austria. Hitler managed to open the so-called Center of Nazi religion, which later had to become the "Vatican SS"; one of the main halls of this institution was called the Lance Room and was intended for the storage of a copy of the spear of Otton III.

However, the Führer needed an original relic... So three years later he gave "good" to the invasion of Austria, but made a special order: for the safety of the spear it was necessary to take special measures and not allow the enemy authorities to take out the rarity from the country.

In March 1938, the Nazis invaded the sovereign Alpine republic, and its president Miklas first of all ordered the evacuation of historical values ​​from the Habsburg Palace. To prevent the rarities from falling into the hands of the invaders, the police units were sent to the Hofburg. However, local SS men forced the guardians of the order to retreat: Otton's spear was to go to Hitler at any cost...

Finally, after so many years of dreams, the ancient black tip lay on the palm of a man who had crushed Germany under him and dreamed of conquering the world. To this end, the Fuhrer, having spat over numerous state, party and military matters, personally appeared in the Treasure Hall, which until then had been heavily guarded by the selective units of the 8th Army Corps of the German Army.

October 13, 1938 Otton's spear with special honors and precautions on a special armored train was taken to Nuremberg, where they placed in the church of St. Catherine. In Germany, I must say, the relic traveled in a worthy company: the Nazis first of all took out of Hofburg a rag of tablecloth that covered the table during the Last Supper, the purse of St. Etienne, the tooth of John the Baptist and other Christian relics. Now Hitler was sure that he had everything necessary to reshape the map of Europe and create the "New Rome".

What made the German leader dream of possessing an ancient but quite standard spearhead? Why did he believe that from the black metal that rested on the scarlet velvet there was an unearthly power? Was such an attitude to the spear of Otton only the result of the morbid state of a high-ranking mystic? Not at all. This ancient relic really has the right to claim the title of one of the greatest mysteries of the past.

The prehistory of the spear of Otto III dates back thousands of years, and all this time a strange, unexplained situation repeated: a man who managed to take possession of a black tip, soon conquered the world ...

If you believe the historical evidence, an amazing spear was made by order of the third high priest Judea Phinehas. This venerable figure was famous for having outstanding abilities in the field of magic and kabbalistic, and constantly worked on the development of his gift.

So the tip of the mysterious spear was forged with observance of sacred mystical rituals and was to symbolize the magical powers of the blood of the Jews as the chosen people. I must say that Hitler somehow preferred to omit this insulting for the "pure Aryans" somehow, or at all tried to forget about him.

Whatever it was, but the fact remains: since its inception, the spear triumphantly marched the world. The man who took possession of him became surprisingly successful. The history of the tip, written in blood, tells of the death of entire states and the birth of new powerful empires. So, at different times it was owned by the most, perhaps, famous personalities in world history.

The legendary military commander Joshua with a spear in his hands attacked the most reliable walls of Jericho, and they suddenly fell, although the siege of this city was considered, frankly, an adventure. Then the black tip served Herod the Great - the one who, according to legend, ordered the destruction of all the male babies in Judea. The centuries were replaced by centuries, and the mysterious spear covered with glory, continued the way on the world.

No one doubted that it was able to empower its owner with superhuman opportunities and give it the right to decide the destinies of states. Only if there will be another master of the relic to create a great Good or an equally impressive Evil, no one could say.

Over time, the black tip had a name - the Spear of Omnipotence. It managed to visit the hands of the Roman emperor Constantine the Great, who soon proclaimed Christianity as the official religion. Then the Spear of Omnipotence belonged to many rulers at different times. Invincible hordes Attila fell under the onslaught of the troops of the king of the Ostrogoths Theodoric, who practically did not part with this ancient weapon.

The leader of the Franks, Carl Martell, who "inherited" the Spear of Omnipotence, did not allow the Arabs to invade Western Europe, having smashed them completely. Constantly (even during sleep!) Was holding around himself a black tip unifier and ruler of all Europe, Charlemagne, on whose account there were victories in 47 military campaigns. The next owner of the Spear of Omnipotence then became Otto III the Great, the emperor of the "Holy Roman Empire of the German Nation".

Friedrich Barbarossa and 40 other German emperors did not allow the Spear of Omnipotence to retire to deserved rest, and its glory - to fade and get lost among the numerous ancient legends. He was horrified by the enemy and in the crusades undertaken by Frederick II.

It should be said that it was this ancient weapon that inspired the Crusaders to create one of the most formidable and powerful knightly orders - the Teutonic Order; By the way, having lost touch with the black tip, he began to decline, and knights for centuries dreamed of bringing the shrine back to the hands of his head.

The Spear of Omnipotence was also in the hands of representatives of the first dynasty of French kings, the Merovingians, whom a number of historians consider to be the direct descendants of Jesus Christ. And Napoleon Bonaparte did not part with the relic either day or night. However, it must have happened that the ancient rarity was stolen from the Corsican before the start of the campaign against Moscow (according to the mystics), otherwise the world map would have a completely different appearance at the moment.

Why did the rulers and conquerors of all stripes and peoples make so much effort for the possession of an ancient spear? Why was the mysterious piece of metal so firmly connected with the notions of "power" and "victory"? Why the murder weapon is surrounded by such honors in the Christian world and is considered one of the main relics of Christianity? In order to answer these questions, it is worthwhile to first give one more name of the ancient tip, which has become in our time the most common, the Spear of Longinus...

In the history of Christianity, under the name of Longinus, none other than Guy Cassius, the captain of the guards, this was endowed with special powers in carrying out state ceremonies, justice and executions. It was this man who watched the execution of Christ on Calvary, and he also, checking to see if the crucified person was alive, pricked a limp body to see if the deceased had died. Then the bleeding blood showed that the executioner was still alive...

So, the black tip that pierced the body of the Savior, bearing the marks of his gore, is the Spear of All Power. It is clear that for millennia, there has been a lot of confusion; no one knows where the fakes came from.

So, in our days three tips are claimed for the title of Spearhead of Longinus: besides the Spear of Otton from the Austrian Museum, this is his double, stored in the Vatican, and also the Krakow relic. Nevertheless, most researchers categorically declare that the spear stored in the palace of the Habsburgs is true nevertheless.
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There is another artifact. The so-called Armenian spear. This relic is in Armenia, in the treasury of Echmiadzin (new name Vagharshapat). There it is kept since the XIII century; before that was in Geghardavank (Armenia), where it was believed to have been brought by the apostle Faddee. (Gegardavank literally translates as "The Monastery of the Spear.")

But let us return to Hitler. Apparently, even the old tip, who had seen a lot of blood on his long eyelid, the new owner did not like it. First, Hitler really triumphantly marched through Europe, but then luck began to turn away from him on the sly. However, the Fuhrer did not lose hope of "taming" the relic. When English bombers appeared in the sky over Nuremberg, who began to literally plow the city, an armored bunker was specially equipped for the Spear of Nobility under the old fortress.

And yet in October 1944 one of the bombs fell into the underground storehouse of sacred values. At the same time, the agony of the Third Reich began ... And Hitler rushed to save not the country, not the nation, but the embodiment of his dream, which he considered the guarantee of world domination.

To save Longinus Spear and other objects of mystical worship, they decided to secretly take out of the destroyed bunker and hide in a special chamber in the rock. And in order to confuse the adversary, a similar, supposedly secret (in practice, rumors of "rescuing the spear" was diligently and carefully distributed). A certain valuable cargo from the cave of the Nuremberg fortress was allegedly transported to the Austrian Lake Zell, not far from Salzburg. There, mysterious boxes were drowned in the waters of the lake. But...

Despite the true German accuracy and meticulousness in preparing the main operation and the operation "cover", the order's executors made a fatal mistake.

For obvious reasons Spear Longinus in the list of exported items did not figure. The ancient tip was brought into it under one of the least known of its names - "the spear of St. Maurice." However, the exhibition also kept the sword of St. Maurice.

He was not well-versed in the history of the soldiers and sent to a rock chamber, carefully wrapped in glass wool and packed in a case of pure copper ... A Longinus Spear was meanwhile thrown unattended in a broken bunker among third-rate exhibits! And then the relic seems to have completely lost its temper. The defeat of the fascist troops became so obvious that the score was already on the days.

April 30, 1945, the Americans found a mutilated dungeon and the remaining values ​​in it. Among others, in the broken windows, there was also a plain black spearhead, which the Yankees called "some piece of iron." Not only the soldiers, but also the higher officers, congressmen and senators were not interested in an unpretentious relic.

Maybe it would have ended the story of Spear Longinus and it would have been counted lost if it were not for an American general who was far from Nuremberg in those days. He was seriously interested in history, mythology, ancient mysteries and was in these matters a true connoisseur.

So, hearing the edge of his ear about the find of the "incomprehensible piece of iron," he immediately rushed to Nuremberg and restored the status quo. After a couple of months, General Clarke, by order of Eisenhower, solemnly handed over the relic to the mayor of Vienna. By the way, as soon as Hitler learned about the loss of the Spear of Omnipotence, he committed suicide.

... But Longinus's Spear, quite possibly, is not at all kept under the glass case in the Hofburg Palace. After 1945, persistent rumors circulate that the Americans decided not to part with the ancient pledge of power and therefore slipped the owners of the relic with a perfectly executed copy (it took months to create it, during which the spear was kept by the Yankees). And the original is still in the US, helping to forge a new - already financial - empire...

Space program of the Third Reich
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The starting point was 1938, when a research and development missile center was opened in Germany on the Peenemünde Island in the Baltic Sea, and Werner von Braun was appointed the chief designer of German missiles.

It can hardly be considered as a coincidence that the "competing" center for the development of missile systems was defeated in the USSR in the same year, and its specialists (including the future chief designer of Soviet missiles, S.P. Korolev) were declared enemies of the people and many of them they are destroyed. There is reason to believe that German intelligence has thrown dirt on these people.

The consequences affected immediately. If by 1941 the Red Army had only a few machines with rocket launchers (Katyushas), then in the third Reich, by that time, a sketchy design of a powerful missile system capable of bringing a man into space began - the A9 / A10 project, . By 1943, it was ready, and the missile received the conventional name "V-3".

But as the war was going on, the main efforts of German missile men were focused on the development of a purely military A-4 missile intended for the destruction of the enemy within the framework of the Weapons of Retaliation program (with the possible use of the nuclear warhead under construction). In the German missile arsenal of the early 1940s, a solid-fueled Renbote rocket of the ground-ground class with a range of up to 150 kilometers and a surface-to-air surface-to-air guided air-to-air missile were in operation. At the development stage were missiles "Raintochter" and "Schmetterling". So the bombardment of the British Isles with "V-1" and "V-2" rockets was considered a kind of prelude to the shelling of the United States. In 1944, the factories in Nordhausen produced 25-30 V-2 rockets per day. Then the fighter-interceptor "Bolen-Natter'1 with a rocket engine and vertical take-off (!), Armed with 30 unguided missiles class "air-ground" and developed a speed of up to 1000 km / h.

The era of rocket and space technology became a reality. True, of the 18 A-4 rockets, 16 exploded in the air. And the production of V-1 projectiles from a technical point of view, as the Minister of Armaments of Germany Speer admitted, "was a costly affair, and their effectiveness compared to the spent means is minimal." This product often arbitrarily changed course, height, speed.

This is where the human factor, in the person of the test pilot Hannah Reich, entered the business (in the literal sense of the word).

This miniature and fragile-looking, but phenomenally brave woman in mid-1943 offered her candidacy in order to experience in flight "V-1"! For this purpose, a tiny (with a pilot's cockpit) cabin with manual control and the necessary instruments was "squeezed" into the plane-projectile. Ailerons were installed all around the wings, and under the fuselage - small landing skis.

Launching in the air from the suspension under the carrier plane, Reich made a number of risky flights to the V-1, proving by her own experience that effective rocket piloting is possible. Her courage was appreciated by all the top rewards of the Reich. Hitler himself presented Reach the Knight's Iron Cross. During the audience, Reich shared her ideas with Hitler on the space program based on the V-2 ballistic missile, which was successfully tested on October 3, 1942.

Hitler gave "good" to "conducting a preliminary study of the issue." And in November 1943, at a secret conference at the Academy of Aviation Research, a decision was made to recruit pilots for the "Military Cosmonauts Detachment." According to some reports, the number of cadets was 500, but after careful selection it was reduced to 100. There is a version that three of them became the first German cosmonauts who made a suborbital flight to the "V-2" at the end of 1943.

The seriousness of the intentions was also evidenced by the fact that Hitler, in February 1944, appointed Otto Skorzeny, Obersturmanführer SS, as curator of the space program of the Third Reich, who was entrusted with the most important assignments, including those related to "special weapons".

The man of action, Skorzeny gave the program to pilot rockets "Special Forces subtext." The astronauts were trained in targeting skills on the modernized "V-1" as prototypes of the intercontinental missile complex "Reichenberg". According to the chief designer of the complex, Richard Vogt, the bomber "Do-217E" was supposed to lift the hitch from the ballistic missile "V-2" and the micro-aircraft gunner. After separation from the carrier at an altitude of 10 km included a ram jet with a course to the target. Already in the stratosphere, the pilot was to use radar to detect the target, to enter its data into the missile guidance system and then to separate its microplane from it.

Naturally, the risk of such an operation was great. Therefore, the cadets of Skorzeny's school (by the summer of 1944 there were 70 of them) signed a document of this content:

"I hereby certify that I voluntarily agreed to become a pilot of a man-driven planning bomb to participate in self-sacrificing actions." I realize that the action may end with my death. "

In the fall of 1944, Hitler approved a plan for a demonstration missile-bomb attack on New York, code-named "El-ster" ("Magpie"). On the night of November 30, 1944, from the submarine near the American coast was the squadron-wife of a special command to set up a beacon of guidance in one of the skyscrapers of New York. But the German agents were seized by the FBI; it remains to count exclusively on the Skorzeny volunteers.

Werner von Braun suggested using his "A9 / A10" rocket to attack New York. Her tests took place on 8 and 24 January 1945. But the Nazis no longer had time to carry out the space flight between Germany and New York.

Krygsmarine bases in the Russian north
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The secret German bases found after the war, which provided for the hikes of German ships and submarines to our Arctic, were sometimes mentioned in past years, but only "in one line." But even such shortness in the days of nalgia gives this line the right to life, and military historians and researchers - the hope that a detailed study of the Nazi secrets in the Arctic will still be held.

The first secret Nazi item found in the Soviet Arctic as far back as 1951 was the Kriegsmarine base No. 24. A wide circle of Soviet readers was told about it by the famous Soviet historian Boris Viner and the famous ice captain Konstantin Badigin. Let's try to tell you that today, 56 years later, we know about this base, as well as about some other similar secret facilities in the Arctic.

Base in the rock in the area of ​​the Soviet Arctic

The appearance of the Germans on the island of Alexandra Land (Franz Josef Land Archipelago) was reported even before the outbreak of the war-in March 1941, pilots of our polar aviation, who noticed a German D-215 airplane over the Soviet island.

A year later, in the summer of 1942, the polar pilots of Colonel Ilya Mazuruk discovered the work of an unknown radio station and the signals of red rockets sent to someone. Moreover, with a careful survey of the island from the air, they saw some structures covered with a metal mesh. But for some reason neither the leadership of the Main Department of the Northern Sea Route nor the command and intelligence of the Northern Fleet dealt with an unusual find. Then, it seems,

0 they were completely forgotten (!) And again, quite by accident, something on the Land of Alexandra was found only on September 12, 1951, when the icebreaker Semen Dezhnev entered the Strait of Cambridge, separating the islands of Alexandra Land and George Land. prospecting party of the Arctic Project under the leadership of Toporkov.

During the inspection of the island near the edge of its eastern glacier, several dugouts, a meteorological site and a radio mast were accidentally discovered. Here, too, were found: a food store, a dwelling, a storage warehouse and a repair shop.
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A more thorough examination showed:

In the pantry lay a dozen wooden boxes. Some of them were filled with 1 kg tin cans (outside painted with paint to protect the tin against corrosion), and part - with 50 kg tin boxes. In the first, Norwegian and Danish jams and marmalades, Danish puddings and biscuits, American dried fruits and raisins were found. In the second - Norwegian treacle, tea, coffee and chocolate.

It was possible to find even a few cans of Hungarian egg powder and Danish canned pork. It also contained the remains of alcohol - a few unopened bottles of Hermann Meuer, Berlin.

In the warehousing were: a bunch of double-sided camouflage jackets on a special winter lining, a dozen leather jackets on mutton fur and the same leather gloves, fur hats covered in leather with a backcloth and headphones, there were several pairs of Finnish boots made of reindeer skin. In addition, there were several bales of woolen linen and cloth wool trousers, a pair of leather kayak boats and the same number of sleds, several cans of paint on linseed and a stock of matches in tin boxes. Several gas canisters were parked nearby, where labels were clearly visible - Benzin, 1940, Wehrmacht.

A more thorough examination showed that the whole territory was securely protected - 6 trenches with machine guns nests, five dugouts and 3 bunkers were built along its perimeter. Two company mortars were found in the bunkers.

And in the dugouts lay perfectly preserved official papers, some diaries, letters and even a few photographs. In the most capacious of the dug-outs, a radio station was installed, a secret instruction for conducting a meteorological observation and a log with weather records were found. The last entry in this journal was dated May 24, 1944.

The main residential bunker had 7 rooms, of which 2 were clearly intended for officers. In addition to the common bedroom, designed for about 20 people, there was also a dining room, a kitchen and storerooms. Bunkers were littered with used parachute light flares that were manufactured in 1941, all the machines and mechanisms were well preserved in the repair shop on the base. Not far from the workshop lay a small motor boat, almost ready for work.

Later it was possible to clarify - the Soviet polar explorers found the secret base No. 24 of the naval, meteorological and direction-finding service Kriegsmarine.

Five kilometers from the main base (at Cape Nimrod) in a small hut (according to other sources, just under the awning) was another compact but powerful radio station. Its antenna stand was made in the form of a well "crane" and, if necessary, it was easily removed.

Found documents showed that in 1943-1944 on this secret base was located the German meteorological museum “The Treasure Hunter” under the command of Lieutenant A. Makus and the scientific leader V. Dress.

The base of "The treasure hunters" successfully operated until the spring of 1944. But at the end of May the Germans poisoned themselves with fresh bear meat and fell ill with trichinosis. However, assistance came only a month later, when the Fw-200 "Courier" aircraft arrived (the 3rd detachment of the 1st air group of the 40th Bomber Squadron). They could not land on the island, so a medical brigade was landed on parachutes, medications and medicines were dropped.

Only on July 10, 1944, the meteorological expedition "The treasure hunters" was taken out by a seaplane BV-138. And in October 1944, the U-387 submarine arrived in the Straits of Cambridge, which brought the most valuable equipment and weather equipment to Narvik. By the way, later the same submarine exported meteorological equipment from two secret stations, which were located on the shore of Novozemelsky Gulf of Foreigners and on Bear Island.

Another visit to the base number 24 took place already in 1991, when the archipelago Franz Josef Land visited the Soviet-Norwegian polar expedition. During the preparation of this expedition, the historian of the Norwegian Polar Institute Susan Barr succeeded in finding the meteorologist Rudolf von Garbati in Germany. He gave Mrs. Barr a detailed map of the minefield, established on the approaches to the station.

During the check, it turned out that on the approaches to the base a minefield was actually delivered out of 12 minutes of galvanic action, the centralized control system which was put into the main bunker.

In memory of the expedition, Susan Barr, as an exhibit for the museum, received one of the mines defused.

On this it would be possible to finish the description of the secret stronghold of the Nazis on Alexandra Land. But it turned out that the point in the list of unusual finds on the Franz Josef Land archipelago is still premature, since the Soviet Toporkov polar explorers, the builders of the Arctic airfield, the polar air crews, and the Soviet-Norwegian expedition, actually saw only the tip of the iceberg.

The rationale for such a conclusion is the following: at the end of the 50s, right there on Alexandra Land, or rather on the Polar Pilots Peninsula, near the German airfield, where the FW-200 Courier tried to sit in June 1944, our military builders started to the construction of a Soviet airfield. True, today it is completely unclear why it was necessary to build a new strip in the neighborhood of the already well-developed runway (runway) of the Nazis? Especially since the location of the German runway was chosen perfectly, because in the summer it dried up very first, and in winter (unlike ours) because of constant blowing by strong winds required minimal effort to clear the snow.

When carrying out these works near the aerodrome under construction, the builders discovered strange ventilation "fungi", but, unfortunately, did not try to find out anything about their appointment. Only the crew of the famous Colonel Ilya Mazuruk came very close to the main mystery of the island of Alexandra, as in fact he discovered there was a prompt base for German submarines.

On that autumn day, at the end of the fifties, the ventilation shafts of the base were accidentally found by the pilots during the inspection of the former German airfield. Moreover, continuing the inspection, they found the entrance to the dungeon, but, unfortunately, they did not have time to get inside the base base, as the tide began and the entrance to the cave mains began to quickly go under the water.

Subsequent studies have shown that for the first time, the commander of the minesweeper T-116 Captain-Lieutenant V. Babanov saw the interior of this base personally in September 1944. It happened that approximately two weeks after the Kara Sea was drowned by it in the Kara Sea, the U-362 T-11b, together with the mine guard "Murman", was sent to Franz Josef Land and the Northern Island of Novaya Zemlya "to provide winter crew with weather stations." But how could Captain-Lieutenant Babanov learn about the whereabouts of the secret Nazi base? The answer can be quite simple. Apparently, among the wreckage of the enemy submarine V. Babakov managed to find and read documents on the existence of a base on Alexandra Land.

For example, among those papers that could be in a pop-up canvas bag, lifted aboard the minesweeper. And here we must especially point out that the T-116 commander had more than enough time to familiarize himself with the contents of this bag, since after successful attack and sinking of the Nazi U-362, T-116 did not fulfill any urgent tasks.

At the same time, a permanent item on the search for and destruction of German submarines was included in the tasks to ensure this flight, as well as a formally on-duty point aimed at finding secret German bases,

In carrying out this task, both ships on September 24, 1944 approached the ice edge 50 miles from the Tikhaya Bay (Franz Josef Land) - Here the ships were divided. The minelayer, which has a stronger body, began to make its way through the ice to the polar station, and the minesweeper remained to wait for it at the ice edge.

Most likely, instead of an unnecessary waste of time for almost a week waiting for Murman at the ice edge, Captain-Lieutenant Babanov used the order to search for secret bases and went to the island of Alexandra Land. The most surprising thing in this story was that he not only found the base, but also managed to descend into its subterranean depths, led by a narrow stone staircase. Then, along a niche cut straight in the rock, it was possible to quickly reach a pair of comfortable (with fireplaces) log buildings, barracks, covered with camouflage net, and when inspecting the base of the base, two piers were found: one of them had a crane "Demag" , intended for loading of mine and torpedo ammunition. Another pier was intended for repair work and charging of batteries. The electric cables of this berth were completely ready for use.

That's all that managed to report on this main mystery of Alexandra Land, one of the most famous veterans of the Northern Fleet. Unfortunately, we could not find a report or other materials on the results of that short trip of the minesweeper T-116. For some reason, they are not available in any of the available archival documents of the headquarters of the Northern Fleet, although such documents are necessarily somewhere, for such an experienced commander as V. Babanov could not fail to report on the command, and necessarily in writing, about his opening!

Meanwhile, our acquaintance with the memoirs of the Grand Admiral Karl Dennits showed that everything Babanov had seen fully corresponded to the requirements set forth by Kriegsmarine to the base bases being built by the Third Reich for the basing of submarines.

We will use these memories of the admiral and model the internal view of the Nazi base-line on the island of Alexandra Land. At the same time, for a visual sample, we will take bunkers- "garages" (so today they are called the French sailors) of the German submarine base built during the Second World War in the waters of the French naval base in Brest. By the way, a photo of this database can be found in open literature, and one of the authors of this book even managed to visit its bunkers.

True, we will immediately have to take into account that the size of the shelters of the "gray wolves" under the Arctic rocks should be much more modest than in concrete boxes specially built by the military builders of the Third Reich in the ports of France and Norway, although it must be admitted that:

Special bunkers for submarines in Saint-Nazaire and Brest still represent the most real military construction miracle of the last century.

Indeed, they have 12-15 boxes, each of which could have 3-4 submarines at the same time. Between the boxes were built reinforced concrete walls of many meters in thickness. Powerful steel shields-shutters after lowering reliably protected each box from the side of the sea. The minimum thickness of the upper floors, made of reinforced concrete, was eight meters. Even special 5.5-ton British superaviabombs could not break through them, including direct hit in the ceiling, which is confirmed by the actual hit of one such bomb. It is not surprising that the work on submarines under such protection did not stop even during the most severe bombings. In these bunkers, as if on a conveyor belt, German submarines passed all the stages of preparation for ocean voyages, and the crews rested and quietly gathered in a hike. This calm was also ensured by the fact that all the necessary supplies for normal life support were located here in specially equipped warehouses.

Using the stories of V. Babanov and pilot I. Mazuruk, we assume that the sea entrance to this base is to be found somewhere on the shore between Lake Pinegin and Dachnaya Bay or near the eastern glacier of the island. It is most likely that the entrance is somewhere near the glacier, since it was here in the mid-70s of the last century that an American nuclear submarine was discovered. For some time she remained in the above-water position, and the crew carefully studied the "eastern" rocks with binoculars with the powerful ring-rings embedded in them.

The second time an American nuclear submarine was discovered in the same area as early as in 2000. I would like to know what uninvited guests did here.

And how many such visits could go unnoticed, we do not know, as well as what the American submariners were looking for here.

Now, after more than 60 years, the north-seaers, who have seen this Nazi base with their own eyes, will not be able to find, and border guards who serve in these parts, for some reason, do not like to go far from their frontier post. Again, the question is far from idle - why? They say that because of the many polar bears that settled on the island!

But if in the near future we do not send a well-prepared expedition to the island, then in a decade or so we will not know exactly what is hidden under the rocks of Alexandra Land and what the underwater nuclear ships of the US Navy were looking for. At best, our grandchildren and great-grandchildren studying the history of the Arctic will learn about the very fact of the existence of such a base only thanks to the previous findings on this island, which are now exhibited in the Murmansk museum of the Border Troops Arctic Group.

But the fascist cogwheel base on Alexandra Land is far from the only riddle of the Franz Josef Land Archipelago. So, for example, another "white spot", just on another island of the archipelago (on Nordbrook), was capacious storage facilities, which before the beginning 60's, for some reason (?} Only from afar the Soviet ice captains were repeatedly examined in binoculars.

When finally they decided to get to these places, the discovered assortment of skilfully stocked and perfectly preserved foodstuffs surprised even well-deserved Soviet polar explorers.

Here, along with products similar to the assortment of the Alexandrovsky warehouse, a huge variety of Danish and Norwegian canned meat was discovered, several varieties of American soups, Danish oil, Norwegian dried milk, German dried vegetables, Danish pemmikan, and in barrels - large quantities of salted fish and vegetable oil. Among these stocks, even managed to find a few boxes of cognac, white and red wine. In a word, a well organized food warehouse, that's just for whom all these supplies were intended and what else can you find on this island if you carefully look for it while it remains a mystery.

While working on this book, we managed to meet with several polar explorers, who spoke in detail about the unexpected finds of the same abandoned German bases and warehouses located in other regions of the Russian Arctic.

Most likely, such food and fuel, and possibly weapons, warehousing and other warehouses, skillfully hidden by the Nazis on various islands, which are scattered along the Northern Sea Route, were created especially for German raiders and submarines and that much of them are still safely stored in natural refrigerators of the Arctic.

For example, one of the old residents of Novozemels told about some huge promising construction located in Belushya Bay - on the island of Mezhsharsky, another - about the same structure, but only in the strait Matochkin Shar.

In a geographical sense, such a deployment of such bases from a military point of view is entirely logical. For example:

The Beluga Bay is located on the northern coast of the Strait of Costin Shar (between the island of Mezhsharsky and the southern island of Novaya Zemlya), to the west of Rogachev Bay. This place is very convenient for basing, since the ships located in the water area of ​​this base can enter the base and exit into the ocean immediately through two straits: the shortest way out to the sea - between Cape Lillet and the northwestern extremity of the island of Mezhsharsky, and the other - through the Strait of Costin Shar, This arrangement probably enjoyed the main command of the Kriegsmarine.

Indeed, a similar system was envisaged in the port of Kiel, where Nazi submarines from the "phantom convoy" were based. In addition, we will still meet with such a choice in a secret base created by the fascists in the delta of the Lena River.

Indirect confirmation of the fact that Novaya Zemlya old residents really could see with their own eyes the large secret bases on Novaya Zemlya can be the facts of the permanent discovery in these areas of German submarines.

For example, it is unlikely that the actions of the U-601 submarine near Novaya Zemlya on July 27, 1942 were incidental. That day in the Moller Bay, she shot two GTS seaplanes from the air group of Colonel I. Mazuruk and burned five houses and warehouses of the polar station here. A few hours later, the same submarine attacked the MBR-2 seaplane of Senior Lieutenant L. Yelkin, who, after burying himself in Rogachev Bay, carried out a special task of the commander of the Northern Fleet.

Analyzing these events, it can be assumed that our planes frightened off the crew of the submarine, which was waiting for something in the vicinity of the stationary base located in Belushya Bay or near the island of Mezhsharsky, for example, the queue for entering the cunning space for replenishing the ammunition that was at that time occupied another submarine.

Perhaps this is the reason for the fact that in the logbook U-601 there is no record of a successful attack on Soviet aircraft, since if there is a ban on fighting in the areas where the bases are deployed (which, incidentally, is possible in order to camouflage them) a record, even a victory, could be fraught with great trouble for the commander of the Nazi submarine. In addition, our assumption is based on the fact that for the next four days this Nazi submarine spent somewhere in the vicinity of the Matochkina Shara Strait, and then returned to the Mezhsharsky Osttern.

Here you can also include the officially registered fact that on August 19, 1942, two German submarines, U-456 and U-209, were completely open to the island of Mezhsharsky. Most likely, they were sent here to replenish ammunition.

But that day they were prevented by the sentinel ships of the Novaya Zemlya naval base, the formation of which the Nazis had not yet suspected. And the submarines, like reluctantly, left the area of ​​the unwanted meeting. Although the word "gone" rather has a double meaning, because they could return to this area in an underwater situation. But where?

In addition, perhaps it is not by chance that it was here that the crew of the cruiser "Comet" carried out landings of "comic" assault forces? Perhaps the purpose of these landing forces was to check the state of previously conserved bases?

Especially since some well-deserved Soviet polar explorers told us about a clandestine grotto in the Matochkin Shar passage where German submarines could surface right in the water of a promenade lake, and one of the eyewitnesses even after the war was even present in one of these grottoes when an old dynamo (probably still the Kaiser era), which in the 70s was easily wound up and provided emergency lighting for the search for the main power shield of the mysterious base. Upon examination of this cave, a food warehouse was discovered, but it was already manufactured in Hitler's Germany. In one of the boxes in this warehouse, even special "invigorating" sweets were found, based on the stimulation of nervous activity.

We even have witnesses who, as a child, tried these sweets, which they inherited as trophies brought by their father after the march. By the way, the presence of an "ancient" dynamo in this base suggests that it is generally a question of a secret new-army base of the Kaiser's fleet, with which the submariners acted against Russian and British ships in the White Sea during the First World War. It is possible that we will still have the opportunity to see this conserved German-Nazi base! Or maybe launch her dynamo.

In general, the Novozemelsky archipelago keeps many riddles of the Third Reich, of which we absolutely do not know anything. This fact is clearly illustrated by those findings and observations of our polar explorers on only one northern island of Novaya Zemlya, which were officially registered only during one summer period of 1943.

Radiasts from the stations at Cape Vyhodnoye (Matochkin Shar passage) and in the Bay of Well-being in July-August 1943 often recorded the work of an unknown high-capacity ship radio station. Soon after the winterers of the station "Bay of Well-being" in plain text reported on their observations to Dixon, a German submarine surfaced near the shore and destroyed the meteorological station with artillery fire. Already only after the end of the Great Patriotic War, Murmansk seamen in coastal rocks near the entrance to the Bay of Well-being found abandoned shelter for eight people. "When examining this lair, a knitted sailor's cap pudelmutze was found, a shabby gray jacket with metalized" gold-studded "buttons with a oryami and bottle-green shoulder straps, empty tins of Danish and Norwegian canned, issued in 1942, and a few empty bottles of Neg-mann Meyer, Berlin and the Danish cranberry syrup.

On August 22, 1943, at Cape Krasheninnikov (60th of the Weekend), the German submarine contacted someone "unknown", who gave her a short answer from a low-power radio station. Having received this answer, the submarine, having circumambulated both Novaya Zemlya islands, went ... to the Bay of Well-being. A week later in the same area again contacted someone, but already another German submarine. Radio surveyors of the Northern Fleet noted that the same submarine on Aug. 13 was already on radio communication with Belushia Bay, and then on the island of Krestovy on the island of Novaya Zemlya, and on August 26 it once again lit up at the Skier Minin.

At Cape Pinegin (Inozemtsev Bay), an automatic weather station "Gerhard" was installed by the crew U-703 under the command of Lieutenant-General Joachim Brunner on August 22, 1943. But did the submariners only install the meteorological equipment?

In general, the exceptional self-confidence and even the arrogance shown by the Nazi submariners and pilots on the islands and in the straits of the Novaya Zemlya archipelago are not to be surprised, if one only gets to know how the former commander of the White Sea military flotilla, then vice-admiral Yu. Panteleev, characterized this region:

After all, its islands stretched for almost a thousand kilometers. On land - complete impassability. The communication between our polar stations is only by sea or by reindeer sledding.

At the same time on Novaya Zemlya there are many deep, well-sheltered bays on the banks of which, even during the war, so never did the foot of the North Sea walk. Most of the houses of industrialists were applied to our maps only according to the survey of hunters and fishermen. A detailed map of the archipelago was prepared and published only a few years after the end of the Great Patriotic War.

And although in 1942 in many places of the archipelago appeared our posts of observation and communication, is it possible that in some bays? there were well-concealed bases of fascist submarines. It seems quite possible that we do not know anything about some of them today!

However, similar secrets are also rich in other areas of the Soviet Arctic, even less inhabited than the Novaya Zemlya archipelago.

Thus, in the skins of the Minin during the war years, one of the rear bases for German submarines was created (in the manner of the aforesaid base "Nord").

On the island of Podkova (where our fishers live all the war), only warehouses with canned food, as well as several damp packages of sailors' collans, sets of gray (field) uniform Kriegsmarine and the above-mentioned knitted pudelmutze were found only after the fighting in the Arctic was over.

In 1946, sailors from the hydrographic vessel "Researcher" discovered traces of the stay of the submariners Dennitsa on the island of Vardroper, where on the summer of the 42nd or 43rd the Nazis built a observation post, which was a shelter buried under a mantle under a camouflage net (in the color of the summer tundra). When inspecting this post, the remains of Sammler 2B 38 batteries and details of a powerful radio station that were most likely used to transmit target designations to "Admiral Scheer" or "Vikings" were found. On the nearest navigation sign, there were scraps of the antenna. And nearby lay several empty cans from under the Danish sprat.

Do not forget the Nazi submariners and the shore of Khariton Laptev. For example:

In the wolf bay (the archipelago of Nordenskiöld), where U-354 often visited, in 1947, on one of the islands, a German food store with a lot of canned food and vegetable oil was found, as well as a warehouse for Nicolaus light weapons.

And on the islands of Mona immediately after the war, a place was found for the rest of the German submariners with a large number of empty cans from various cans and empty bottles of spirits. The Kriegsmarine submarines also visited the Yenisei Bay. So, in the period from September 5 to September 10, 1943, in the bay of Slobodskaya (the eastern shore of the Yenisei Bay), local hunters observed a German submarine that came to the bay every day before dark, and left in the sea in the morning.

Approximately on the same days, fishermen on Cape Peschaniy (southern shore of the Yenisei Bay) saw near the shore another fascist submarine that did not hide the imperial flag on the flagpole. However, when our fishermen approached the submarine on a kayak, the Germans quickly retired to the sea. And an hour or two later returned to her parking lot.

It was also observed that during the day, both German submarines often lay in shallow water, covered by camouflage nets, or were in drift. When they appeared near Soviet aircraft, these boats immediately lay down on the ground.

But why all these facts became known to the command of the Northern Fleet only after the war? Many explanations can be given here, including the fact that, in the military history of the Soviet Arctic, unfortunately, there have been instances of the frank indifference of our winterers to the neighborhood of secret German bases or storage facilities.

For example, at the end of the summer of 1943, three torpedoes were thrown ashore two miles from the polar station at Cape Leskin (in the Yenisei Bay). But our winterers did not understand who they were and how they got here. The find was simply blown up and, after making a short entry in the logbook, forgot to simply report on the team about such an extraordinary event.

But two-ton torpedoes are not suitable for independent navigation, especially in conjunction. Most likely, somewhere in the region of this promontory the Germans created a storehouse for torpedoes. Either nearby, the German underwater "supplyers" transferred torpedoes from one submarine to another. But the Soviet winterers for some reason just did not notice such facts and especially they did not report on them.

No less interesting and surprising is the information that at the very height of the Great Patriotic War, the skins of sea animals, fur, deer antlers and even handicrafts of northern craftsmen made of walrus bones periodically appeared on the territory of Germany, which fought with us. How could all this fall into the hands of the Nazis?

It turns out that not only the "gray wolves" of Dennits, but also submarines of special purpose, who penetrated the Kara Sea, came to the most remote corners of the coast of Western Siberia. Here, in the so-called bear corners (and such as many along the route of the Northern Sea Route!), The Nazis landed and bought from the local aborigines polar gifts. It was bought, and on a completely voluntary basis, as during all the years of the war, no reports of attacks on settlements and wintering of reindeer herders or St. John's wort have been found!

Obviously, Nazis paid for such purchases by Soviet rubles, which in the Third Reich was enough, since from the first days of the war, the contents of bank safes from captured Soviet cities came to the special banking department of the Research Institute of Continental European Policy, which was subordinated to a special authorized Fuhrer on questions of national-socialist education Reichs-leiter Alfred Rosenberg.

Occult predictions of the Third Reich
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There are things that are interesting to everyone: from the African Bushman to the president of the world's largest state. We are talking about non-traditional methods of forecasting: astrology and clairvoyance, which are often resorted to by the rulers of human destinies, taking the most important, including military and political decisions.

Personal astrologer of the Fuhrer

All the supernatural has always been within the sphere of interest of "competent authorities". But "political astrology" reached its peak in the Third Reich. Hitler showed a great interest in the occult sciences, especially the Oriental, and in general was prone to mysticism. It is known that back in 1923, one of the German astrologers advised the future "demoniac Fuhrer" not to take political action in the fall. As you know, the November putsch in Munich failed. Then the greatest criminal of the 20th century and revised his attitude to astrology.

At the end of 1933 many astrologers went to serve the National Socialists, quickly realizing what can and can not be predicted in the new Reich. The unfavorable predictors either disappeared without a trace, or were sent to the concentration camp of Sachsenhausen.

At that time, the best astrologer was Hitler's personal adviser, clairvoyant Otto Ganussen. But his visionary pictures of the Führer's major mistakes, the defeat and division of Germany for many years, fell to Hitler's displeasure. Ganussen was liquidated.

The secret coven in the castle Wartburg

... On the morning of March 15, 1938, residents of the small Thuringian town of Eisenach, which is the geographical center of Germany, were awakened by the noise of motors: along the serpentine of a well-groomed mountain road leading to the top of the Wartburg mountain, where from the year 1607 the castle of the same name was knighted, a cavalcade of cars was moving.

I must say that Eisenach and the mountain with the castle played a rather mysterious role in the history of Germany.

Here from 1521 to 1522, the great reformer of the Church, Martin Luther, was imprisoned. And one day, according to legend, to him in the cell-cell was the devil, in which Martin Luther launched an inkwell. Since then, on a wooden wall from time to time a dark stain from the ink, not amenable to erasure, appears. It appeared on the eve of World War II. So far no one can explain this phenomenon...

But nevertheless we will return to the ancient knight's castle.

An event took place here, of which very little is known until now: in absolute secrecy there was a meeting of astrologers and clairvoyants of the Third Reich discussing the future of Germany.

The number of active participants in the event, held on. personal initiative of the Minister of Propaganda of Dr. Joseph Goebbels (with the approval of the Fuhrer, of course), was equal to a dozen. The guard was entrusted to the SS unit and a special group of radio and radio technical intelligence officers of the Gestapo, equipped with the latest eavesdropping facilities. The Reich Minister Joseph Goebbels could hear everything that the professional mages of Germany spoke of in a narrow circle.

Unfortunately, almost all of the entries and the participants themselves of that meeting have sunk into oblivion. But some survived. One of the participants in the knight's castle - the former SS Hauptsturmfuhrer - for some reason was not in Sachsenhaus, but in Auschwitz, as an overseer. There he was captured by Soviet troops, sent to Temnikov forcible labor camps.

This prisoner, like many others, was supposed to stay at least 10 years after the verdict was passed. But in 1955, Chancellor Konrad Adenauer persuaded Nikita Khrushchev to release all prisoners of war, which was done by 1957. The last time the former Hauptsturmfuhrer of the SS troops was seen on the platform of the railway station Potma, in Mordovia, 500 kilometers east of Moscow. This was on August 28, 1955.

It was this prisoner of war who confirmed extremely poor and fragmented information about the meeting in the Wartburg castle, which the Germans had so secretly classified, that only senior leaders of the Reich knew about him. Few knew about this and in Moscow.

What did the sorceress see?

So, in 1938, the Wartburg castle, the meeting of the best astrologers of Nazi Germany. A summary of their vision is as follows: Germany is on the verge of a big war. This year is very convenient for the disarmament of Czechoslovakia and the liberation of Sudeten and Bohemia. 1939 - favorable for the solution of the "Polish question". Warsaw will not receive the support of the guarantors - Britain and France, the assembled in the mountain castle asserted unanimously. And to defeat France best in 1940.

As for the war with Russia, the most appropriate, in the opinion of the meeting participants, would be 1941 and 1946. But the Soviet industry and the army are becoming more powerful and by 1946 have become so strong that the Reich with the Soviet Union can no longer cope: the Russians will win on their own, without allies. It is best to make a surprise attack in the second half of May 1941.

All the predictors unanimously asserted that war can and should be won only in one summer campaign - not later than by the end of October. They referred to the opinions of Napoleon and Bismarck, who believed that the war with Russia in the winter was a waste of time.

Among the participants of the meeting was a professor from Munich, who "saw" the great losses of the Wehrmacht in the fall and winter of 1942 on the bank of a large Russian river, apparently, the Volga. And also - the death of half a million German soldiers in the fields of Russia in the summer of 1943.

Further more. From subsequent speeches it became clear that the British and Americans would start a real war with the Reich only in 1943 (in the south), and in 1944 - in the north. Almost all "saw" the destruction and fire in the cathedral of Koenigsberg, built in 1333 on the Royal Hill. This message has plunged those present (and eavesdropping) into despair. True, in the subsequent speech of the magician from East Prussia, a native of Königsberg, a note of hope was heard. According to his vision, the cathedral will be restored and it will acquire the full force of its esoteric possibilities exactly 666 years after its foundation. That is in 1999. It is striking that the restoration of the cathedral in Kaliningrad (the post-war name of Koenigsberg) was practically completed in 1999.

But back in the year thirty-eighth. In the opinion of the meeting participants, a military alliance between Russia, Britain and America is inevitable - on the basis of general hostility to the Fuhrer and the Reich.

However, looking to the future, astrologers predicted that 1946 will be a turning point in the relations between Washington, London and Moscow: former allies will become enemies. Some warming will happen only after 1953, when Stalin will die. And both of the most important events - the beginning of the hostility of the Western allies with Russia and the death of the "red leader" - will occur exactly 8 and 15 years after this meeting, that is, in March 1946 and March 1953. Recall: British Prime Minister Sir Winston Churchill delivered his famous Fulton speech, which marked the beginning of the Cold War, on March 5, 1946, and Stalin died on March 5, 1953.

But how will the coming war end for Germany? Here the prophets have not talked out, vaguely promising that, in the end, the country will follow a new, great path. This will happen in May 1945. True, opinions were divided: some called the date - 8, others - on May 9; while the country's borders will change. Dismantling in the forecasts caused the anger of Hitler. He decided to punish those forecasters who cautiously shared their opinion: Germany will lose the war and will be divided into two parts. And this historical injustice will last 44 years, after which Germany will unite as quickly.

May 1945 almost confirmed all the forecasts of the best astrologers in Germany.

SS Archive - Forecasts

It seemed that this could be put an end: it was believed that all the materials and persons involved in the March 1938 meeting were gone forever. But recent discoveries led many investigators of the mysteries of World War II and the Third Reich to ponder: did not some of the materials concerning that meeting fall into the hands of the allies?

The Americans seized Thuringia in April 1945, and Soviet troops entered the city only in the autumn of the same year. It seems that the Americans had enough time to interview local residents and study the labyrinths of the Wartburg castle.

It is also known that as a trophy, a unique device, made on Hitler's personal order, came to the Soviet Union-a coronagraph. And he was made not for the study of solar activity, but for astrological predictions of a military-political nature. The device was defective, but Soviet engineers quickly restored it, and it was transferred to an astronomical station near Kislovodsk. For what purposes - is unknown. Knowledgeable people claimed that KGB general Georgy Rogozin used the SS trophy archives relating to the occult sciences in his studies.

Ghosts of the Reich in Tibet and the Pole

This entire story gives rise to new questions. Here are just some of them:

- What did the SS expedition, which was under the auspices of the occult and mystical organization "Anenerbe", sought in the distant Tibet in 1938?

What goals did the other SS expedition pursue not to somewhere, but to Antarctica?

"Why did the interrogation of SS Standartenführer Wolfram Zivers, Secretary General of Anenerbe, abruptly interrupt the Nuremberg trial as soon as he began to give names, and why was the simple colonel SS so hastily shot among the most important war criminals of the Third Reich?

- Why did Dr. Cameron, who was present in Nuremberg as a member of the American delegation and studied the activities of Anenerbe, then headed the CIA Blue Bird project, within which psycho-programming and psychotronics were being developed?

- What is this strange story with the discovery of the corpses of Tibetan monks in SS uniforms in the Hitler bunker at the end of the war?

- Why did Anenerbe immediately withdraw the documentation of scientific laboratories and any secret societies, along with the archives of special services in each of the countries recently captured by the Wehrmacht?

The worst thing in the fight against such evil as Nazism - do not think that it has disappeared completely, it has simply been transformed into other misanthropic movements - these are not answers to questions. The worst thing is when they pretend that there are no questions at all.

The Third Reich in search of the Great Ancient
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In 1963 in England came the memoirs of Robert McKinsley, a historian and publicist. During the Second World War, he served on the destroyer "Highlander" and participated in the naval battle on October 30, 1940 in the North Atlantic. During the battle, it was possible to sink the German submarine U32. Several people, who managed to leave the drowned ship, picked up a destroyer. To his surprise, among captured German sailors, Mackinsley found a friend, moreover, a distant relative, Gerhard Schmidt, with whom he studied at Cambridge at the beginning of the thirties. Schmidt served in a submarine as a diesel engine, and McNicksley on a destroyer as a radio operator, although each of them had previously intended to become a medieval historian.

Before coming to the port of Mackinsley - of course, with the permission of the command - he repeatedly spoke with his second cousin. In addition to information of a military nature (it was for their sake that permission was granted for the conversations), Schmidt told the relative about the mysterious voyage that he had to make on the submarine in late summer and early autumn of 1937. New, launched on February 25, U32 successfully passed the sea trials. The crew was looking forward to a well-deserved rest, when suddenly a strange order arrived; prepare for a long swim in high latitudes. The submarine without refueling could pass about 12 thousand kilometers; nevertheless on it additional tanks instead of the removed torpedo weapon have been established. The hull of the submarine was repainted in white.

The place of the torpedo crew of the crew on board the submarine was occupied by strictly civilians, five people, as it turned out - scientists. They kept incognito, and to address any of them followed the "Herr Doctor".

On the third day of the voyage, the crew found out that it was the greatest honor to seek the legendary island of the Great Ancient Ones. According to the officially implanted "Aryan" mythology, the Germans are patronized by certain demigods, leading their race from time immemorial. It was they who initiated the Nordic race, and they, being convinced that the descendants are on the right path, will share the Inmost Knowledge, with which Great Germany will occupy the proper place in the world. The island of Tula, the cradle of the Aryans, is located in the Arctic Ocean. In recent years, the Soviet Union is exerting all its forces to open the mysterious island first. The Northern Sea Route, the development of the Arctic is just a cover for the insidious plans of the Russians. Having millions and acres of rich, but badly, sloppy and muddle-used, if not empty, land in the most favorable climatic zones, is it necessary to master the Arctic? It is the duty of true Germans to make every effort to be the first to achieve the Great Goal.

In addition to the propaganda crack, nothing concrete was reported.

And it is inappropriate for the crew to solve grandiose problems in search of the Great Ancients, they needed another - to endure hardship and adversity and to perform excellent service. Gerhard Schmidt was skeptical about ranting about the demigods, but admitted that on the deserted, untouched islands of the Arctic Ocean, traces of ancient civilizations may remain.

However, the scientists least looked historians. In the closed, close space of the submarine it is difficult to keep secrets, and scientists were not afraid of other people's ears, believing that the crew of the submarine consists of people who are completely devoted to the cause of Great Germany, but more than that the concepts of "gamma rays", "ionizing radiation, deposits of transuranic elements "little is said to limited military seamen.

The ice situation was favorable for navigation, and so the U32 rose rather quickly to 75 degrees north latitude. Further advancement was kept from the crew in secret - the coordinates were known to the captain, the navigator and, of course, the scientists.

On August 12, the submarine approached the island, which was called the "Island of Black Stones". Scientists said that the island is the threshold of Thule, and landed on it. Schmidt volunteered to be an assistant, and was not disappointed: on the island there were megalithic structures, which undoubtedly testified to the existence of an ancient civilization - though perhaps not as developed as the ideologists of Great Germany dreamed.

After that, a giant staircase was found, carved into the rock and leading to its summit. The stairs were designed for giants. People ordinary climbed it with great difficulty. On the sides of the stairs rose stone sculptures of monster-chimeras in two human heights. A strange incident occurred on the way half way: an incomprehensible force, like a magnet, pulled people to the ground, making each step incredibly difficult, and soon impossible. Despite this, the scientists made a desperate attempt to reach the top of the rock. Schmidt was ordered to wait on the spot. The attempt ended pitifully - two scientists lost consciousness, the others discovered profuse nasal bleeding.

I had to immediately evacuate. The return journey seemed an endless nightmare - from fatigue (it was necessary to carry the people who had lost consciousness) or from other reasons to Schmidt and others, it seemed that the stone statues were threateningly moving towards the exhausted people.

Fortunately, a rescue squad was sent from the submarine, and only thanks to this, no one remained on the Death Stairs (the name came to Schmidt's head at the first glance at her).

After a brief meeting between the scientists and the captain (Schmidt was not admitted to it), U32 lay down on the return journey. Scientists were seriously afflicted, they were isolated in a medical facility, and only the submarine commander had access to them, in addition to the doctor.

None of the "Herrs of Doctors" did not last till the Fatherland ...

Schmidt himself experienced fits of weakness and dizziness for half a year, but the treatment brought him back to service, until October 30, 1940.

Schmidt had two versions of what had happened. First, mysterious: they really found a settlement of the Great Ancients, but they disgraced the self-appointed "Aryan heirs" away. Such a discomfiture was by no means to be made public to those who considered themselves to be a born race of lords. The second version - the search for the legendary ancestors was a cover, in fact they were looking for radioactive elements - and found them! The deposit proved to be so rich that even a short stay on the island had a fatal effect on health.

Upon the arrival of the "Highlander" in the port of Schmidt, along with other captured submariners entered the disposal of the special services. The fact that McKinsey did not receive news from his cousin during the war is not surprising. But when, at the end of the war, he tried to make inquiries about a German relative, the answer was silence. Probably, Schmidt fell into the orbit of interests of the "senior partner" of Great Britain ...

Solomon Nuffert

COMMENTS:

The society "Thule" was founded in 1918 in Munich by Rudolf von Sebottendorf.

(Rudolf von Sebottendorf (1875-1945) .The organization declared itself as the leading structure of all German, national and national alliances and was officially called the "Group for the Study of Ancient Germany." Among the prevailing ideas that actively disseminated the "Thule" were national military traditions, pagan ideology, etc. Such views were expressed, first of all, in anti-republican agitation and anti-Semitic propaganda.The society had a well-known printed publication "Municher Beobachter" ("Munich , "Munchener Beobachter"), which was later transformed into "Velkischer Beobachter" ("People's Observer", Volkischer Beobachter ") - the permanent leading media of Nazi Germany.

The "Tula" society, which had a structural organization like Masonic lodges, had, at its best, up to 1500 members. Among his ranks were such well-known representatives of the NSDAP as Rudolf Hess, Alfred Rosenberg, Gottfried Feder and Dietrich Eckart (Rudolf Hess, Alfred Rosenberg, Gottfried Feder und Dietrich Eckart).

When joining the society, every neophyte had to prove the purity of his Aryan blood to the third tribe of kinship. German Reich Chancellor Adolf Hitler was under the strongest influence of the nationalistic, mystical and occult ideas preached by the organization. Hence the whole horror that National Socialism carried with it. This always happens when fanatical ideas substitute for common sense and healthy pragmatism. And, first of all, this statement is true with respect to politicians and politicians who have power.

Secret Underground City of SS
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In Poland and Germany there are still legends about mysterious underground fortifications lost in the forests of northwestern Poland and designated on the Wehrmacht's maps as the "Earthworm Camp". This concrete and fortified underground city remains to this day one of the terra incognita of the 20th century. "In the early 1960s, I, the military prosecutor, had an urgent matter to leave Wroclaw through Volow, Glogow, Green Guru and Miedzizhech in Kenshitsu," says Alexander Liskin, retired Colonel of Justice.

This small settlement, lost in the folds of the relief of northwestern Poland, seemed to have been completely forgotten.

Around the gloomy, hard-to-reach forest tracts, small rivers and lakes, old minefields, hollows nicknamed the "dragon's teeth," and the moats of the wehrmacht fortified by thistles cut through by us. Concrete, barbed wire, moss-wreathed ruins are all the remnants of a powerful defensive shaft, once intended to "shield" the faterland in case the war is rolled back. The Germans called Miedzizhech Mezerits. The fortified area, which also absorbed Kenshitsu, is called "Mezeritskiy". I've been to Kenshits earlier. To the visitor, the life of this village is almost invisible: peace, silence, the air is filled with the scents of the nearby forest. Here, on a little-known world of a patch of Europe, the military talked about the mystery of the forest lake Kshiva, located somewhere near, in the setting of a deaf coniferous forest. But no details. Rather, rumors, speculation...

I remember, on the old, sometimes sagging cobblestone road, we are traveling on the Victory to the location of one of the communication brigades of the Northern Group of Forces.

The five-battalion brigade was located in a former German military town, hidden from a curious eye in a green forest. Once this place was designated on the Wehrmacht's maps with the toponym "Regenwurmlager" - "The Camp of the Earthworm". The driver, corporal Vladimir Chernov, drills the country road through his eyes and at the same time listens to the work of the carburetor recently returned from overhauling the car. To the left is a sandy slope covered with spruce. Fir-trees and pines, it seems, are everywhere the same. But here they look grim. Forced stop. I guess a large hazel near the roadside. I leave the corporal at the rear of the hood and slowly climb up the scree sand. The end of July is the time for the collection of hazelnuts. Bypassing the bush, I suddenly come across an old grave: a blackened wooden Catholic cross on which the SS helmet is hanging, covered with a thick cobweb of cracks, at the base of the cross there is a white ceramic pot with dried field flowers.

In the thin grass, I can guess the trenching trench of the trench, the blackened cartridge cases from the German machine gun MG. From here, probably, well this road was shot at once.

I return to the car. From below Chernov waves his hands to me, points to a slope. A few more steps, and I see the stacking of old mortar mines sticking out of the sand. They seemed to have been thawed by melt water, rain, wind: the stabilizers were covered with sand, the fuses' heads stick out from the outside. Just a day ... A dangerous place in a quiet forest. About ten minutes later, the wall of the former camp, folded from huge boulders, appeared. Meters a hundred from her, near the road, like a concrete pillbox, a gray two-meter dome of some engineering structure. On the other side - the ruins, obviously, of the mansion. On the wall, as if cutting off the road from the military town, there are almost no traces of bullets and splinters.

According to local residents, there were no protracted battles, the Germans could not stand the onslaught. When it became clear to them that the garrison (two regiments, the SS school of the "Dead Head" and the support unit) could get into the environment, it was urgently evacuated. It is hard to imagine how it was possible for a few hours of almost a whole division to slip out of this natural trap. And where? If the only road on which we are riding was already intercepted by the tanks of the 44th Guards Tank Brigade of the First Guards Tank Army, General ME Katukov. The first "rammed" and found a gap in the minefields of the fortified area tank battalion of the Guard Major Alexei Karabanov, posthumously - Hero of the Soviet Union. Here around here he burned in his wounded car in the last days of January 1945 ...

The Kenshitsky garrison was remembered like this: behind the stone wall there were rulers of barracks buildings, a parade ground, sports grounds, a canteen, a little further - the headquarters, training classes, hangars for technology and communications. The important brigade was part of the elite forces that provided the General Staff with command of the troops in the impressive space of the European theater of operations. From the north to the camp, the lake of Kshiva, comparable in size to Chereminetsky, that is near St. Petersburg, or Dolgymi near Moscow, approaches. Amazing in its beauty, the Kenshitsky forest lake is surrounded everywhere by signs of secrecy, which, it seems, is even saturated with air.

From 1945 to almost the end of the 1950s, this place was, in fact, only under the supervision of the security management of the city of Miedzizhech - where, as they say, he was in charge of the service supervised by a Polish officer named Telutko - and the commander stationed somewhere near the Polish artillery regiment. With their direct participation, the temporary transfer of the territory of the former German military town to our communications brigade was carried out. A convenient town completely met the requirements and seemed to be all in the palm of your hand. At the same time, the prudent command of the brigade decided at the same time not to violate the rules for the quartering of troops and ordered to conduct a thorough engineering and reconnaissance reconnaissance in the garrison and surroundings.

It was here that the discoveries began that struck even the experienced veterans who were still in the service at that time. Let's start with the fact that near the lake, in a ferro-concrete box, the insulated output of an underground power cable was found, instrumental measurements on the veins of which showed the presence of an industrial current of 380 volts. Soon the attention of the sappers was attracted by a concrete well, which swallowed the water, which was falling from the height. At the same time, intelligence reported that, perhaps, underground power communication is coming from Mędzyzhech.

However, it did not exclude the presence of a hidden autonomous power station and the fact that its turbines were rotated by water falling into the well. It was said that the lake is somehow connected with the surrounding water bodies, and there are many of them. It was not possible to check these assumptions to the sappers of the brigade. Parts of the SS, who were in the camp in the fateful days of the 45th, how they sank into the water. Since it was impossible to bypass the lake along the perimeter because of the impassability of the forest, I, using the Sunday day, asked the commander of one of Captain Gamow's mouths to show me the terrain from the water. They got into the boat and, alternating with oars and making short stops, circled the lake in a few hours; we walked in close proximity to the shore. On the eastern side of the lake towered several powerful, already overgrown with the undergrowth of hills-waste heaps.

In some places artillery caponiers guessed by the front to the east and south were guessed. It was possible to notice two puddles similar to puddles. Nearby there were shields with inscriptions in two languages: "Danger! Mines! "

"Can you see the tropics?" Like the Egyptian pyramids. Inside of them are various secret passages, lazy. Through them, from below the ground, our radio relay operators, while arranging the garrison, took out facing slabs. It was said that "there" are real galleries. And as for these puddles, then, according to sappers, this is the flooded entrances to the underground city, "said Gamow and continued:" I recommend looking at another riddle - an island in the middle of the lake. " A few years ago, watchmakers of a low altitude post noticed that this island is not really an island in the usual sense. He is swimming, or rather, slowly drifting, standing as if at anchor.

I looked around. The floating island is overgrown with fir and willow. Its area did not exceed fifty square meters, and it seemed that it was really slowly and heavily rocking on the black water of a quiet reservoir. At the forest lake there was also an obviously artificial south-western and southern extension, reminiscent of an appendix. Here the pole went two or three meters deep, the water was relatively clear, but the algae that grew violently and resembled fern completely closed the bottom. In the middle of this bay, the gray reinforced concrete tower, this had once had a special purpose, stood gloomily. Looking at it, I remembered the air intakes of the Moscow metro, accompanying its deep tunnels.

In the narrow window it was clear that there was water inside the concrete tower. There was no doubt: somewhere below me was an underground structure, which for some reason it was required to erect here, in the remote places near Miedzyzic.

But acquaintance with the "Camp of the Earthworm" did not end there. During the same engineering reconnaissance, the sappers identified a tunnel entrance disguised as a hill. Already in the first approximation it became clear that this is a serious structure, and, probably, with various traps, including mines. It was said that somehow tipsy foreman on his motorcycle decided to ride on a mysterious tunnel.

They did not see him again. It was necessary to check all these facts, to clarify, and I turned to the brigade command. It turned out that the sappers and signalers of the brigade, as part of a special group, not only descended into it, but withdrew from the entrance for a distance of at least a dozen kilometers. True, no one in it did not disappear. The result - found several previously unknown inputs. For obvious reasons, information about this unusual expedition remained confidential.

With one of the officers of the headquarters, we went outside the territory of the unit, and the already familiar "steps to nowhere" and the gray concrete dome similar to the pillbox immediately flung into view, flickering on the other side of the road. "This is one of the entrances to the underground tunnel," the officer explained. - You understand that such revelations can stir minds.

This circumstance, taking into account our legal situation in the host country, prompted us to weld steel bars and armored plates to the entrance to the tunnel. No tragedies! We had to exclude them. True, the known entrances to the ground make us think that there are others. - So what is there? "Below us, as far as we can imagine, is the underground city, where everything is available for autonomous life for many years," the officer replied. "One of the participants of the same search group, established on the orders of Colonel Doroshev, the commander of the brigade," he continued, "the technician-captain Cherepanov, later told us that through this pillbox, which we see, they fell deep down the steel spiral staircases. By the light of acid lanterns they entered the underground metro. It was just the subway, because along the bottom of the tunnel a railway track was laid. The ceiling was without signs of soot. On the walls - neat cabling. Probably, the locomotive here was powered by electricity.

The group did not enter the tunnel at the beginning. The beginning of the tunnel was somewhere under a forest lake. The other part was directed to the west - to the Oder River. Almost immediately, an underground crematorium was discovered. Perhaps, it was in his stoves that the remains of the dungeon builders burned. Slowly, with precautionary measures, the search group moved along the tunnel towards modern Germany. Soon they abandoned the tunnel branches, tens of them were found. And to the right, and to the left. But most of the branches were neatly sealed.

Perhaps these were approaches to unknown objects, including parts of the underground city. A grandiose underground network remained for the uninitiated with a maze of many dangers maze. It was not possible to check it thoroughly. The tunnel was dry - a sign of good waterproofing. It seemed that on the other side, unknown, the lights of a train or a large lorry were just about to appear (motor transport could also move there) ... From Cherepanov's words, it was a man-made underground world, which is an excellent realization of engineering thought.

The captain told me that the group moved slowly, and after a few hours of being underground, I began to lose the feeling of what I had really gone through.

Someone from its participants came to the idea that the investigation of the canned underground city, laid under forests, fields and rivers, is a task for specialists of a different level. This other level required much effort, money and time. According to our military estimates, the subway could stretch for tens of kilometers and "dive" under the Oder. Where further and where its terminal station - it was difficult to even guess. Soon the senior group decided to return. The brigade commander was informed of the results of the reconnaissance. "It turns out that there were fights from above, tanks and people were burning," I thought aloud, "and below were the giant concrete arteries of the mysterious city. This is not immediately possible to imagine, being in this sullen edge.

To put it bluntly, the first information about the scale of the secret dungeon was kutsy, however, it was amazing. As the former chief of staff of the Brigade Colonel P.N. Kabanov testifies, shortly after the memorable first survey from Legnica to Kenshitsu, the commander of the Northern Group of Forces, Colonel-General P.S. Maryakhin, who personally descended into the underground metro, arrived specially. Later I happened to meet and repeatedly talk in detail about the "Earthworm Camp" with one of the last commanders of the Kenshitsk Brigade, Colonel V.I. Spiridonov.

Gradually, a new vision of this unusual in its scale military riddle. It turned out that during the period from 1958 to 1992, nine commanders alternated from the five battalion brigade, and each of them - if you do not want to - had to adapt to the neighborhood with this undiscovered underground territory. Spiridonov's service in the brigade took place in two stages. In the first, in the mid-1970s, Vladimir Ivanovich was a staff officer, and on the second - a brigade commander. From his words, almost all the commanders of the Northern Group of Forces (GGV) considered it their duty to visit the distant garrison and personally get acquainted with the underground labyrinths.

According to engineering and sapper report, which happened to read Spiridonov, only under the garrison was discovered and examined 44 kilometers of underground communications. Vladimir Ivanovich still has photofacilities of some objects of the old German defense near Kenshitsa. On one of them is the entrance to the underground tunnel.

The officer testifies that the height and width of the trunk of the underground metro are about three meters. The neck smoothly descends and dives under the earth to a depth of fifty meters. There, the tunnels branch out and intersect, there are transport platforms-junctions. Spiridonov also points out that the walls and ceiling of the metro are made of reinforced concrete slabs, the floor is laid out with rectangular stone slabs. He personally, as a specialist, drew attention to the fact that this secret highway was pierced in the thickness of the earth in a western direction, towards the Oder, to which from Kenshitsa in a straight line of 60 kilometers. He had to hear that at the site where the subway dives under the Oder, the tunnel is submerged. With one of the commanders of the SCW, Spiridonov descended deep into the ground and on the army "UAZ" drove through the tunnel towards Germany at least 20 kilometers.

About the underground city, the former brigade commander believes, knew the little-talked Pole, known in Miedzizhech as Dr. Podbelsky.

In the late 1980s he was almost ninety years old ... A passionate local historian, at the end of the 1940s and the beginning of the 1950s alone, at his own peril and risk, he fell down several times underground through the detected laz. In the late 1980s, Podbelsky said that the Germans started building this strategic facility as far back as 1927, but most actively - since 1933, when Hitler came to power in Germany. In 1937, the latter personally came to the camp from Berlin and, on the rails of the secret subway. In fact, from this moment the hidden city was considered to be used by the Wehrmacht and the SS.

With some hidden communications, the giant facility was connected with the plant and strategic storage facilities, also underground, located in the area of ​​the villages of Vysoka and Peski, which is two to five kilometers west and north of the lake. The lake Krzyva, says the colonel, is striking in its beauty and purity. Ironically, the lake is an integral part of the mystery. The area of ​​its mirror is at least 200 thousand square meters, and the depth scale - from 3 (in the south and west) to 20 meters (in the east). It was in the eastern part that some army lovers of fishing managed to see in the summer, under favorable illumination, something on the silted bottom, resembling a very large hatch, which, in military personnel, was nicknamed "the eye of the underworld".

The so-called "eye" was tightly closed. Was it not in his time he had to cover from the view of the pilot and the heavy bomb already mentioned above floating island? Why could such a hatch serve? Most likely, he served as a kingston for an emergency flooding of a part or all underground structures. But if the hatch to this day is closed, then they did not use it in January 1945. Thus, it cannot be ruled out that the underground city is not flooded, but is preserved "up to a special case". Is something keeping its underground horizons? Whom are they waiting for? Spiridonov noted that around the lake, in the forest, many surviving and destroyed wartime objects. Among them are the ruins of the rifle complex and the hospital for the elite of the SS troops.

Everything was made of reinforced concrete and refractory bricks. And most importantly – it’s powerful dots. Their reinforced concrete and steel domes were once armed with large-caliber machine guns and cannons, equipped with semi-automatic submachine guns. Under meter armor of these caps to the depth of 30-50 meters left the underground floors, which housed sleeping and household facilities, warehouses and food, as well as communication nodes.

Personally, Spiridonov examined six dots, located to the south and west of the lake. Up to the northern and eastern pillboxes, as they say, his hands did not reach. The approaches to these deadly firing points were reliably covered by minefields, ditches, concrete hooks, barbed wire, engineering traps. They were at the entrance to each pillbox.

Imagine, from the armored door inside the pillbox, a bridge leads, which immediately capsizes under the feet of the uninitiated, and he will inevitably collapse into a deep concrete well, from which he can no longer rise alive. At great depth the pillboxes are connected by passages with underground labyrinths. During the years of the Colonel's service in the brigade, the subordinates repeatedly reported to him that the "soldier radio" informed of secret hiding places in the base of the garrison club through which unidentified servicemen allegedly went to "waggon". These rumors, fortunately, have not been confirmed. However, such reports had to be checked carefully. But, as for the cellar of the mansion, in which the brigade commander lived, the rumors about the hills were confirmed.

So, having decided once to check the reliability of the home, he somehow on Sunday began to tap a scrap of the wall. In one place, the blows were given especially deafly. Struck with force, the officer lost the gun: the steel scrap under his own weight "flew" into the void. The case for "small" is to investigate further ... But, strange as it may seem, the hands do not reach it! "So this is what the earthworm" dug up "into the deafness! Did he open a network of underground cities and communications right up to Berlin? And is it not here, in Kenshic, the key to unraveling the mystery of the concealment and disappearance of the Amber Room, other treasures stolen in the countries of Eastern Europe and, above all, Russia? Perhaps, "Regenwurmlager" is one of the objects of preparation of Nazi Germany for possessing an atomic bomb? In 1992, the communications brigade left Kenshitsu.

For the last 34 years of the history of the Kenshitsky garrison, several tens of thousands of soldiers and officers have served in it, and turning to their memory, it is possible to restore many interesting details of the underground puzzle under Miedzizhech. May be remembered by the veterans of the 44th Guards Tank Brigade of the 1st Guards Tank Army, their combat neighbors to the right and to the left are the former soldiers of the 8th Guards Army at that time Colonel-General V.I. Chuikov and 5th Army of Lieutenant-General Berzarin? "Do you know in the modern Poland about the" Earthworm Camp? "- asks Alexander Lukin at the end of his story. - Of course, to understand it to the end, if possible, is the business of the Poles and Germans. Probably, in Germany there were also documentary tracks, live builders and users of this military-engineering phenomenon.

Myths about Hitler's death
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There are a lot of truths that seem to be quite obvious, and yet it is because of their obviousness that people often do not notice them, or, at least, do not understand their meaning. Past such self-evident truths, people sometimes go through as blind, and then are extremely surprised when someone suddenly discovers what everyone would have expected to know. Wherever you look, there are thousands of columb eggs everywhere, but there are very few Columbus in life.

Adolf Hitler. My struggle

This quotation shows not the wisdom of the self-taught Hitler, but his strange, special mindset is perverted. This self-confidence of paranoid is very recognizable in other modern politicians. Such a narcissistic, disconnected person, surprised by the normal views of normal people, could not be indifferent to the Act of His Death. He must have given much thought to his own death, and has furnished her so and so with all sorts of rituals and signs of his own particularity. He's Columbus! And his death must be perceived by blind people, at least as the loss of people of Columbus of our time.

However, this does not correspond in any way to a miserable scorched corpse, found two steps from the entrance to the bunker. Hitler simply could not care less about his remains, giving them to the desecration of the "hordes of the lower races."

On the occasion of the next anniversary of the victory over Nazi Germany on TV, in the cinema and in the press, the last minutes of the Fuhrer are repeatedly repeated: here he marries Eva Braun, here he forces a vial of poison into her mouth, he tries to shoot himself, but he is afraid ... Then he allegedly swallows an ampoule, an officer enters the room and shoots at Hitler (they say, "the Fuhrer must die like a soldier"), then the bodies are taken out and burned in the courtyard near the bunker ...

All this is a beautiful fairy tale, which is virtually unconfirmed.

The history of the war is generally a continuous myth (if, for example, we compare the writings of historians of the West and the writings of historians of the USSR, it seems that these allies in the anti-Hitler coalition fought in two completely different, unlike wars). And in this case - in the case of the "suicide of the Hitler's couple" - propaganda replaces with fiction (not even reconstruction!) those events about which little are known or nothing at all. And what is known is completely contrary to myths.

So, let's look at the main myths around Hitler's death.

1. Was Hitler's marriage to Eva Braun?

There was not and there is not one witness of such a marriage in the bunker. However, the generally accepted point of view is the alleged fact that Hitler and Eva Brown married on April 29, 1945. This marriage was allegedly committed by the Gauleiter of Berlin Walter Wagner in the presence of Bormann and Goebbels as witnesses.

The problem is that all the persons who allegedly were present at the marriage were killed (or fled, like Martin Bormann). But where did the information about the event come from? From the story of two secretaries, who, incidentally, themselves did not see anything, and only someone told them this news - and also died by the time of their interrogation.

But the testimony of persons, quite competent, for some reason was rejected. Hanna Reich, who was in the bunker, and General Robert Ritter von Graeme - few surviving witnesses of the last days of the bunker, close to the Fuhrer, firmly declared that there had been no marriage. They were sure that this was only the gossip of the secretaries.

The fact that Hitler married, should have known the closest associates of the leader. But no one was told anything. Is not it strange?

There is, however, one mention of marriage: this is the so-called "testament" of Hitler, where he writes: "My wife and I prefer to die in order to avoid the shame of overthrowing or capitulating." However, this document itself, signed by some kind of curl, which is not very similar to the signature of the Fuhrer, inspires historians with serious doubts (graphologists did not confirm its authenticity, and an analysis of the facts connected with the appearance of this document makes one suspect forgery). Historians suggest that this document was created in order to mislead and, perhaps, conceal the murder of Hitler.

Many historians tend to believe that Hitler could have been killed by his comrades-in-arms (in the first place - Martin Bormann, who had a carefully designed escape plan and billions of stamps on secret foreign accounts).

2. Did Hitler commit suicide?

It would seem that in this matter we must rely on the testimony of surviving bunker dwellers. But, firstly, their testimony is not only different, but sometimes completely contradictory. Secondly, more than half of those who testified about the alleged suicide of Hitler were exposed in lies, since each of the arrested people tried to get some better (in terms of fictional) paintings about the last hours of the Fuhrer to bargain for themselves better conditions in captivity or money from magazines. Thirdly, some of the arrested bunker dwellers in general stated that they did not know anything about the suicide of the Fuhrer.

In the West (in the western zone of occupation) there were quite a few people from the bunker; almost all of them fell into Soviet captivity. From there they were sent to Germany only in 1955. Prior to this, at the disposal of the West, among the main witnesses of the events in the bunker were Kempke, Axman and several other persons. There was not a single witness who saw how Hitler and Eva Brown had died; The first report submitted by British intelligence claimed that Hitler shot himself in the mouth, and Eve took poison; This report not only did not coincide with the initial testimony of Kempka, which were found to be incorrect, but was based on subsequent false testimony.

Western witnesses lied: their testimony absolutely did not match. Someone said that, standing at the thick steel door into the room of the Fuhrer, did not hear the sound of the shots, but he saw the smoke from under the door to Hitler's room - after the shots, although the doors did not let smoke pass. Another witness said that after learning about the upcoming suicide of the "four Hitlers" she went to play with the children of Goebbels to another floor, and there she heard two loud shots (through soundproof doors, walls and floors!), from which the children also shuddered. And so on - with a lot of unprovided details - who said what, how someone reacted.

All this contradicted the various testimonies of supposedly witnesses (this was a complete mess) - and the facts. From the doors of the bunker rooms, neither the sound of a shot, nor the smell of cyanide, nor smoke-the doors were created in the event of a chemical war nor a fire-could come out.

And the witnesses were "gradually returned" to memory: they all "recalled" the details by the mid-1950s, creating a single picture of what had happened: all by that time they had claimed that Hitler had put a bullet in his mouth. Now everyone remembered everything, supposedly at different times and under different, still contradictory, circumstances, who discovered the corpse of Hitler. Eva Braun, in these already amicable testimonies, was sitting dead next to him on the couch, her legs tucked under her and laying her head on his shoulder. Idyllic death. It was invented not by repentant people, but by people for whom Eva Braun and the Fuhrer are an ideal forever.

Already, the pathologists did not believe in this myth - they die torturously from cyanide: they bite their legs, grind their teeth, spasm of the spine is common, the victim suffers several minutes. Surely such a romantic pose, Brown and Hitler (who shot himself in the mouth and was sitting right on the couch) would not be; most likely Eve would have been found lying on the floor. To make it doubtful in these testimonies could at least testify how the children of Goebbels died of cyanide: while they were catching another child and stuffing poison into his mouth, the other, poisoned, for about five minutes started to convulse on the floor, smearing it with foam from the mouth and urine.

Nevertheless, for about ten years the newspapers and books of the West described it exactly - according to eyewitnesses - the death of the Fuehrer and his beloved. He shot himself in the mouth, she heard a shot, crushed the ampoule in her mouth and, sighing, laid her head on the boy's shoulder. Straight tear curls...

October 8, 1955 from the USSR in Germany returned the first batch of German prisoners. The press was sensationally interested in two people: Hans Baur, the pilot of Hitler, and Heinz Linge, his valet. They were interested for the reason that both had no idea about the version of the death of the Führer, which was widespread in the West. Both said things that contradict each other, and to what was until now generally considered in the West as the "picture of what happened." Baur in the presence of forty journalists said: "The Fuhrer looked me very seriously in the eyes, shook hands, said goodbye and shot himself. Eva Braun shot herself at the same time. I did not stay there to examine their bodies, and I do not know what happened to them. "

The whole West was in shock.

Later, other witnesses of the events in the bunker returned from the Soviet captivity. Everyone was telling something of his own. Changed the circumstances of suicide, a place of suicide. That Hitler finished with him along with Eve, then alone. It's in my room, then in the card room. All testimonies were accompanied by a mass of bright details, replicas of persons allegedly present at the same time. Piled up monstrous porridge.

Western historians, journalists, bringing all this under one denominator, came to the conclusion that it is clear, at least, one that is indicated by all the witnesses: Hitler shot himself in the mouth.

And then a new shock came. In the USSR in 1965, materials were published that related to the investigation of the bodies of supposedly Hitler and Eva Brown, found near the bunker, and investigations of the bunker premises. It followed that neither Eva Braun's room nor Hitler's room contained traces of head shots (there were no traces of blood on the walls). But there are traces of blood, corresponding to the supposed fact that on the bed and sofa in the rooms of Hitler was a man who opened his veins. Next: if you can talk about the deadly gunshot wound supposedly a corpse of Hitler, then it can only be a shot in the temple. In any case, the nasopharynx was intact.

So, the fact is that in the room of Hitler someone (presumably, Hitler) opened himself a vein on his arm, sitting in an armchair. Then, in a few minutes, this one lay down on the bed. A lot of blood flowed from his body, as it was soaked through with the mattress seized then by SMERSH for analysis. A blood test showed that it does not belong to any of the bodies presumed to be the bodies of Hitler and Eva Brown.

As for these corpses found in the courtyard of the bunker, then about them a little lower.

For the present we only note that Hitler's suicide might well have taken place, but this is another suicide - without official announcement to comrades-in-arms, quietly, by opening veins. Perhaps Hitler did so, putting his companions before the need to hastily create a picture of the "death of the Gods", "beautiful and courageous death." In this case, the corpses found in the courtyard are a staging, a forgery. And they were so.

However, there is one more possibility: that someone after the death of Hitler and Brown entered the room of Hitler and there he cut his veins. However, this could not be for many reasons. Hitler's room after his death was locked, and the Soviet soldiers who entered the bunker, they found no one. Where did the body of this suicide go? All this, like many others, makes us suspect that it was Hitler who opened his veins in his room.

Why did the blood from Hitler's room (A2) not coincide with the blood of the burnt corpse of supposedly Hitler (like the corpse supposedly Eva Brown)? Obviously, the suspicious Hitler, knowing full well the significance of even his remains, bequeathed them to hide from the sacrilege of the Communists. That's why the remains of allegedly Hitler and Eva Brown were burned at the bunker, and the real remains of the Fuhrer were either hidden or taken away as a relic. Or burned to dust, but burned secretly.

My opinion here is this: initially Hitler and his associates in terms of creating a "dead double" came only from the dental identification of the corpse, which was supposed to be burned. No one could foresee that the Führer would open his veins, as the Führer was preparing the escape routes. Therefore, no one expected the situation that the blood of a double would be compared with the blood of a suicide in Hitler's room in a bunker. Moreover, Hitler was treated for almost 20 years only by an approximate doctor and never gave his blood for analysis. In this, historians see Hitler's fear to reveal the fact that Hitler was sick with syphilis (or paranoia). The reality is that even Hitler's blood group is unknown (and was not known in the Reich), since he categorically opposed the analysis of his blood.

And this means that the effusions of blood found in Hitler's room could well have belonged to him.

3. Was there a poison?

Now let's check another myth - that Hitler and Eva Braun passed away with the help of poison (remember the scene shown in the Soviet fantasy film "Liberation" scene, how Hitler shoves the ampule of poison into Evya Brown's mouth with a trembling hand?).

When SMERSH staff found in the courtyard of the bunker the remains of supposedly Hitler and Eva Brown (and were found without difficulty in a barely scattered hole a couple of paces from the entrance to the bunker, which all SS men willingly pointed out to him or at least sympathizing with him, since Nazis), then they called on specialists to check what kind of corpses are issued for the saints for the Nazis.

The identity of the corpse of supposedly Hitler was proved by the examination of the dentists, and the corpse supposedly by Eva Brown is the presence of a dental bridge. An x-ray of the teeth of allegedly Hitler, found in the dental office of the Imperial Chancery, confirmed that the remains were belonged to the Fuhrer. And the denture, found in the corpse, supposedly Eva Brown, is the second of two made for her by the Berlin dentists (the first was found in the same dental office of the Imperial Chancery).

We will return to this dental identification of bodies.

So, in the mouth of the corpses were found fragments of ampoules containing cyanide.

Although in the mouth of the corpses supposedly Hitler and Eva Brown were fragments from the ampoule, cyanide was only in the mouth, and it was nowhere else in the body. But the corpses of Goebbels children, really poisoned with cyanide, contained cyanide in all tissues, and the pathologists conducted their autopsy with great precautions, for fear of poisoning. Cyanide vapor made it difficult for doctors to work in those cases, and in cases with these two corpses there was not even a smell of cyanide at all. To be more precise, it was originally, and in the documents it was recorded that when the corpses were examined externally, a distinct smell of almonds (cyanide) was noted. But there was no smell of cyanide potassium at the dissection of the lungs, brain and intestines, and none of the organs sent to path anatomical and toxicological studies.

Moreover, the glass fragments from the ampoules found in the bodies of the supposedly four Hitlers differed from the fine, fine fragments found in other corpses when they crushed ampoules, and then gritted their teeth in cramps. A document on the examination of female remains, found together with remains officially declared as remains of Hitler, reports: "In the mouth between teeth and under the tongue, large yellowish fragments of glass from 1 to 5 square meters were found. mm from a thin-walled ampoule "- fragments similar in size to those obtained when the ampoule is crushed once.

The conclusion is obvious: the ampoules were crushed in the mouth of the corpses after death. It turns out that this supposed couple of Hitlers did not poison at all.

4. Did Eve Brown die?

But from what causes did these bodies die? The body of the allegedly Hitler was significantly burned, and it was not possible to establish the cause of death precisely. But the cause of the death of the equally scorched Eva Brown was obvious.

The document on the examination of this body says the following.

The corpse was badly burned - it was the most burned corpse of all, which was examined by Soviet doctors. Almost the entire upper part of the head was burned, and in the front part of the skull it was destroyed to the middle of the frontal sinus. The temporal and occipital bones (on the sides of the head and behind) are thinned, cracked and disintegrated from the heat into small pieces. However, there was no evidence of a bullet wound.

The right side of the face, as well as the neck, is badly burned, but the left side is better preserved. Apparently, the corpse lay on the right side when it was burned. As a result, the only intact part of the skin extends from the left scapula to the waist and left buttock. The right side of the chest and abdominal cavity burned completely, so that the internal organs open. The right hand burned to such an extent that the lower part of the hand is completely destroyed, and the right hand is particularly affected by the fire, although it has survived. The lower extremities were not so affected by the fire, although the skin became black and cracked, and the foot became brown.

With great surprise, Soviet experts found two holes in the left side of the chest, near the sternum, which were the result of a wound from shrapnel or bullet; each hole about a centimeter in diameter. There was, also, the document, "severe damage to the sternum": in the upper part of the lung there were two holes with a diameter of 0.4 to 0.6 cm, in the left pleura accumulated about half a liter of blood. In the same chest cavity, six steel pieces measuring about 0.5 square meters were also found. see In the upper ventricle of the heart, two holes of 0.8 and 0.4 cm were found. "They are surrounded by two clearly discernible clots of blood; similar lesions are present in the left pleura. "

Modern researcher Hugh Thomas comments on these autopsy results as follows:

"The autopsy data indicate that the person examined by the Russians was seriously injured by shrapnel at LIFE, because the accumulation of blood in the tissues can occur only during life, after death it cannot. So, if the cause of death was cyanide poisoning, and the body was fired when it was burning, it could not have such distinct lesions of the chest, lungs, pleura, or heart.

In addition, it is highly unlikely that shrapnel fragments will penetrate the left side of the corpse, lying in the funnel from the projectile. This ONLY detail casts doubt on the whole legend of this woman who died with Hitler. "

More about the mythical death of Eva Brown, I already told several years ago in the big study "Where did Eva Brown disappear?" There is no need to return to the details, I will briefly mention only the main reasons to suspect forgery.

Eva Braun had fine teeth, but a few weeks before the collapse of Germany, she suddenly turned to her dentist Hugo Blaschke with the request to make her two completely identical golden bridges. He was surprised, but fulfilled his request. Eve did not carry these bridges (detained by the Soviet side on May 9, Kate Heyzerman, assistant Blaschke, said that they no longer had time to put them either in the dentist or in the patient). One was placed in the dental office of the Imperial Chancery, and the other was supposedly somewhere near Eva.

And now the Soviet officers find at the entrance to the bunker a body dressed in the dress of Eva Braun. The cause of death is clear - a heavy wound by shrapnel. The head is mutilated until completely unrecognizable, burned. In his mouth - a chopped ampoule with poison and untouched by a scratch of the golden bridge of Eva Brown, which she did not have time to establish a dentist. That part of the jaw, where the bridge was supposed to stand, was shattered by rude blows. Eva Braun had 26 teeth of her own, experts found only 11. Eva Brown had all teeth in a well-groomed state, they were naturally blackened by the corpse, without any trace of any medical care for many years (is it even possible, in their right mind , imagine a friend of Hitler with black teeth who did not know the toothbrush and medical care?).

Both left canines in the upper jaw of Eve were repeatedly seriously sealed, but they found the whole body in the found body, and the teeth of the lower jaw, and not the upper one, were treated. In addition, the upper right molar of Eve had a large seal, and in the found corpse this tooth, found knocked out and lying on the tongue, was completely intact.

In a word, this is not Eva Brown's body, but an obvious attempt to extradite the body of some German woman killed by shelling for the body of Eva Braun.

5. Does the body of Hitler belong to Hitler?

But in the whole of this story, the fate of Eva Braun us first of all may be interested in the fact that she allows us to know the truth in the fate of Adolf Hitler himself.

In fact: if Eva Brown, in preparation for the flight, orders two gold prostheses from the dentist Eva and Hitler Hugo Blaschke, Hitler himself could not have known this. Moreover, Eve alone can not organize forgery with bodies, this is only possible for the Fuhrer's associates: it's not that Eva herself was looking for a suitable corpse of a German woman in the shelled streets of Berlin, wearing a corpse in her dress, punching his teeth, crushing an ampoule with poison in mouth ...

It is clear that a group of experienced people worked here. The recognition of the corpse of supposedly Hitler passed exclusively comparing the teeth of the corpse with the X-ray images of Hitler's teeth, lying in the dental office of the Imperial Chancery. On the basis of their identity, an "irrefutable" conclusion was drawn that SMERSH found the body of the Fuhrer. But is not it all too simple?

If Eva Brown kept her newly made gold bridge in the dental office of the Imperial Chancellery specifically to be later checked with a bridge in the mouth of a suitable corpse, are not X-ray images of Hitler's teeth supposedly the same proof?

The body of supposedly Hitler was monstrously burnt: the whole right side of the body was burned to the ashes, exposing the lungs, liver and intestines. What can be identified here? Only teeth. But it's easier to forge them: just put in the dental office of the Imperial Chancellery X-ray pictures of the person you want to extradite for Hitler. Testimony of Hitler's dentists? In this case, the double should be given the same dental traces of treatment that dentists remember from Hitler. This is a dental double, dental...

Conclusions

Let's sum up.

1. There are no intelligible evidence that Hitler's marriage and Eva Braun's marriage took place in the bunker.

2. Found the body of the bunker allegedly Eva Brown - with absolute accuracy - it does not belong.

3. There are good reasons to believe that the body of Adolf Hitler, found near the bunker, does not belong to him.

4. A study of the bodies of supposedly four Hitlers found near the bunker showed that they did not die from poison (ampoules are already crushed in the mouth of corpses). The cause of the death of the body is supposedly Eva Brown is a mortal wound from an artillery shell. The cause of the death of the allegedly Hitler's body is not established.

5. In the room of Hitler in the bunker, at least one suicide (or attempt to it) took place - by cutting veins on the arm. The blood of the person who committed this suicide in Hitler's room does not coincide with the blood of Hitler's alleged body, burnt near the entrance to the bunker.

6. The dramatization of the death of Eva Brown shows the possibility of the escape of Adolf Hitler, since such plans were to be prepared for both, and not for one Eva Brown.

... Did Adolf Hitler escape? Theoretically it was possible and certainly planned, as Eva Braun still managed to escape with Martin Bormann (apparently, in Paraguay, as Julian Semenov wrote, who found his footprints there).

But, I believe, at the last moment the Fuhrer refused to escape and opened his veins. And it happened, obviously, in secret from the comrades-in-arms and from Eve herself. And, of course, without any wedding and other nonsense. Just someone entered the room of Hitler - and saw that the impressionable Fuhrer was bleeding.

It is clear that the Nazis would not allow the pathologists of the hated Soviets to stumble in the body of the dead leader. Therefore, Hitler's body could not be given to the Communists. What happened to him is unknown.

The story about the alleged death of Hitler and Eva Brown in the bunker is another vivid example of how reality completely disagrees with the myths of public consciousness.

Stalin understood the extremely important ideological task as soon as possible to officially declare that Hitler was dead. It was necessary for the people - as a point in the war. That is why under such pressure the Soviet experts who examined the bodies of supposedly Hitler and Eva Brown scrupulously listed all the absurdities and inconsistencies, drew attention to the obvious forgery, but gave a completely ridiculous conclusion. For example, in relation to the body, supposedly Eva Brown was told that although the shrapnel wound was fatal and intravital, and there is no poison in the body tissues, but the cause of death is still poison. In fact, Eva Brown, taking poison, was immediately killed by an artillery shell that did not allow the poison to spread throughout the body. Well, is it nonsense? Did Eve Brown take poison not in the bunker, but in the street? And how in general, after receiving two holes in the heart, you can still commit suicide by thrusting an ampoule with poison into your mouth? And how did the Soviet sages come to the conclusion that two holes in the heart are not a fatal wound, but the cause of death was poison, which did not penetrate into the body tissue at all?

However, the contradictions of the experts did not bother, they did their job - they declared that the couple of the Hitlers were dead, than they reassured the people. And all their research contradicting the conclusion is for the secret work of other specialists.

Really: imagine the creators of the epic "Liberation" - what could they show to the people if they followed the true facts, and not fiction? It's one thing - the scene of the alleged marriage and suicide of the four Hitlers. Another thing is to say that near the bunker, it is not the bodies of the above persons that were found (at least not exactly Eva Braun's body), where Hitler and Eve have gone, is unknown, and in Hitler's room there are traces of how someone opened his veins. And what will this give the audience? Instead of a fat victory point, it's an ellipsis. If it is not clear what was in the bunker, then, they say, and Victory does not seem complete ...

This is official, but in practice Stalin did not believe that these remains belong to the "couple of Hitler". A few more years the bodies are no longer military special services, and the organs of the NKVD-MGB of Beria looked for ends here. Deputy Beria Serov said: "We will reveal the ways in which they fled from the Imperial Chancellery." A second study of the bodies was carried out, it was concluded: this is a forgery. A year later, in the bunker, Beria's services were conducted by investigative experiments, again placing the furniture in their places. The testimony of eyewitnesses of Hitler's alleged suicide was exposed as lying. The special services ransacked the whole of Berlin and the entire occupied part of Germany, but the search was futile. In the end, I had to admit that although the bodies found were not the bodies of Hitler and Eva Brown, they apparently did commit suicide rather than fled (and their bodies were simply taken out and hidden), since nothing about the new location allegedly escaped unknown.

The last circumstance was the most important, since Hitler's appearance somewhere in the underground, beyond the reach of the Kremlin, would be a big problem. But the escaped Nazis did not declare themselves anywhere (the same Bormann or Muller stayed in the shadows in South America). This concludes the matter: Nazism did not show any desire to continue the struggle.

But in this story there is no point at all. In fact, we still do not know what happened in the bunker of Hitler. The death of the Goebbels family is a fact. The death of Hitler and Eva Brown - facts rejected.

It is significant that Goebbels did not commit suicide at all. He poisoned the children, and ordered himself and his wife to shoot the SS officers, as he remembered that suicide was a sin in Christianity and an unacceptable weakness within the ideals of the SS. If Hitler really planned a death (and not a hoax), then it would be MANDATORY, like Goebbels, - precisely and only from the hand of the SS officer, and not suicide. And suicide would not have been part of the plans; it was unacceptable if it were a question of Hitler's death. But, perhaps, these plans destroyed the internal crisis of the Nazi leader, when he at the last moment did not find the strength to run somewhere and cut his own veins. That's when the event "covered" the planned hoax about suicide, although the Fuhrer himself actually laid his hands on himself.

So it was or not so - all in the darkness of the mystery.

But still closer to reality is not the picture of events than the "Liberation" shown for us in the epic. But another thing: Hitler goes to his room and opens the veins on his arm, sitting in an armchair, and then lies on his own bed. Flows out and waits for death. So it is found by associates. This is much closer to real facts.

Riddles of the expedition on the airship "Graf Zeppelin"
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30th years of the twentieth century… In Europe, in the face of Nazi Germany, there is a real military-economic force that can change the geopolitical situation not only in the oldest Europe, but throughout the world. The only country that could interfere with Hitler's imperial plans was the Soviet Union.

Germany and the Soviet Union, understanding in the early 30's that it depends on them preservation, albeit fragile, but peace, tried to maintain relations based on mutually beneficial cooperation. This cooperation mainly concerned the fields of science, industry and technology.

Special relations were maintained in the military field. As part of it, German aeronauts were invited to participate in an aerial expedition to their Russian colleagues. In June 1931 a huge German airship called "Graf Zeppelin" arrived in Leningrad (today - the city of St. Petersburg). Russia met a large group with great joy - there were also orchestras, and festive greetings, and admiration for the level of German technology. The way of the expedition was planned to be laid from Leningrad: first over the Barents Sea in the direction of Franz Josef Land, and further to the Northern Earth. The next point of visit was the island of Taimyr and Novaya Zemlya. The permission for the flight over the Russian territory was received in the shortest possible time.

At that time, this Arctic territory of the Soviet Union was completely deserted, and aviation flights and shipping, requiring great courage in the most difficult Arctic climate, were considered very dangerous. The Soviet secret services were sure that the Germans would not be able to learn any secrets, and the geographical maps of this region existed even before the expedition at the Graf Zeppelin.

The Germans offered to participate in the research of the Arctic territories and Soviet specialists in the person of Professor R.L. Samoilovich (he participated in the 1928 polar expedition on the icebreaker "Krasin"), Professor PA. Molchanov (specialist in aerology), engineer F.F. Asberg and the radio operator E.T. Krenkel.

In Leningrad, the German airship was modified a little, preparing it for flight in arctic conditions. The bottom of the gondola was made waterproof and installed additional floats, making it possible to land on water in an emergency. On the airship placed additional video and photo equipment, as well as radio navigation equipment.

In the Bay of Tikhaya (Franz Josef Land) researchers were expecting the icebreaker "Malygin" to exchange mail. Professor Samoilov, in consequence, wrote that during the five days of the flight on the airship it was possible to collect so much information and carry out a lot of scientific research, which under usual conditions would take several years. The Germans scrupulously conducted the aerial survey of the coast, conducted metrological and aerological observations, measured geomagnetic anomalies. All these data were invaluable for navigation. On the map were marked new, hitherto unknown islands. The results of this expedition were not spoken in the Soviet Union, but the Germans published a lot of information about the Soviet Arctic territories.

Today it is precisely known that the expedition on the Graf Zeppelin was organized by the German General Staff and the expedition included highly professional military specialists and scouts, who were tasked with obtaining maximum information about the Soviet Arctic territories. Admiral Karl Doenitz in 1939 admitted that the materials of this expedition greatly helped in developing plans for future military operations on northern Russian communications. It should be noted that the Soviet intelligence officers knew about all the plans of the Wehrmacht General Staff, including naval operations in the Arctic territory of the USSR. It turned out that it was not possible to prevent the Germans from implementing their plans, and for this failure of the Soviet secret services, Professor Samoilovich answered: he was repressed as an "enemy of the people" and a German spy.

Admiral Denitz enjoyed the full confidence of Hitler: in 1945, Hitler called him his successor just before his own death. But Deniz was not only a faithful ally of the fascist leader, but also a talented military commander. He developed a bold and original doctrine of the actions of the German submarine fleet in the northern waters.

Admiral Denits was considered a fan of the submarine fleet. In 1935, Germany had in service only eleven small submarines and supporters of the German surface fleet with contempt regarding the doctrine of development of the submarine fleet, developed by Deniz. But the admiral was a very stubborn man, he was able to report so much about his developments to Hitler, that he received from him full approval and huge money for their implementation. By the beginning of hostilities Germany had 57 modern submarines in service. And during the Second World War, the Germans built another 1153, well-equipped, submarines. They sank about two hundred warships and three thousand ships of the USSR allies. In addition, at the request of Denitz, special submarines were also built, capable of sailing in the Arctic and especially near the Soviet northern coast.

Of course, these submarines needed special and well-equipped bases, where submarines could undergo technical inspection and repairs, the crew could rest and replenish their ammunition. It was also required to provide these bases with a stable connection with the German command. Even for the uninitiated in subtle actions of the submarine fleet it was clear that with the planned radius of action of German submarines near the Arctic coast (that's about eight thousand miles!), Boats could not be swimming for a long time without going to bases. Relying on the results of the "scientific" expedition carried out by German military specialists at the Graf Zeppelin, Denis proposed the creation of several secret bases in the Soviet northern territories for servicing submarines. He chose several deserted places in the estuaries of Soviet northern rivers. Deniz was well aware of the fact that the Arctic Soviet border was practically not guarded - and from whom, then, was it necessary to guard the vast expanses covered with ice?

Denis's ideas showed their relevance when the Allies sent their convoys to Murmansk. Before the German submarine fleet, the task was to block the artery, through which the USSR was supplied with food, weapons and strategic materials by the Allies. Convoys were mercilessly attacked by German aviation, the Wehrmacht's surface fleet was hunting for them, and also submarines based on secret Arctic bases were attacked. Soviet sea hunters have repeatedly witnessed that submarines suddenly disappeared in the northern seas, and no one could understand - where?

The fathers of the German submarine fleet, Admiral Raeder and Deniz were confident that their secret bases would never be found by Soviet sailors and aviation, especially from the scouts of the base's allies, reliably shielded the Abwehr.

According to the data available in the open press, the construction and equipment of secret bases in the territory covered with ice and in permafrost were conducted by Todt's divisions. Admiral Denitz, whose headquarters was stationed in Paris, personally supervised the work in the Arctic. It was about several secret bases that could, if necessary, duplicate each other. Materials, equipment and workers were delivered to the construction site on submarines. The Germans had the experience of erecting such objects in ice conditions - during the First World War, Italian, German and Austrian troops built military structures in the ice of the Alps: bunkers, galleries and tunnels were built there.

It was very difficult for the Soviet armed forces to find out German secret bases on their Arctic territories - the Third Reich knew how to keep their secrets. In such remote areas as the Arctic, Soviet aircraft practically did not appear: fuel, during military operations on the fronts, was worth its weight in gold, so flights over desert territories were considered inexpedient.

Soviet special services only after the victory over Germany received information on the existence of bases of German submarines on the territory of the Soviet Arctic. It is not excluded that they were told about by prisoners of war, who no longer had any reason to hide this information from the winners. Or were obtained from the archives of Admiral Doenitz, found among trophy documents. It is unlikely that the Soviet secret services would like to disclose information that they "missed" the construction and operation of German secret naval bases on its territory. Therefore, neither side was in a hurry to disclose this information.

In the 60s of the last century, information was received that residents on one of the islands at the mouth of the famous Siberian river - Lena, discovered one of the German military bases. But the expedition was never sent there - it seems that the Soviet leaders did not have the desire to explore this object. No one was interested in the information that barrels are found among the barrels delivered by Americans in the USSR under the Lend-Lease contract on Taimyr and on the Dixi coast, along which the German eagle with a swastika is clearly visible. Well, suppose - they accidentally brought the sea. Then how to explain the following finds - on the coast of Taimyr, where the territory of permafrost, hunters and geologists find badges with a swastika, dishes "decorated" with symbols of the Third Reich and other items?

Arctic mysteries of the Nazis are still not open. Perhaps there were not only naval secret bases of the Germans. After all, untold treasures of the Reich have not yet been found. But they could be delivered to the secret northern bases by numerous German submarines.

Secrets of the treasure of the Third Reich
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According to the magazine Spiegel, recently conducted treasure searches showed that in the German village of Deutschendorf on the border with the Czech Republic at a depth of 20 meters there is an artificial cave, in which about two tons of gold are hidden!

Treasures under the spell

"The researchers used heavy construction equipment for excavation, but they were not themselves inside the hiding place, they base their conclusions on the results of electromagnetic analysis, which is without a doubt not iron," said Heinz-Peter Haustein, a participant in the expedition. "This gold, maybe silver, looted during the war by the Nazis. On our assumptions, this is gold, which will open the way to another hiding place."

... Treasures of the Third Reich for more than sixty years do not give rest to adventurers. For example, in the Austrian lake Toplitz, the next, perhaps two hundredth, search of gold of the Nazis will soon begin. According to experts, the bottom sediments of mud in the lake can hide dozens of valuable treasures with gold and diamonds. True, a reasonable question arises: why they have not yet been found? Or rumors about the treasure is nothing more than a legend?

Interest in the lake, whose depth is 103 meters, from the amateur treasure hunters fairly, replenishes the local treasury. At the same time, local authorities are tired of constantly catching the bodies of drowned adventurers.

"Behind Lake Toplitz has long been established a bad name, people say that it is guarded by secret commandos from among former SS men who are constantly watching the" sacred legacy "of the Nazis."

Many experts who are involved in the history of the Third Reich, for several decades have been engaged in a rather lively discussion on the mysteries of Hitler's gold. Among others, they speculate that many of the treasures of the Nazis, and particularly the notorious "black order" of the SS, turned into treasure at the end of World War II, are sworn.

One of the main arguments in favor of this assumption is the undoubted and constant interest experienced by the leaders of the Third Reich in the occult sciences and subjects. They created secret, super-secret occult societies and institutions, sent expeditions to the Himalayas and to Tibet, believed in the transmigration of souls and seriously engaged in astrology.

The places of burial of the main Nazi treasures are at least approximately known. That is, the search circle is rather limited. But even with the help of ultramodern search technology, they have not yet been found.

There is another point of view: Nazi treasures are not found not only because of the spell imposed on them, but also because they have been carefully guarded for decades. And the old guard is replaced by a new, younger generation of Nazis.

In favor of the version about the protection of former SS treasures, evidence of the deaths of many people who tried to penetrate into the secrets of Nazi gold.

Riddle of Lake Toplitz

The dark and deep waters of Lake Toplitz fascinate, not giving rest to more than one generation of adventurers. Situated between mountain peaks of 2000 to 3000 meters in height, 15 kilometers to the north-east of Bad Aussee in a remote area, the lake bears the seal of a curse.

It covers, as they say, one of the most significant of the world's known treasures. Governments do not disregard the existence of supposed wealth, especially those adventurers who, it seems, long ago abandoned a quiet life and are sometimes ready to give up for the sake of achieving their goal from life in general.

"Around this treasure," writes the famous French historian Robert Sharrou, "politics and occultism are closely intertwined, and the legend about him originates in the last hours of World War II. In April 1945, about a thousand trucks designed to transport the wealth of the Reich, went to the mountainous regions of Austria, to a secret destination. "

And just a few months later, former Lieutenant Franz Gottlich, who participated in concealment of treasures in Austria, made a sensational confession on one of the interrogations made public: "Russian prisoners buried and drowned 30 boxes filled with gold, rare precious stones and objects luxury ... I know this because I was there. "

The signal was given! And in the vastness of Austria, a wave of treasure hunters, just barely having to collect their bags on the road. Gottlich himself was found dead immediately after his confession in the prison cell.

His brother, Johann Gotlich, who demanded a thorough investigation of Franz's death, soon received a mysterious message, in which he was advised to shut up unobtrusively. Johann did not pay attention to the threat and disappeared after several days under unclear circumstances.

February of 1946 year. On the mountain Rauhfang rise three experienced climber - Helmut Mayer, Ludwig Pichler and Hans Haslinger. The goal is to find hidden treasures. Haslinger, sensing something amiss or knowing the danger, returned a day later from the middle of the road. A month later, when news of the climbers did not arrive, the rescuers set off on a quest and soon found a hut laid out of snow, and next to two dead bodies. Pichler's stomach was ripped open, and his stomach pushed into his backpack. The crime remained undisclosed.

The summer of 1952. Nazi hiding places in the Styrian Alps go looking for a geography teacher from France Jean de Soz. He was found dead, and with him there was neither a backpack nor tools for searching. Not far from the corpse was found a fairly deep freshly excavated pit. When it was covered with earth from the dump, there was not enough land (and this despite the difference in the density of the hard soil that De Soz dug and the loose earth that the pier was showered with). The conclusion suggests itself: de Sauz found something for which he paid with his life.

The autumn of 1952 was marked by a series of deaths. In the mountains in the area of ​​Lake Toplits go Hamburg engineer Kepler and Gert Gerns, a professional climber. Gerns breaks into the abyss, Kepler gives testimony about the accident that happened, and then suddenly disappears. Relatives of the deceased climber conduct their own investigation, during which it is discovered that Kepler served in the SS during the war and was the head of the secret submarine base.

A few weeks later on the shore of Lake Toplits find the bodies of former officers of the SS Special Division for underwater operations and three US Navy officers. It is not excluded, investigators conclude, that the latter could kill a friend of a friend in the battle between the seekers of the treasure and his defenders.

The beginning of the autumn of 1963. Under mysterious circumstances, 19-year-old German Alfred Egner, a great diving specialist, is drowning in Lake Toplitz.

A year later, death is overtaken by another underwater treasure hunter - Walter Niggl, but this chain of deaths naturally does not close. To date, in the lake and next to him, several dozen treasure hunters have died under more than strange circumstances.

The American expedition, undertaken on Lake Toplits in July 1959, was forced to put the existence of the treasure in doubt. With the assistance of the FBI and with the help of a team of German specialists equipped with ultrasonic probes and television cameras, American servicemen began to methodically examine the bottom of the lake. Despite the thick layer of silt that hampers the survey, at depths of 70-80 meters they managed to find 16 boxes.

However, the joy of discovery was immediately replaced by surprise and disappointment: in the boxes instead of gold were only packs of false francs!

"In 2001, the US television company CBS conducted large-scale works on the lake, and the most advanced technology was used to study the bottom - the deepwater Phantom bathyscaphe." The treasure hunters surveyed the entire lake and found nine galvanized boxes weighing about 100 kilograms at a depth of 80 meters. Finally, gold? "In the boxes, as in 1959, only fake banknotes were found."

Perhaps, that is why during these two expeditions no one died. Secret counterparts of Nazi treasures, fake money to anything!

Aliens, pyrokinesis and "burning gold"

They tried to look for Nazi treasures in South America, in the mountains of Peru, where, according to rumors, a secret Nazi base was laid at the end of the war. As a result, several Americans disappeared without trace, having an "absolutely accurate" map. Most likely, she led them not to treasure, but to death.

Seven tons of gold, hidden in one of the Canary Islands, also claimed the lives of those who tried to discover the "treasures of the Reich", and the circumstances of the deaths are more than mysterious. Up to sudden landslides, when the soil opened under your feet and took away the victims, and cases when treasure hunters were abducted by "aliens".

One of such mystical stories occurred in the summer of 1962. Then eleven Americans arrived on the Canary Island of Hierro. The very first evening they began to tell local fishermen that they came to look for "gold fascists". Accustomed to such tourists, they waved their hands on them, but after a few days treasure hunters stopped coming to them for provisions.

Alarmed aborigines hurried to the camp of Americans and saw a terrible picture: treasure seekers, dead, but without a single wound on the body, lay in the most incredible poses on earth, with the exception of one that turned out to be alive, but for a strange reason blinded and numb. Later, he died in terrible agony at a local hospital, having managed to write only two words - "burning gold."

A lot of unusual and terrible things have happened and are still happening around the Kurmanish Iranian treasure.

At the end of December 1943 a special group of SS men headed by Hauptsturmfuhrer Kurmis was sent to the territory of Iran. The group carried a large stock of gold for bribery of Iranian officials and South Iranian feudal lords.

When Kurmis felt (about his intuition there were legends, and he was today called a psychic - clairvoyant) that at the heels of his group there is a Soviet detachment of the NKVD, he, slipping away from the chase, buried in the sands of South Iran several containers of gold and, apparently, a deadly spell on the treasure. Otherwise, what else can be explained that the treasures that many knew about, and the approximate place of their burial are known both to local residents and to the authorities, has not yet been found?

In the burial area, which has long been considered a "bad place" for locals, there was a temple of the pre-Iranian Negro population of Iran, shepherds and tourists regularly disappeared. In 1975, the British treasure hunter and psychic Benjamin Ricrock, who found the Kurmis diaries, arrived at the alleged burial site of the treasure, first began to complain to guides about severe headaches and nightmares, and then suddenly went insane.

Through the efforts of the doctors, consciousness returned to him, but on the same day he spontaneously ignited, and the hospital dressing gown that was on it remained intact, and a pile of charred bones was found beneath the robe. A real pyrokinesis, the nature of which science is incapable of unraveling!

Another time, an amateur photographer from Tehran made a photo shoot in South Iran, near the place where the treasure of Kurmis is hidden. When he showed the film, his eyes showed something, why he suddenly turned gray and died soon. The case, according to experts, is quite characteristic when photographing "sworn" places.

Corsican containers by Rommel

The searchers of the Nazi treasures in Argentina, Bolivia and even on the coast of Corsica, where the famous "Rommel treasures" are still lying on the seabed, perished and disappeared without a trace.

In the spring of 1943, Hitler's command transferred Erwin Rommel, commander of the German expeditionary force in North Africa, to Italy, where several containers with the stolen goods on the Black Continent were sent to him.

Cargo, according to Soviet scholar S. Venetsky safely done a sea route from Tunisia to Corsica, but to make a further journey by sea containers have not resulted: American aircraft bombed the German court, and the SS men guarding the valuable baggage, had to quickly decide what to do with it further . Headed by a security team, Obersturmbannfuhrer Schmidt decided to hide the bulk of the treasure in the sea near the Corsican coasts. At the bottom six steel containers with gold bars and precious stones left. The other part of the stolen - mainly currency - was nevertheless managed to be delivered to the mainland and buried in Italy, in the vicinities of Viareggio.

Two years later, Schmidt was in the camp of Dachau, where the Americans kept the war criminals who were in their zone. Among the prisoners was a certain Flague, to whom Schmidt, for some unknown reason, told of the hidden treasures.

Soon, Schmidt was shot, and in order to speed up his release from the camp, Fligg decided to share with the camp authorities of the secret Italian part of the treasure, and leave himself the hope of finding some time African gold.

The deal took place. The Americans found pounds and dollars hidden in Italy, and, as promised, they released Fliga.

On the coast of Corsica, Flag arrived in the summer of 1948 and immediately proceeded to work. But he was in for a bitter disappointment: several weeks and thousands of dives at sea did not bring any results. The desperate Fleming turned off the expedition and left Corsica.

However, his underwater searches did not go unnoticed. In 1952, the local diver Elle and the lawyer Cancelliere chartered the yacht to go there to where he "trained" in the diving of Fligh, and follow his example. But their intentions, apparently, did not fit into anyone's plans: at the exit from the port water area, a much more solid ship crashed into their yacht "accidentally", for some reason deviated from the course, and the searchers of the underwater treasures barely survived. However, for a short while: just a few months Elle died under obscure circumstances during diving operations, and after a while the car Kanchelliery suddenly lost control and at full speed rammed a brick wall - he immediately died.

Five years later, again, "remembered" about the treasures of Flag, who all this time lived in one of the German towns. However, having heard about the tragic fate of the Corsican hunters, he decided in any case not to leave Germany, and to the coast of Corsica sent his attorney Feller, providing it with a map, which he once inherited from Obersturmbahnführer Schmidt.

The lawyer, who made a small group of lovers of underwater treasure hunting, searched secretly, but, as it turned out, not for everyone. Feller received a short note: "Mr. lawyer! I do not advise you to interfere with the story of Rommel's treasure. Do you have a lot of dead? This gold is OUR. Your friends".

Who are these "friends"? On this account, one could only speculate, but the work, although full of risk, did not want to collapse. "Sea Diver" yacht, on which the searchers of the underwater treasure were, continued combing the territory of the sea from early morning to evening, and then suddenly mysteriously disappeared! Forever, together with the whole crew ...

At the end of last year, British researcher Terry Hodgkinson said he knew the exact location of Field Marshal Rommel's treasures. He claims that gold rests on the seabed at a distance of just under the sea mile from the Corsican city of Bastia.

"We are confident in the location, but to raise the treasure, the most advanced equipment will be needed, since the containers that were once welded among themselves, for sure, now lie separately and went deep into the sand," said the treasure hunter.

"According to him, the only way to get to the treasure - suck demersal ground, but it is very expensive and requires a lot of time Who will finance the project, it is not clear Although, in the end, for sure there are daredevils who once again will try to overcome the mystical spell.. Nazi treasures."

Be that as it may, experts are not tired of warning that the secret treasuries of the Third Reich are only available to the initiated. Or anyone...

The Führer's missile salvoes
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Long before World War II, the Nazi leadership of Germany got acquainted with the report on the prospects for the development of rocketry. To be more precise, the top of the National Socialist Workers' Party of Germany knew about the promising possibilities of creating a military missile weapon even before Hitler came to power. Therefore, as soon as Adolf Hitler became a Reich chancellor and dealt with his enemies in "The Night of Long Knives", his gaze turned to the creation of a powerful missile weapon. Now he could issue public funds and create a missile program.

Initially, the German designers intended to create something like a modern cruise missile - a hybrid of a jet without a pilot and an explosive bomb. The charge was assumed to be equivalent to a ton of TNT: according to calculations, this would allow serious damage to enemy objects and destroy a significant amount of manpower. In the case of bombing, such a missile was capable of destroying a small city to its foundations.

At the initial stage, all the developments were carried out theoretically, on the "drawing boards", and to practical tests began only in 1933-1934: then the Nazis managed to launch into the sky a 100-kilogram rocket. Despite the fact that Soviet intelligence had good operational positions in those years and had solid sources of information about the creation of new types of weapons by the Germans, practically all the "rocket work" remained unknown to the Russians!

The Nazis attached serious importance to securing the development and testing of new missile technology. The observance of the strictest secret of the project was vigilantly followed by the Himmler department, although the Reichsführer did not directly supervise the work then. Moscow for a very long time did not know anything about German developments and tests, so there were no reconnaissance operations in this respect - it was not possible to find any mention of them. Undoubtedly, this is a very large miscalculation of the leadership of the state security of the pre-war period and the military intelligence of the USSR. Otherwise, if the Soviet intelligence had already known in advance about the German missile projects, this would have been reported for a long time even in the open press - this is an undoubted and gigantic success on the secret front of the struggle with the most dangerous enemy, greatly raising the prestige of Soviet intelligence agencies. However, the Germans managed to outplay Soviet spies.

When Hitler got acquainted with the results of the test and visited the test site himself, he was delighted and called the missiles the weapon of the future. Taking advantage of the favorable moment, the minister of industry and scientists asked the Fuhrer for money.

"What, money?" Hitler raised his voice. - What can be talk about money ?! Financing of the missile project from today is extraordinary! You will receive everything.

In 1937 Adolf Hitler discovered a large scientific and design program for the creation of the Reich's missile weapon. At the head of the new direction, the young Baron Werner von Braun, who was considered a very promising designer and scientist with bold ideas, was checked on all sides. Brown at that time was only a quarter of a century old, and he was delirious with the ideas of the Russian scientist Tsiolkovsky about the exploration of outer space, dreaming to send to the stars the first German interplanetary expedition.

Hitler and his inner circle set themselves more earthly tasks: they wanted to quickly get a new powerful weapon capable of putting the world on its knees before the Nazis. Therefore, in the Third Reich, they tried to create a strong design office, which, in addition to von Braun, included such excellent specialists in the development of rocket technology as Kurt Debus, Arthur Rudolf, and Walter Dornberger.

The first modifications of the A-3 missile were made and tested in Kummersdorf, but serious accidents and powerful explosions at the test site quickly made it clear: it is necessary to quickly find a quieter place and away from other people's eyes and ears. Himmler gave the order to find such a place in the most urgent order, and a few days later he was informed that the island of Usedom in Ostsee would be best suited - since the Germans had long called the Baltic Sea. In this remote, forgotten corner of the island, on an island near the coast there was a small village of Peenemünde, later known to all who were interested in the history of rocket science and the Third Reich.

During this period, Heinrich Himmler actively engaged in the creation of top secret caches, so he immediately proposed urgently to erect powerful underground concrete structures on Usedom, which military builders did. The entire island was surrounded by several rows of barbed wire, prepared new launching sites, and the work on the creation and testing of the Fergeltung-Vozmezdie rockets, from which their code name "Vau", code-named Fergeltung, appeared, began to boil again. The high authorities visited Peenemünde quite often and often "pulled" von Braun to Berlin. The distance from the capital to the test site was just over two hundred kilometers.

The designers, led by the young and ambitious Werner von Braun, worked gambling, ignoring the times, and got almost everything they needed. Nevertheless, the Germans were constantly harassed by technical failures of various kinds. By the beginning of the Second World War, they had never succeeded in creating in all respects a reliable and easy-to-control missile for active use in combat conditions. "V-1" could not overcome the flying ceiling of a thousand meters, had insufficient maneuverability and speed, so it was easily knocked down by enemy air defense aircraft and antiaircraft guns still on approach to the target.

- I gave them everything! - once evil was said by Hitler at the end of the forty-first year. "What did you get in return?" Some empty promises? We do not have time to wait that long!

Nevertheless, Hitler had to have patience and wait for almost a whole year, until in October 1942 Wernher von Braun triumphantly reported to the Fuhrer:

- The tests of the new guided missile were successful. The goal is exactly amazed. Weight charge eight hundred and fifty kilograms. "V-2" is ready to strike at the enemy.

"It's a miracle weapon!" Rejoiced Hitler. "I'll make the damned England kneel down." We now do not need to land the landing on the British Isles, they will surrender!

Hitler rushed to the test site: he wanted to see with his own eyes a miracle-rocket. She was struck by imagination: weighing thirteen tons, fourteen meters long, invulnerable to airplanes and antiaircraft guns of enemy air defense. "V-2" climbed to a height of ninety kilometers and developed speed to thousands of six hundred kilometers per hour: all this for that time was simply fantastic. The Führer's explanations were given by Wernher von Braun, and Hitler did not fail to ask:

- What is the range of the flight of this thing? I hope she gets to Moscow?

"Unfortunately, no, my Führer," von Braun now hastened to gild the pill and divert the attention of the Fuhrer. - Because the fuel supply is limited. It is enough for a distance of four hundred kilometers. We can now bombard Paris or London with missiles.

- Well! Hitler chewed his hand cheerfully and laughed rather. "At last I hear good news!"

A crushing blow to the British capital was the Führer's longtime dream. Almost all emigre governments from the countries of Europe occupied by the Nazis settled there, and to finish with at least one of them would become an incredible political and military success. The new missile could make the Fuhrer's dream a reality. Still, it took a few more months to bring the prototype of the V-2 rocket to the required condition and prepare for the volleys in London. In August 1943, the Germans finally prepared everything for the bombing of the English capital with new weapons.

And then quite unexpected happened: at Peenemünde began the terrible raids of British aviation, which literally covered the island with Usedom bombs. The raid followed the raid - the British clearly set out to mix everything with the ground on a secret missile range.

The official version reads: British fighters who carried out reconnaissance flights accidentally found strange, obviously disguised structures on the island in the Baltic Sea and made their aerial photography. When the film showed and printed enlarged images, the specialists gasped: the scout planes filmed a secret German range of rocket technology. This was immediately reported to Sir Winston Churchill. He immediately realized what a terrible weapon Hitler could use. Possessing rockets, he could put on his knees not only England, but all Europe, and then the world! Therefore, the Prime Minister of Great Britain ordered to immediately destroy the range from the air.

In clear weather, the target was clearly visible, and the bombers of the English came to the island of Usedom wave after wave, and the fighters covered them. The British tried to glory, and they smashed Peenemünde, but until the end they could not destroy everything. By fulfilling Himmler's order, the concrete structures were built on conscience, and they stood even under bitter bombing. True, it was already impossible to use the test range for testing or launching missiles after English raids.

There is no doubt that the first violin was played by one of the oldest and most experienced intelligence services of the world, Intelligence Service, in discovering the German secret test site. But removing possible suspicions from their agents, the British declared: the German secret polygon was discovered by aerial reconnaissance. One would think that earlier English planes were never flying there! But then they clearly came out on purpose and conducted an aerial survey of a well-disguised secret object, and in London, the discerning Churchill immediately realized what it was.

Sir Churchill soon sent as a gift to Joseph Stalin colored transparencies from photographs of German special facilities destroyed by the British aircraft, and the "father of the peoples" heavily pressed for reconnaissance and simultaneously ordered the acceleration of work on the creation of new Soviet weapons.

After the furious English bombing of Peenemünde, Hitler ordered the production of missiles and all questions related to missile technology to be transferred to the Reichsführer SS Himmler. The secret meeting in Berlin, attended by Hitler and Himmler, was called von Braun. The Reichsfuhrer, who already had experience in creating top secret secrets, suggested moving everything to Thuringia, to a mountainous wooded area under a small town of Nordhausen, where the forces of prisoners of concentration camps were to build an underground city with a factory: in galleries pierced by a thick forest covered in a stone body of a mountain.

Soon work began, and suddenly, in March 1944, on Himmler's personal order, Werner von Braun was suddenly arrested! Hitler sharply expressed his bewilderment, but the Reichsfuehrer explained that the designer had stopped dealing with the matter and decided to develop a missile to deliver mail from America to Europe.

"Is he waiting for the Americans?" - understood Hitler.

Von Braun clearly would not have worn his head, but Minister Speer, for whom the Fuhrer favored, stood up for him. But the Gestapo no longer let down with all the eye designers. Finally, in the autumn of 1944, the construction of an underground plant was completed, and Hitler was able to give up the long-awaited order for the start of London's bombing of the V-2. According to official data, rocket firings of islands were carried out from the territory of Belgium and Holland. But the materials were already sorely lacking, Germany was choking without resources, funding had almost stopped: the secret factory for the production of "Fau" located at a depth of about sixty meters was frozen.

In anticipation of US troops von Braun and his closest collaborators fled and sat out in a hunting lodge in the Alps, and then surrendered to the winners. Learning who was in front of them, the Americans immediately transported von Braun and his colleagues to Garmisch Castle, where they were kept under strict guard and constantly conducted intensive interrogations. As a result of interrogations, immediate measures were taken, special search groups were hastily sent to various parts of Germany to seize documents, materials and search for people.

Soviet intelligence did not blunder: she managed to find out who and why is held in Garmisch, and through the kitchen workers to transfer proposals for cooperation to Werner von Braun and his colleagues. But they did not even answer. Apparently, the Soviet Union could not offer designers a tenth of what America had promised, and our orders and titles of "Heroes of Labor" did not interest the Germans at all. Soon they were transported to the United States in an atmosphere of strict secrecy. There von Braun, Debuss, Dornberger and Rudolf took direct part in the development and creation of a series of Saturn-type rockets and Apollo-series spacecraft.

It would seem that many people have already written about these people and events, and there are no secrets and mysteries left, but no one has ever been in an underground plant in Thuringia! Passages in the tunnel were blown up and filled up, and von Braun carried away many secrets and secrets with him, as did the SS curators who were engaged in missile technology. Almost all documentation on the missile projects of the Germans disappeared without a trace. The role of some foreign consultants, intelligence agents, and many more among countless secrets and mysteries of German rockets remained completely unclear...

Astrologers and the success of Hitler
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There are things that are interesting to everyone: from the bum to the president. This is how their future will turn out. We are talking about non-traditional methods of forecasting: astrology and clairvoyance, which have been and continue to be used by the leaders of human destinies, taking important, including military and political decisions.

With the help of astrology, the Russian-Japanese war of 1904 was predicted, the riots of 1993, Stalin and Hitler listened to the advice of astrologers. And this is not surprising, people are fascinated by astrology, they are eager to know their future and to receive from the stars a warning about the threatening danger in order to avoid it or at least reduce its consequences.

Astrologers guarded the Fuhrer

Hitler showed great interest in esoteric sciences, Western and Eastern, and in general by nature was prone to mysticism. It is known that in 1923 one of the German astrologers advised the future Fuhrer not to take political action this fall.

As you know, the fascist putsch in Munich then failed. After that, Hitler revised his attitude to astrology. He especially encouraged the development of political astrology, which gave him advice on what military and political steps to take, at what time and where to strike, assessed the success and failure of certain plans.

At that time, the best astrologer was Hitler's personal adviser, clairvoyant Otto Ganussen. Apparently, he worked for the Fuhrer honestly and told him everything that allowed him to see his unusual gift.

But, as you know, the leaders love to be praised and even more like to blame their own mistakes on others. Ganussen drew Hitler pictures of cruel defeats, which lead to mistakes in politics and military plans, dared to even talk about the imminent defeat and division of Germany.

All this was not to the liking of the Fuhrer, he had already chosen his way and believed in his star. Ganussen fell into disgrace, and then was completely eliminated.

Soon the post of court astrologers was occupied by Karl Kraft and Louis de Wohl (Bill). "Fate wanted them to meet, get acquainted and even teach astrology at the same Biological Institute in Germany," writes our famous astrologer Felix Velichko. - They have developed their views on life, however, they are different. De Vol was a convinced Democrat, and Kraft sympathized with National Socialism. And then one day, analyzing the horoscope of Hitler, Kraft saw that in early November 1936 the Fuhrer was threatened with an attempt on his life.

Without thinking twice, Kraft sent Hitler a warning letter. While the letter overcame the bureaucratic slingshots of the Third Reich, wandering from one referent to another, an attempt was made on Hitler on November 8. But he was very lucky: a powerful bomb exploded in the premises of the Munich City Hall, when Hitler had already left. "

Only then did the Kraft's letter get into the hands of the Fuhrer; he penetrated to the astrologer with great confidence and began to listen to his advice.

Time passed, the paths of Kraft and de Volya separated. Shortly before the Second World War, de Voly managed to flee to Britain. In London, he offered his services to Churchill, saying that he worked for Hitler and could predict the course of the war. The thick, clever and never taking out cigar of the British premier had his own ideas on the course of the war, but the idea of ​​using a professional to determine the degree of influence of German astrologers on the ruling elite of Germany seemed tempting to him.

Intelligence informed the powerful prime minister that a whole institute of astrologers was working for the German leader. Churchill "put" on de Wola and won. The astrologer calculated that Hitler made a big mistake by attacking Russia on the setting moon. This meant that the war would end in defeat for Germany. In addition, de Wohl, knowing the methods of German astrologers and their logic, informed Churchill that the Führer's stargazers would predict the landing of the Allied forces in the Balkans.

The Allies were really going to strike the first blow there. It was a great insight, and Churchill immediately believed de Will: yes, that's exactly what will happen. He immediately called the General Staff and said: "Anything but the Balkans!" And the British military strategists, obedient to the will of the all-powerful prime minister, began to develop another attack plan: North Africa-Sicily-Italy, French province of Normandy.

To make the reconnaissance more convincing, the Germans threw the corpse of an allegedly British officer, whose tablet contained detailed plans for the landing of Allied forces in the Balkans. Thus, Hitler, through the chief of the German intelligence Canaris, received "confirmation" of the forecasts of astrologers. From that moment on, the best of the free divisions he held in the Balkans, preparing a worthy rebuff to the Glychans. Therefore, the new directions of attacks by enemy troops became completely unexpected for the Fuhrer.

He fell into a rage and ordered the execution of many German astrologers. Kraft was also arrested, but left alive: the Fuhrer then released him for further consultations, then planted again. But in the end Krafta suffered the fate of Ganussen (who died in the terrible concentration camp of Buchenwald in 1945), and his place was taken by other astrological advisers.

As already mentioned, special scientific institutes worked on Hitler, the research of which was aimed at harnessing not only natural but also supernatural forces into one harness - from modern technology to black magic. It was in such an institution that Wilhelm Woolf, who soon became the court astrologer of the Third Reich, was accepted in 1942, first working for Himmler, and later for the Führer.

In his memoirs, he wrote that Hitler was so serious about the predictions of astrologers that he forbade them to advise anyone other than himself: "We cannot allow astrologers to follow their own call, excluding those who work for us. Astrology is the lot of a privileged minority. "Wulf was assigned the role of the disgraced Ganussen and Kraft. Knowing about their fate, Wulf behaved cautiously and experienced the Third Reich.

The closer to the end of the war, the more difficult it was for astrologers to work with the Fuhrer - instead of objective predictions, he increasingly. I wanted news of a speedy victory. This is what drove him - astrologers were afraid to tell him the truth and drew the wrong optimistic forecasts.

The occult superproject of Hitler

"Anenerbe" ... the most mysterious of all mystical organizations in the post-industrial era. This is the only known structure, engaged in the study of magic and mysticism with the official support and financing of the state. At the "Anenerbe" Third Reich spent more money than the US to create nuclear weapons. "Anenerbe" was formed on the orders of Reichsführer SS Heinrich Himmler in 1935. Here are just some of the global issues that the "Anenerbe" dealt with:

1. Organization of expeditions to Tibet in order to find the legendary Shambhala and master the knowledge and technologies of the wise men hiding in this impregnable country (or monastery).

2. Hunting for ancient religious relics (the Spear of Destiny, the Ark of the Covenant, the Grail, etc.), which were considered to be of great mystical and physical strength.

3. Hunting for mystical knowledge and technologies of ancient civilizations (Atlantis, Egypt, America, etc.).

4. Study and attempts at practical application of all esoteric sciences (astrology, magic, etc.) for the benefit of the Reich.

5. Establishment of connection with higher forces and their use in achieving the goals of fascist Germany (referring to the mystical powers of the astral, fairy-tale creatures - elves, gnomes and the like).

6. Technical development and genetic engineering (based on ancient knowledge and modern achievements): nuclear, laser, rocket, bacteriological, chemical weapons, space flights, underwater cities, creation of werewolf werewolves, experiments on humans, etc.

7. Creation of secret bases for retreat at the end of the war - in South America and Antarctica. There are authors who claim that they have survived to this day. These hidden cities are described as colonies, similar to the fact that fantasy films are created by aliens. Neo-fascists who live there have huge scientific and technical potential, skills of black magicians and pose a huge threat to humanity.

Mysticism plus tank divisions

In March 1938, in a knight's castle near the town of Eisenach, in the atmosphere of strict secrecy, a meeting of the best astrologers and clairvoyants of the Third Reich discussed the future of Germany. Supervised by the event, the Minister of Propaganda Dr. Josef Goebbels (everything was organized with the approval of the Fuhrer, of course). Protecting astrologers and Goebbels SS unit and a special group of radio and radio technical intelligence officers of the Gestapo, equipped with the latest eavesdropping. Unfortunately, almost all of the entries and the participants themselves of that meeting have sunk into oblivion. But some survived told what was going on at the "Last Supper".

Then, in 1938, astrologers said that Germany was on the verge of a big war. And this year itself is very convenient for the disarmament of Czechoslovakia and the liberation of Sudeten and Bohemia. 1939 is favorable for the seizure of Poland. Warsaw will not receive support from its patrons, and it is best to defeat France in 1940.

As for the war with Russia, the most appropriate, in the opinion of the meeting participants, would be 1941 and 1946. Preferably still was 1941, as the industry and the armed forces of the USSR are becoming more powerful and by 1946 are so strong that the Reich with the Soviet Union cannot cope: the Russians will win on their own, without allies.

Astrologers even named the most convenient for the attack period - the second half of May 1941. All of them unanimously asserted that a war can and should be won in one summer campaign - not later than by the end of October.

But not everything seemed bright in the forecasts of astrologers and clairvoyants. There were a lot of those who dissuaded the leadership of the Reich from the war with the USSR. One astrologer "saw" the great losses of the Wehrmacht in the fall and winter of 1942 on the shore of a large Russian river, apparently, the Volga. Another "calculated" the death of 500,000 German soldiers in the fields of Russia in the summer of 1943.

Further more. Seeing that Goebbels does not touch daredevils, their colleagues emboldened and drew such a picture. The British and Americans will begin a real war with the Reich only in 1943 (in the south), and in 1944 - in the north. A military alliance between Russia, Britain and America is inevitable - they will be united by a common hatred of National Socialism, the Fuhrer and the Reich. However, 1946 will be a turning point in the relations between Washington, London and Moscow: former allies will again become enemies. Some warming will happen only after 1953, when Stalin will die.

And both of the most important events - the beginning of the hostility of the Western allies with Russia and the death of the Soviet leader will occur 8 and 15 years after this meeting, that is, in 1946 and in 1953. Indeed, Winston Churchill delivered a speech marking the beginning of the "cold war" in 1946, and Stalin died in 1953...

Goebbels, in an effort to get the most information, condescendingly praised the astrologers and asked: "What will be the outcome of the coming war for Germany?" Here astrologers and clairvoyants had the intelligence to slander, and they vaguely promised that in the end the country would follow a new path. This will happen in May 1945; while the country's borders will change.

Hitler was not as lenient as Goebbels. After reading the reports of the meeting, he threw the papers into the fireplace in anger and ordered many astrologers to be sent to concentration camps, and those who said that Germany would lose the war (it will be divided into two parts, exist in this state for 44 years, and then unite), the Führer ordered shoot.

But even he could not change the fate and will of the stars. May 1945 actually confirmed all the forecasts of the best astrologers in Germany. The Soviet Army liberated the peoples of Europe from the "brown plague."

Afterword

I hope this book was useful to you and now you know more about the dark secrets of the Third Reich.

Sincerely, Dick Kerry
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